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FORM NO. CAA. 2
[Pursuant to Section 230 (3) and rule 6 and 7)]

BEFORE THENATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH
CA. (CAA)/2926/MB/2019

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013;

AND

IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 230
TO 232 READ WITH SECTION 66 AND SECTION 52 AND OTHER APPLICABLE
PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

AND

IN THE MATTER OF COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN
ARSHIYA LIMITED AND ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS.

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited, a company
incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956
and having its registered office at 302, Ceejay House, Level-
3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli,
Mumbai- 400018 Maharashtra, India.

-- Second Applicant Company/ Resulting Company

NOTICE GIVEN PURSUANT TO THE ORDER DATED 26™ FEBRUARY, 2021 OF THE
NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH

To,
The all the Secured Creditors of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“Resulting Company”)

TAKE NOTICE that by an order dated 26" February, 2021 (“Order”), the Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal has
directed a meeting to be held of the of secured creditors of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“Resulting Company”) for the purpose
of considering, and if thought fit, approving with or without modification, the arrangement proposed to be made between the Arshiya
Limited (“Demerged Company”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“Resulting Company”) and theirrespective shareholders and
creditors (“Scheme”) under Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In pursuance of the said Order and as directed therein further notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Secured Creditors of the
said company will be held at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018,
Maharashtra on Saturday, the 20th March, 2021 at 1:00 P.M. (1300 Hours) at which time and place the said Secured Creditors are
requested to attend.

At the meeting, following resolution will be considered and if thought fit, be passed, with or without modification(s):

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013, applicable rules and regulations made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force), the Securities and Exchange Board of India’s Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10,
2017 (as amended from time to time), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (as may be amended from time to time), No objection letter / observation letters dated 15" Day of July, 2019 and
12" Day of July, 2019 issued by the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and the BSE Limited, respectively, relevant provisions of
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, and subject to sanction/approval(s) of National Company Law Tribunal
(“NCLT”), and such other approvals, sanctions and permissions of other regulatory or government bodies /tribunals or institutions as may
be applicable, and subject to such conditions and modification(s) as may be prescribed or imposed by NCLT or by any regulatoryor
other authorities, while granting such consents, approvals and permissions, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the
Company/Resulting Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”), the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya Limited
(“Demerged Company”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“Resulting Company”)(presently wholly owned subsidiary company of




the Demerged Company) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”), which provides for the demerger of the “Domestic
Business Undertaking” (as defined in the Scheme) and transfer and vesting thereof into the Resulting Company, a copy of which is
enclosed with this notice and placed before this meeting and initialled by the Chairperson or the Alternate Chairperson of the meeting, as
the case may be, for the purpose of identification, be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may, in its absolute
discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to this resolution and effectively implement the Scheme and
to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, which may be required and/or imposed by NCLT while
sanctioning the Scheme or by any authorities under law, including passing of such accounting entries and/or making such adjustments in
the books of accounts as considered necessary in giving effect to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper, and to settle any
question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in respect of aforesaid without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the
equity shareholders of Company or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly
by the authority of this resolution.”

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that in compliance with the provisions of Section 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Resulting Company
has provided the facility of voting by ballot/polling paper at the venue of the meeting to be held on Saturday, 20th March, 2021.

NCLT has appointed Mr. Ajay Shankarlal Mittal, Director of the Resulting Company as the Chairperson and failing him, Mr. Ashishkumar
Bairagra, Independent Director of the Resulting Company as the Alternate Chairperson of the said Meeting, including for any
adjournment or adjournments thereof.

Copies of the Scheme and of the Explanatory Statement, under Sections 230, 232 and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6
of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, along with the enclosures as indicated in the Index,
can be obtained free of charge at the registered office of the Resulting Company at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar
Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018, Maharashtra India or at the office of its Authorised Representative, Aabid &
Co, Company Secretaries, at 302, 3" Floor, 22 Business Point, Opposite Andheri Subway, Next to DCB Bank, S. V. Road, Andheri (W),
Mumbai - 400 058, Maharashtra, India.

The above mentioned Scheme, if approved by the meeting, will be subject to subsequent approval of the NCLT.

A copy of the Explanatory Statement, the said Composite Scheme of Arrangement and other enclosures including the Form of Proxy and
Attendance Slip are enclosed and form part of the notice and can be obtained free of charge from the registered office of the Company.

For Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited.

Sd/-
Ajay S Mittal
Chairman appointed for the meeting

Date: 26t February, 2021
Place: Mumbai

Registered Office: 302, Ceejay House, Level-3,
Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai - 400018




Notes:

1.

Only Secured Creditors of the Resulting Company may attend and vote (either in person or by proxy)at the Secured Creditors
meeting. The representative of body corporate which is a Secured Creditor of the Resulting Company may attend and vote at
Secured Creditors Meeting provided a certified true copy of the resolution of the Board of Directors or other governing body of
the body corporateis deposited at the registered office of the Resulting company not less than 48 (forty eight) hours before the
time fixed for the aforesaid meetings.

All alterations made in the form of proxy should be initialed.

The Statement under Sections 230(3), 232(1) & (2) and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 is annexed hereto.

The notice, Explanatory Statement together with the accompanying documents, is being sent to the Secured Creditors as on 31st
December, 2020 in electronic form or the physical copy of the same by the permitted mode.

The quorum of the meeting of the Secured Creditors of the Company shall be Five (5).

In terms of the directions contained in the Order and in compliance with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules 2014, the advertisement will be published in ‘Active Times’ in English language and translation thereofin
‘Mumbai Lakshadeep’ in Marathi Language, circulated in the State of Maharashtra indicating the day, date, place and time of the
meeting and stating that the copies of the Scheme can be obtained free of charge on all working days (except Saturdays, Sundays
and public holidays) during 10:00 AM to 5:00 PM from the registered office of the Company.

NCLT has appointed, Mr. Mohammed Akram, (ACS 22589 C.P. NO. 9411), Practicing Company Secretaries, as the Scrutinizer to
scrutinize the voting through e-voting process, through postal ballot and voting at the venue of the Meeting.

The Scrutinizer, shall on conclusion of the meeting, unblock the votes in the presence of at least 2 (two) witnesses not in
employment of the Company. Thereafter, the Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairman of the Meeting, after completion
of scrutiny of votes cast by the creditors of the Company through ballot. The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the votes shall
be final. The results of the voting on the resolution(s) set out in the Notice will be announced on or before 22nd March, 2021. The
results, together with the Scrutinizer’s report, will be displayed on the notice board of the Company at its registered office, on the
website of the Company viz. www.arshiyalimited.com.
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FORM NO. CAA. 2
[Pursuant to Section 230 (3) and rule 6 and 7)]

BEFORE THENATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH
C.A. (CAA)/ 2926/MB/2019

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013;

AND

IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 230
TO 232 READ WITH SECTION 66 AND SECTION 52 AND OTHER APPLICABLE
PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

AND

IN THE MATTER OF COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN
ARSHIYA LIMITED AND ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited, a company incorporated under the
provisions of Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered office At 302, Ceejay
House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai-
400018 Maharashtra India

----Second Applicant Company/Resulting Company

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 230,232 AND 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 6 OF THE

COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 (“EXPLANATORY STATEMENT")

1.

Pursuant to the order dated 26t February, 2021 (“Order”), passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai
Bench (the “NCLT”) in Company Application Number 2926 of 2019 filed jointly by Arshiya Limited (“Demerged Company”) and
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“Resulting Company”), a meeting of the Secured Creditors of the Resulting Company, is
being convened and is to be held on Saturday, 20t March, 2021 at the registered office of the Resulting Company at 302, Ceejay
House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018 Maharashtra India at 01:00 P.M.(1300
Hours), for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the proposed Composite
Scheme of Arrangement between the joint applicants (thatis, the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company) and their
respective shareholders and creditors (hereinafter referred toas the “Scheme”) under Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”). A copy of the Scheme setting out details of parties involved
in the proposed Scheme, Appointed Date, Effective Date, Share Entitlement Ratio etc,, is enclosed as Annexure A.

Capitalised terms used herein but not defined shall have the meaning assigned to them in the Scheme, unless otherwise stated.

In terms of the Order, quorum for the said meeting shall be 5 members. Further, in terms of the Order, the NCLT has appointed
Mr. Ajay Shankarlal Mittal, Director of the Resulting Company as the Chairperson and failing him, Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra,
Independent Director of the Resulting Company as the Alternate Chairperson of the said meeting, including for any adjournment
or adjournments thereof.

This Explanatory Statement is being furnished as required under Sections 230(3), 232(1) & (2) and 102 of the Act read with Rule
6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANIES

Arshiya Limited, (herein after called the “The Demerged Company” or “AL”) is a Listed Public Company, originally incorporated
under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956 on 3]July, 1981 as a Private Company under the name and style of IID Forgings
Private Limited. In the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 24" day of August, 1982 consent of the Members of the Company
has been accorded to change the name of the Company pursuant to conversion from Private Company to Public Company under
the name and style of “IID Forgings Limited”. Further in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 4" day of May, 2006 consent
of the Members of the Company has been accorded to change the name of the Company under the name and style “Arshiya
Technologies International Limited”. Further the Company on 28" day of September, 2007 has changed the name to “Arshiya
International Limited”. Further the Company on 5" day of September, 2013 the Company has changed the name under the name
and style of “Arshiya Limited”.




The Registered Office, email and website address of the Demerged Company is 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar
Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018 Maharashtra India, Email:info@arshiyalimited.com and Website: www.
arshiyalimited.com, respectively.

The main objects for which the Company was formed as set out in the Memorandum of Association are as following:

L.

IL.

1L

To carry on all or any of the business of designing, manufacturing, developing, improving, hiring, repairing, buying, selling
and dealing in forgings and castings of ferrous and non-ferrous materials and in any weight for any industry whatsoever,
including chilled and malleable castings, special alloy castings. Gunmetal castings, steel castings, gunmetal, copper, brass
and aluminum castings and foundry work.

To carry on the business of providing integrated supply chain and demand chain management services which interalia
includes services of air and ocean freight forwarding, cargo consolidation, project logistics air, sea and surface transportation,
shipping, chartering of vessels, warehousing, development and providing hubbing facilities at ports and strategic locations
development and providing port facilities, container freight stations, inventory and order management services, storage,
drumming, consignments at customs, development and providing import and export documentation services, distribution
services, analysis and consulting services to enhance supply chain/demand chain logistics, providing information technology
services to logistics and value added activities and for the aforesaid purposes to acquire or develop software solutions,
acquire on ownership or lease airplanes and ships, trucks, railway wagons and to build or acquire or take on lease tank
farms, warehouses, distriparks, container freight stations or develop infrastructure for above services including knowledge
Centre for imparting educational training for persons to attain, enhance professional competency in global logistics services.

To carry on the business of developing, operating and maintaining special economic zones (SEZs)/free trade and warehouse
zones (FTWZs), inland container depots (ICDs), industrial parks, logistic parks, warehouses, infrastructure or infrastructure
projects; and to act as contractors, builders, town planners, estate developers, engineers, land developers, land
consolidators, land scapers, estate agents, immovable property dealers and other allied and/or ancillary activities; and to
acquire, build, operate, buy, sell, lease, sub-lease, long lease, leave and license basis, consolidate, exchange, hire or otherwise;
lands, buildings, immovable property of any tenure or any interest in the same, SEZs, FTWZs, ICD, warehouses, houses, flats,
bungalows, commercial complexes, shopping malls, multiplexes, food courts and other ancillary and/or allied activities, on
the land of the company or other land or any immovable property whether belonging to the company or not; and to pull
down, rebuild, enlarge, alter any other conveniences and to deal with and improve, in India or abroad either bycompany or
with joint venture or in partnership or on sub-contract basis or otherwise.

To carry on the business of any type of transport/ logistic services including but not limited to setting up of rail infrastructure
/ network within India and abroad including buy, construct, sale, operates including movement of containers / goods trains
using any rail network; and also to acquire, procure, obtain, trade, lease/license or otherwise: container trains, rakes,
wagons, boggies; and to create, develop, sale, Purchase, trade or obtain on lease/license basis railway sidings, rail yards,
warehouses required for the business of the company and all allied and ancillary services / products related to that.

To carry on the business developing and maintaining container freight stations, warehousing infrastructure and services,
facilities for customs examination or any other regulator/ regulatory authority or department, EDI, empty container yard for
storage of shipping containers and other containers or materials; and to carry out repairs and refurbishment of containers,
truck, cargo and material handling equipment; and to provide transportation, warehousing, IT & IT infrastructure and
services, cold storage and other allied activities; and to provide services of distribution, reverse logistics, forward logistics,
supply chain management, value added services, repair and maintenance, manufacture, transportation, consultancy services;
and also to provide system/ software solutions, data analytics, acquire, take on lease, hire or otherwise, distribution centres,
trucks and material handling equipment as may be necessary to carry on the aforesaid business in India or abroad.

During the last 5 (five) years, there has been no change in the name, however the registered office of the Company was changed to
Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018 registered office 29" September,
2015. Also, the object clause of the Demerged Company was altered by insertion of addition in object clause on 7" November,
2016 which is as stated in point no. 6 above.

It may be noted that the Demerged Company is a public limited company and its securities are listed on BSE Limited (“BSE”) and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”).
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9.  The capital structure of the Demerged Company as on March 31, 2018 is as under:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital

Authorized capital

24,75,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2 each 49,50,00,000
1,10,00,000 Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 11,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

22,82,16,776 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid-up 45,64,33,552

There is no change in the Total Authorised Share Capital of the Company. However on 23" July, 2019 with the approval of
shareholders the Authorised capital of the Company is re-classified from Rs. 60,50,00,000 (Rupees Sixty Crores Fifty Lakhs only)
comprising of 24,75,00,000 (Twenty-Four Crore - Five Lakhs only) equity Shares of Rs. 2 (Rupees Two only) each and 1,10,00,000
(One Crore Ten Lakhs only) Zero Percent Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten only) each
to Rs. 60,50,00,000 (Rupees Sixty Crores Fifty Lakhs only) divided into 28,75,00,000 (Twenty - Eight Crores Seventy Five Lakhs
only) Equity Shares of Rs.2 (Rupees Two) each and 30,00,000 (Thirty Lakhs) Zero Percent Optionally Convertible Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten only) each.

The capital structure of the Demerged Company as on 6" December, 2019 is as under:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital
Authorized capital
28,75,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2 each 57,50,00,000
30,00,000 Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 3,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
24,60,44,665 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid-up 49,20,89,330
The capital structure of the Demerged Company as on 26th February, 2021 is as under:
Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital
Authorized capital
28,75,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2 each 57,50,00,000
30,00,000 Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 3,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
26,22,75,915 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 52,45,51,830

10. The names and addresses of the Promoters of the Demerged Company is provided below:

NAMES ADDRESS
Ajay S Mittal Mittal Bhavan 2, 3" Floor, 62-A, Peddar Road, Mumbai 400026
Archana A Mittal Mittal Bhavan 2, 3" Floor, 62-A, Peddar Road, Mumbai 400026

11. The list of directors of the Demerged Company as on 26t February, 2021 along with their names and addresses is provided

below:
List Of Director
SR | Name Of Director DIN Designation Address
No.
1 | Ashishkumar Bairagra 00049591 | IndependentDirector |44, Sadhana Building, B Road, Churchgate Mumbai
400020 Maharashtra India
2 | Manjari Ashok Kacker 06945359 | Independent Director |B-702, Beaumonde, Appa Saheb Marathe Marg,
Prabhadevi, Mumbai- 400025 , Maharashtra, India
3 | Ajay Shankarlal Mittal 00226355 Managing Director Mittal Bhavan 2, 3" Floor, 62-A, Peddar Road,

Mumbai 400026 Maharashtra India




12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Rishabh Pankaj Shah 00694160 Independent Director |Saranam Building, Block No. 7, 7% Road, Prabhat
Colony, Santacruz (East), Mumbai 400055
Maharashtra India

Archana Ajay Mittal 00703208 |Joint Managing Director | Mittal Bhavan 2, 3™ Floor, 62-A, Peddar Road,
Mumbai 400026 Maharashtra India
Ved Prakash 02988628 | Independent Director |L-1/1, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi - 16.

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited, (hereinafter referred to as “The resulting Company” or “ARIL") is a Public Limited Company
originally incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on 7% April, 2008.

The Registered Office, email and website address of the Demerged Company is 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar
Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018 Maharashtra India, Email:info@arshiyalimited.com and Website: www.
arshiyalimited.com respectively.

The main objects for which the resulting Company was formed as set out in the Memorandum of Association are as following:

L

IL.

1L

To carry on the business of setting up of Rail Infrastructure/Network within India and abroad including operations/
movement of Container/Goods Trains using Indian Railway Network and also to acquire, procure, obtain on lease/licence or
otherwise Container Trains, Rakes, Wagons, Boggies and Create, Develop or Obtain on lease/licence basis Railway Sidings,
Rail Yards, Warehouses required for the business of the Company.

To carry on the business predominantly in the Northern Region of India, of container freight stations which, inter-alia includes
setting up of bonded warehousing infrastructure and services, facilities for customs examination, EDI, empty container yard
for storage of shipping containers, repairs and refurbishment of containers, truck, cargo and material handling equipments,
transportation, non-bonded warehousing, IT & ITES infrastructure and services, warehousing, cold storage and other cargo
related activities.

To carry on the business of Transport & Handling of Containers/ Goods/ Network within India and abroad including
operations/movement of Container/Cargo/Goods Trains using India Railway Network and also to acquire, procure, obtain
on lease/licence or otherwise Container Trains, Rakes, Wagons, Boggies and Create, Develop or obtain on lease/ licence
basis Railway Sidings, Rail Yards, Warehouses required for the business of the Company.

There is no change in the name of the Resulting Company, however the registered office was changed on 27" October, 2015 to 302,
Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018 and the objects of the Resulting
Company was altered on 28™July, 2016 and thereafter on 9" March, 2017 by insertion of additional object clause. The altered
object clause of the Company is as stated in point No. 14 above.

It may be noted that the Resulting Company is a public limited company and its securities are not listed on any stock exchange.

The capital structure of the Resulting Company as on the 31 March, 2018 is given below:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)

Equity Share Capital

Authorized capital

45,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 450,000,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

42,384,417 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 42,38,44,170
The capital structure of the Resulting Company as on the 26t February, 2021 is given below:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)

Equity Share Capital

Authorized capital

61,500,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 615,000,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

59,671,569 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 596,715,690

The proposed capital structure of the Resulting Company post the completion of demerger will be as under:
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1.

2.

5.

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital

Authorized capital

32,52,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2 each 65,05,00,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

12,30,22,333 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid-up 24,60,44,666

The name and address of the Promoter(s) of the Resulting Company is provided below:

NAMES

ADDRESS

Arshiya Limited

302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018

The list of Directors of the Resulting Company as on 26th February, 2021 is provided below:

List Of Director
SR | Name Of Director DIN Designation Address
No.
1 | Ashishkumar Bairagra 00049591 Director |44, Sadhana Building, B Road, Churchgate Mumbai 400020
Maharashtra India
2 | NavnitJugal Kishore 00613576 Director |Flat No 114, Aakash Wing, Indraprasth Complex, Satya Nagar,
Choudhary Borivali West, Mumbai 400092 Maharashtra India
3 | Ajay Shankarlal Mittal 00226355 Director | Mittal Bhavan 2, 3™Floor, 62-A, Peddar Road, Mumbai 400026
Maharashtra India
4 | Rishabh Pankaj Shah 00694160 Director |Saranam Building, Block No. 7, 7* Road, Prabhat Colony,
Santacruz (East), Mumbai 400055 Maharashtra India

RELATIONSHIP SUBSISTING BETWEEN PARTIES TO THE SCHEME

The Resulting Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Demerged Company.

BOARD MEETING OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY AND THE RESULTING COMPANY FOR APPROVAL OF THE SCHEME

The Scheme has been unanimously approved by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company vide resolution passed in the
meeting held on 24" May, 2018. Out of total 6 (Six) Directors of the Demerged Company, 5 (Five) directors were present in the
Meeting, all of whom voted in favour of the resolution.

The details of voting by Directors on the resolution is as under:

NAME OF THE DIRECTORS DESIGNATION VOTED INFAVOR | VOTED AGAINST | ABSTAINED FROM
VOTING

Ashishkumar Bairagra Independent Director Yes NA NA

Tara Sankar Bhattacharya Independent Director Yes NA NA

Ajay Shankarlal Mittal Managing Director Yes NA NA

Mukesh Kacker Independent Director Yes NA NA

Archana Ajay Mittal Joint -Managing Director Yes NA NA

The Scheme has been unanimously approved by the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company vide resolution passed in the
meeting held on May 24, 2018. Out of total 4 (Four) Directors as on that date, 3(three) Directors of the Resulting Company were
present in the meeting, and voted in favour of the resolution. The details of voting by directors on the resolution is as under:

NAME OF THE DIRECTORS DESIGNATION VOTED INFAVOR | VOTED AGAINST | ABSTAINED FROM
VOTING

Ashishkumar Bairagra Independent Director Yes NA NA

Navnit Jugal Kishore Director Yes NA NA

Choudhary

Ajay Shankarlal Mittal Director Yes NA NA
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10.

11.

12.

13.

DETAILS OF THE SCHEME

The parties to the Scheme are the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company along with their respective shareholders and
creditors.

The “Appointed Date” of the Scheme is April 1, 2019. “Effective Date” means the last of the dates, if applicable, on which the
certified or authenticated copy of the order(s) sanctioning the Scheme passed by the National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT")
of Judicature at Mumbai, is filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. This date in only drawn to capture references to all
transactions undertaken between the Appointed Date and date of filing of the NCLT order with Registrar of Companies (“ROC”").
Thus, the same is not to be construed as the effective date for the purpose of Section 232(6) of the Act.

Share Exchange Ratio

The Resulting Company shall, without any further application or deed, for every 2 (two) fully paid-up equity shares of the
Demerged Company, issue and allot to each member of the Demerged Company whose name appears in the register of members
of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date or to his/her heirs, executors, administrators or the successors-in-title, as the
case may be, 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share of Rs 2 each, of the Resulting Company (‘New Equity Shares”).

Rationale for the Scheme and benefits of the Scheme as perceived by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company are:

e  Tointegrate / consolidate its DWA, RAIL, PFT & ICD business into ARIL, which would enable Arshiya to focus solely on FTWZ
Business ;

e To provide more flexibility in terms of creating business synergies in the Resulting Company i.e. ARIL, enable cost savings,
rationalizing capital requirements and optimizing utilization of valuable resources which will enhance management focus
on the different businesses being housed under separate entities, thereby leading to higher operational efficiency;

e To enhance value for the shareholders and allow focused strategy on expansion/ operation of both the FTWZ and the
Domestic Business independently;

e To achieve and fulfill their objectives more efficiently and economically and the same is also in the interest of all the
stakeholders.

Salient Features of the Scheme:

The Scheme provides for the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) to the Resulting Company.
There will be no change in the shareholding pattern of the Demerged Company. Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in
consideration of the demerger including the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking in the Resulting Company, the
Resulting Company shall, without any further application or deed, for every 2 (two) fully paid-up equity shares of the Demerged
Company, issue and allot to each member of the Demerged Company whose name appears in the register of members of the
Demerged Company as on the Record Date or to his/her heirs, executors, administrators or the successors-in-title, as the case
may be, subject to the provisions of Clause 7.4 of the Scheme, 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share of Rs 2 each, of the Resulting
Company (‘New Equity Shares’).Further, upon issue of the new equity shares to the Shareholders of the Demerged Company
on the record date, all existing equity shares held by the existing shareholders of the Resulting Company (i.e. not including the
shareholders of the Demerged Company on the record date), shall stand cancelled, without any further act or deed.

The equity shares to be issued pursuant to the Scheme in the Resulting Company will be listed with BSE Ltd. and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

Details of capital or debt restructuring, if any: Basis the share exchange ratio mentioned above, the shareholders of the Demerged
Company shall be provided with shares of the Resulting Company in the ratio of 2:1 and the shares held by the Demerged Company
in the Resulting Company shall be extinguished.

Amount due to secured creditors as on 31st December, 2020:

CREDITORS NO. OF CREDITORS AMOUNT DUE
Secured Creditors 17 11,21,45,73,467/-

APPROVALS/ SANCTIONS/NO-OBJECTIONS FROM REGULATORY OR GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITY RECEIVED OR PENDING

The BSE Limited was appointed as the designated stock exchange by the Demerged Company for the purpose of co-ordinating
with the SEBI, pursuant to the SEBI Circular.
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14.

15.

16.

17.

The Demerged Company received “no adverse observation letter” and “no-objection letter” from BSE and NSE respectively, each
dated 12" Day of July, 2019 and 15" Day of July, 2019 respectively, conveying their “no adverse observations” and “no-objection”
for filing the Scheme with NCLT.

Copies of the aforesaid “no-objection letter” and “no adverse observations letter” of NSE and BSE, respectively, are enclosed as
Annexure B (I) and Annexure B (II).

Asrequired by the SEBI Circular, the Demerged Company had filed the complaint report with BSE and NSE on. The reportindicated
that the Demerged Company has not received any complaints. A copy of the complaint report submitted by the Demerged
Company to BSE and NSE, dated 17" Day of November, 2018 and 14" Day of May, 2019 is enclosed as Annexure C.

The Demerged Company has also filed the compliance report with BSE and NSE and is enclosed as Annexure D.

Effect of Scheme on various Parties

A.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)

None of the Directors and key managerial personnel of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company or their
respective relatives have any interest in the Scheme except to the extent the (i) equity shares held by them in the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company directly or as a nominee; and/or (ii) Director(s) are common director(s) in the
two companies; and/or (iii) the Director(s), key managerial personnel and their respective relatives are the director(s),
partner(s), member(s) and/or beneficiary(ies) of the companies, firms, association of persons, bodies corporates and/or
trust, as the case may be, that hold shares in the Demerged Company/ Resulting Company. There will be no adverse effect of
the Scheme on the directors and key managerial personnel of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company.

Promoters and Non - Promoter equity shareholders of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company

In compliance with the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company, in their meetings held on May 24, 2018, have adopted a report, inter alia, explaining the effect of the
Scheme on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel, directors, promoters and non-promoter shareholders.
Copy of the reports adopted by the respective Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are
enclosed as Annexure E.

Depositors
Neither the Demerged Company nor the Resulting Company have accepted any deposits.
Creditors and Debenture - Holders /Debenture Trustees

The debts pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking are taken over by the Resulting Company. Any charge, security interest,
lien, statutory lien or statutory charge pertaining to any assets of the Demerged Undertaking shall continue to have effect
only on the assets of the Demerged Undertaking in the Resulting Company and shall cease to have effect on the assets of the
Remaining Business. The debts pertaining to the Remaining Business (as defined in the Scheme) continue to be the debts or
liabilities of the Demerged Company. Accordingly, if any creditor has any charge, security interest, lien, statutory lien or
statutory charge on any of the assets or properties of Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company, such creditor shall
continue to enjoy and hold such charge, lien or security interest upon the properties of Demerged Undertaking in the
Resulting Company.

The rights of the creditors of the Demerged Company or the Resulting Company shall not be affected by the scheme. There
will be no reduction in their claims on account of the Scheme. The creditors will be paid in the ordinary course of the
business as and when their dues are payable. There is no likelihood that the creditors would be prejudiced in any manner as
a result of the Scheme being sanctioned. The Demerged Company or the Resulting Company has not issued any debentures
and accordingly, do not have any debenture holders.

Employees

[.  Onand from the Effective Date, all permanent employees relating to the Demerged Undertaking, as were employed by
the Demerged Company, immediately before such date, shall become the employees of the Resulting Company with the
benefit of continuity of service and without any break or interruption in service. It is clarified that the employees of
the Demerged Undertaking, who become employees of the Resulting Company by virtue of this Scheme, shall continue
to be governed by the same terms of employment as were apphcable to them 1mmedlately before the demerger. The
Resultins Compan
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

1L

with any of its respective employees thereof. The Resulting Company further agrees that for the purpose of payment
of any retrenchment compensation, or any other benefits and incentives, if any, such past services with the Demerged
Company shall be taken into account.

It is expressly provided that, on the Effective Date, the provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation fund created
or any other special fund existing for the benefit of the employees of the Demerged Company, in relation to the

Demerged Undertaking shall become the funds of the Resulting Company, for all purposes whatsoever in relation
to the administration or operation of such fund(s) or in relation to the obligation to make contributions to the said
fund(s) in accordance with the provisions thereof as per the terms provided in the respective trust deeds, if any, to the
end and intent that all rights, duties, powers and obligations of the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged
Undertaking in relation to such fund(s) shall become those of the Resulting Company. These funds shall, subject to the
necessary approvals and permissions and at the discretion of the Resulting Company, either be continued as separate
funds of the Resulting Company for the benefit of the employees of the Demerged Undertaking or be transferred to and
merged with other similar funds of the Resulting Company. It is clarified that the services of the employees ofthe
Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking shall be treated as having been continuous for the
purpose of the said fund(s); and

With effect from the date of filing of this Scheme with the NCLT and up to and including the Effective Date, the Demerged
Company shall not vary or modify the terms and conditions of employment of any of its employees, except with the
prior written consent of the Resulting Company.

There are no investigations or proceedings, pending against the Company under the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the directors and KMPs or their respective relatives have any material interest in respect of the Scheme.

A copy of the Scheme has been filed by the Company with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.

The following documents will be open for obtaining extract from or for making or obtaining copies of or inspection by the Equity
Shareholders at the Registered Office of the Resulting Company, during 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on all working days (except
Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) upto the date of the Meeting:

a. Draft of the Scheme which is enclosed as Annexure A.

b. Copy of the Share Entitlement Ratio Report obtained from ZADN & Associates Chartered Accountants, dated May 24, 2018
which is enclosed as Annexure F.

c.  Statutory Auditor’s certificate in respect of the accounting treatment proposed in the Scheme which is enclosed as
Annexure G.

d. The Fairness opinion obtained from the merchant banker which is enclosed herewith as Annexure H.

e. The audited Accounts of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019
which are enclosed as Annexure I - I and Annexure I - II.

f.  Copy of the Order of the National Company Law Tribunal pursuant to which the meeting is to be convened which is enclosed
as Annexure J.

The applicable information of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited in the format specified for abridged prospectus as provided in
Part D of Schedule VIII of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation,
2018 which is enclosed as Annexure-K.

Dissected Financials (List of Assets and Liabilities of Demerged Company which will be transfer to the Resulting Company) is
enclosed herewith as Annexure L.

The Pre - Scheme and proposed Post-Scheme share capital structure of the Resulting Company is enclosed as Annexure M.

Copy of Annual Report of the Demerged & Resulting Companies for the Financial Year 2016-2017,2017-2018,2018-2019.

Contracts or agreements material to the compromise or arrangement - N/A

Any other information or document as the Board believes is necessary - N/A.




Company and the Resulting Company.

29. Inview of the information provided hereinabove, and the documents attached alongwith this notice and explanatory statement,
the requirement of Section 232(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with.

30. After the Scheme is approved by the equity shareholders and creditors of the Demerged Company, it will be subject to the
approval/sanction by NCLT.

For Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited.

Sd/-
Ajay S Mittal
Chairman appointed for the meeting

Date: 26t February, 2021
Place: Mumbai

Registered office: 302, Ceejay House,
Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block,
Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worlj,
Mumbai- 400018
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1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

Annexure A
SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

BETWEEN
ARSHIYA LIMITED
AND
ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 READ WITH SECTION 66 AND SECTION 52 AND OTHER

APPLICABLE PROVISONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

INTRODUCTION

Arshiya Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Demerged Company” or “Arshiya”), a company incorporated under the Companies
Act, 1956 (CIN - L93000MH1981PLC024747) and has its registered office at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar
Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018. Arshiya Limited is listed on the BSE and NSE.

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Resulting Company” or “ARIL”) is a wholly owned subsidiary
of Arshiya Limited. ARIL is a company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 (CIN - U93000MH2008PLC180907), and
has its registered office at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400
018;

This Scheme of arrangement (“Scheme”), inter alia, provides for demerger of the Demerged Undertaking (hereinafter defined
in Part III) of the Demerged Company and transfer and vesting thereof into the Resulting Company and utilization of securities
premium of the Demerged and Resulting Company (hereinafter defined under Part II) including consequential or related
matters integrally connected therewith.

PREAMBLE

The management of Arshiya Group intends to reorganize its corporate structure spread across various group companies in
order to integrate/ consolidate its operations by housing different businesses into two different entities/ separate verticals.

As part of the aforesaid overall Group reorganization, the management had also filed a separate scheme of amalgamation of two
of Arshiya’s wholly owned subsidiaries, i.e. Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited (‘AIDHL’) and Arshiya Transport and
Handling Limited (‘ATHL’) into ARIL (‘merger scheme’) with National Company Law Tribunal and is awaiting its approval. The
appointed date for the said merger scheme is October 1, 2015. Accordingly, this scheme of arrangement is conditional upon the
aforesaid merger scheme becoming effective first. In case the said merger scheme is withdrawn or ARIL ceases to be a wholly
owned subsidiary as on the Record Date (defined hereunder), this Scheme will also be withdrawn.

Further, this Scheme is presented under Sections 230 to 232 read with Sections 66 and 52 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 for demerger of Domestic business (as defined hereinafter) of Arshiya Limited (hereinafter referred
to as ‘Arshiya’ or the ‘Demerged Company’) into Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘ARIL’ or
‘Resulting Company’) and utilization of securities premium of both the entities.

BACKGROUND AND RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME

a. Arshiya, a flagship company of Arshiya Group, is engaged in the business of developing Free Trade Warehousing Zones
(‘FTWZ’) and Domestic Warehousing Areas (‘DWA’) as mentioned below to improve logistics infrastructure in India.

FTWZ Business - FTWZ at Panvel offers over 800,000 Sq. ft. of warehousing space with best in class infrastructure
which is suitable for clients across industries. The facility is well connected to the National and State Highways and
situated only 24 kms from the country’s busiest container port and also close to the proposed International Airport in
Navi Mumbai.
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1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

Domestic Business - Domestic Business comprises of Domestic Warehousing activities being carried out by Arshiya at
land admeasuring 43.42 acres of land situated at Khurja (UP) and investments held in the Resulting Company pertaining
to Private Freight Terminal (‘PFT’), Rail Transportation Services (‘RAIL’) businesses being carried in the Resulting
Company and Inland Container Depot (‘ICD’), DWA business being carried in AIDHL.

b. Brief description of the above mentioned business :

PFT: ARIL currently under a PFT license operates Indian Railways traffic business for various customers catering to
bulk goods movement and bagged cargo at sidings specifically earmarked for the same.

RAIL: ARIL holds category-I license to run container trains pan-India and is one of the largest Private Container Train
Operator (PCTO’s) with a rail fleet of 18 rakes and 3,200 owned containers equipped to handle a wide-range of cargo,
with a pan India presence. ARIL’s service is completely equipped to provide efficient movement of cargo between
terminals, hubs and warehouses.

ARIL’s infrastructure consists of rail siding, rail terminal equipped with three loop / blast rail lines and three non-ballast
rail lines with a capacity to handle up to 20 rakes per day.

ICD: The Khurja ICD is co-located with a state-of-the-art Rail Terminal and FTWZ. ICD-Khurja is the only private ICD in
the country to have exclusive connectivity with 6-lane private rail siding offering regular and prompt rail connectivity
through owned rakes to all the major gateway ports that service the northern region of India. ICD Khurja is located
strategically with multiple road approaches from the major 4/6 lane highways providing a congestion-free movement
of cargo and containers.

The Group intends to reorganize its corporate structure and integrate / consolidate its operations by housing the
following businesses into two different entities / separate verticals:

1.3.1. FTWZ business in Arshiya
1.3.2. Domestic business (includes DWA, ICD, Rail and PFT business) in ARIL

Though the businesses of all the Group companies complement each other, the Group believes that in the industry, there
are other companies who are doing consolidated business of offering rail infrastructure, cargo/container handling services,
providing ICD and Domestic warehousing services. The demand in the market for the entities providing consolidated services
is higher than the entities providing individual services. In order to earn higher revenue and to cater to the needs of the market,
the management intends to consolidate the rail infrastructure, transport handling business, DWA and ICD business. Hence, the
management envisages the transfer of Domestic business of Arshiya into ARIL.

Accordingly, the proposed demerger of the Domestic Business (as defined hereinafter) envisaged in this Scheme (‘the
Demerger’) would be in order to integrate / consolidate its DWA, RAIL, PFT & ICD business into ARIL, which would enable
Arshiya to focus solely on FTWZ Business. This would provide more flexibility in terms of creating business synergies in the
Resulting Company i.e. ARIL, enable cost savings, rationalizing capital requirements and optimizing utilization of valuable
resources which will enhance management focus on the different businesses being housed under separate entities, thereby
leading to higher operational efficiency.

Further, the Scheme would be in the bestinterests of the shareholders, creditors and employees of Arshiya and ARIL, respectively
as it would result in enhanced value for the shareholders and allow focused strategy on expansion/ operation of both the FTWZ
and the Domestic Business independently. Pursuant to this Scheme all the shareholders of Arshiya will get shares in ARIL and
there would be no change in the economic interest for any of the shareholders of Arshiya pre and post implementation of this
Scheme.

Apropos, the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are of the view that the transfer and
vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined hereinafter) of the Demerged Company with the Resulting Company will
enable both the companies to achieve and fulfill their objectives more efficiently and economically and the same is also in the
interest of all the stakeholders.

The Scheme has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

The transfer of the Demerged Undertaking shall be on a going concern basis.
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PARTS OF THE SCHEME

2.1.  This Scheme of Arrangement is divided into the following parts:
2.1.1. PART I deals with the definitions and share capital of the Demerged Company (defined hereinafter) and the Resulting
Company;
2.1.2. PART II deals with the utilization of securities premium of the Demerged and the Resulting Company and the
corresponding accounting treatment in connection therewith;
2.1.3. PART III deals with the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking of Demerged Company and its vesting in the Resulting
Company;
2.1.4. PART IV deals with the Remaining Business (defined hereinafter) of the Demerged Company (defined hereinafter);
2.1.5. PART V deals with the consideration for the demerger and accounting treatment for the demerger in the books of the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company consequent to the demerger; and
2.1.6. PART VI deals with general terms and conditions applicable to this Scheme.
PART -1
DEFINITIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL
1. DEFINITIONS
In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the subject or context or meaning thereof, the following expressions shall have the meanings
as set out herein below:
1.1.  “Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, including any statutory modifications, re-enactments or
amendments thereof for the time being in force as the case may be.
1.2. “Appointed Date” means 01 April 2019.
1.3. “Demerged Company” or “Arshiya” means Arshiya Limited, a company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, and
having its registered office at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai -
400 018.
1.4. “Domestic Business Undertaking” or “Demerged Undertaking” or “Domestic Business” means Arshiya’s entire

undertaking, business, activities and operations and domestic business activities pertaining to the DWA Business (including
Arshiya’s investment in its subsidiary, namely ARIL pertaining to PFT, RAIL businesses being carried ARIL). The term Domestic
Business Undertaking shall include the following:

1.4.1. All assets (whether movable or immovable, real or personal, corporeal or incorporeal, present, future or contingent,
tangible or intangible) wherever situated and of whatever nature, pertaining thereto through which Arshiya carries on
the business, activities and operations relating to the Domestic Business.

1.4.2. All the debts, duties, obligations, loans and liabilities, whether present or future, whether secured or unsecured, of the
Demerged Company in relation to the Domestic Business as on the Appointed Date comprising of:

1.4.2.1.All the debts, duties, obligations and liabilities, including contingent liabilities which arise out of the activities or
operations of the Demerged Company in relation to the Domestic business and all other debts, liabilities, duties
and obligations of the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking which may accrue or arise
after the appointed date but which related up to the date immediately preceding the Appointed Date;

1.4.2.2.Specific loans and borrowings raised, incurred and / or utilized solely for the activities or operation of the
Demerged Company in relation to the Domestic Business;
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1.4.2.3.Liabilities other than those referred in clauses 1.4.2.1 and 1.4.2.2 above and not directly relatable to the Domestic
Business, being the amounts of general or multipurpose borrowings of the Demerged Company as stand in the
same proportion which the value of the assets transferred under this clause of Domestic Business bears to the
total value of the assets of the Demerged Company immediately before the Appointed Date.

1.4.3. Without prejudice to the generality of the above, the Domestic Business shall also include in particular:

1.4.3.1.All assets and properties including land, building, plant and machinery, capital work in progress, equipment,
furniture and fixture, vehicles, computers, electrical installations and any other fixed asset in relation to the
Domestic Business;

1.4.3.2.All current assets, inventory, stock-in-trade, account receivables, loans and advances, prepaid expenses and
other assets in relation to the Domestic Business;

1.4.3.3.Cash and cash equivalents, bank balances and bank accounts relating to the Domestic Business including fixed
deposits;

1.4.3.4.Security deposits, advances, earnest monies, balances, advance lease rentals or other payments made to or
received from the lessors or suppliers or service providers in relation to the Domestic Business and includes
deposits and balances with Government, Semi-Government, local and other authorities and bodies, including all
tax balances or balances with any tax authority or other statutory body pertaining to the Domestic Business,
customers and other persons earnest moneys and/or security deposits paid or received by Arshiya in connection
with the Domestic Business;

1.4.3.5.All agreements (including but not limited to agreements with respect to immoveable properties by way of lease,
license and business arrangements), rights, contracts, entitlements, permits, licenses, registrations, insurance
policies, approvals, consents, engagements, arrangements, subsidies, concessions, exemptions and all other
privileges and benefits of every kind, nature and description whatsoever (including but not limited to benefits
of tax relief including under the Income-tax Act, 1961 such as credit for advance tax, taxes deducted at source,
etc., unutilized deposits or credits, benefits under the VAT/ Sales Tax law / Goods and Services Tax (GST), VAT /
sales tax set off, unutilized deposits or credits, benefits of any unutilized MODVAT / CENVAT / Service tax / GST
credits, etc.) relating to the Domestic Business;

1.4.3.6.Investments, held by Arshiya in ARIL;
1.4.3.7.All permanent employees of Arshiya excluding those who are engaged in relation to the Remaining Business;

1.4.3.8.All records, files, documents, reports, papers, computer programs, manuals, data catalogues, quotations, sales
and advertising materials, list of present and former customers and suppliers, customer credit information,
customer pricing information and other records, whether in physical form or electronic form in connection with
or relating to the Domestic Business;

1.4.3.9.All intellectual property (if any) including but not limited to technical know-how, assignment of trademarks and
other related rights, title and interest vested thereto rights owned or licensed, records, files, papers, data and
documents in the name of Arshiya and in relation to the Domestic Business, Brand name and domain name;

1.4.3.10.All pending litigations or proceedings filed by or against the Demerged Company pertaining to the Domestic
Business;

1.4.3.11.All loans and cash credit facilities availed of by the Demerged Company for the purposes of the Domestic
Business and other liabilities incurred in connection therewith;

Any question that may arise as to whether a specified asset or liability pertains or does not pertain to the Domestic Business
or whether it arises out of the activities or operations of the Domestic Business shall be decided by mutual agreement between
Arshiya and ARIL. Further, it is clarified that the Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Share - I (‘OCRPS-I') issued by
Arshiya does not relate to Domestic Business and unless converted into equity shares on or before the Record Date, no
additional / proportionate consideration shall be payable to its holders pursuant to this Scheme becoming effective. However,
any Corporate Action relating to the Outstanding OCRPS-I shall be kept in abeyance till the last date upto which the option for
conversion is exercisable.
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1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

3.1.

The expressions which are used in this Scheme and not defined in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the context
or meaning hereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the Actand other applicable laws, rules, regulations, bye-laws,
as the case may be, or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof from time to time.

“Effective Date” means the last of the dates, if applicable, on which the certified or authenticated copy of the order(s)
sanctioning the Scheme passed by the National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) of Judicature at Mumbiai, is filed with the
Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. This date in only drawn to capture references to all transactions undertaken between the
Appointed Date and date of filing of the NCLT order with Registrar of Companies (“ROC”). Thus, the same is not to be construed
as the effective date for the purpose of Section 232(6) of the Act.

“Governmental Authority” or “Appropriate Authority” means any applicable central, state or local government, legislative
body, regulatory or administrative authority, agency or commission or any court, tribunal, board, bureau, instrumentality,
judicial or arbitral body having jurisdiction over the territory of India.

“National Company Law Tribunal” or “NCLT” or “Tribunal” means the competent authority under the provisions of Sections
230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act and specifically refers to the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai
Bench in respect of Arshiya and ARIL having their registered offices located in Mumbai, Maharashtra.

“Record Date” means the date to be fixed jointly by the Board of Directors of Demerged and Resulting Company for the purposes
of determining the shareholders of Arshiya to whom shares would be issued in accordance with Clause 7 of this Scheme.

“Remaining Business” or “Remaining Business of Arshiya” shall mean all undertakings, businesses, activities and operations
including assets and liabilities of Arshiya pertaining to the FTWZ business and excludes the Domestic Business.

“Resulting Company” or “ARIL” means Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited a Company incorporated under the Companies Act,
1956 and having its registered office at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli,
Mumbai - 400 018.

“Scheme” means this Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya and ARIL, in its present form and / or with any modifications
and amendments thereto made under Clause 22 of this scheme as approved or directed by the Tribunal.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE

This Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s) and amendment(s) made under Clause 23 of this
Scheme duly approved or imposed or directed by the Tribunal shall be effective from the Appointed Date but shall be operative
from the Effective Date. Therefore, for all regulatory and tax purposes, the Demerger would have been deemed to be effective
from the Appointed Date of this Scheme as per Section 232(6) of the Companies Act 2013. Notwithstanding the above,the
accounting treatment to be adopted to give effect to the provisions of the Scheme would be in consonance with Indian
Accounting Standards 103 (“IND AS 103”) and the mere adoption of such accounting treatment will not in any manner effect
the vesting of the Demerged Undertaking from the Appointed Date.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of Arshiya Limited as on 30" April 2018 is as under:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital

Authorized capital

247,500,000 Equity Shares of Rs 2 each 495,000,000
11,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 110,000,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

229,716,776 Equity Shares of Rs 2 each 459,433,552
OCRPS -1

57,64,619 OCRPS-I of Rs 10 each 5,76,46,190

Subsequent to 30" April 2018, there has been no change in the authorized, issued and paid up share capital of Arshiya Limited.
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3.2

The share capital of the Resulting Company as on 30" April 2018 is as under:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital
Authorized capital

45,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 450,000,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
42,384,417 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 423,844,170

Subsequent to 30" April 2018, there has been no change in the authorized, issued and paid up share capital of Resulting
Company.

PART II

UTILISATION OF SECURITIES PREMIUM

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4,

4.5.

4.6.

UTILISATION OF SECURITIES PREMIUM OF DEMERGED COMPANY AND RESULTING COMPANY

Itis proposed to write off the aggregate of the balance in Profit and Loss Account as on Appointed Date and the excess of assets
over liabilities as provided under clause 8.1.3 (‘Arshiya Aggregate Book Losses), against the securities premium account of
Arshiya.

It is also proposed to write off the balance in Profit and Loss Account and any excess of consideration over net assets acquired
as provided under clause 8.2.4 as on Appointed Date (‘ARIL Book Losses’), against the securities premium account of ARIL.

Consequent upon the re-organization / utilization of securities premium, as mentioned in clause 4.1 and 4.2 above, the Arshiya
Aggregate Book Losses and ARIL Book Loss as on Appointed Date shall be reduced to NIL.

The utilization of Securities Premium as aforesaid of Arshiya and ARIL respectively, shall be effected as an integral part of and in
terms of this Scheme in accordance with the provisions of Section 230(2)(a) and shall constitute sufficient compliance in terms
of Section 52 and Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 without carrying out separate compliance thereof. Further, the same
does not involve either diminution of liability in respect of unpaid share capital or payment to any shareholder of any paid-up
share capital. Accordingly, the order of the Tribunal sanctioning the Scheme shall be deemed to be an order under Section 66
of the Act as well as other applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013 confirming the reduction of share capital pursuant to
utilization of the securities premium as aforesaid.

The accounting effect of the above sub-clauses shall be directly given in the balance sheet of Arshiya and ARIL respectively.
The utilization of securities premium as aforesaid of Arshiya and ARIL as envisaged in the Scheme shall not affect or impair in
any manner the rights and interests of any of the creditors of Arshiya or ARIL, since Arshiya and ARIL shall, post such reduction,
continue to be in a position to honor the dues of their respective creditors. Therefore, Arshiya and ARIL seeks liberty of the
NCLT for dispensation of words “and reduced” to be added as suffix to its name, as contemplated in Section 66 (2) and 66 (3)
of the Act.

PART - III

DEMERGER OF DOMESTIC BUSINESS UNDERTAKING

5.1.

TRANSFER AND VESTING OF THE DOMESTIC BUSINESS UNDERTAKING

On or after the Effective Date and subject to the provisions of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, the Domestic
Business Undertaking (including all the estate, assets, rights, claims, title, interest and authorities including accretions and
appurtenances of the Domestic Business Undertaking) pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and with other
applicable provisions of the Act shall stand transferred to and vested in or deemed to be transferred to and vested in the
Resulting Company, as a going concern without any further act, deed, matter or thing in the following manner:

Assets

5.1.1. The whole of the Domestic Business Undertaking shall without any further act, deed, matter or thing, stand transferred
to and vested in and / or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company so as to vest in the
Resulting Company all rights, title and interest pertaining to the Domestic Business Undertaking;
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All assets, investments, right, title or interest acquired by the Demerged Company after the Appointed Date but prior
to the Effective Date in relation to the Domestic Business Undertaking shall also, without any further act, instrument or
deed, be and stand transferred to and vested in and be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Resulting
Company upon the Effective date pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and with other applicable provisions
of the Act; and

All the movable assets of the Domestic Business Undertaking and the assets which are otherwise capable of transfer by
physical delivery or endorsement and delivery, including cash in hand, shall be so transferred to the Resulting Company
and deemed to have been physically handed over by physical delivery or by endorsement and delivery, as the case may
be, to the Resulting Company to the end and intent that the property and benefit therein passes to the Resulting
Company with effect from the Appointed Date. Such delivery and transfer shall be made on a date mutually agreed upon
between the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company. However such date of delivery shall be such date as may
be mutually agreed upon by the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

Pursuant to the Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date, all immovable property (including as per
Schedule I to this scheme), whether freehold or leasehold, (including but not limited to land, buildings, offices, factories,
sites and any other immovable property, including accretions and appurtenances) relating to the Domestic Business
Undertaking of the Demerged Company, and any document of title, rights, interest and easements in relation thereto
shall stand transferred to and be vested in the Resulting Company, without any act or deed to be done by the Demerged
Company and/ or the Resulting Company and/or any other Appropriate Authority. The Resulting Company shall be
entitled to exercise all rights and privileges and be liable to pay all taxes and charges and fulfil all obligations, in relation
to or applicable to such immovable properties. The mutation and/ or substitution of the title to the immovable properties
shall be made and duly recorded in the name of the Resulting Company by the appropriate governmental authorities
and third parties pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme by the Tribunal and upon the Effective Date in accordance with
the terms hereof without any further act or deed on part of the Demerged Company and/ or the Resulting Company. It is
clarified that the Resulting Company shall be entitled to engage in such correspondence and make such representations
as may be necessary for the purposes of the aforesaid mutation and/or substitution.

5.2. Contracts

5.2.1.

5.2.2.

All contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements and other instruments of whatsoever nature in
relation to the Domestic Business Undertaking to which the Demerged Company is a party or to the benefit of which
the Demerged Company may be eligible, and which are subsisting or have effect immediately before the Effective date,
shall continue in full force and effect against or in favour of, as the case may be, the Resulting Company in which the
Domestic Business Undertaking vests by way of demerger hereunder and may be enforced as fully and effectually
as if, instead of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company had been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto or
thereunder; and

Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding the fact that vesting of the Domestic
Business Undertaking occurs by virtue of this Scheme itself, the Resulting Company may, at any time after the Effective
date in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required under any law or otherwise, take such actions and execute
such deeds (including deeds of adherence), confirmations or other writings or tripartite arrangements with any party
to any contract or arrangement to which the Demerged Company is a party or any writings as may be necessary in
order to give formal effect to the provisions of this Scheme. The Resulting Company shall, under the provisions of this
Scheme, be deemed to be authorized to execute any such writings on behalf of the Demerged Company in relation to the
Domestic Business Undertaking and to carry out or perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on the
part of the Demerged Company to be carried out or performed.

5.3. Liabilities

5.3.1.

5.3.2.

All debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations of every kind, nature and description of the Domestic
Business Undertaking shall also, under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and all other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Act, without any further act or deed, be transferred to or be deemed to be transferred to the Resulting
Company, so as to become from the Appointed Date the debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations of
the Resulting Company and it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent of any third party or other person who is
a party to any contract or arrangement by virtue of which such debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and
obligations have arisen in order to give effect to the provisions of this sub-clause;

Where any of the loans raised and used, liabilities and obligations incurred, duties and obligations of the Demerged
Company as on the Appointed Date deemed to be transferred to the Resulting Company, have been discharged by the
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5.4.

Demerged Company after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, such discharge shall be deemed to have
been for and on account of the Resulting Company; and

5.3.3. All loans raised and used and all liabilities and obligations incurred by the Demerged Company for the operations of
the Domestic Business Undertaking with prior approval of the Resulting Company after the Appointed Date and prior
to the Effective Date, shall, subject to the terms of this Scheme, be deemed to have been raised, used or incurred for and
on behalf of the Resulting Company and to the extent they are outstanding on the Effective Date, shall also without any
further act or deed be and stand transferred to and be deemed to be transferred to the Resulting Company and shall
become the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Resulting Company which shall meet, discharge and satisfy
the same.

Licenses and Permissions

Any statutory licenses, permissions or approvals or consents held by the Demerged Company required to carry on operations
of the Domestic Business Undertaking shall stand vested in or transferred to the Resulting Company without any further
act or deed, and shall be appropriately mutated by the statutory authorities concerned therewith in favour of the Resulting
Company and the benefit of all statutory and regulatory permissions, environmental approvals and consents, registration or
other licenses, and consents shall vest in and become available to the Resulting Company as if they were originally obtained by
the Resulting Company. In so far as the various incentives, subsidies, rehabilitation schemes, special status and other benefits
or privileges enjoyed, granted by any Governmental Authority or by any other person, or availed of by the Demerged Company
relating to the Domestic Business Undertaking, are concerned, the same shall vest with and be available to the Resulting
Company on the same terms and conditions as applicable to the Demerged Company, as if the same had been allotted and/or
granted and/or sanctioned and/or allowed to the Resulting Company.

PART -1V

REMAINING BUSINESS

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

REMAINING BUSINESS OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY

The Remaining Business of the Demerged Company and all other assets, liabilities, incentives, rights and obligations pertaining
thereto shall continue to be vested in and managed by the Demerged Company in the manner as provided below.

Alllegal and other proceedings including any insurance claims by or against the Demerged Company under any statute, whether
pending on the Appointed Date or which may be instituted in future, whether or not in respect of any matter arising before the
Effective date and relating to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company (including those relating to any property, right,
power, liability, obligation or duty, of the Demerged Company in respect of the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company)
shall be continued and enforced by or against the Demerged Company.

With effect from the Appointed Date:

6.3.1. The Demerged Company shall be deemed to have been carrying on and to be carrying on all business and activities
relating to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company for and on its own behalf;

6.3.2. The Demerged Company may enter into such contracts as the Demerged Company may deem necessary in respect of
the Remaining Business;

6.3.3. All profits accruing to the Demerged Company thereon or losses arising or incurred by it relating to the Remaining
Business of the Demerged Company shall, for all purposes, be treated as the profits, or losses, as the case may be, of the
Demerged Company;

6.3.4. All assets and properties acquired by the Demerged Company in relation to the Remaining Business on and after the
Appointed Date shall belong to and continue to remain vested in the Demerged Company; and

6.3.5. All liabilities (including contingent liabilities) loans, debts (whether secured or unsecured) raised or incurred, duties
and obligations of every kind, nature and description whatsoever and howsoever arising or accruing in relation to the
Remaining Business shall belong to and continue to remain vested in the Demerged Company.
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PARTV

CONSIDERATION AND ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

7.7.

7.8.

CONSIDERATION

In consideration of the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking in accordance with the provisions of this Scheme, the
paid-up share capital of the Resulting Company shall be increased in the manner set out in this Clause.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the demerger including the transfer and vesting of the Demerged
Undertaking in the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall, without any further application or deed, for every 2 (two)
fully paid-up equity shares of the Demerged Company, issue and allot to each member of the Demerged Company whose name
appears in the register of members of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date or to his/her heirs, executors,
administrators or the successors-in-title, as the case may be, subject to the provisions of Clause 7.4 below, 1 (one) fully paid-up
equity share of Rs 2 each, of the Resulting Company (‘New Equity Shares’).

In case of any member’s shareholding in the Demerged Company is such that such member becomes entitled to a fraction of 1
(one) equity share of the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall not issue fractional share certificate to such member
and shall consolidate such fractions and issue the consolidated shares to a trustee nominated by the Board of Directors of the
Demerged Company in that behalf, who shall sell such shares and distribute the net sale proceeds (after deduction of expenses
incurred) to such members in proportion to their respective fractional entitlements. During consolidation of fractional shares,
if the sum of fractional shares is not a whole integer, the Resulting Company shall issue such additional fractional share to
the trustee, such that the total shares so issued shall be rounded off to the next whole integer. The issue of fractional share by
the Resulting Company to the Trustee, shall form an integral part of the consideration to be paid under the Scheme and that no
separate process as may be applicable under the Applicable Law, to that extent, shall be required to be followed by the
Resulting Company.

The New Equity Shares issued in terms of clause 7.2 above, shall be listed and / or admitted to trading on the relevant stock
exchange/s in India where the equity shares of the Demerged Company are listed and / or admitted to trading.

Upon the Scheme coming to effect, the shares to be allotted to the members of the Demerged Company by the Resulting
Company shall be listed and / or admitted to trading on the relevant stock exchange/s in India where the equity shares of
the Arshiya are listed and / or admitted to trading as on effective date. Accordingly, the Resulting Company shall take steps for
listing simultaneously on all such stock exchange(s) within a reasonable period of the receipt of the final NCLT order
sanctioning the Scheme. The Resulting Company shall make necessary applications with the provisions of Applicable Laws,
including, as applicable, the provisions of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015, SEBI Circular
No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/105 dated September 21, 2017,
SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2018/2 dated January 03,2018 and as amended from time to time. The equity shares allotted
pursuant to this Scheme shall remain frozen in the depositaries system till relevant directions in relation to listing / trading are
provided by the stock exchanges. The Resulting Company shall apply to Securities and Exchange Board of India through Stock
Exchange for seeking relaxation under Section 19(2)(b) of Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957.

The New Equity Shares of the Resulting Company to be issued to the members of the Demerged Company pursuant to Clause
7.2 above shall be subject to the memorandum and articles of association of the Resulting Company and shall rank pari-passu
in all respects, including dividend, with the existing equity shares of the Resulting Company.

The issue and allotment of New Equity Shares by the Resulting Company, to the shareholders of Demerged Company as provided
in Clause 7.2 is an integral part of the Scheme and shall be deemed to have been carried out as if the procedure laid down under
Section 62(1)(c) of the Act and all other relevant Rules, Regulations and Laws for the time being in force were duly complied
with.

Upon the scheme becoming effective, the existing equity shares held by the Demerged Company or its nominee in the Resulting
Company shall stand cancelled, extinguished and annulled and from the Effective Date. The cancellation, as aforesaid, which
amounts to reduction of share capital of the Resulting Company, shall be effected as an integral part of this Scheme itself in
accordance with the provisions of Section 66 of the Act and the order of the Tribunal sanctioning the scheme shall be deemed
to be also the order under Section 66 of the Act for the purpose of confirming the reduction. The reduction would not involve
either a diminution of liability in respect of unpaid share capital or payment of paid-up share capital. Notwithstanding the
reduction as aforesaid, the Resulting Company shall not be required to add “and reduced” as suffix to its name and the Resulting
Company shall continue in its existing name.
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8.1.

8.2.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall account for the Scheme in their respective books / financial
statements in accordance with applicable Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time including as provided herein below:

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF DEMERGED COMPANY

8.1.1.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the value of assets, liabilities, profits/losses or reserves pertaining to the
Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company as appearing in the books of accounts of the Demerged Company are
to be transferred to the Resulting Company in terms of clause 2 of this Scheme and shall be reduced from the respective
book value of assets and liabilities of the Demerged Company.

Inter-company balances and investments (including Demerged Company’s investment in Resulting Company), if any,
between Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall stand cancelled. Further, any receivables or payables,
which pertains to the Demerged Undertaking, arising thereon between the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company, inter-corporate loans or balances pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking as arising between the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company or vice-versa shall also stand nullified upon the Scheme becoming effective and
the Demerged Company shall pass necessary entries in its books of accounts;

The excess of assets over liabilities transferred under clause 8.1.1 and after giving effect to clause 8.1.2 above shall be
adjusted against Retained Earnings. In case of deficit, the same shall be credited to capital reserve.

Notwithstanding the above, the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company are authorized to account for any of these
balances in any manner whatsoever, as may be deemed fit, in accordance with accounting principle generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF THE RESULTING COMPANY

Upon the Scheme coming into effect and with effect from the Effective Date:

8.2.1.

8.2.2.

8.2.3.

8.2.4.

8.2.5.

8.2.6.

The Resulting Company shall record all assets and liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking vested in it pursuant to this
Scheme, at the respective values thereof, as appearing in the books of account of the Demerged Company with effect
from the Effective Date.

Any receivables or payables, which pertains to the Demerged Undertaking, arising thereon between the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company, inter-corporate loans or balances pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking as
arising between the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company or vice-versa shall also stand nullified upon the
Scheme becoming effective and the Resulting Company shall pass necessary entries in its books of accounts;

Upon cancellation of the shares held by the Demerged Company in the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall
debit to its equity share capital account, the aggregate face value of existing equity shares held by the Demerged
Company, which stands cancelled hereof. Further, the Resulting Company shall credit the aggregate face value of the
new equity shares issued by it to the members of the Demerged Company pursuant to this Scheme to the share capital
account in its books of accounts;

The surplus / deficit arising on recording of the assets and liabilities as per clause 8.2.1 and 8.2.2 over the shares
cancelled and consideration recorded as per clause 8.2.3 above shall be transferred to Capital Reserve / Goodwill in the
balance sheet of the Resulting Company;

In case of any differences in accounting policies between the Resulting Company and the Demerged Company, the
impact of such differences shall be quantified and adjusted in accordance with the applicable accounting principles;

To the extent there are any obligations of the Resulting Company towards the Demerged Undertaking, the obligations
in respect thereof shall come to an end and corresponding effect shall be given in the books of account of the Resulting
Company.
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8.2.7. All costs and expenses incurred by the Resulting Company in connection with the Scheme and to put it into operation
and any other expenses or charges attributable to the implementation of the Scheme shall be debited to the profit & loss
account of the Resulting Company. However, costs pertaining to issue of equity shares shall be directly debited to the
reserves of the Resulting Company.

8.2.8. Notwithstanding the above, the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company are authorized to account for any of these
balances in any manner whatsoever, as may be deemed fit, in accordance with accounting principle generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016.

PART VI

GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

10.

10.1.

10.2.

11.

11.1.

11.2.

11.3.

RECLASSIFICATION OF AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

Upon the Scheme being effective, the Authorised Share Capital of the Resulting Company existing on the Effective Date, without
any further application, act, instrument or deed, shall be reclassified from equity shares of face value of Rs 10/- each into
corresponding number of equity shares of face value of Rs. 2/- each.

Consequent upon the reclassification of Authorised Share Capital under Clause 9.1 above and upon the Scheme being effective,
Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company (relating to the Authorised Share Capital) shall, without any
further act, instrument or deed, be and stand altered, modified and amended pursuant to Sections 13, 14, 61 and 230-232 and
other applicable provisions of the Act.

It is hereby clarified that for the purposes of clause 9.2 above, the consent of the shareholders to the Scheme shall be deemed
to be sufficient for the purposes of effecting the above reclassification in Authorised Share Capital of the Resulting Company,
and no further resolution would be required to be separately passed. Upon the Scheme being effective, the Company shall file
necessary form for the reclassification of the Authorised Share Capital with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. Further, there
would be no requirement for any further payment of stamp duty and/or fee (including registration fee) by the Company for the
reclassification to the Authorised Share Capital.

TAXASPECTS

It is intended that this Scheme will be in compliance with the conditions relating to “Demerger” as specified under Section
2(19AA) and Section 72A(4) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 such that:

The transfer of the Domestic Business Undertaking will be on a going concern basis with effect from the Appointed Date.

Subject to clause 10.1 above, if any terms or provisions of the Scheme is/are inconsistent with the provisions of Section 2(19AA)
and Section 72A(4) of the Income-tax Act, 1961, the provisions of Section 2(19AA) and Section 72A(4) of the Income-tax Act,
1961 shall prevail and the Scheme shall stand modified to the extent necessary to comply with Section 2(19AA) and Section
72A(4) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 as on the Appointed Date; such modification shall not affect other parts of the Scheme.
Upon the Effective Date, the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are expressly permitted to file / revise their
income-tax, service tax, GST, value added tax, withholding tax and other statutory returns, notwithstanding that the period
for filing / revising such returns may have lapsed. Each of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are expressly
permitted to amend tax deduction at source and other statutory certificates and shall have the right to claim refunds, advance
tax credits, set offs and adjustments relating to their respective incomes / transactions from the Appointed Date.

LISTING AGREEMENT AND SEBI COMPLIANCE

Since the Demerged Company is listed company, this scheme is subject to the compliances by the Demerged Company of all
requirements under the Listing Regulations and all statutory directives of the Securities Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’)
through its circulars insofar as they relate to sanction and implementation of the scheme.

The Demerged Company in compliance with Listing Regulations shall apply for the “Observation Letter” to BSE and NSE where
its shares are listed.

The Demerged Company shall also comply with the directives of SEBI contained in circular no CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017 /21 dated
March 10,2017 (as amended from time to time) issued by SEBI in terms of Regulations 37 of the Listing Regulations.

25



12.

12.1.

13.

13.1.

13.2.

14.

14.1.

14.2.

14.3.

14.4.

15.

15.1.

15.2.

LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES OF RESULTING COMPANY

Scheme of Demerger is in conformity with the requirements as laid down in sub-rule 19(7) of Securities Contract (Regulation)
Rules, 1957 and in terms of the said sub-rule after allotment of New Equity Shares in Resulting Company, Resulting Company
shall comply with relevant provisions under SEBI Regulations, as may be applicable in relation to listing of shares allotted,
simultaneously on all stock exchanges where the equity shares of Demerged Company are listed.

Resulting Company shall make application to the SEBI in terms of Rule 19(7) of Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957 for
listing of equity shares at all the stock exchanges where the equity shares of Demerged Company are listed on the Appointed
Date without complying with the requirements of Rule 19(2)(b) of Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957.

ARIL shall enter into such arrangements and give such confirmations and / or undertakings as may be necessary in accordance
with the applicable laws or regulations for complying with the formalities of the aforesaid stock exchanges. On such formalities
being fulfilled, the stock exchanges shall list and / or admit such New Equity Shares also for the purpose of trading. The New
Equity Shares allotted by ARIL, pursuant to this Scheme, shall remain frozen in the depositories system till the listing / trading
permission is given by the BSE.

APPROVAL OF SCHEME BY PUBLIC SHAREHOLDERS

The Approval to this Scheme of Arrangement shall be obtained from the shareholders of the Demerged Company i.e. Arshiya
in accordance with SEBI circular no CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (as amended from time to time) issued by
SEBI in terms of Regulations 37 of the Listing Regulations.

The Scheme shall be acted upon only if the votes cast by the public shareholders in favor of the proposal are more than the
number of votes cast by the public shareholders against it.

SECURITY

The transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking as aforesaid shall be subject to the existing securities, charges, mortgage
and other encumbrances if any, subsisting over or in respect of the property and assets or any part thereof to the extent
that such securities, charges, mortgages, encumbrances are created to secure the liabilities forming part of the Demerged
Undertaking. It is agreed by and between the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company, that pursuant to the demerger,
necessary steps shall be taken in order to effect the change/ modification of charges, if any, in the records of the Registrar of
Companies.

It is clarified that unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company, in so far as the assets
comprising the Demerged Undertaking are concerned the security or charge relating to loans or borrowings of the Demerged
Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking, shall without any further act or deed continue to relate to the said assets
only after the Appointed Date and the said assets shall not relate to or be available as security in relation to any other borrowings
of the Demerged Company;

14.2.1. Similarly, the security or charge relating to loans or borrowings of the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged
Undertaking, shall continue to relate to the said assets only after the Appointed Date and shall not relate to or be
available as security in relation to any other borrowings of the Resulting Company and vice-versa;

The other assets of the Demerged Company shall not relate to or be available as security in relation to the said borrowings of
the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking; and

The Demerged Company may enter into such alternate arrangements with the lenders pursuant to the release of security as per
the provisions mentioned herein.

EMPLOYEES

On and from the Effective Date, all permanent employees relating to the Demerged Undertaking, as were employed by the
Demerged Company, immediately before such date, shall become the employees of the Resulting Company with the benefit
of continuity of service and without any break or interruption in service. It is clarified that the employees of the Demerged
Undertaking, who become employees of the Resulting Company by virtue of this Scheme, shall continue to be governed by the
same terms of employment as were applicable to them immediately before the demerger. The Resulting Company undertakes
to abide by any agreement/settlement, if any, entered into by the Demerged Company with any of its respective employees
thereof. The Resulting Company further agrees that for the purpose of payment of any retrenchment compensation, or any
other benefits and incentives, if any, such past services with the Demerged Company shall be taken into account.

It is expressly provided that, on the Effective Date, the provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation fund created or any other
special fund existing for the benefit of the employees of the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking shall
become the funds of the Resulting Company, for all purposes whatsoever in relation to the administration or operation of such
fund(s) or in relation to the obligation to make contributions to the said fund(s) in accordance with the provisions
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15.3.

16.

16.1.

16.2.

16.3.

16.4.

16.5.

16.6.

16.7.

17.

17.1.

18.

thereof as per the terms provided in the respective trust deeds, if any, to the end and intent that all rights, duties, powers and
obligations of the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking in relation to such fund(s) shall become those
of the Resulting Company. These funds shall, subject to the necessary approvals and permissions and at the discretion of the
Resulting Company, either be continued as separate funds of the Resulting Company for the benefit of the employees of the
Demerged Undertaking or be transferred to and merged with other similar funds of the Resulting Company. It is clarified that
the services of the employees of the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking shall be treated as having
been continuous for the purpose of the said fund(s); and

With effect from the date of filing of this Scheme with the NCLT and up to and including the Effective Date, the Demerged
Company shall not vary or modify the terms and conditions of employment of any of its employees, except with the prior
written consent of the Resulting Company.

BUSINESS AND PROPERTY IN TRUST
During the period between the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date:

The Demerged Company shall be deemed to have been carrying on all the business and activities relating to the Demerged
Undertaking and shall be deemed to hold and stand possessed of the entire business and undertakings in relation to the
Demerged Undertaking for and on account of and in trust, on behalf of the Resulting Company.

All the income or profits accruing or arising to the Demerged Company and all costs, charges, expenses or losses incurred by
the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking shall for all purposes of this demerger be treated as the
income, profits, costs, charges, expenses and losses of the Resulting Company, as the case may be.

Any of the rights, powers, authorities, privileges, attached, related or pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking exercised by the
Demerged Company shall be deemed to have been exercised by the Demerged Company for and on behalf of, and in trust for
and as an agent of the Resulting Company; and

The Demerged Company shall carry on the business pertaining to the Domestic Business Undertaking with reasonable diligence
and business prudence and shall not alter or diversify business within the Domestic Business Undertaking nor venture into
any new business (except for Remaining Business), nor alienate, charge, mortgage, encumber or otherwise deal with the assets
or any part thereof except in the ordinary course of business without the prior written consent of the Resulting Company or
pursuant to any pre-existing obligation undertaken prior to the date of acceptance of this Scheme by the respective boards of
directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

The Demerged Company shall not utilize the profits or income in relation to the Demerged Undertaking for the purpose of
declaring or paying any dividend in respect of the period falling on and after the Appointed Date, without the prior written
consent of the Resulting Company.

The Resulting Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to the Governmental Authorities or
other appropriate forums as may be required under any applicable law, for such consents, approvals and sanctions which the
Resulting Company may require.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

All legal, administrative and other proceedings, of whatsoever nature pending in any court or before any authority, judicial,
quasi-judicial or administrative or any adjudicating authority and/or arising after the Appointed Date and relating to the
Demerged Undertaking, or its respective properties, assets, debts, liabilities, duties and obligations shall be continued and/
or enforced until the Effective date by or against the Demerged Company; and from the Effective Date, shall be continued and
enforced by or against the Resulting Company in the same manner and to the same extent as would or might have been
continued and enforced by or against the Demerged Company, had the Scheme not been made. On and from the Effective Date,
the Resulting Company shall have the right to initiate, defend, compromise or otherwise deal with any legal proceedingsrelating
to the Demerged Undertaking, in the same manner and to the same extentas would or might have been initiated by the Demerged
Company as the case may be, had the Scheme not been made; and if any suit, appeal or other proceedings relating to the
Demerged Undertaking, of whatever nature by or against the Demerged Company be pending, the same shall not abate orbe
discontinued or in any way be prejudicially affected by reason of the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking or by anything
contained in this Scheme but the proceedings may be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Resulting Company
in the same manner and to the same extent as it would or might have been continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against
the Demerged Company as if this Scheme had not been made.

SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

The transfer of properties and liabilities and the continuance of proceedings by or against the Resulting Company, as envisaged
under this Scheme, shall not affect any transaction or proceedings already concluded by the Demerged Company, in relation to
the Demerged Undertaking on or after the Appointed Date till the Effective Date, to the end and intent that the Resulting
Company accepts and adopts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by the Demerged Company, in relation to the
Demerged Undertaking, as done and executed on behalf of itself.
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19.

20.

21.

21.1.

21.2.

22.

23.

23.1.

23.2.

24.

VALIDITY OF EXISTING RESOLUTIONS, ADJUSTMENTS ETC.

All resolutions passed by the Demerged Company so far as they relate to or to be done or caused to be done in relation to the
Demerged Undertaking, shall be deemed to have authorized any Director of the Resulting Company or such other person(s) as
authorized by any two Directors of the Resulting Company to do all acts, deeds, things as may be necessary to give effect to
these Resolutions.

DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND

For the avoidance of doubt, it is hereby declared that nothing in the Scheme shall prevent the Resulting Company from declaring
and paying dividends, whether interim or final, to its equity shareholders.

APPLICATION TO THE TRIBUNAL

The Demerged Company shall and the Resulting Company, if required, shall make applications/ petitions to the NCLT for
sanction of this Scheme, under Sections 230 to 232 read with Sections 66 and 52 and other applicable provisions of the Act; and

Any dispute arising out of this Scheme shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the NCLT, Mumbai Bench.
MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company (acting through their Board of Directors, Committee thereof or any director
or any other person authorized by the Board of Directors, Committee thereof to this effect) may assent to any modifications or
amendments to this Scheme or to any conditions or limitations that the Tribunal may deem fit to direct or impose or
which may otherwise be considered necessary, desirable or appropriate by the respective Demerged Company and Resulting
Company, including pursuant to the orders of the NCLT and/or any other authorities as they may deem fit to direct or impose
or which may otherwise be considered necessary or desirable for settling any question or doubt or difficulty that may arise for
implementing and/or carrying out the Scheme. The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company (acting through their
Board of Directors, Committee thereof or any director or any other person authorized by the Board of Directors, Committee
thereof to this effect) shall be authorized to take such steps and do all acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, desirable or
proper to give effect to this Scheme and to resolve any doubts, difficulties or questions whether by reason of any orders of the
Tribunal or of any directions given by any other appropriate authorities or for any reason otherwise arising out of this Scheme
and/or any matters concerning or connected herewith.

If any part of the Scheme is held invalid or is ruled illegal by the Tribunal or becomes unenforceable for any reason, whatsoever
whether under present or future laws, then it is the intention of the Companies that such part in the opinion of the board of any
companies, shall be severable from the remainder of the Scheme and the remaining part of this Scheme shall not be affected
thereby, unless the deletion of such part, in the opinion of Board of either of the companies, shall cause this Scheme to become
materially adverse to either of the companies in which case companies shall attempt to bring about a modification in this
Scheme, which will best preserve the benefits and obligations of this Scheme for companies, including but not limited to such
part.

EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS

In case the Scheme is not approved by the Tribunal or any of the approvals or conditions enumerated in the Scheme have not
been obtained or complied with, or for any other reason, if this Scheme cannot be implemented, then the board of directors
of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall mutually waive such conditions as they consider appropriate
to give effect, as far as possible, to this Scheme and failing such mutual agreement, the Scheme shall become null and void
and in such event no rights or liabilities whatsoever shall accrue to or be incurred by either the Resulting Company or the
Demerged Company and each party shall bear their respective costs, charges and expenses in connection with this Scheme
unless otherwise mutually agreed upon.

If any part of this Scheme hereof is invalid, held illegal by Tribunal, or unenforceable under any present or future laws, then it
is the intention of the parties that such part shall be severable from the remainder of the Scheme, and the Scheme shall not be
affected thereby, unless the deletion of such part shall cause this Scheme to become materially adverse to any party, in which
case the parties shall attempt to bring about a modification in the Scheme, as will best preserve for the parties the benefits and
obligations of the Scheme, including but not limited to such part.

COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES

Save and except as provided otherwise, all costs, charges, expenses, taxes including duties, levies in connection with the Scheme
and its implementation thereof, and matters incidental thereto, shall be borne by the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company respectively.
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DCS/AMAL/JR/R37/1530/2019-20 July 12, 2019

The Company Secretary,

Arshiya Limited

302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block,
Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worll,

Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400018

Dear Sir,

Sub: Observation lefter regarding the Draft Scheme of Arrangement by Arshiya Limited

We are in receipt of Draft Scheme of Arrangement by Arshiya Limited filed as required under SEBI
Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017; SEBI vide its letter dated July 12, 2019
has inter alia given the following comment(s) on the draft scheme of arrangement:

= “Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company,
after filing the scheme with the stock exchange, from the date of receipt of this letter is
displayed on the websites of the listed company.”

= “Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circulars.”

+ “Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be
incorporated in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)
and the company is obliged to bring the cbservations to the notice of NCLT."

» “It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after
processing and communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by
SEBl/stock exchange. Hence, the company is not required to send notice for
representation as mandated under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI
again for its comments / observations / representations.”

Accordingly, based on aforesaid comment offered by SEBI, the company is hereby advised:

- To provide additional information, if any, (as stated above) along with various documents to
the Exchange for further dissemination on Exchange website.

» To ensure that additional information, if any, (as stated aforesaid) aleng with various
documents are disseminated on their (company) website.

*  To duly comply with various provisions of the circulars,

In light of the above, we hereby advise that we have no adverse observalions with limited reference to
those matters having a bearing on listing/de-listing/continuous listing requirements within the
provisions of Listing Agreement, so as to enable the company to file the scheme with Hon'ble NCLT
Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the
shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose Information about unlisted
comparnies involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the circular dated
March 10, 2017.

However, the listing of equity shares of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited shall be subject to SEBI
granting relaxation under Rule 19(2)(b) of the Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957 and
compliance with the requirements of SEBI circular. No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017.
Further, Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited shall comply with SEBI Act, Rules, Regulations, directions
of the SEBI and any other statutory authority and Rules, Byelaws, and Regulations of the Exchange.

S & P j;‘ BSE BSE Limited (Formerly Bormbay Stock Exchange 11d)
Registered Oftice : Floge 25 B T, 5 Dalal Street, Murnbai
& RNl

T 91 222272 12 T o promimidbsensia com | v
S ENSE X Gomorte identity Nusnhens L67 120MH2005PLCI55,
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The Company shall fulfill the Exchange's criteria for listing the securities of such company and also
comply with other applicable statutory requirements. However, the lisling of shares of Arshiya Rail
Infrastructure Limited is at the discretion of the Exchange. In addition to the above, the listing of
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited pursuant o the Scheme of Arrangement shall be subject to SEBI
aporoval and the Company satisfying the following conditions:

1. To submit the Information Memorandum containing all the information about Arshiya Rail
Infrastructure Limited in line with the disclosure requirements applicable for public issues with
BSE, for making the same avallable to the public through the website of the Exchange,
Further, the company is also advised to make the same available to the public through its
websile.

2. To publish an advertisement in the newspapers contzaining all the information Arshiya Rail
Infrastructure Limited in line with the details required as per the aforesaid SEBI circular no.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, The advertisement should draw a specific
reference to the aforesaid Information Memarandum available on the website of the company
as well as BSE.

3. To disclose zall the material information about Arshiya Rall (nfrastructure Limited on a
continuous basis so as to make the same public, in addition to the requirements if any,
specified in Listing Agreement for disclosures about the subsidiaries.

4. The following provisions shall be incorporated in the scheme:

i.  The shares allotted pursuant to the Scheme shall remain frozen in the depository system
till listing/trading permission is given by the designated stock exchange ”

ii. “There shall be no change in the shareholding pattern of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure
Limited between the record date and the listing which may affect the status of this

approval.”

Further you are also advised to bring the contents of this letter to the notice of your shareholders. all
relevant authorities as deemed fit, and also in your application for approval of the scheme of
Arrangement.

Kindly note that as required under Regulation 37(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the validity of this Observation Letter shall be Six Months from
the date of this Letter, within which the scheme shall be submitted to the NCLT.

The Exchange reserves |ts right to withdraw its ‘No adverse observation' at any stage if the
information submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete / incorrect / misleading / false or for
any contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Agreement,
Guidelines/Regulations issued by statutory autharities,

Please note that the aforesaid observations does not preciude the Company from complying with any
other requirements.

Further, it may be noted that with reference to Section 230 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), read
with Rule 8 of Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules 2016 (Company
Rules) and Section 66 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Company Rules wherein pursuant to an
Order passed by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, a Notice of the proposed scheme of
compromise or arrangement filed under sections 230-232 or Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013
as the case may be is required to be served upon the Exchange seeking representations or

objections if any,

In this regard, with a view to have a better transparency In processing the aforesaid notices served
upon the Exchange, the Exchange has already introduced an online system of serving such
Notice along with the_relevant documents of the proposed schemes through the BSE Listing

Centre. B B o

S&PR3SE

SENSEX




EXPERIENCE THE NEW

Any service of notice under Section 230 (5) or Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013 seeking
Exchange's representations or objections if any, would be accepted and proc d through the
Listing Centre only and no physical filings would be accepted. You may please refer to circular
dated February 26, 2019 issued to the company.

Yours faithfully,

S&P@35SE

SENSEX

BSE - INTERNAL
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National Stock Exchange Of India Limited
Ref: NSE/LIST/18881 I July 15, 2019

The Company Secretary
Arshiya Limited
302, Level-3, Ceejay House,
Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block,
Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai - 400018
Kind Attn.: Ms. Savita Dalal
Dear Madam,

Sub: Observation Letter for Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya Limited and Arshiya
Rail Infrastructure Limited

We are in receipt of Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya Limited (“Demerged Company” or
“Arshiya”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“Resulting Company” or “ARIL”). The Scheme
of Arrangement provides for Demerger of Domestic Business Undertaking which includes Domestic
Warehousing activities (Demerged Undertaking) from Arshiya Limited (“Demerged Company” or
“Arshiya”) into Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“Resulting Company” or “ARIL”).

Based on our letter reference no Ref: NSE/LIST/18881submitted to SEBI and pursuant to SEBI
Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (‘Circular’), SEBI vide letter dated July
12, 2019, has given following comments:

a. The Company shall ensure that additional information, if any submitted by the Company, after
filing the Scheme with the Stock Exchange and from the date of the receipt of this letter is
displayed on the website of the listed company.

b. The Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular.

c. The Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be incorporated
in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) and the company is
obliged to bring the observations to the notice of NCLT.

d. It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence, the
company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments/observations/ representations.

It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence, the
company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 to National Stock Exchange of India Limited again for its
comments/observations/ representations.

This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: Rajendra P Bhosale
Date: Mon, Jul 15, 2019 19:00:11 IST

Q NSE Location: NSE

Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited | Exchangs Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra Kurla Complex, Eandra (E), Mumbsai — 200051,
India +91 22 26598100 | www.nssindia.com | CIN U67120MH199 2PLCOG9TES
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Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to
the shareholders, while seeking approval of the Scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted
companies involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the circular
dated March 10, 2017.

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including undertaking
given in terms of Regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we hereby convey our “No-
objection” in terms of Regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, so as to enable the
Company to file the draft scheme with NCLT.

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information
submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any
contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations,
Guidelines / Regulations issued by statutory authorities.

The validity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from July 15, 2019, within which the
scheme shall be submitted to NCLT.

Yours faithfully,
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Rajendra Bhosale
Manager

P.S. Checklist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following
URL http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further _issues.htm

This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: Rajendra P Bhosale
Date: Mon, Jul 15, 2019 19:00:11 IST

D NSE Location: NSE
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Annexure C

Arshiya

Date: 17" November, 2018

To,

The General Manager,
Department of Corporate Services,
BSE Limited,

P.J. Towers, Dalal Street,

Mumbai — 400 001.

Scrip Code: 506074

Ref: Case No. 85922

Sub: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 for the proposed scheme of
Arrangement between Arshiya Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Demerged
Company” or “Arshiya”), and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “Resulting Company” or “ARIL").

This is in continuation to our application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI (Circular No.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10th March, 2017 (earlier SEBI Circular No.
CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated 30th November, 2015) (“Circular) and subsequent
information/documents sought by you from time to time.

In terms of the provision of the above said circular and as mentioned in our application dated
10" October, 2018 we hereby submit the Complaints Report for the period commencing from
26" October, 2018 to 16" November, 2018 stating details of complaints/comments on the
Scheme of Arrangement (Annexed hereto as an Annexure — ).

The Complaints Report will also be uploaded on the website of the Company i.e.
www.arshiyalimited.com.

Request you to kindly take the same on your record.

For Arshiya Limited

(0
Savitd Dalal
Fo pany Secretary & Compliance Officer

ncl. as above

Arshiya Limited

Regd. Off.: 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018. India.
T: +91 22 4230 5500/502 | F: +91 22 4230 5555 | Email: info@arshiyalimited.com | www.arshiyalimited.com
CIN : L93000MH1981PLC024747




Arshiya

ANNEXURE - |
Complaints Report
Part A
" Sr. No. Particulars Number
1. Number of complaints received directly 0
2 | Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange 0
3. Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) 0
4. Number of complaints resolved Not Applicable
5. | Number of complaints pending Not Applicable
Part B
Sr. Name of complainant Date of complaint Status
No. (Resolved/Pending)
g Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

Savita [palal
Compény Secretary & Compliance Officer

ate: 17" November, 2018

Free Trade Warehousing Zone | Rail & Rail Infrastructure | Inland Container Depot | Transport And Handling




Arshiya

Date: 14%' May, 2019

To,

Manager - Listing Compliance

National Stock Exchange of India Limited,
‘Exchange Plaza’. C-1, Block G,

Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051

Scrip Code: ARSHIYA

Ref: Application No. 18881

Sub: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 for the proposed scheme of
Arrangement between Arshiya Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“Demerged Company” or “Arshiya”), and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Resulting Company” or "ARIL").

This is in continuation to our application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, read with SEBI
(Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10" March, 2017 (earlier SEBI Circular
No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated 30Y* November, 2015) (“Circular) and subsequent
information/documents sought by you from time to time.

In terms of the provision of the above said circular and as mentioned in our
application dated 10 October, 2018 we hereby submit the Complaints Report for
the period commencing from 22" April, 2019 to 14™ May, 2019 stating details of

complaints/comments on the Scheme of Arrangement (Annexed hereto as an
Annexure — J).

The Complaints Report will also be uploaded on the website of the Company i.e.
http://www.arshiyalimited.com/shareholding-information.html.

Request you to kindly take the same on your record.

For Aﬁpiya Limited
. b

T

S

Savita Dalal
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Arshiya Limited

Regd. Off.: 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018. India,
T: 491 22 4230 5500/502 | F: 49122 4230 5555 | Email: info@arshiyalimited.com | www.arshiyalimited.com
CIN : L93000OMH1981PLC024747




Encl. as above

Complaints Report

Arshiya

ANNEXURE - 13

Part- A

:Noj A Particulars Number

1. Number of complaints received directly 0

2. | Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange 0
a5 Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) 0

4. Number of complaints resolved Not Applicable

5 | Number of comblaints pending Not Applicable

\

I Sr.No. |  Name of complainant

Part- B

Date of
Complaint

Status
(Resolved/Pending)

s

‘_,,‘]\;

Savita Dalal
Company Secretary & Compl

Ff:\ Ars{ap‘lya Limited

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

~ Not Applicable

Date: 14" May, 2019

ance Officer

Arshiya Limited

Regd. Off.: 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018. India.
T+ 491 22 4230 5500/502 | F: +91 22 4230 5555 | Email: info@arshiyalimited.com | www.arshiyalimited.com
CIN : LS3000MHI981PLCO24747
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Annexure D

Arshiya

ANNEXURE IV
Date: 08" October, 2018

To,

The General Manager,
Department of Corporate Services,
BSE Limited,

P.J. Towers, Dalal Street,

Mumbai — 400 001.

COMPLIANCE REPORT

It is hereby certified that the draft scheme of arrangement involving Arshiya Limited and
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited does not, in any way violate, override or limit the provisions
of securities laws or requirements of the Stock Exchange(s) and the same is in compliance with
the applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reqguirements)
Regulations, 2015 and this circular, including the following:

Sl Reference Particulars

1 Regulations 17 to Corporate governance requirements
27 of LODR
Regulations

2 Regulation 11 of Compliance with securities laws

LODR Regulations
Requirements of this circular

(a) Para (1)(A)(2) Submission of documents to Stock Exchanges

(b) Para (I)(A)(2) Conditions for schemes of arrangement involving unlisted
entities

(c) Para (1)(A)(4) (a) Submission of Valuation Report*

(d) Para (1)(A)(5) Auditors certificate regarding compliance with
Accounting Standards

(e) Para (1)(A)(9) Provision of approval of public shareholders through
e-voting

*Valuation Report is not required since there is no change in the shareholding pattern of the
Demerged Company / resultant company.

S
i Dalal Ajay S Mittal

Managing Director

Z?pany Secretary

rtified that the transactions / accounting treatment provided in the draft scheme of
arrangement involving Arshiya Limited and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited are in
compliance with all the Accounting Standards applicable to a listed entity.

. Maheshwari Ajay S Mittal

Chief Financial Officer 5 o Managing Direct
Arshiya Limited IR RS

Regd. Off.: 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018. India.
T: +91 22 4230 5500/502 | F: +91 22 4230 5555 | Email: info@arshiyalimited.com | www.arshiyalimited.com
CIN : L93000MH1981PLC024747
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ANNEXURE IV

Date: 23" April, 2019

To,

Manager - Listing Compliance

National Stock Exchange of India Limited
‘Exchange Plaza'. C-1, Block G,

Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai - 400 051

COMPLIANCE REPORT

It is hereby certified that the draft scheme of arrangement involving Arshiya Limited and
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited does not, in any way violate, override or limit the provisions
of securities laws or requirements of the Stock Exchange(s) and the same is in compliance with
the applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and this circular, including the following:

Sl Reference Particulars
1 Regulations 17 to Corporate governance requirements
27 of LODR
Regulations
2 Regulation 11 of Compliance with securities laws
LODR Regulations
Requirements of this circular
(a) Para (1)(A)(2) Submission of documents to Stock Exchanges
(b) Para (1)(A)(2) Conditions for schemes of arrangement involving unlisted
entities
(c) Para ((A)4) () Submission of Valuation Report*
(d) Para (1)(A)(5) Auditors certificate regarding comgpliance with
Accounting Standards
(e) Para (1)(A)(9) Provision of approval of public shareholders through
e-voting

“Valuation Report is not required since there is no change in the shareholding pattern of the

Demerged Company / resultant company.
%‘ M

Ajay S Mittal

Dalal
Company Secretary Managing Director

riified that the transaclions / accounting treatment provided in the draft scheme of
arrangement invalving Arshiya Limited and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited are in
compliance with all the Accounting Standards applicable to a listed entity.

. Maheshwari Ajay S Mittal

Chief Financial Officer : P Managing Director
Arshiya Limited e Y

Regd. Off.: 302, Level-3, Ceejay House. Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018. India.

T +91 22 4230 5500/502 | F: +91 22 4230 5555 | Email: info@arshiyalimited com | www.arshiyalimited.com
CIN ;: L83000MH1981PLC024747
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ANNEXURE- EI

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ARSHIYA LIMITED AT ITS MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY THE 24" DAY
OF MAY, 2018 EXPLAINING THE EFFECT OF SCHEME ON EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS
AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDER

Background:

1.

The proposed Scheme of arrangement is between Arshiya Limited (“Demerged company”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure
Limited (“Resulting company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”) had been approved by the board of
directors of the Demerged Company (“Board”) vide the resolution passed at its meeting on May 24, 2018.

The provision of Section 230(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 requires the Board to adopt a report explaining effect of the
Scheme on each class of Shareholders, Key Managerial Personnel, Promoters and Non-Promoter Shareholders, laying out in
particular share exchange ratio and specifying and special valuation difficulties. The said report adopted by the Board is required
to be circulated to the shareholders and creditors along with the notice convening the meeting of members/creditors.

This report of the Board is accordingly prepared in accordance with the requirements specified under Section 230(3) (c) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The following documents were considered by the Board for the purpose of issuing this report:

a.  Thedraft of the Scheme
Report by ZADN & Associates, Chartered Accountants in respect of share entitlement ratio.

c.  Fairness opinion dated May 28, 2018 provided by the Marchant Banker in respect of the fairness of the share entitlement
ratio.

. Report of the Audit Committee of the Demerged Company, recommending the draft scheme to the Board for approval.

e. Certificate dated 24" day of May, 2018 issued by Chaturvedi & Shah, Chartered Accountants the statutory auditors of the
company as required under section 232(3) of the companies Act, 2013 certifying that the accounting treatment in the draft
scheme is in accordance with the accounting standards and applicable law.

Report:

1.

The Scheme provides for the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the scheme) to the Resulting Company. There
will be no change in the shareholding pattern of the Demerged Company.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the demerger including the transfer and vesting of the Demerged
Undertaking in the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall, without any further application or deed, for every 2 (two)
fully paid-up equity shares of the Demerged Company, issue and allot to each member of the Demerged Company whose name
appears in the register of members of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date or to his/her heirs, executors, administrators
or the successors-in-title, as the case may be, 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share of Rs 2 each, of the Resulting Company (‘New
Equity Shares’).

Effect of the Scheme on the Equity Shareholders (the only class of Shareholders) and promoters, and Non-Promoter
Shareholders of the Demerged Company:

1.

Basis the share exchange ration mentioned above, the Resulting Company shall issue shares to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company in the ratio of 2:1 and the shares held by the Demerged Company in the Resulting Company shall be extinguished.

Upon the Scheme coming to effect, the shares to be allotted to the members of the Demerged Company by the Resulting Company
shall be listed and / or admitted to trading on the relevant stock exchange/s in India where the equity shares of the Arshiya
are listed and / or admitted to trading as on effective date. Accordingly, the Resulting Company shall take steps for listing
simultaneously on all such stock exchange(s) within a reasonable period of the receipt of the final NCLT order sanctioning the
Scheme.

Pursuant to the Scheme, all shareholders of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date (as defined in the scheme) will receive
equity shares in the Resulting Company and subsequently, such shareholders of the Demerged Company will hold equity shares
in both, the Demerged Company and Resulting Company, it will give such shareholders of the Demerged Company the ability to
continue to remain invested in both or either of the Companies, giving them greater flexibility in managing and/or dealing with
their investments.
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The Scheme is beneficial to the respective shareholders, creditors, employees and all stakeholders of the Demerged Company and
Resulting Company. The Scheme is expected to contribute in furthering and fulfilling the objectives of both the companies and in
the growth and development of their respective businesses.

Basis the aforesaid, we understand that there will be no adverse effect of the scheme on the equity shareholders, directors,
promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the Demerged Company.

Effect of the Scheme on the Directors and Key Managerial personnel of the Demerged Company:

5.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Demerged Company and their respective relatives have any interest in
the scheme except to the extent the (i) equity shares held by them in the Demerged Company and the resulting Company directly
or as nominee; and /or (ii) Director(s) are common director(s)in the two companies; and/or (iii) the Director(s), key managerial
personnel and their respective relatives are the director(s), partner(s), members(s) and/or beneficiary(ies) of the companies,
firms, association of persons, body corporates and/or trust, as the case may be, that hold shares into the Demerged Company/
Resulting Company. There will be no adverse effect of the scheme on the directors and key managerial personnel of the Demerged
Company

For Arshiya Limited.
Sd/-

Ajay S Mittal
Chairman appointed for the meeting

Date: 26t February, 2021
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE- EIl

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED AT ITS MEETING HELD ON
THURSDAY THE 24" DAY OF MAY, 2018 EXPLAINING THE EFFECT OF SCHEME ON EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDER

Background:

1.

The proposed Scheme of arrangement is between Arshiya Limited (“Demerged company”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure
Limited (“Resulting company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”) had been approved by the board of
directors of the Demerged Company (“Board”) vide the resolution passed at its meeting on May 24, 2018.

The provision of Section 230(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 requires the Board to adopt a report explaining effect of the
Scheme on each class of Shareholders, Key Managerial Personnel, Promoters and Non-Promoter Shareholders, laying out in
particular share exchange ratio and specifying and special valuation difficulties. The said report adopted by the Board is required
to be circulated to the shareholders and creditors along with the notice convening the meeting of members/creditors.

This report of the Board is accordingly prepared in accordance with the requirements specified under Section 230(3) (c) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The following documents were considered by the Board for the purpose of issuing this report:

a.  Thedraft of the Scheme
Report by ZADN & Associates, Chartered Accountants in respect of share entitlement ratio.

c.  Fairness opinion dated May 28, 2018 provided by the Marchant Banker in respect of the fairness of the share entitlement
ratio.

. Report of the Audit Committee of the Resulting Company, recommending the draft scheme to the Board for approval.

e. Certificate dated 24" day of May, 2018 issued by Chaturvedi & Shah, Chartered Accountants the statutory auditors of the
company as required under section 232(3) of the companies Act, 2013 certifying that the accounting treatment in the draft
scheme is in accordance with the accounting standards and applicable law.

Report:

1.

The Scheme provides for the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the scheme) to the Resulting Company. There
will be no change in the shareholding pattern of the Demerged Company.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the demerger including the transfer and vesting of the Demerged
Undertaking in the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall, without any further application or deed, for every 2 (two)
fully paid-up equity shares of the Demerged Company, issue and allot to each member of the Demerged Company whose name
appears in the register of members of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date or to his/her heirs, executors, administrators
or the successors-in-title, as the case may be, 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share of Rs 2 each, of the Resulting Company (‘New
Equity Shares’).

Effect of the Scheme on the Equity Shareholders (the only class of Shareholders) and promoters, and Non-Promoter
Shareholders of the Resulting Company:

1.

Basis the share exchange ration mentioned above, the Resulting Company shall issue shares to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company in the ratio of 2:1 and the shares held by the Demerged Company in the Resulting Company shall be extinguished.

Upon the Scheme coming to effect, the shares to be allotted to the members of the Demerged Company by the Resulting Company
shall be listed and / or admitted to trading on the relevant stock exchange/s in India where the equity shares of the Arshiya
are listed and / or admitted to trading as on effective date. Accordingly, the Resulting Company shall take steps for listing
simultaneously on all such stock exchange(s) within a reasonable period of the receipt of the final NCLT order sanctioning the
Scheme.

Pursuant to the Scheme, all shareholders of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date (as defined in the scheme) will receive
equity shares in the Resulting Company and subsequently, such shareholders of the Demerged Company will hold equity shares
in both, the Demerged Company and Resulting Company, it will give such shareholders of the Demerged Company the ability to
continue to remain invested in both or either of the Companies, giving them greater flexibility in managing and/or dealing with
their investments.
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4.  The Scheme is beneficial to the respective shareholders, creditors, employees and all stakeholders of the Demerged Company and
Resulting Company. The Scheme is expected to contribute in furthering and fulfilling the objectives of both the companies and in
the growth and development of their respective businesses.

Basis the aforesaid, we understand that there will be no adverse effect of the scheme on the equity shareholders, directors, promoters
and non-promoter shareholders of the Demerged Company.

Effect of the Scheme on the Directors and Key Managerial personnel of the Resulting Company:

5. None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Resulting Company and their respective relatives have any interestin
the scheme except to the extent the (i) equity shares held by them in the Demerged Company and the resulting Company directly
or as nominee; and /or (ii) Director(s) are common director(s)in the two companies; and/or (iii) the Director(s), key managerial
personnel and their respective relatives are the director(s), partner(s), members(s) and/or beneficiary(ies) of the companies,
firms, association of persons, body corporates and/or trust, as the case may be, that hold shares into the Demerged Company/
Resulting Company. There will be no adverse effect of the scheme on the directors and key managerial personnel of the Resulting
Company.

For Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited.

Sd/-
Ajay S Mittal
Chairman appointed for the meeting

Date: 26t February, 2021
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure F

ZADN & ASSOCiateS 4" Floor, Shreeniwas House

Hazarimal Somani Marg

Next to MTNL Exchange Building
Fort, Mumbai 400 001, India

Tel; +91 22 4973 5451 / 52 / 53

May 24, 2018

To, To,
The Board of Directors The Board of Directors

Arshiya Limited Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
(Demerged Company) (Resulting Company)

302. Ceejay House, Level - 3 302, Ceejay House, Level - 3
Shiv Sagar Estate, F- Block Shiv Sagar Estate, F- Block

Dr. Annie Besant Road Dr. Annie Besant Road
Worli, Mumbai — 400018, India. Worli, Mumbai — 400018, India.
Dear Sirs,

Sub: Report on share entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger of Domestic Business
Undertaking (‘Demerged Undertaking’) of Arshiya Limited (‘Demerged Company’) into
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (‘Resulting Company’).

We, ZADN & Associates, Chartered Accountants (‘We' or 'ZADN’ or ‘Our’ or ‘Us’), refer to the
Engagement Letter dated May 8, 2018 and related discussions we had with you, wherein the
management of Arshiya Limited (‘Demerged Company' or ‘Arshiya’) and Arshiya Rail
Infrastructure Limited (‘Resulting Company’ or ‘ARIL") (collectively hereinafter referred to as
the ‘Companies’) requested our report on the share entitlement ratio of equity shares of the
Resulting Company to be issued to the equity shareholders of the Demerged Company in
connection with the proposed demerger of Domestic Business Undertaking (‘Demerged
Undertaking’) of Arshiya Limited on the Record Date as more elaborately defined in the
proposed Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya Limited and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure
Limited, under sections 230 to 232 read with section 66 and section 52 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 hereinafter referred to as ‘the Proposed Scheme’ or
‘the Scheme’ or ‘the Scheme of Arrangement’.
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ZADN & Associates

1.

Strictly Private and Confidential

11

Background:

Arshiya Limited (‘Arshiya’ or the ‘Demerged Company’)

1.1.1

1.1.3

115

Arshiya Limited is a listed public limited company incorporated on July 3, 1981
under the Companies Act, 1956 bearing CIN - L93000MH1981PLC024747 and
its registered office is situated at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F - Block, Shiv
Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai — 400 018. Equity shares
of Arshiya are listed on BSE Limited (‘BSE’) and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (‘NSE’) in India.

Arshiya, is a flagship company of Arshiya Group having interests in the business
of developing Free Trade Warehousing Zones ('FTWZs') and Domestic
Warehousing Areas (DWASs’) to improve logistics infrastructure in India.

Board of Directors of the Company as on May 12, 2018 are as under;
Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra August 7, 2006
Mr. Ajay Shankarial Mittal October 1, 2011
Mr. Shah Pankaj Rishabh December 31, 2005
Ms. Archana Ajay Mittal October 25, 2005
Mr. Mukesh Kacker October 28, 2009
Mr. Sauta Kodain July 10, 2015
Mr. Santosh Mohanlal Maheshwari February 8, 2017

The Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of Arshiya as on
May 12, 2018 is as under:

Pariculars —— — ——— JAmountin INR|

Authorised Share Capital:

247,500,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each 495,000,000
11,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each 110,000,000
Total 605,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital:

229,716,776 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each 459 433.552
5,764,619 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each 57,646,190
Total 517,079,742

We are informed that there are no subsequent changes in the capital structure
and directors on board.

As stated in the audited financial statements of Arshiya for the year ended
March 31, 2017, Arshiya is in financial stress and had exited its corporate debt
restructuring during FY16 pursuant to which the lending banks have assigned
their financial assets pertaining to Arshiya and its other wholly owned
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ZADN & Associates

subsidiaries companies including ARIL to Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction
Company Limited (EARC’).

1,1.8 Accordingly, EARC has become the secured lender and all the rights, title and
interest of lending banks have vested in EARC. Arshiya has entered into
Restructuring Agreement with EARC on March 31, 2017 for restructuring its
bank dues wherein the debt is segregated between Restructured Rupee Loan
which will carry interest of 10% p.a. and the restructured loans are payable over
7 years tenure and balance loan is to be converted by issuance of equity shares
and Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (‘OCRPS’) which
may be converted into equity shares at the option of the holder at any time within
18 months from the date of issue of OCRPS.

1.1.7 As represented by the management, below table describes the number of
OCRPS issued by Arshiya to EARC and their as on date conversion status:

Maximum No of Allotment of equity No. of OCRPS

Balance

No of OCRPS | Equity sharesto be | shares pursuantto e
issued 8 a:loted upon (;onvzriosu of s i allo}ment of
conversion of OCRPS OCRPS RO | Souiy Satee
Senes |- OCRPS 6,423,329 15,485,554 1,588,038 5,764.619 13,897,516
Seres Il - OCRPS 1,310,000 2,382392 2,382,382
Senes lil- OCRPS 870,000 4764 785 4,764,785
Senes IV - OCRPS 2.14D,000 4,764,785 4,764 785 - -
Total 10,743,329 27,397,516 13,500,000 5,764,619 13,897,516

As per clause 1.4.3 of the Proposed Scheme, it is clarified that the OCRPS issued
by Arshiya does not relate to Domestic Business and accordingly, no additional /
proportionate consideration shall be payable to its holders upon the Proposed
Scheme becoming effective. However, any Corporate Action relating to the
outstanding Series 1 — OCRPS shall be kept in abeyance till last date upto which
the option for conversion is exercisable. Further, in case if there is change in any
parameters or facts or any assumptions stated in this report, the report will undergo
a change to the extent required.

In reference to above, management informed that if the said Series 1 - OCRPS is
converted into equity shares on or before the Record Date, they will receive the
equity shares of ARIL as per share entitlement report, otherwise, said Series 1 -
OCRPS shall continue to be in the books of Arshiya not affecting the identical equity
shareholding being created pursuant to Proposed Scheme. Further, we understand
from the management that there are no on-going discussions with any other
lender(s) for issuance of equity shares / convertible instrument and conversion of
convertible instruments other than outstanding 5,764,619 Series 1 - OCRPS held by
EARC.

12 Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (‘ARIL’ or the ‘Resulting Company’)

1.2.1 ARIL is a unlisted public company incorporated on April 7, 2008 under the
Companies Act, 1956 bearing CIN - U93000MH2008FPLC180907 and its

=
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ZADN & Associates

registered office is situated at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar
Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai — 400 018.

1.2.2 ARIL is currently engaged in the business of providing Private Freight Terminal
(PFT) and Rail Transportation Services (Rail). ARIL is also engaged in container
train business and holding Category — | license which allows ARIL to operate on
Indian Rail network on pan india basis both domestic and exim traffic.

1.2.3 Board of Directors of the Company as on May 12, 2018 is as under:

Name of the Director

Mr. Ashishkurnar Bairagra January 16, 2010
Mr. Nawit Jugal Kishore Choudhary January 15, 2013
Mr. Shah Pankaj Rishabh March 27, 2015

1.2.4 The Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of ARIL as on

May 12, 2018 is as under:

Authorised Share Capital:

45,000,000 Equity Shares of Re.10/- each 450,000,000
Total 450,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital:

42,384 417 Equity Shares of Re. 10/- each 423,844,170
Total 423,844,170

We are informed that there are no subsequent changes in the capital structure
and directors on board, As per ciause 9 of the Proposed Scheme, pursuant to and
upon the Proposed Scheme becoming effective, it is proposed that Authorised
Share Capttal of ARIL, without any further application, act, instrument or deed,
shall be reclassified to 22,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each.

1.2.5 As on date, ARIL is a wholly owned subsidiary of Arshiya Limited as the entire
paid up equity share capital is held by Arshiya and its nominees.

1.2.6 Management of ARIL informed that currently there are no OCRPS holders in ARIL
and there are no on-going discussions with any lenders for issuance of equity
shares / convertible instruments.

1.2.7 The management of Arshiya Group has informed that as part of the overall group
reorganization, the management has filed a Scheme of Amalgamation of Arshiya
Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited (‘AIDHL’) and Arshiya Transport and
Handling Limited (‘ATHL') with Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (ARIL’ or
‘Resulting Company’) with National Company Law Tribunal at Mumbai and is
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1.28

129

1210

1.2.11

1212

awaiting their approval. The appointed date for the proposed merger is October 1,
2015 as stated in the Scheme of Amalgamation.

AIDHL and ATHL are 100% subsidiaries of Arshiya and hence fellow subsidiaries
of ARIL.

Further, based on the earlier Scheme of Amalgamation as adopted by the board
of the companies, for every one equity share of AIDHL and ATHL, one equity
share of ARIL is to be issued. Accordingly, ARIL would issue 14,992,995 equity
shares to the shareholders of AIDHL (i.e. Arshiya) and 50,000 equity shares to
the shareholders of ATHL (i.e. Arshiya).

Further AIDHL has issued 1,20,000 Zero percent Optionally Convertible
Redeemable Preference Shares to Bank of Baroda (BOB) against conversion of
loan amounting to INR 1,20,000,000 which was approved by Special Resolution
passed on January 17, 2018. The management has informed us that as per the
terms of the issuance of OCRPS, Bank of Baroda shall be entitled to equity
shares of AIDHL on conversion of the said OCRPS, if the Company fail to make
the redemption before the end of sixth year. However, management has
represented that the said OCRPS shall be converted into equity shares before the
scheme of merger becoming effective. Also as represented to us, Arshiya
(Holding Company) has taken a decision in consensus with BOB that Arshiya
shall buy these OCRPS and convert the same into equity shares or AIDHL shall
redeem the same before the scheme of merger becoming effective.

As per the Preamble paragraph of the Proposed Scheme, the Proposed Scheme
is also conditional upon the aforesaid merger scheme being effective first and
ARIL to continue to be wholly owned subsidiary company of Arshiya as on the
Record Date.

Please note that if the above representation by the management of Arshiya and
ARIL about purchase of OCRPS from BOB and conversion or redemption of the
same before the Effective Date of the merger and the Proposed Scheme is not
affected then in that scenario, our recommendation of the share entitlement ratio
will need to be revisited and might undergo a change, which we are unable to
commenl upon and it is not part of our current engagement. Further, we
understand from the management that there are no on-going discussions with any
other lender(s) for issuance of equity or convertible instruments by AIDHL and
ATHL.

2. Objective of this Report:

2.1 As described hereinbefore in this report, the Board of Directors of Arshiya proposes to
demerge its Domestic Business Undertaking and transfer into ARIL.

Strictly Private and Confidential
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22

2.3

24

2.5

26

2.7

2.8

28

2.10

211

Strictly

As defined in the Proposed Scheme, ‘Domestic Business Undertaking’ means
domestic business activities pertaining to development of Domestic Warehousing Areas
(‘DWAs’) including investments held in the Resulting Company.

As informed by the management, the aforesaid proposed demerger is in line with
Arshiya Group’s intentions to reorganize its corporate structure and businesses which is
spread across various group companies (wholly owned subsidiaries) in order to
integrate / consolidate its operations by housing similar businesses into respective
entities as stated below:

i. FTWZs business in Arshiya or into an independent entity wholly owned by
Arshiya.

ii. DWASs, RAIL, PFT and Inland Container Depot business in ARIL.

In reference to above, management has informed that the integration / reorganization of
corporate structure of the group is to be achieved by way of transfer of Domestic
Business Undertaking through the Proposed Scheme with April 1, 2019 as the
Appointed Date.

We understand that pursuant to the Proposed Scheme, all the equity shareholders of
Arshiya as on the Record Date will be issued equity shares of ARIL as per share
entittement ratio as consideration for the proposed transfer and vesting of Domestic
Business Undertaking into ARIL.

The equity shares of Arshiya are listed on BSE and NSE in India. Accordingly, upon the
Proposed Scheme coming to effect, the equity shares to be allotted to all the equity
shareholders of Arshiya on the Record Date by ARIL will also be listed and / or admitted
to trading on BSE and NSE in India, subject to applicable compliances.

Upon the Proposed Scheme becoming effective, all the equity shares held by Arshiya
or its nominee in ARIL shall stand cancelled, extinguished and annulled.

In connection with the Proposed Scheme, we have been requested to provide a report

on the share entitlement ratio of equity shares of ARIL to the shareholders of Arshiya as
proposed by the management.

We understand that consequent to the Proposed Scheme and issuance of equity
shares to all the equity shareholders of Arshiya as contemplated in the Proposed

Scheme, there will be no impact on the economic and beneficial interest of the equity
shareholders of Arshiya.

We understand that this equity share entitlement ratio report will be used for the above-

mentioned purpose only and to the extent mandatorily required under applicable laws of
India.

For the purpose of our report, we have relied on the information, explanations and
representations provided to us by the management of Arshiya and ARIL. We have not

Private and Confidential
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carried out any independent tests to establish the accuracy of such information,
explanations and representations. In addition, we have listed the scope of work in the
course of our assignment, noting any limitations on our assignment. This report is
subject to the attached limiting conditions and terms for this assignment, as may be
described in this report or in our engagement letter.

3. Sources of Information:

For the purpose of this share entittement ratio exercise, we have relied on the following
information provided to us by the management of the Demerged Company and Resulting
Company and information available in the public domain:

3.1

32

33

34

35

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Strictly Private and Confidential

Draft Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya and ARIL proposed to be adopted at
the Board meetings of both the companies;

Scheme of Amalgamation of Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited (‘AIDHL')
and Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited (‘ATHL') with Arshiya Rail Infrastructure
Limited (ARIL");

Audited financial statements of the Demerged and Resulting Company for the year
ended March 31, 2017;

Current Shareholding pattern of the Demerged Companies and Resuiting Company;

Desired capital structure and equity shares of ARIL proposed to be issued to the
shareholders of Arshiya on demerger of the Domestic Business Undertaking into
ARIL;

Representation with regards to dealing with OCRPS issued to Bank of Baroda by
AIDHL as detailed in paragraph 1.2.10 of this report;

Other relevant data and information provided to us either in written or oral form or in
form of soft copy and discussions with the representatives of management of Arshiya
Group;

Representation letter dated May 23, 2018, and

Relevant information in public domain.
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4.

Exclusions and Limitations:

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

45

4.6

47

48

49

This report is subject to the limitations detailed herein. As such the report is to be read
in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the relevant documents and
representations referred to herein.

Our work was not designed to verify the accuracy or reliability of the information
provided to us and nothing in this report should be taken to imply that we have
conducted procedures, audits or investigations in an attempt to verify or confirm any of
the information supplied to us.

In addition, we do not take any obligation or responsibility for any changes in the
information used by us to arrive at our conclusion as set out herein which may occur
subsequent to the completion of scope of work and the date of the report,

We further assume that the managements of both all the Companies have brought to

our attention any and all factors having an impact on the detemmination of the share
entitlement ratio.

We have been given to understand by the managements of the Companies that they
have not omitted any relevant and material factors. Accordingly, we do not express any
opinion or offer any form of assurance regarding its accuracy and completeness. We
assume no responsibility for any errors in the above information furnished by the
Companies and their impact on the present exercise.

Whilst all reasonable care has been taken to ensure that the factual statements in the
report are accurate, neither ourselves, nor any of our Partners, Officers or Employees
shall, in any way be liable or responsible either directly or indirectly for the contents
stated herein. Accordingly, we make no representation or warranty, express or implied,
in respect of the completeness, authenticity or accuracy of such factual statements. We
expressly disclaim all liabilities, which may arise based upon the information used in
this report. We are not liable to any third party in relation to the issue of this report.

We have aiso relied on information available in public domain; however the accuracy
and timelines of the same has not been independently verified by us.

Any person / party, intending to provide finance / invest in the shares / business of the
company or for any other reason whatsoever, shall do so after seeking their own
professional advice and after carrying out their own due diligence procedures to ensure
that they are making an informed decision.

This exercise of commenting on the share entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger
is not and must not be interpreted as our opinion or estimate of the absolute market
value or independent fair value of the equity shares or any class or number of equity
shares pre or post demerger.

Strictly Private and Confidential B e
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410

411

412

Qur scope of work is limited to expression of our view on the proposed share
entitiement ratio and its impact on the economic interest of the shareholders of the
Companies. Our report is not, nor should it be construed as, our opining or certifying the
compliance of the proposed demerger of the Demerged Undertaking with the
provisions of any law or any legal implications or issues arising from such Proposed
Scheme.

Our recommendation should be considered to be in the nature of non-binding advice.

This report has been prepared exclusively for the use of Arshiya and ARIL and solely
for the purpose of recommending a share entitlement ratio for the Proposed Scheme
Hence, this report should not be provided or used for any purpose, whether in whole or
in part without our prior written consent, to any other person and for any other purpose
except that as is mentioned earlier in this report. However, we understand that you may
share this report with your advisors supporting the proposed transaction as well as
statutory authorities. Please note that we do not accept any responsibility to your
advisors or any third party with regard to this report.

We would like to draw attention to important representations by the management as
detailed in paragraph 1.1.7 and paragraph 1.2.10 of this report. The share entitement
ratio mentioned in this report is on the basis of those representations. While we take no
responsibility for implementing the actions or non-implementing the actions by the
managements in the representations, we would want to bring to the attention that non-
fuffilment of the representations could have an impact on the share entitlement ratio.
We are unable to comment on the quantum (whether substantial or not) of impact due
to non-fulfillment of the actions committed in those representations.

5. BASIS OF DETERMINATION OF SHARE ENTITLEMENT RATIO:

Our evaluation towards the share entitiement ratio considers the following aspects:

51 The estimate of net assets, working capital requirements and capital base required
for the Domestic Business Undertaking / ARIL as independently assessed by the
management of Arshiya and ARIL;

52 Based on the above assessment the management has proposed the number of
equity shares 1o be issued such that ARIL is appropriately capitalized;

53 As on date, ARIL is a wholly owned subsidiary (‘WOS') of Arshiya and shall
continue to be WOS of Arshiya till the effective date / Record Date of the Proposed
Scheme.

5.4 As detailed earlier, the management is also in the process of merging AIDHL and
ATHL with ARIL, all WOS's of Arshiya.
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5.8
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Strictly Private and Confidential

Pursuant to clauses in the Proposed Scheme with regards to dealing with Series 1 -
OCRPS as detailed in paragraph 1.1.7 of this report and representations by the
management in paragraph 1.2.10 of this report would be implemented prior to the
Record Date, the equity shares issued in ARIL to the shareholders of Arshiya would
be in the same proportion in which they hold equity shares in Arshiya on the Record
Date and such allotment would be value neutral to the equity shareholders of
Arshiya.

As per Part V clause 7.8 of the Proposed Scheme, upon the scheme becoming
effective, all the equity shares held by the Demerged Company or its nominee in the
Resulting Company shall stand cancelled, extinguished and annulled. As such. the
equity shareholding pattern of ARIL post implementation of the representations and
the Proposed Scheme, would be identical to the equity shareholding pattern of
Arshiya.

Accordingly as stated in clause 1.5 of the Proposed Scheme, all the equity
shareholders of Arshiya as on the Record Date would be entitied to equity shares of
ARIL in the same proportion in which they currently own directly in Arshiya resulting
into identical shareholders to Arshiya and ARIL. Accordingly, even after the
Proposed Scheme coming into effect, the economic and beneficial interest will
remain within the existing shareholders of Arshiya in the same proportion as they
hold in Arshiya as on the Record Date.

Thus, share entitlement ratio would not have any impact on the ultimate value of the
equity shareholders of Arshiya and the proposed demerger of Domestic Business
Undertaking of Arshiya into ARIL will be value-neutral to Arshiya's equity
shareholders. The background and rationale for the scheme has been provided in
the Proposed Scheme.

Accordingly, the determination of share entitlement ratio of the companies is at best
an internal arrangement between the Demerged Company and Resulting Company
and its shareholders and a detailed valuation of the Companies to determine the
share entitlement ratio would not be relevant in the present case.

The share entitlement ratio and the number of equity shares to be allotted pursuant
to demerger, is of no material relevance since there will be no loss of economic
interest in the hands of equity shareholders of Arshiya. Accordingly, for the purpose
of recommending a share entitlement ratio we are not attempting to arrive at the
absolute values of equity shares of each company.

Accordingly, in our opinion based on the representations and information provided
by the management, as there will be no change in the shareholding pattern of
Arshiya pursuant to the Scheme, no valuation report is required as per Circular
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 issued by SEBI, as may be amended
from time to time.
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5.12

5.13

Further, we have been informed by the management of ARIL that upon the effective
date, the Authorized Equity Share Capital of Arshiya would be increased by the
requisite amount, if required, so that issued paid up share capital post the allotment
pursuant to the Scheme is lower than the authorized capital.

Considering the above, the share entittement ratio for demerger of Domestic
Business Undertaking of Arshiya into ARIL, as suggested by the managements of
both the Companies and as stated under we believe that the share entitlement ratio
is fair and equitable considering that all the shareholders of Arshiya upon demerger
will become the shareholders of ARIL and ultimate beneficial owners of Arshiya and
ARIL will be held by the same shareholders in same proportion. Accardingly,

“1 (One) fully paid equity share of Face Value INR 2 (Rupees Two) each of ARIL

is to be issued for every 2 (Two) fully paid equity shares of Face Value INR 2
(Rupees Two) each held in Arshiya.”

For ZADN & Associates
Chartered Accountants

FRN. 112306W __——
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,f/',\‘? “EENRON

i e Yo

N WSl Bay >

Zulfiqar Shivji - _ Y
Partner ‘*:;\;j_ 7

M. No.100666
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure G

CHATURVEDI ~ SHAH

Chartered Accouniants

To,

The Board of Directors,
Arshiya Limited

302, Level 3, Ceejay House,
F-Block, Shiv Sagar Estate,
Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli,
Mumbai — 400 018

Independent Auditor's Certificate in respect of proposed accounting treatment as
mentioned in Scheme of Amalgamation Between Arshiya Limited (‘Demerged
Company’ or ‘Arshiya’) AND Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (‘Resulting Company’
or '‘ARIL’)AND their respective shareholders (hereinafter referred to as ‘the
Scheme’),

1. This Certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement with
Arshiya Limited ('the Company').

2. The accounting treatment proposed by the Company is specified in Clause 8 of
the Scheme, For ease of reference, the said Clause 8 of the Scheme, duly
authenticated on behalf of the Company, are reproduced in Annexure to this
Certificate (‘the Statement’) and initialled by us only for the purposes of
identification.

Management’s Responsibility

3. The responsihility for preparation of the Scheme and its compliance with relevant
laws and regulations, including the applicable Indian Accounting Standards read
with the rules made thereunder and other Generally Accepted Accounting
principles, is that of the Board of Directors of the Companies involved. This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Scheme and applying
an appropriate basis of preparation; and making estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

4. Our responsibility is only to examine and report whether the accounting
treatment proposed by the Company as specified in Clause 8 of the Scheme as
reproduced in the Statement is in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified in Section 133 or any other provisions of the Companies
Act. 2013 and in line with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India.
Nothing contained in this Certificate, nor anything said or done in the course of,
or in connection with the services that are subject to this Certificate, will extend
any duty of care that we may have in our capacity of the statutory auditors of any
financial statements of the Company.

(.

Head Office: 714-715, Tulsiani Chambers, 212, Nariman Point. Mumbai - 400 021, India. Tel.: +91 22 3021 8500 » Fax :+91 22 3021 8595
Other Offices: 44 - 46, 4th Floor, “C" Wing, Mittal Caurt, Nariman Paint, Mumbai - 400 021, India. Tel.: +91 22 4510 9700 = Fax: +91 22 45109722
URL : www.cas.ind.in

Branch : Bengaluru
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5.

CHATURVEDI

SHAH

Chartered Accountants

We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) and
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013 in so far as applicable for the purpose of this Certificate. The Guidance
Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics
issued by the ICAI.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on
Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and
Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related
Services Engagements. Further our examination did not extend to any other
parts and aspects of a legal and proprietary nature in the aforesaid Scheme.

Opinion

7.

Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations
provided to us by the Management of the Company, we are of the opinion that
the accounting treatment proposed by the Company as specified in Clause 8 of
the Scheme and reproduced in the Statement, is in compliance with SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and
circulars issued there under and all the applicable Indian Accounting Standards
notified by the Central Government under the Companies Act 2013 and other
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India.

Restriction on Use

8.

The Certificate is provided to the Board of Directors of the Company in
connection with the scheme and for the purpose of onward submission to the
National Company Law Tribunal and other regulatory authorities including
Securities and Exchange Board of India and Stock Exchange(s) and should not
be used by any other person/ authority or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we
do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or
to any other person to whom this Certificate is shown or into whose hands it may
come without our prior consent in writing.

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101720W

J’.

L
Vijay Napawaliya
Partner
Membership No.: 109859

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 24, 2018
Encl.; as above
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Annexure H

Chartered Capital And Investment Ltd.
AR —4‘»87-7C, ':215 ATRIUM", Andheri Kurla Road, AndheﬁEas;l).r Muim;a|-4700 093.
Tel.: 91-22-6692 4111 / 6222 » Website : www.charteredcapital.net

Date: May 24, 2018

To, To,
The Board of Directors The Board of Directors
Arshiya Limited Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
302, Ceejay House, Level - 3 302, Ceejay House, Level - 3
Shiv Sagar Estate, F- Block Shiv Sagar Estate, F- Block
Dr. Annie Besant Road Dr. Annie Besant Road
Worli, Mumbai - 400018, India Worli, Mumbai - 400018, India
Dear Sirs, ’
ject: Fairn inion on Share Entitlement Ratio R for th
r merger of D i b
n king") of Arshi w 3 b 2
rshiya Rail Infrastr i y S -] i mpany’

£ BACKGROUND

We M/s. Chartered Capital and Investment Limited (‘Chartered Capital’ or
‘CCIL’), SEBI registered Merchant Banker, having SEBI Permanent
Registration No, INM000004018 have been appointed by the Arshiya Limited
(‘Arshiya’ or ‘Demerged Company’) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure
Limited (*"ARIL’ or '‘Resulting Company’) to provide a fairness opinion on
the Share Entitlement Ratio Report by M/s. ZADN & Associates, Chartered
Accountants having their office at 4™ Floor, Shreeniwas House, Hazarimal
Somani Marg, Next to MTNL Exchange Building, Fort, Mumbai-400001, who
were the appointed for issuing report on the Sharé Entitlement Ratio of equity
shares of the Resulting Company to be issued to the shareholders of the
Demerged Company in connection with the proposed demerger of Domestic
Business Undertaking (‘Demerged Undertaking’) of Arshiya Limited in the
proposed Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya Limited and Arshiya Rail
Infrastructure Limited, under sections 230 to 232 read with section 66 and
section 52 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
hereinafter referred to as ‘the Proposed Scheme’ or ‘the Scheme’ or ‘the
Scheme of Arrangement’.

Regd. Office - 711, Mahakant. Opp. V. S Hospital, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad - 380 006
CIN NO: L45201GJ1986PLC008577




II.

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

The fairness opinion has been issued for the proposed demerger of Domestic
Business Undertaking of Arshiya Limited into Arshiya Rail Infrastructure
Limited pursuant to the reguirement and in compliance with SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 read with SEBI
Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015, SEBI Circular
No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, SEBI Circular No,
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/26 dated March 23, 2017, SEBI Circular No,
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/105 dated September 21, 2017 and SEBI Circular No.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2018/2 dated January 03, 2018.

COMPANIES THAT ARE PARTY TO THE PROPOSED SCHEME

Arshiya Limited is a listed public limited company incorporated on July 3,
1981 under the Companies Act, 1956 bearing CIN -
L93000MH1981PLC0O24747 and its registered office is situated at 302, Level 3,
Ceejay House, F - Block, Shiv Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Waorli,
Mumbai - 400 018. Equity shares of Arshiya are listed on BSE Limited ('BSE’)
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited ("NSE’) in India.

Arshiya, is a flagship company of Arshiya Group having interests in the
business of developing Free Trade Warehousing Zones (‘FTWZs') and
Domestic Warehousing Areas (‘DWAs’') to improve logistics infrastructure in
India.

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“ARIL") is a unlisted public company
incorporated on April 7, 2008 under the Companies Act, 1956 bearing CIN -
U93000MH2008PLC180907 and its registered office is situated at 302, Level
3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli,
Mumbai - 400 018,

ARIL is currently engaged in the business of providing Private Freight
Terminal (PFT) and Rail Transportation Services (Rail). ARIL is also engaged
in container train business and holding Category - 1 license which allows ARIL
to operate on Indian Rail network on pan India basis both domestic and exim
traffic.

As on date, ARIL is a wholly owned subsidiary of Arshiya Limited as the entire
paid up equity share capital is held by Arshiya and its nominees.

The management of Arshiya Group has informed that as part of the overall
group reorganization, the management has filed a Scheme of Amalgamation
of Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited (‘AIDHL') and Arshiya
Transport and Handling Limited ('ATHLY) with Arshiya Rail Infrastructure
Limited ('ARIL’ or 'Resulting Company’) with National Company Law
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2.8

2.8

I1I.

3.1

3.2

Tribunal at Mumbai and is awaiting their approval, The appointed date for the
proposed merger is October 1, 2015 as stated in the Scheme of
Amalgamation

AIDHL and ATHL are 100% subsidiaries of Arshiya and hence fellow
subsidiaries of ARIL.

As per the Preamble paragraph of the Proposed Scheme, the Proposed
Scheme is also conditional upon the aforesaid merger scheme as mentioned
in point 2.6 above being effective first. In case the scheme as mentioned in
point 2.6 above is withdrawn or ARIL ceases to be a wholly owned subsidiary
of Arshiya as on the Record date, the proposed scheme will also be
withdrawn.

INF VED AND RELIED UPON BY US
FAIRNESS OPINION

We, CCIL, have prepared the Fairness Opinion on the basis of the following
information received from the management of the Companies:

a) Draft Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya and ARIL proposed to be
adopted at the Board meetings of both the companies;

b) Perused the Report on Share Entitlement Ratio given by M/s. ZADN &
Associates, Chartered Accountants dated May 24, 2018.

¢) Scheme of Amalgamation of Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited
(CAIDHL') and Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited (‘ATHL') with
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited ('ARIL'); y

d) Audited financial statements of the Demerged and Resulting Company for
the year ended March 31, 2017;

e) Current Shareholding pattern of the Demerged Company and Resulting
Company;

f) Desired capital structure and equity shares of ARIL proposed to be issued
to the shareholders of Arshiya on demerger of the Domestic Business
Undertaking into ARIL;

g) Such other information and explanations that have been provided to us by
the management of Arshiya and ARIL;

h) Relevant Information in public domain.

This Report is issued on the understanding that Arshiya Limited and Arshiya
Rail Infrastructure Limited has drawn our attention to all the relevant
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IV.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

matters, of which they were aware of, concerning the respective company’s
financial position and businesses, which may have an impact on this Report.

Our work does not constitute an audit or certification of the historical financial
statements of Arshiya Limited and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited,
including their working results referred to in this Report. Accordingly, we are
unable to and do not express any opinion on the accuracy of any financial
information referred to in this Report. We assume no responsibility for any
errors in the information submitted by the Managements and their impact on
the present exercise,

DISCLAIMER

We have not considered any finding made by other external agencies in
carrying out this work.

This report’is intended solely for the limited purpose mentioned earlier and
should not be regarded as a recommendation to the investors to invest in
Arshiya Limited and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited or deal in any form in
the securities of the Companies and should also not be considered as a final
equity value of the Companies.

Our report does not, in any way, guarantee that the equity shares of
Companies will continue to remain at the price on which the valuation of the
shares takes place.

Our report is for the benefit of and confidential use by the Companies. This
report is not meant for save and except as specified above, under any Indian
or foreign law, statute, act guideline or similar instruction. The Companies are
prohibited from using this report other than for its sole limited purpose and
not to make a copy of this report available to any party other than those
required by statute for carrying out the limited purpose of this report.

We have not made an appraisal or independent valuation of any of the assets
or liabilities of any of the Companies and have not conducted an audit or due
diligence or reviewed/ validated the financial data except what is provided for
in the Valuation Report and financial data provided to us by the Company or
Valuer.

This Certificate may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and
the same,

During the course of our work, we have relied upon assumptions made by
management of the companies. These assumptions require the exercise of
judgement and are subject to uncertainties.
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4.8

In no circumstances whatsoever, will Chartered Capital and Investment
Limited, its Directors and employees, accept any responsibility of liability
towards any third party for consequences arising out of the use of this report.

OPINION ON SHARE ENTITLEMENT RATIO REPORT

The proposed demerger of Domestic Business Undertaking of Arshiya into
ARIL will be value neutral to the equity shareholders of Arshiya, there will be
no impact on the economic and beneficial interest of the equity shareholders
of Arshiya and it would not have any impact on the ultimate value of the
equity shareholders of Arshiya. Based on the information, material, data
made available to us, including the Share Entitlement Ratio Report, to best of
our knowledge and belief, Share Entitlement Ratio suggested by M/s. ZADN &
Associates, Chartered Accountants under the Scheme, i.e,

“1 (One) fully paid equity share of Face Value INR 2 (Rupees Two)
each of ARIL is to be issued for every 2 (Two) fully paid equity shares
of Face Value INR 2 (Rupees Two) each held in Arshiya is Fair.”

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,

For and on behalf of,
For Chartered Capital and Investment Limited

Nelydo,

Amitkumar Gattani

61



Arshiya Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019
(Rs. in Lakh)
As at As at
i o Notes | 34stMarch, 2018 31st March, 2018
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 5 73.858.36 84,138.63
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 76.02 -
(c) Intangible Assets 8 84586 1,235 96
(d) Intangible Assets Under Development 60,00 .
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 7 1,34,680.02 1,82,018.03
(i) Loans B 1,732.14 1,731.47
(iii) Trade Receivables 9 6,061.50 .
(f) Other Non-Current Assets 10 3,320,34 2,273.81
2,20,634.24 2,31,397.90
Current assets
(a) Inventories " 16,505.97 -
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 12 814.64 7€4.60
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 13 5,86 135,69
(iii) Bank Balances Other than (i) above 14 15.17 0.04
(iv) Loans 15 30,327.14 33,279.99
(v) Other Financial Assets 16 4,082.95 1,848.71
(c) Other Current Assets 17 2,134.00 2,319.64
53,885.73 38,348.67
Total Assets 2,74,519.97 2,69,746.57
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 18 4,872.29 4,564,34
(b) Other Equity 19 1,66,643.28 1,60,350,30
1,71,515,57 1,64,914.64
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings 20 60,267.20 £68,839,87
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 21 161272 2,191,860
(b) Provisions 22 118.83 151,02
61,998.85 71,182.49
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Barrowings 23 9,261.16 10,488.81
(ii) Trade Payables 24
Micro and Small Enterprises 37.88 0.89
Others 584,91 581,86
(iliy Other Financial Liabilities 25 20,679.14 21,506.02
(b) Other Curreni Liabilities 26 1.434.11 1.062.48
(c) Provisions 27 8.35 8.57
41,005,55 33,649.44
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,74,519.97 2,69,746.57
Notes to the financial statements 1to 657
As per our report of even daie
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accouniants Arshiya Limited
Firm Registration Number 101720W/\W100355
/5 (}/)‘L-\cL%’ %\w
Vijay Napawaliya Ajay S Mittal Archana A Mittal
Parther Chalrman and Managing Director Joint Managing Dirsctor
[Aembership Number 109859 DIN: 00226355 N: 00703208

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27th May, 2019

' s

Ashishkumar Bairagra
Independent Director
DIN: 00049581 (

Saw { Dalal
‘_,D)yf)any Secratary

S. Maheshwari
Chief Financial Officer

ANNEXURE-I-1

D/;o(}aw'
P

Dinesh Kumar Sodani
VP: Accounts & Finance
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Arshiya Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(Rs. in Lakh)
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars
¥ natee 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
INCOME
Revenue from operations 28 13,139.98 8,542.02
Other income 29 2,192.48 1,020.09
Total Income (1) 15,332.46 9,562.11
EXPENSES
Cost of Inventories (Lease Land) 30 2,583.34 -
Material handling and other charges 31 87.63 320.61
Employee benefits expenses 32 1,720.28 1,456.61
Finance costs 33 11,236.53 13,761.94
Depreciation and amortization expenses 34 1,482.22 2,091.67
Other expenses 35 1,038.20 1,332.46
Total Expenses (1) 18,148.20 18,963.29
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (I-Il) (2,815.74) (9,401.18)
Exceptional tems (net) 36 700.75 (13,296.84)
Profit/(loss) before tax (3,516.49) 3,895.66
Tax expensa: 59
Current tax 2
Deferred 1ax * 2
Profit/(loss) for the year (3,516.49) 3,895.66
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Item not to be reclassified to profit and loss In
subsequent perlods:
Remeasurement of gains/(losses) on defined benefit 8.11 {2.69)
plans
Other Comprehensive Incomel(loss) for the year 8.1 (2.69)
Total Comprehensive (Loss)/income for the year (3,508.38) 3,892.97
Earning per share (face vaiue of Rs. 2 each) 58
Basic and Diluted (1.48) 213
Notes to the financial statements 11067
As per our report of even date
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Limited
Firm Registration Number 101720W/AWW100355
JHrarenclrs | S —
o~ & - g -
Vijay Napawaliya Ajay S Mittal Archana A Mittal
Partner Chairman and Managing Director Joint Managing Director

Membership Number: 109859

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27th May, 2019

DIN: 00226355

Ashishkumar Bairagra
Independent Director {
DIN: 00049591

s

/ ~

RPN
Sa:} Dalal
Company Secretary

DIN: 00703208

e
S. Maheshwari

Chief Financial Officer

oy
Nl .
A sedow’
Dinesh Kumar Sodani
VP: Accounts & Finance
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Arshiya Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Adjustments for
Sundry balances written back (net)
Driscarding/written off of Property, plant and eguipment and Intangible assets
Gain on monetization of Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note No. 55)
Profit on disposal of Property, plant and equipment (nat)
Bad debls
Allowance for doubtful debts
Settlement of claims
Loss on sale of investment in subsidiary (Refer Note No. £4,2)
Depreciation and amortization expense
Finance costs
Unwinding interest income on loan fo subsidiaries
Interest income on fixed deposits
Liability Component of Compound Financial Instruments (OCRPS)
Financial guarantees income
Foreign exchange difference (net)
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for
Change in Inventories
{Increase) in financial and other assets
(Decrease) in financial and other liabllities
Cash generated from operations
Direct taxes paid {net of refunds)
Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipments
Purchase of intangible assels
Purchase of Capital work in progress and Intangible assets under development
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from monetization of property, plant and equipments
Capital advance
Investment made in equity shares
Sale of Investment in subsidiaries
Loans given to subsidiaries (net)
Interest incomea on fixed deposits
Net cash flow from investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Issue of Equity shares (inciuding Security Premium)
Money received against share warrants
Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Repayment of non-current borrowings
Short-term borrowings (Net)
Unpaid Dividend transfer to IEPF Alc
Interest paid
Net cash flow from financing activities

Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note No. 13 and 14)

(A)

(8)

(]

Rs. in Lakh

(3,516.49) 380566
(206.27) (175.85)
166,34 -
- (15,833.29)

(0.33) -
3.16 &
g.68 733
700.75 (2,001 74)

- 433819
1,482.22 2,0061.87
11,236.53 13,761.94
(420.02) (185.51)
(0.19) -
(653.17) 3
(898.96) (639.31)
12.81 (15.22)
7,915.06 5,443.87
2,583.34 -
(9,356.47) (2,183.18)
(844.68) (11,630.30)
297.25 (8,369.61)
(118.27) (705.14)
178.98 (9,074.75)
(49.78) (89.78)
- (1,120.00)

(45.37) >
2.38 60.00

- 43,400.00
(1,020.41) (88.24)
(23.00) (155.50)

- 330.84
1,892.10 (33,278.20)
0.19 =
756.11 9,059.12

- 15,268.38

15.00 860.25
281182 3,200.00
(1,248.03) (18 071.01)
(1,227.65) 554364
(0.04) -
(1,200.89) (6.727.10)
(1,049.79) 74.16
(114.70) 58.53
135.73 77.20
21.03 13573
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Arshiya Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Change in ligbilities arises from financing activities (Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars Long term Short t.erm
Borrowings Borrowings
As at 1st April, 2018 84.007 14 10.488 81
Add- Transaction cost 305,77 -
Less: Conversion of Liability Component of Compound Financial Instruments (DCRPS; into Equity (10342 61) =
Add' Non cash items 84500 -
Add/Less: Cash flow (nef) 1,363.79 (1.227.65)
As at 31st March, 2019 76,178.09 926116

Notes:
1. Bracket indicates cash outflow

2, The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method" as set out in IND AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flow
3. Classification of Land from Property, plant and equipment to invetories has been considered as non cash items (Refer note no.44)

Notes to the financial statements 1to 87
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March. 2019

Corporate Information

Arshiya Limited [the Company) 1s a unified supply chain and integrated logistics infrastructure solution provider and is engaged in the
business of Free Trade and Warehousing Zone (FTWZ), Domestic Warehousing Zone and value added services along with
development, operations and maintenance of FTWZ.

These statements comprises of financial statements of Arshiya limted (CiN . L93000MH1981PLC024747) for the year ended 31sl
March. 2019. The Company is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated on 3rd July, 1981 under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in India The registered office of the company is located at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate,
F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road. Worli, Mumbai- 400 018.

FTWZ'’s are developed under the provisions of Special Economic Zane Act, 2005 and the Special Economic Zone Rules, 2006
The Company's equity shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange (NSE) of India

The Financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March. 2018 were approved and adoptad by the Board of Directors
in their meeting held on 27th May, 2019.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS"} notified by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs ("MCA") pursuant ta the Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 ("the Act") read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015, (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act

The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost convention basis, except for cerain financial assets and fiabilities measursd
al fair value.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency and all
values are rounded to the nearest lakh as per the requirement of schedule I, unless when otherwise indicated.

Significant Accounting Policies
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
inciudes purchase price. borrowing cost and any cost directly aftributable to the bringing the assets to its working condtion for its
intended use

Depreciation on the preperty, plant and egquigpment is provided using straight line method over the useful life of assets as specified in
schedule 1l to the Companies Act. 2013 Leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of lease. Depreciation on proparty,
plant and equipment which are added / disposed off during the year, is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of addition
/ deletion. Freehold land is not depreciated and under the previous GAAP land was revalued

The assels' residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed al each financial year end and are adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under development as at the balance sheet
date,

Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from financial statement, either on disposal or when retired from aclive use. Profits /
losses arising in the case of retirement | disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and Ioss in
the year of occurrence

The Company has opted to continue with the carrying values of all of its property, Plant and Equipment as recognised in the previous
GAAP financial statements as deemed cost at the transition date 1. st April, 2016

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are carred at cost less accumulated amortisation and accurmulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the inlangible assets.

|dentifiable intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits allributed {o the asset wili flow to the
Company and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Cost of Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software including expenditure on implementation is lo be amortised over a period of ten
years based on management's estimate of useful life over which economic benefits will be derived fram its use

omputer softwares are capitalised at the amounts paid o acquire the respective licanse for use and are amortised over the periad of
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Arshiya Limited
tes to ancia ements fo nded 31 rch, 201

Trademark are amortised over the period of ten (10) years.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised In the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised

Intangible assets under development includes cost of computer sofiware under installation / under development as at the balance
sheet date.

The Company has opted fo continue with the cammying values of all of its Intangible assets as recoanised in the previous CAAP
financial statements as deemed cost at the transaction date i.e. 1st April, 2016.

3.3 Leases
A lease is classified at the inception dale as a finance lease or an operaling lease. A lease thal transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is ciassified as a finance lease
The Company as a lessee

(a) Finance lease
Assels acquired under finance lease are capitalized and the corresponding lease liability 1s recagnised at lower of the fair value of the
leased assets and the present value of minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, Initial costs directly attributable to lease
are recognised with the asset under lease.

(b) Operating lease
Lease of assets under which all risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating lease.
Lease paymenis under operating lease are recognised as expenses on accrual basis in accordance with the respective lease
agreements.
The Company as a lessor

(a) Finance lease
When assets are leased out under a finance |ease, the present value of the minimum lease paymenis is recognised as a receivable
The difference between the gross receivable anc the present value of the receivable is recognised as uneamad finance income.
Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease using the net investment method before tax, which reflects a constan! periodic
rate of raturn.
The lessor derecognises the leased assets and recognises the difference between the carrying amount of the leased assels and the
finance lease receivable in the statement of Profit and Loss when recognising the finance lease receivable This gain or loss is
presented in the statement of Profit and Loss in the same line item as that in which the lessor presents gains or losses from sale of
similar assets,

|b} Operating lease
Rental income from operating leases s recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the lerm of the
relevant lease unless another systemnatic basis 1s more representative of the lime pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
assels Is diminished,
Initial indirect costs mcurred in negoliating and arranaing as operating lease are added to carrying value of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight line basis over the lease lerm

3.4 Inventories
Inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value. Inventory comprises of cost of land and incidental cost therelo.

3.5 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet compnse cash at banks. cash on hand and short-ierm deposits with an original
matunly of three months or less, which are subject fo an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and short-lerm deposits, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as which are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

3.6 Impairment of assets
An asset is considered as impaired when at the date of Balance Sheel. there are indications of impairment and the carrying amount of
the asset, or where applicable, the cash generating unit fo which the asset belengs, exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of
lhe net assel selling price and value in use) The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the reduction is
recognized as an impairment loss in the statement of profit and loss. The impairment loss recognized in the prior accounting period is

_—Tevessed if there has been a change In the estimate of recaverable amount. Post impairmant. depreciation is provided on the revised

}/’«:t—‘ eattying value of the impaired asset over its remaining useful fife.
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(b)

(a)

(b)

(2)
(p)

Arshiya Limited
Notes to the financial s n he rended 31st March. 2019

Financial instruments - initial recognition, subsequent measurement and impairment

A financial instrument is any conlract that gives rise lo a financial asset of one entity and a financial ligbility or equity instrument of
another entity,

Financial assets -Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assels are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or Issue of
financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. Financial assets
are classified, at inttial recognition, as financial assels measured al fair value or as financial assets measured at amoriised cost.

Financial assets - Subsequent measurement:

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:-
a} Financial assets at fair value

b) Financial assets at amortised cost

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the statement of profit and loss (i e: fair
value through profit or loss), or recognised in other comprehensive income (i . fair value through other comprehensive income).

A financial asset thal meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for impairment) unless
the assel is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

Business model test: The objective of the Company’s business model is to hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash
flow.

Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flow ihat are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income uniess the
asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

Business model test: The financial asset is held within 2 business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flow and selling financial assets.

Cash flow characteristics test: The contraciual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flow that are solely
payments of principal 2nd interest on the principal amount oulstanding

Financial assets - Equity Investment in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are recogmised at cost as per Ind AS 27 separate financial slatements

Transition to Ind AS
Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Comparny has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its investments in subsidiaries

as at April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use thal carrying valug as the deemed cost of investments in
subsidiaries.

In respect of interest free loans given to subsidiaries, the difference between the loan amount and its fair value s ireated as further
Investment by the Company In the respective subsidiaries. \Where financial guarantees in relation fe loans of subsidiaries are provided
for no compensation, the fair values are added to investment by the Company in respeclive subsidiaries

The Company has accounted for its equity investmenl In subsidiaries at cost.

Financial assets - Derecognition
A financial assets (or, where applicable, @ part of a financial assel or part of a group of similar financial assets) s prnmariy
derecognised (i.e. removed form the Company's statement of financial position) when

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flow from the asset

Financial liabilities - Initial recognition and measurement:
The financial liabilities are racognised initially at fair value and. in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

Effective interest method
ive interest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Financial liabilities - Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilites are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables

maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts are approximate at their fair value due to the short
maturity of these instruments,

Financial Liabilities - Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusied for transaction costs that are directly
afiributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Financial Liabilities - Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an exisling
financial liability is replaced by ancther, from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially medified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recogniticn of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Compound Instruments

An issued financial instrument that comprises of both the liability and equity components are accounted as compound financial
instruments. The fair value of the liability component is separated from the compound instrument and the residual value is recognised
as equity component of other financial instrument. The liability component is subsequently measured at amortised cost, whereas the
equity component is not remeasured after initial recognition. The transaction costs related to compound instruments are allocated to
the liability and equity components in the proportion to the allocation of gross proceeds. Transaction cosls related to equity component
is recognised directly in equity and the cost related to liability component is included in the carrying amount of the liability component
and amortised using effective interest method.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. It is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to seltle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using equivalent period
government securities interest rate. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost.
Provisicns are reviewed at each balance sheel dale and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent Jiability is disclosed in the Notes to
the Financial Statements. Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the
related assetis no longer a contingent asset, but it is recognised as an asset

Dividend Distribution

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders s recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on approval by Board of Directors, Dividend payable and corresponding tax on
dividend distribution is recognised directly in other equity.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of goods or rendering of services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services.

Generally, control is transfer upon shipment of goods to the customer or when the goods is made available to the customer. provided
transfer of title to the customer occurs and the Company has not retained any significant risks of ownership or future obligations with
respect to the goods shipped

Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration which the company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring distinct
goods or services to a customer as specified in the contract, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example taxes
and duties collected on behalf of the gevernment). Consideration is generally due upon satisfaction of performance obligations and a
receivable is recognized when the it becomes unconditional.
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Revenue are recognized as lhe related services are performed and revenue from the end of the last invoicing to the reporting date is
recognized as unbilled revenue.

Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which we refer as unbilled revenue) while invoicing in excess of
revenues are classified as contract liabilities {which we refer lo as unearned revenues).

Trade Receivables
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is uncanditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the oblgation to transfer of services to a customer for which lhe Company has received consideration (or an
amaount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers services to the
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Company performs under the contract

Income from allotment of warehousing spaces and open yard area for use are recogrised for the period the matenal is lying in area as
per agreed terms.

Revenue from valued services and other activities is recognised when related services are performed as per the contractual terms.
Income from Business Conducting Fees shall be recognised as per contractual terms
Revenue from lease of land is recognised as per confract terms agreed between the parties.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income s accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate appiicable, which is tne rate that exactly disceunts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognitian

Export benefits under Foreign Trade Folicy are recognised when utilized.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders
approve the payment of dividend.

Foreign currency reinstatement and translation:

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Subsequently
monetary items are translated at closing exchange rates as on balance sheet date and the resulting exchange difference recognised in
slatement of profit and loss. Differences arising on settiement of monatary items are also recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Non-menetary items that are measured in terms of hisiorical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transaction. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rales prevaiing at the date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with Lhe recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i e.
{ranslation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are aiso recognised in OC| or profit
or loss, respectively).

Forelgn exchange differences regarded as an adjustment lo borrowing costs are presented in the statement of profit and loss. within
finance costs Al ather finance gains / losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefils are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss of the year in which the related
services are renderad.

Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to Provident Fund etc., a defined contnbution plan, i3 made in accordance with the statule, and is recognised as an
expense in the year in which employees have rendered services,

Defined Benefit Plan

Leave encashment being a defined benefit plan is accounted for using the projected wnit credit methed, on the basis of actuarial
valuations carried out by third parly actuaries at each Balance Sheet date Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited fo other comprehensive income in the year in which they
arisa, Other costs are accounted in statement of profit and loss

71



313

Arshiya Limited
i | ments for the rended 31st March, 2019

The cos! of providing gratuity, 2 defined benefit plans. is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Mathod, on the basis of actuarial
valuations carned out by third party acluaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from expenence
adjustments and changes in actuaral assumptions are charged or credited to other comprehensive income in the period in which they
arise Olher costs are accounted in statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurements of defined benefit plan in respect of post employment and other long term benefits are charged to the other
comprehensive income in the year in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to slatemenl of profit and loss in
subsequent periods.

Taxes on Income

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax (including MAT and income fax for earlier years) and deferred tax . Tax is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except lo the exlent that it relates lo items recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income, in such cases the tax is also recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. Any subsequent
change in direct tax on items initially recognised in equity or other comprehensive income is also recognised in equity or other
comprehensive income.

Current tax provision is computed for income calculated after considering allowances and examptions under the provisions of the
applicable Income Tax Laws. Current tax assets and current 1ax liabilities are off set, and presented as net

Deferred tax is recognised on differences betwsen the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance sheet and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred {ax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred lax assels are generally recognised for all deductible temparary differences, carry forward tax
losses and allowances to the exient that it is probable that future taxable profits will be availabie against which those deductible
lemporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be utilized Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured al the
applicable tax rates. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that
itis no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized

Credit of MAT is recognised as an asset only whern and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal
income tax during the specified peried, i.e., the period for which MAT cradit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the
MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the staternent of profit ana
loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying
amount of MAT credit entitlement lo the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect ihat the Company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period

3.14 Borrowing costs
Borrowing cosis specifically relating o Lhe acquisition or consiruction of qualifying assets that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time o get ready for its intended use are capitalized (net of income on temporarily deployment of funds) as part of the cost of such
assets. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. For
general borrowing used for the purpose of obtaining 2 gualifying asset, the amount of borrowing cosis eligible for capitalization is
determined by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borowing costs applicable o the borrowings of the Company thal are
outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a gualifying asset. The amount of
porrowing costs capitalized during a period does not excead the amaunt of borrowing cost incurred during that period. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the perod in which they oceur,

3.15 Earnings per Share
Basic earmings per share is computed using the net profitf(loss) for the year altribuiable o the shareholders' and weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year
Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profiti(loss) for the year atiributable to the shareholders’ and weighted average
number of equity and potential equity shares outstanding during the year including share oplions, convertible preference shares and
debentures, except where the result would be anti-dllutive. Potential equity shares thal are cenverted during the year are included in
the calculation of diluted earnings per share, from the beginning of the year or date of issuance of such potential equity shares, to the
date of conversion

3.16 Current and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and lizbilities in statement of financial position based on currentinon-current classification.
The Company has presented non-current assets and current assets, non-current fiabilities and current liabilities in accordance with
Schedule Il Division Il of Companies Act, 2013 notified by MCA.
An asset is classified as current when it is: ’9"”

(a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal cperating cycle, /

(b) H_e_ld i primarily for the purpose of trading. @

B CHE lis jithin fter the reporting periad, or
(/t;/}\:i;'fp?t?‘%}qbe realised within twelve manths after the reporting p = _’}
N L AN
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Arshiya Limited
s} i ial statements for the

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used fo setile a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is classified as current when itis:
Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Due to be settied within twelve months after the reporting period, or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period,

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents.
Deferred tax assets and liapilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities The Cornpany has identified welve months as its
normal operating cycle.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheel date

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfler the liability lakes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal markel, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by

using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use

The Cornpany uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficent data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inpuis and minimizing the use of unobsemnvable inputs

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy

Off-setting financial Instrument

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable rights
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settie on a net basis or realise the assat and seftie the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable rights must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptoy of the Company or counterparty.

Segment Reporting - Identification of Segments

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, whose operating resulls are regularly reviewed by the company’s chief operaling decislon maker to make decisions for
which discrete financial [nformation is available. Bassd on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the chief operaling
decision maker evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resuurces based on an analysis of various performance
indicators by business segments and geographic segments.

Contributed Equity
Equity Shares are classified as equity. incremental costs directly attributable 1o the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as deduction, net of tax from the proceeds

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past ar future cash recesipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activites of the Company are segregated based on the available information

Business combinations
Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the Company are accounted for using the pooling of interssts method
as follows:

y
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities.

Adjustments are only made to harmonise accounting policies.

The financial information in the financial statements in respact ot prior periods is restated as if the business combination had occurred
from the peginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination, However,
where the business combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated only from that dale

The balance of the Retained Eamings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor 1s aggregated with the corresponding
balance appearing in the financial statements of the transferee oris adjusted against General Reserve.

The identities of the reserves are preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of lhe transferee.
The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or

other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred 1o Capital Reserve and is presented separately from Other
Capital Reserves

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabllities affected in future periods. The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the repariing date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabifities within the next financial year, are described below

The Company based on its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the finandial statements were prepared
However, exisling circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets

Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assels annually in order to determine the amount of
depreciation to be recorded dunng any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values as per schedule || of the Companies Act,
2013 or are based on the Company's historical experience with similar assets and taking into account anticipated technological
changes, whichever is more appropriate

Income Tax

The Company reviews al each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may
differ from actual outcome which could lead to an adjustment to the amounts reporied in the financial statements

Contingencies
Management has estimated the possible outflow of resources at the end of each annual reporting financial year, if 2ay, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it 18 not possible 10 predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy

Impairment of financial assets

The iImpairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions abaut risk of default and expecled cash loss The Company
uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs o the impairment calculation, based on Company's past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimales at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses al each reporting date whether there is an indicalion that an asset may be impaired |f any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required. the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount An asset's
recaverable amount 15 the higher of an asset's or Cash Generating Units {CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generale cash inflows that are largely independent to those from other
assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to jis recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 10 their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost
of disposal, recent market (ransactions are taken info account If no such transactions can be (denlified, an appropnate valuation
modelis used These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples or ather available fair value indicators.

U g
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Defined benefits plans

The Cost of the defined benefit plan and the present value of such obligation are determined using actuarial valuations, An actuanal
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from aclual develcpments in the ftuture. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and atirivon rate. Due o the complexities involved in the

valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.

Recoverability of trade receivable

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverabllity of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a provision against
those receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipatad
future payments and any pessible actions that can be taken ta mitigate the risk of non-payment.

Provisions

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomas probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting
from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated The timing of recognition and quantification
of Lhe liability require the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances. which can be subject to change. Since the cash
outflows can lake place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted
to take account of changing facts and circumstances

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted
prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these faclors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.,

Recent accounting pronouncements:
Standards Issued But Not Effective

On 30th March, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified IND AS 116 — Leases and cerlain amendment to existing
IND AS. These amendments shall be applicable to the Company from 1st April, 2019,

Issue of IND AS 116 - Lease

Ind AS 116 will supersede the current standard on leases i.e IND AS 17- Leases As per IND AS 116, the lessor will have to bring to
books all the non-cancellable portion of leasing arrangement.

Amendment to existing standards
The MCA has also carried out smendments of the following accounting standards

IND AS 101- First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards
IND AS 103 - Business Combinations

IND AS 109 - Financial Instruments

IND AS 111 - Joint Arrangements

IND AS 12 - Income Taxes

IND AS 19 - Employee Benefils

IND AS 23 - Borrowing Costs

ind AS 28 - Investment in Associates and Joint Verntures

Application of above standards are not expected to have any sianificant impact on the Company's financial statements.
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Arshiya Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

[6. Intangible Assets

|

W 5,0\1 i 3\:'\/ V4

LAcco S

(Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars Trade Mark Software Total
Gross Carrying Value (at deemed cost)
As at 31st March, 2017 0.49 588.14 588.63
Additions/other adjustments - 1,120.00 1,120.00
As at 31st March, 2018 0.49 1,708.14 1,708.63
Additions a = A
Disposals/Discarded - (116.94) (116.94)
As at 31st March, 2019 0.49 1,591.20 1,591.69
Accumulated Amortisation
As at 31st March, 2017 0.20 156.41 156.61
Amortisation for the year 017 315.89 316.06
Deductions - - =
As at 31st March, 2018 0.37 472.30 472.67
Amortisation for the year - 332.73 332.73
Deductions - (59.57) (59.57)
As at 31st March, 2019 0.37 745.46 745.83
Net Carrying value as at 31st March, 2019 0.12 845.74 845.86
Net Carrying value as at 31st March, 2018 0.12 1,235.84 1,235.96
[ 4
LA
y -
\I
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

3 As at As at
At 345t Mar 2019 315t Mar 2018
No. of Rs.in No. of Rs.in
Shares Lakh Shares Lakh
Non-Current Financial Assets
7. Investments
(Unquoted Investments carried at Cost)
(i) Investments in Equity Instruments of Subsidiaries
5
Avsiys 1ndustridl & Distibulion Hub Liniited (the fage valus'of Re 10 sachy@ || WWRATHAZ | 44498172 (17237132 |  44.499.72
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limitad (the face value of Rs 10 each) @ 1 08,868,677 44 62529 | 10868677 44 6252¢
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited {the face value of Rs. 10 each) @ 42384417 38,369.21 | 4.23,84,417 3836921
Arshiya Transport and Hanaling Limited (the face value of Rs 10 each)| 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00
Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited (the face value of Rs. 10 each) 101,158 2.00 1,01,158 200
Arshiya Lifestyle Limited (the face value of Rs, 10 each) 14.85,000 14.85 14,85.000 14 .86
Arshiya Logistics Services Limited (Formerly known as Laxmipati Balaji Exim 16,00,000 155.50 16,00,000 155 50
Trading Ltd ) (the face value Rs 10 each)
Laxmipati Balaji Supply Chain Management Private Limited (the face value of 50,000 500 -
Rs. 10 sach)
Anomalous Infra Private Limited (the face value of Rs, 10 each) 1,110,000 11.00
Arshiya Northern Projects Private Limited (the face value Rs. 10 each) 50,000 500 -
Arshiya Infrastructure Developers Private Limited (the face value Rs. 10 each) 000 190
Unrivalled Infrastructure Private Limited (the face value Rs. 10 each) 10,000 100 - =
Total (i} 1,27,694.57 1,27,671.58
(All the abave equity shares are fully paid up)
(i) Deemed Equity Investments
Investments at amortised cost
Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited 111648 1.11278
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited 596 96 595 96
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited 1.795.82 173582
Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited 302 40 302 .40
Arshiya Lifestyle Limited 1,881.96 498.49
Anomalous Infra Prvate Limitad 1,091.83 -
Total (ii) 6,985.45 4,345.45
Total (i+ii) 1,34,680.02 1,32,018.03

@ As per debt cavenents of ihe following Subsidianes is required to pledge 100% of the sharsholding in favor lenders however the Comapny has

pledged following number equity shares only:

1) 3181 Maren, 2019 - 70,589,038 (31st March 2018 - 79,45 624 ) equity sharas in Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited
I} 31st March, 2019 - 51.05.769 (31st March. 2018 - 1,35.86,658) equity shares n Arshiya Industial & Distribution Hub Limited and
iily 315t March, 2019 - 1.54 78500 (315t March, 2018 - 3,87.32 491) equity shares in Arshiva Rail Infrastructure Limited
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(Rs. in Lakh]

As al As at
arEuiars 31stMer,2019 | 31stMar 2013
Non- Current Financial Assets
8, Laans
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Loans to Subsidlaries (Refer Note No. 56) 173214 1.731.47
Total 1,73&14 1,731.47
9. Trade Receivables
Unsecured
Caonsidered good - Unsecured (Recsivahles from Related party (Refer Note Na. 56)) B8,061.50 -
Total 5,061.50 -
10. Other Non- Current Assots.
Capital Advances
Considered good 1.02041 9065
Considered doubiful 1,395 00 1,395.00
241541 1,485.65
Less: Provision for impairment (1,395.00) (1,395.00)
1,020.41 3065
Security Deposits 5939 65089
TOS Receivables/Taxes paid 2,24054 202227
Total 3.320.34 2,273.81
— —
Current Assets
11. Inventories
Land 16,50587
Total 16,5057 -
Current Financial Assets
12. Trade Receivables
Considered good - Unsecured (Receivables from Related party (Refer Note No. 56)) 51464 754 60
Trade Recewables which have significant increase In credit risk 2537 16.69
840.01 781,29
Less: Provision for expected credt losses (2537) {16.69)
Total 814 .64 764.60
13. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks:
= in current accounts 577 13078
Cash on hand 009 491
Total 586 135.69
14, Other Bank Balances
Deposits with bank to the extent held as margn meoney 1517 -
Balance with bank in Unpaid dwidend aceount - Q.08
Total 15.17 0.04
15. Loans
Unsecured, considered good unless otheiwise stated
Loans to Subsidianas (Refar Note No, 56) 3032714 33.279.89
Total 30.327.14 33.279.99
f
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Notes to the financia! statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(Rs. in Lakh)
g As at As at
Pt 31stMar2019 | 31stMar 2018
16. Other Financial Assets
Unbilled Revenue 2500.00 38041
Margin money with Lender™ 170.00 170.00
Other recoverahles 141295 1,258.30
Total 4,082.95 1.8348.71
* To ke adjusted at time of final settlement
17. Other Current Assets
Advances 1o Suppliers 44.42 11548
Otner Advances 9326 9326
Prepaid expenses 60.38 54.73
Balances with Stawtory, Government Authorities (Refer Note No 51) 1.935.98 1,956, 17
Cash seized by Income Tax (Refer Note No 48) . 100 00
Total 2,134 00 2,319.64
[Rs. in Lakh)
Asat As at
eadiatin 3istMar. 2019 | 31stWMar 2018
18, Equity Share Capital
Author|
[i) 24,75,00,000 (31st March, 2018 - 24,75,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs, 2 each 4,950.00 4,950.00
() 1,10.00.000 (31st March, 2018 -~ 1.10,00,000) C% Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference 1,100,060 1.100.00
Shares (OCRPS) of Re, 10 2ach
Total 6,060.00 §,050.00
MACLE
Equity Share Capital - issued, subscribed and fully paid
24 36,14 202 (31st March, 2018 - 22 82,186,776} Equity shares of Rs. 2 each 4872.29 4,564 34
Total 4,872.29 4,564.34
{a) Terms and rights

(1) Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The Company has one class of eguity share having a par value of Rs, 2 per share. Each hoider of equity share is entitid 1o one vote per share The
shareholders who held shares on the record date are enfiled to dividend as may be proposed by the Board of Directors and is subject fo approval of
the Shareholders at tha ensuing General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will te entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution
of all preferential amounts. The distnbution will be in the proportion (o the number of equity shares held by the Shareholders

iif Terms an. ttached 1o 09 ionally Co inle Redeema
The Company has 0% optionally convertible redeemable preference shares having s par value of Rs 10 per shara Each holder of OCRPE has rigrit
{ entitled to convert into equity shares within 18 months from the date of issue or redemption on or after 20 years as per lerms.

(b) Reconciliation of equity shares and optionally convertible preference shares

(i) Recongiliation of equity shares cutstanding as at the beginning and end of the year,
Partielde As at 31st March 2018 As at 3151 March 2018
Number of Shares Rs. in Lakh Number of Sharos Rs. in Lakh
Balance as at the beginning of the year 228216 776 4 554 34 156179472 3,12359
Add: 1ssued during the year 153,97 515 307.95 7.20.37.304 1,440.75
Balance as at the and of the year 24,36,14,292 4.872.29 228216776 4,564.34
ii) Reconciliati 1 optionally convertible redeemable pref: at 7
Parlicatars As at 31st March 2018 As at 31st March 2018
Number of Shares Rs.in Lakh Number of Shares Rs. in Lakh
Balance as af the beginning of the year 57,64 619 576.46 - 3
Add Issuen dunng the year - - 1.49.13.329 119133
Less: Converied Into equity sheres during the year (57,64 6519) {576.48) (61.48.710) (514 .87))
Balance as at the end of the year - - 57.64519 576.46
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holding more than §% of the regal
As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 2018
Number of equity Percentage (%) Number of equity | P tage (%)
shares shareholding sharas shareholding

885,539,788 36.35% 8,855 288 38.80%

385,561,437 15.82% 3,70,80,037 16.24%

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 595,59.820 24 45% 4.56,62,304 20.01%
through vanous trusts)

{d) In the Previous year ended 31st March, 2018 the Company had allotted to the Promoter Directors 1,00,00,000 equity shares and 1,00,00,000
share warranis of Rs. 2/- each at a premium of Rs.58.35 per share on preferential basis pursuant to the Restructuring Aareement dated 31st March,
2017 and in tarms of special resolution passad on 29th Aprll, 2017 as par applicable provisions of Companies Aci, 1956/Companias Act, 2013 and
SEBI (lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation. 85,00,000 share warrants out of 1,00,00,000 share warrants have been converted
into Equity shares on 8th November, 2017,

During the year, the Company has allotted 15,00 000 Equity Shares of facz value of Rs.2 each to the Promoter upon conversion of equal number of
warrants.

(Rs. in Lakh)
As at As at

Partiouiars 31stMar, 2018 | 31st Mar 2018
19, Other Equity
(f) Share Application money pending allotm
Balances as at the beginning of the ye: - 18,766.71
Less; On issue of Equity Shares - (18,766.71)
Balances as at the end of the year - -
(i} Money Received against share w it
Balances as at the heginning of the year 86025 -
Add; recaived during the year 1500 B60.25
Less: On issue of Equity Shares {875.25 3
Balances as at the end of the year . 880.25
(iii) Equity Component of 0% Optionally Convertible Preference shares (OCRPS)
Balances as al the beginning of the year 47551 87 88,820.84
Less' On Issue of Equity Shares (47.551.87) (41,068.97)
Balances as at the end of the year - 47,551.87
{iv) Amalgamation Reserve
Balancas as at the beginning and end of the year 12480 124,80
Reserve and Surplus
“ ritios P a o
Balances as at the beginning of the year 17485887 79617.43
Add: On issue of Equity Shares 5821349 95.276.86
Less: Share issuc expenses/ Transaction cost - (37.62)
Balances as at the end of the year 2,33,07216 1,74 858,67

(vi) Genera! Reserve
Balzneas as at the beginning and end of the year 340 18 940 18

{vil) Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Balances as al the beginning of the year (63,885.47) (68.332.99]
Add. Profit/(Loss) for the year {3.516.49) 369565
Add: Dther comprehensive income/({loss) 811 253}
Adg: Fair Value of Financial instruments 64.05
Add Conditional Lease rent 2 380,41
Balances as at the end of the year (67,493.85) (53 985.47)
Total (i ta vii) 1,66,643.28 1,60,350.30

Nature and purpose of Reserve and Surplus:

{a) Securities Premium Account:
Secunties premium account 1§ created lo record premium received on Issue of equily shares The resesve s ulllized in accordance with the
provision of the Companies Act, 2013

[b) General Reserve:

General Reserve is used for tme to 1me 1o transfer of profits from Refained Eamings for appropriation purposes. As the generai reserve is created
by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensiva income, iterns included in the General Reserve will
not be reclassified subsequently to statement of prefit and loss
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Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(c) Amalgamation Reserve:

Amalgamation reserve is created on account of scheme of amalgamaion of erstwhile BOP (India) Private Limited with the Company approved by
the Hen'ble High Count of Judicature al Bombay in earlier years

(d) Retained Earning:
Retained Earnings are the profit/floss) et the Company sarned till date net of approprations.

(Rs. in Lakh
As at As at
r
Paricutars 31stMar, 2019 | 31st Mar 2018
Non-Current Liabilities
20. Borrowings
Secured
{a) Term Loans
From Banks 357142 =
From Oiher Parties 56,686 26 58/467.26
{b) Vehicles Loan from bank 952 -
Liabilty Component of Compound Financial Instruments (OCRPS) - 1034281
Total 60,267 20 ﬁﬁ@._&?’
The details of security, terms of repayment and interest on non-current b ings (which includes current maturities) obtained by the
Company are given below:
20.1 Rupee Term loan from Banks
1 .3,193.29 Lakh (31st March, 2018 - RS 9 Lakh):
(a) Securities provided
(1) S ) charge on 1 ble and imr ble Panvel assets of the Company except for the excluded propenties under Leass Agreement dated 2rd
February. 2018

(jil Second charge on present and future receivables including the amount deposted to the EARC TRA account of the Company
(iil) The above loans are secured by personal guarantees of two Promoter Diractors of tha Company

(b) Tarms of Interest rate
(i) Rate of Interestis @ 14 50% p.a

(¢} Terms of Repayment:-
Rupee term loan is repayable in Bullel payment at the end of the tenure of loan 1.e. 36 months.

(d) The amortisad cost disclosed above is nat oft ncidental cost of borowings aggregaling of Rs 671 Lakh (31s! March 2018 - Rs 10.21 Lakh)

{2} Rupao loan of Rs, 474,30 Lakh:
(a) Securities provided

(i) Second eharge on movable and immovable Panvel assets of the Company except for the excluded properties under Lease Agreement dated 3rd
February, 2018

(i) Second charge on present and future ivables including the amount cep {0 the EARC TRA account of the Comparny.

{iii) The above loans are secured by personal quarantaes of twe Promotar Directors of the Company.

{b) Terms of Interest rate
Rate of Interestis @ 1450% pa

(c) Terms of Repayment:-
Rupee term loén is repayable in 78 equal manthly instaliment commencing from the date of frrst disbursement | e 31st August. 2013

(d) The Company has been in default for the repayment of principal amount of Rs. 1917 Lakh

202 Rupee Term (oans from Other Parties
9,513 315! - 3 Lakh):
{a) Security provided:
{1} First eharge on al the present and future movakle and mmovatle property, plant and equipment inclucing intangible assets, assignmen! of nghls
and benefits but excluding project assets for Khuna FTWZ pregect, Khura Distinpark Project, Nagpur preject and Rall project on pari passu basis
{il) Second charge on current assets of the Company but excluding currant assets for Khurja FTWZ project, Knurja Distripark Projact. Nagpur project
and Rail projact on pari passu bases
[iil] first pan passu charge by way of hypothacation on the Panvel Receivabies bofh existing and future of whatsoever nature
|iv} The above foans are secured by personal guaraniees of two Promoler Directors of the Company
(V) The Ioans are secured by pledged of shares heid by the two Promoter Directors of the Company

(b} Terms of interast rate
Rate of Interest is @ 10% p.a. compounded quartarly

(c) Tarms of Repayment:-

_(Rs. in Lakh)
Year Loan from Others
Fy 201718 5,671.09 '
FY 2021-22 14,001 46
FY 2022-23 40,404 50
Total 60,077.05
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

(d) The Company has been in default for the repayment of principal amount of Rs 5671 €4 Lakh {31st March, 2018 - Rs. §,671.09 Lakh).

(&) The amortised cost disclosed above is net off incidental cost of borrowings aggregating of Rs, 563 80 Lakh (31st March, 2018 - Rs 717.82

2) R term loan of Rs. 2,495.44 Lakh (31
(a) Securities provided

018 - Rs. 2.672.34 Lakh):

(i) Second charge by way of equitable mortgage/hypothecation on the entire Immaovable and movabie proparty, plart and equipment of the Company

on pari-passu basis,

(¥) The abave Inans are secured by personal guaraniees of two Promoter Direciors of the Company

(b) Terms of Repayment.-

Rupee term lcan is repayable in 13 structurad quarterly Instaliments commencing from 31st January, 2018

(¢) The Company nas baen in dafault for the repayment of principal amount of Rs. 670 00 Lakh. (315t March, 2018 - Rs. 428 Lakh)

{d) The amoriised cost disclosed above is net off incidental cost of borrowings acgregating of Rs. 199,56 Lakn (318t March, 2018 - Rs, 405 65

(3) Rupee term Joan of Rs, 2,018.65 Lakh:
(a) Securities provided

(1) The above loan are secured by charge on residual cashflow of the Company

(1) The above loans are secured by the immovabie property held by one Promater Director of the Company on parl passu basis
(iif) Tne above loans are secured by parsonal guarantees of tvo Promoter Directors of the Comparny.

(iv) The above loans are secured by pledaed of shares held by the one Promoter Director of the Company,

(b) Toerms of Interest rate
Rate of Interest is @ 18% p.a.compounded half yearly.

(c) Terms of Repayment:-

Rupee term |oan is repayable in bultet payment at the end of the tenure of loan | e 18 months.

(d) The amartised cost disclosed above is net off incidental cost of borrowings aggregating of Rs. 81,35 Lakh,

20.3 Vehicle loans from Bank

Venicle loans are secured by way of hypothecation of vehicles. Rate of inferest is @ 8.55% p.a. and repaymert tenure in monthly instalment up to

October 2023 and January 2024 respectively.

(Rs. In Lakh)
i As at As at
Farpenes 31stMar, 2019 | 31st Mar 2018
21. Other Financial Liabilities
Interest accruad but not due on borrowings 22196
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost
Financial guarantees obligations 1,390.75 '2.191,60
Total 1,612.72 2,191.60
22. Provislons
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note No.41)
Gratuily 80.60 10132
Leave encashment 3833 4970
Total 118.93 151.02
(Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars Agat asas
31st Mar, 2019 31st Mar 2018
Current Financial Liabilities
23. Borrowings
Secured
(aj Loan from Other Parties 502405 8,474 05
Unsecured
(a) Loans trom Promoter Directors 160 11 1937.76
(b} Inter Carporate Deposils 77.00 77.00
Total 9,261,186 10,488.81
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{221) Loan from Other Parties
(1] Loan of Rs. 8,474.04 Lakh (31st March, 2018 - Rs. 8,474.04 Lakh)
{1} Securities provided

- First Ranking charges on all present and future cash flows, all assets and movable collateral availabie to the exisfing lenders of the Company
as per tha Deed of Hypothecation
- The above loans are secured by persanal guarantzes of two Premoter Directors of the Company,

(i1) Terms of interest. @ 18% pa

{ill) The Company has been in default for the repayment of principal amount of Rs. 8,474 04 Lakn (31st March, 2018 - Rs, Nilj

(2) Loan of Rs. 550.00 Lakh
(i) Securities proyided
- Exclusive charges on cash flows of Dornestic warehousing building,
- The above loans are secured by mortaage over lands admeasuring 7,130 Sa. mt. of the Company and wholly owned subsidiaries company

- The above loans are secured by personzl guarantees of one Promoter Director of the Company.
- The above |oans are secured by corparate guarartees of the two subsidiary Companies.

(ily Terms of interest @ 11% p.a
(23.2) Loans from promoter directors are interest free and repayable on demand.

{23.3) Unsecured Loan from Inter Corporate Doposits:
Intercorporate Deposit of Rs. 77 Lakh (315t March, 2018 - 77 Lakh) s interest free and repayable on demand.

{Rs.in Lakh)

As at As at
Particulars 31st Mar, 2019 31st Mar 2018

24, Trade Payables

Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note No. 40) 3788 089
Others 584.91 581,66
Total 622.79 582.55
_(Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars As at As at

31stMar, 2019 31st Mar 2048

25, Other Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

Currant maturities of long term debts from banks 1,569.00 1,491.67
Current maturities of long term debts from cther parties 14,341.09 1387580
Current matunties of vehicle oan 1.80 -
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 5,866.45 1,407 85
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 467459 189226
Interest payable on delayed payments to MSMED creditors (Refer Note No. 40) 258 022
Unclamed dividends - 0.04
Deposit from Unitholders 40130 38568
Financial Guarantee Obligations 57505 606 11
Payable for capital goods 26592 1,137,29
Duas ta employees 30103 26781
Payable for expenses BEO.25 f4a150
Total 29.679.14 21.506.03

]

25.1 Term loans from Bank - Rs. 1,472.84 Lakh (31st March, 2018 - Rs. 1,491 €7 Lakh):
{1} Securities pravioad

- Second charge on movable and immovabla proparty, plant and equipments of the Company, prasent and futura on pan-passu
{il) The ahove loan Is secured by personal guarantees of two Promater Directors of the Company

(iii) Terms of Interest rate:
Rata of interest 1s @ 12% p.a

(iv) Terms of Repayment & Dafault:

The bank has been recalled loan of Rs. 1,472 84 Lakh {315t March, 2018 - Rs 1,481 67 Lakh) and interest (including penal intarest of Rs. 178.98
Lakn (31st March, 2018 - Rs 32 15 Lakh)
f (W
\ \
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Notes to the fi i r end
25.2 Yerm loans from Other Parties:

(1) Loan of Rs. £.000.C0 Lakh (313t March, 2018 - Rs. 5,000 00 Lakh) (Refer Note No. 38
Secured by first and exclusive charge on land situated at Village Butiborl at Nagpur, Maharashtra. The said loan carries nterest @ 20% p.a

(2) Loan of Rs. 2.000.00 Lakh (31st Maich, 2018 - Rs_ 1,851 52 Lakh) (Refer Note No. 38}
(1) 'Secured by first and axciusive charga on land situated 2t Knurja, Bulandshanr, Uttar Pradasn
(ii) The Company has been in default for the repayment of principal amount of Rs. 2.000.C0 Lakh, (31sf March, 2018 - Rs. 975.00 Lakh)

(i) The amoertised cost disclosed above is net off incidental cost of borrowings aggregating of Rs. Nil {3 1st March, 2018 - Rs, 23.48 Lakh)

(Rs. in Lakh)
Year Banks Others Total
FY 201718 3215 1,303.42 133557
FY 201819 23977 529111 553088
Total 271.92 6,594,583 6,866.45
(Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars i Asat

31st Mar, 2019 31st Mar 2018

26. Other Current Liabilities

Trade advances recewed - 9437
QOther Payables 1.38 -
Statwtory Liabllities
Statutory dues (Refer note below) 774.86 356.34
Interest on delayed peyment of stalutory dues 657.87 611.77
Total 1,434 11 1.062.48

Notes:
1) Statutory dues ncluded Tax deducted al sources (TDS), Goods and Service tax (GST), Provioent Fund (PF), Profession Tax (PT) and Employee
State Insurance Corporation (ESIC)

2} Based on racent Supremsa court judgement on structure of component tor calculation of Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019 there are
vanous interpretive issues including its icabilily thus pre provision w.ef March 01, 2019 been considered of Rs. 0.4C fakhs

{Rs. in Lakh

As at As at

Tadieu i 31stMar, 2019 | 31stMar 2018

27, Pravision
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note No. 41)
Leave encashment 835 957

Total 8.35 9.57
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{Rs. in Lakh)
3 Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars
i 31stMar 2018 | 34stMar 2018
28. Revenue From Operations
Sale of services
Free Trade and Warehousing Zone op
Storage Income - 5,899 36
Consideration on Lease of Land 7,167.87 046
Conditional Lease Rent 2,500,00 :
Business Conducting Fees (Refer Note No. 53) 335111 972.91
Material Handling and other services - 649.2¢
Income from Domestic Warehousing 121.00 20.00
Total 13.139.98 8,542.02
29. Other Income
Bank fixed deposils 0.19 =
Interest income from others 7.40 1.38
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost
Loan to Subsiclaines 420 02 18551
Other Non Operating Income
Financial guarantee income 898.96 539.31
Foreign exchange differences (net) - 15,22
Sundry balances watten back (net) 206.27 175.85
Miscellaneous income 6.14 2.82
Gain an derecognised of Liabikty Component 653.17 -
Gain on disposal of Property plant and equipment (nel) 033 -
Total 2,192.48 1,020.09
30. Cost of Inventories (Lease Land)
Cost of Invantones {Lease Land) 258334 -
Total 2,583.34 -
31.Material Handling and other Charges
Material Handling and other Charges 87.63 32081
Total 87.63 32061
32. Employeo Benefits Expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,625.32 1394.29
Contribution 1o provident and other funds 5004 30 80
Staff welfare expenses 4492 31.42
Total 1,720.28 1,456.61
33. Finance Cost
Interest expense on borrowings 10,810 67 13.259 46
Unwinding Interest on security deposits - 226 36
Interest expense on MSMED vendors 256 022
Interest expense on statutory dues 88.09 21439
Other borrowing costs 33521 61,81
Total 11,236.53 13,761.84
34, Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Depreciation on Preperty, plant and equipment 1,148 49 1,77581
Amortisation af intangible assets 33273 315.06
Total 1.482.22 2.091.67
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|Rs. in Lakh
; Year Ended Year Ended
Ramciiars 31stMar2019 | 31stMar2018
35. Other Expenses
Electricity charges 111.89 23071
Rent 2906 13,58
Repairs and maintenance:
- Building B3.13 104.28
- Plant and achinery 5336 84 53
- Others 3542 53.55
Insurance 11.30 9.06
Rates and taxes 1265 4.94
Communication expenses 20,75 2272
Travelling and conveyance expenses 53.17 95.39
Vehicle expenses 3B 41 4228
Pnnting and staticnery 2777 24 24
Legal and professional fees 130.90 146 45
Security charges 52.27 24690
Auditor's remuneration:
- Audit Fees 54.00 54.00
- Limitea Review Feas 15.00 1825
- Certification fees 220 175
Advertisement and Sales Business Promotion expenses 28.66 7823
Allowance for doubtful debts 868 733
Bad debts 316 -
Foreign exchange differences (net) 12.81 .
Director sitting fees 285 575
Miscellaneous expenses 76.82 88.53
Driscarding/wiitten off of Property. plant and equipment and Intangible 166.34 =
assets
Total 1,038.20 1,332.46
36. Exceptional Items
Settlement of claims 70075 (2,001.74}
Gain on monetizaton of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note No - (15.633.29)
55)
Loss on sale of subsidiary (Refer Note No 54,2} - 433819
Total 700.75 (13,296.84)
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37  Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
371 Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for in respect of):
(Rs. in Lakh
£ As at As at
Selle: |RrEovars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018

ii] Disputed Income Tax demands 18,515.52 11,087.78

(i) |Disputed Sales Tax demands - 2051

(1) | Disputed Service Tax demands 6268 =

(v) |Disputed Loca!l Body Tax demands 160.33 160.33

(v) |Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 2,268.80 2321.79

(vi) _|Import Continuity / Transshipment Bond 10,000 00 10.000.00

(vii) |Bond cum legal under taking 5.196.00 5,196.00

_(viii} _|Bank Guarantees for Maharashtra Pollution Control Board 15.00 -

(%) |Corporate Guarantees given 18.500.00

37.2 Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital and other accounts and not provided for (net of advances paid) are
Rs. 5,782.08 Lakhs (31st March, 2018 - Rs. Nil)

38 A Public Financial Institution (PF|) agreed to settle their autstanding loan constituting principle and Interest of Rs 16,700 Lakh, Setilement
terms and conditions involves payment of Rs. 5,000 Lakh which is secured by land at Nagpur and for balance amount of Rs, 11,700 Lakh,
aliotment of Optionally Convertible Redeemable Praference Shares - V (OCRPS - V), convertible upto 15,50,000 equity shares at the
option of the PFI Considering the same, necessary effect has been given in the books of accounts during the previous year. As per
shareholder 2pproval in the EOGM dated 29th January 2018. lhe company has approved allotment of 11,70,000 OCRPS —V and the
same was converted into 1550000 Equity shares on 22nd February. 2018 as per settlement ferms agreed, Subsequently in the
Honcrable High Court of Bombay, the Company has made the representation that post allotment of the equity shares as exercised by the
PFl, the total outstanding debt remains at Rs. 5 000 lakhs.

Dunng the year ended 31st March. 2018 the PFI has assigned its debt to the Edelweiss Asse! Reconstruction Company (EARC) The
Caompany has provided interest in line with major terms negotiated with EARC. till the finalisation of the restructuring agreement

39  During the year, the Company has defaulted in payment as per consent terms signed with one of the Nen-Banking Financial Company
(NBFC) Subsequent to the year end 31st March, 2019 the said NBFC has assigned its debt to Edelweisz Asset Reconstruction
Caompany (EARC). Pursuant to said assignment, EARC has become the lender and entitled to recover total dues along with interest at
contractual rates and other charges The company doesnt expect any additional liabilties | charges and llabiities accounted in the books
of actount are edequate.

40  Disclosures under Micro, Small And Medium Enterprises Development ("MSMED") Act, 2006

(Rs. in Lakh)
< As at As at
Sr-NoujDuszdplion 31st March 2019 31st March 2018

a) _|Prncipal amount due and remaining unpaid 3813 0.89

b) |Interest due thereon remaining unpasd 2.58 0.22

c) |Interest paid by the Company in terms of Saction 16 of the MSMED Act, 2015, along| - -
with the amount of the payment made to the suppliars beyond the appointed day
during the year

d) Interest due and payable for the period of defay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified undar the MSMED Act, 2006

g) _|Interest accrued and remaining unpatd 2586 022

n Interest remaining due and payabie even in the succeeding years, until such date - -
\when the interest dues as above ae actually paid to the micro and small enterprises
Note: Duss to Micro. Small and Medium enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis
of information collectad by the Company and relied upon by the Audifars

41  Employee Benefits

41.1 Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 19 = Employee Benefits

{a)  Defined Contribution Plan:

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expenses for the years are as under

(Rs. in Lakh)
: Year ended Year ended
Saticdlrs 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Employer's Contabution to Provident Fund 791 590
Employer's Contnbution to Pension Scheme 17 97 1569
Employer's Contrbution to ESIC 047 1,02
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| for thi r ended 31st March, 2019

Brief descriptions of the plans

The Company's defined contribution plans are Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance where the Company has no further
chligatien beyond making the contributions. The Company's defined benefit plans include oratuity The employees are alse enttied to

leave encashment as per the Company's policy

Leave Encashment: (Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2018 31st March 2018
Provision recognised in the Balance Sheet
Current Provision as at the end of the year 835 8.57
Non Current Provision as at the end of the year 3833 49.70
Provision recognised in the Bal Sheet 45 68 5¢.27

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity:

The employee's Gratuity fund is managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The present value of obligation is determined based
on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Cradit Methed, which recognised each period of services as giving nise to additional unit of
employee benefit entitiement and measures each Unit separately to build up to final obiigation.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 201¢ 31st March 2018

1. Actuarial assumptions
Mortality Table Indian Assured lives{indian  Assured  lives

Mortality (2006-08) Ulf | Mortality (2005-08) Ult
Discount rate 6,95% 7.40%
Expected return on plan assets 7 40% 7 40%
Salary Escalation Rate 9.00% 7 00%
Withdrawal Rate 17 0G% 15.00%
Retirement Age 58 Years| 58 Years
Il. Change in Present value of defined benefit obligations
Provision as at the beginning of the year 116.24 99 57
Interest cost 859 6.46
Current service cosl 1617 2573
Benefits pad (473) (8.15)
Acquisition adjustments {31.54) -
Actuarial (gain)loss on obligalions {8.11) (7:37)
Provision as al the end of the year 96,62 116.24
Ill. Change in Fair value of plan assets
Fair yalue of plan assetls as at the beginning of the year 14.92 1492
Expected refurn on plan assets 1.10 103
Actual Enterprise’s Contributions - B15
Benefts paid - (8.15}
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets - (1.03)
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of tha year 16.02 14 92
IV. Actual return on plan assets
Expected return on plan assels 110 1.03
Actuanal gain/(loss] on plan assets - (1.03)
Actual return on plan assets 110 -
V. Provision recognised in the Balance Sheet
Provision as at the end of the year 96.62 118 24
Fair value of plan assats as at the end of the year 16.02 14.92
Provision recognised in the Balance Sheel 80.60 101.32
V1. Percentage of each category of plan assets to total fair value of plan assets
Insurer managed funds 100% 100%
Vil. Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 1617 25.74
Interest cost 8559 845
Expected return on plan assets (110) (1.03)
Net aciuanal [gan)/loss to be on obligation - A
Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 23 66 3117
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VIlIl. Amount recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Due to Change in financial assumphions 1173 (2:81)
Due fo Change in demegrapnic assumption (154] -
Due o Change in expenence assumption (18.30) (4.56)
Expected retum on plan assets - 1.03

Total remasurement recegnised in OC| (8:11) (8.34)
IX. Balance Sheet reconciliation

Opening net provision 101.32 84 84

Expenses recognised in Profit & Loss 2366 3147

Actual Emplayer Contribution (4.73) (8.15)
Acquisitien adjustments (31.54) -
Total Remeasurement recognised in OCI B11) (6.34)
Closing net provision 80.60 10132

(e) Salary escalation assumption has been sat in discussions with the enterprisa based on their estimates of overall long-term saiary growth
rates after 1aking (nto consideration expected eamings inflation as well as performance and senority related increases

41.2 Sensitivity analysis: (Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars Changes in Effect on Gratuity
assumptions obligation
For the year ended 31st March, 2018
Salary growth rate +0.50% 204 08
-0 50% 194 55
Discount rate +0 50% 194 59
-0.50% 204 08
For the year ended 31st March, 2019
|Salary growtn rate +0.10% 99.08
-0 10% 94 27
Discount rate +0.10% 94,27
-0.10% 90.08

The above sensitivity analysis is based on 2 change In an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant In practice, this is
unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be carrelated. In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present
valug of defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of reporting period, which Is the
sama as that agphiad In calculating the defined obligation liability recognised In the balance sheel,

These plans typcally expose the Company to actuarnial risks such as longevity isk and salary risk.
(a) Interestrisk - A decrease in the discount rate will increasa the plan provision

(b)  Longevity risk - The present value of the defined benefil plan provision is calculated by reference lo the best estimate of the morialty of
plan participants both during and after their employment An ir in the life expectancy of the plan participants. As such, an increase
the pian's provision

{¢]  Salery risk - The present value of the detined plan provision Is calculated by referance o ihe future salanes of plan participanis. As such,
as increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's provision

41.3  The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligaton at the end of the reporting period s 5 years {31st March, 2018 - 6 years)

42  Preparation of financial statements on * Going Concern” basis
In view of the focused emphasis of the Government on logistics infrastructurs sector. the proposed restructuring (Refer note na. 50) and
considering the fact that the facilities are yet ta achieve opsrational potential besides the strategic locations of the facibties, the
management’s fulure outlook of its business is very promising Accordingly, the financials have been prepared on going concern basis
even though the Company continues ta incur iosses

43 Certain creditors have initated legal proceedings against the Company ana its Directors, and the Company has defaulted in payment of
instalments of consent terms for which the Company is in pracess of negotiating and finahising the revised consent terms and/or making
representations to the respective forum, Majority of the creditors have been settied over the past few years and some of the creditors
have also shown interest and faith in the lagistics infrastructure sector and are being allotted equity shares of the Company

44 The Company is engaged in the business of development, operations and maintenance of Free Trade and Warehousing Zone (FTWZ]
and Domestic Warehousing Zone During the year certain portion of land which was classified under Property, Plant and Equipment
(PPE) is now transferred to inventonies at their carrying amounts for future develepments
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Out of the above land parcels, during the year, fhe Company has entered into 2 lease agreements aggregating to 5.50 Acres of land with
a wholy owned subsidiary company far development of warehouses at FTWZ. Panvel and recognised the revenue from such long-term
lease during the year,

Loans from various lenders have been assigned by banks to Edelweiss Assets Reconstruction Company Limited (EARC) EARC had
restructured the loan and executed the Restructuring Agreement (RA) dated 31st March, 2017 In accordance with RA. EARC has
converted part gebt into rastructured debt, balance assigned |ozn is to be converted into 3,21,62,304 equity shares and 64,23 329 2ero
percent oplionally convertible redeemable preference shares (OCRPS ~ Series |) of face value of Rs.10 each at a price of Rs 1,000 each
(Including premium of Rs.990) of the Company, as per extani SEBI rules and regulations. The EARC has availed the night of conversion of
OCRPS Into equity

During the year ended 31st March, 2019:-
In aggregate 1,38 97,516 equity shares of 2 each on conversion of OCRPS Series | have been allotted to EARC,

Pursuani to RA, the Company has allotted 15,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.2 sach to the Promoter upon conversion of equal
number of warrants.

The Company has defaulted in agreed repayment scnegule of Restruciunng Agreement (RA) As per gebt covenant. the Company (s
required to adhere to repayment schedule and any short payment gives Edelweiss Asset Reconsiruction Company (EARC) the right 1o
convert whole of the outstanding amount of restructurad rupee loan and/or part of the default amount into tully paid up eguity shares of the
Company. No such notice of conversion in writing has been given by EARC and the Campany continues to disclose the amount as non-
current and current borrowings as per repayment schedule, in the Batance Sheet,

Corporate Guarantees

The Cempany has issued a corporate guarantee of Rs. 27,724.42 Lakh lo the lenders of Arshiya Northern FTWZ limited (ANFTW2), a
subsidiary Company, This guarantee has been invoked by the lenders since ANFTWZ nad defaulled in servicing Its borrowings towards
principal and interest The Company carried out fair valuation of this corporate guaraniee through an independent chartered accountant
firm and as per lheir report the value of security created in favour of the lender is higher than the total liabilily towards borrowing.
Accordingly. no provision IS requirad towares the guarantee so invoked.

Cash Seized by Income Tax

The amount of Rs. 100 Lakh cash seized by the Incoma Tax department at the time of search on 13th June, 2014 has adjusted the said
cash seized against demand of the Company and to be specific against Assessmen! Year 2014-2015 Whilke there is a demand in
Assessment Year 2014-2015, the same is contested and the said demand 15 reflected in Contingent Liability {Refer note no. 37)

Scheme of arrangement and amalgamation u's 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2012 has been filed
before the National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT") between Arshiya Rail infrasiructure Limited, Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub
Limited and Arshiya Transport & Harddling Limited and their respective shareholders. The scheme is conditional on various approval |
sanctions and is effective thereafter, accordingly no effect of the sald Scheme is given in the financial statements. The meeting of the
creditors was haid on 6th May, 2019. The Scheme(s) shall be given affact afler receipt of necessary approvals

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meating held on 24th May, 2018, has approved a scheme to further rearganize its
corporate structure spread across various group campanies, in order to integrats/consolidate t's pperations by reorganizing different
busi into two entit

This Scheme is presented under Sections 230 1o 232 read with Sections 66 ana 52 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Acl,
2013 for demerger of “Domestic warehousing business” of the company into Arshiva Rail Infrastructure Limited. This proposed scheme of
arrangement is conditional upon approval of an ongoing scheme of group companies L.e. merger of Arshiya Rall Infrastructure Limited,
Arshiya Industrial and Distribution Hub Limited and Arshiya Transport & Handiing Limited, which is pending with NCLT No accounting
impact and disclosures are considered nscessary at this stage pending requisite requlatory approvals.

Maharashtra VAT Refund Receivable

As per the Notification dated 16th May, 2013 issu=d by Government of Maharashtia, MVAT exemption /refurid is avalable to SEZ
Developer after 15th October, 2011 (record date). However, the Company has claimed refund of Rs 1,684 55 Lakh in respect of
transactions prior 1o record date, as the Company rs of the view that tha State Government has exempted it from Local taxes, levies and
duties on goods required for authorzed operations by a Developer vide GR dated 12th October. 2001 passed by Industries, Ensrgy and
Labour Department, Government of Maharashtra. The Company has filed an appeal before High Court of Bombay challenging the
Constitutional validity of MVAT on various grounds and has clamed refund of Rs 1,108 80 Lakhs The Appeal has been admitted issues
are framed and final hearing is pending. Further MVAT refund claim of 575.75 Lakhs is pending with Sales Tax Department as the matter
15 of similar case Accordingly, these financial statements refiect a sum of Rs 1.684.55 Lakns as refund receivable on account of MVAT.
In case the refund is not grantad, the necessary adjustment entries shall be recorded in the year in which finabty is reached

As per ind-AS 108 "Operating Segment’. information has been provided along with the consolidated financlal statements of the Group
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The Company has Business Conducting and Services Agreement with Arstuya Lifestyle Limited (ALL) {wholly owned subsidiary) in relation
to operation of Six Warehouses faken on sub-lease from Ascendas Panvel FTWZ Limited (formerly known as Arshiya Rail Siding and
Infrastruclure Limited) ("APFL") and opsraton of Container Yard and Open Yard owned by the Company The aforesaid Business
Conducting and Services Agreement is to be read in the overall context of Lease Deed caled 3rd February, 2018, Sub-Lease Deed dated
2rd February, 2018 and other agreements and documents entered into in connection with lease of Six Warehouses by the Company
being owner, to APFL and Sub-Lease of the said Six Warshouses by APFL to ALL and transfer of all rights and obligations under the
Existing Unit Holder Agreements entered infc by the Company 1o and in favour of ALL. The Company for the adminisiration and
operational expediency entrusted ALL to carry out operating and managing the cpen yard, the container yard and warehouses whereby
ALL agreed to undertake and conduct the business of operating and managing the open yard and the container yard and warehouses and
provide other services by utilizing the infrastructure facilities provided by the Company ALL shall also received all the incomes generated
from the warehouses and storage yard, bearng the cost and expenses o operate and mantain the warehouses and sferage yard.
Pursuan! lo the aforesaid Business Conducting and Services Agreement, the ALL will pay 99% of excess revenue | Total Income over all
tne expenses / charges / provisions to the Company as Business Conducting Fees. Accordingly, the Company has recognised as
Business Conducting fees Rs. 3,351.11 Lakh during the year endad 31st March, 2019 (31st March 2018 - Rs. 972.91 Lakn)

Investments

The Compeny's non-current investment in subsidiaries and its non-current / current loans dues from subsidiaries aggregating to Rs.
156,510.60 Lakh, The net worth of sforesaid subsidianes has either been fully eroded or most of the entities have incurred losses and
have accumulated losses. The operations of these subsidiaries are dependent on business plens and various steps taken by the
management, The management of Arshiya Group also taken up steps 1o reorganize its corporale structure spread across various group
companies in order to integrate/ consolidate its operations by housing cifferent businesses into two different entities/ separate verticals,
through scheme of arrangements. The Company has alse obtained valuation report from registered valuer. Based on this and other
factors stated, management has considered that no adjustment are required to be made to the carrying value of investment and loans as
at 31st March 2019.

The Company has divesied (s enlire investment in a subsidiary company namely Mira Supply Chain Management Private Limiled
[formerly known as Arshiya Supply Chain Marnagement Private Limited). As a result, the Company has accounted net loss of Rs. 4,338 19
lakhs for fhe year ended 31st March, 2018 and this loss is grouped under exceptional item

The Company, interalia, it's subsidianies and promoters has executed Lease Deed on 3rd February 2018, in favour of & SPV of Ascendas
Property Fund (India) Pte Limited (*Ascendas” - part of the Ascendas-Singbridge Group, Singapore) for grart of leasehold rignts of six
warehouses al FTWZ Panvel, along with underlying land of those warehouses, identified assets and infrastructurs facilities on an initial
lease term of 30 (thirty) years. The said fransaction s for a total consideration of Rs, £3,400 Lakh {or Rupees Five hundred and thirty four
crore), with an upfront lease payment/lump sum rent of Rs. 43,400 Lakh (or Rupees Four hundred and thirty four crare). The bzalance of
Rs. 10,000 Lakh {or Rupses One hundred crore) will be received over four years from transaction closing based an centain parformance
milestones. The transaction also envisages the terms for construction funding by Ascendas for future growth of the company's business
The Company already pessesses the requisite land for the future develepment.

On transaction ciosing date of 3ra February 2018, the SPV has acquired long-term leasshold rights from the Company and the same are
leasad back under an operating lazse arrangement pursuant to execution of sub-lease deed dated 3rd February 2018 10 Arshiya Lifestyle
Limited {"ALL"}, a wnolly ownad subsiciary of the Company, for a sub-lease term of 6 (six| years, renewable as per mutually agreed terms,
in consideration of pre-agreed rentals

Accordingly during the year ended 31st March. 2018 the Company has reduced the value of assets, granted on leasehald rights to
Ascendas Panvel FTWZ Limiled [formerly known as Arshiya Rail Siding and Infrastructure Limited ("APFL")), from its fixed assets The
gain on grant of leasehold rights to APFL amounting to Rs 15.633.29 lakh has been credited to proiit and loss account of the Company
and is disclosed as an exceptional tem

Based on the above, ALL would operate and manage these six warshouses and pay the iease rentals to APFL as defined in the sub-lease
agreemenl. Hence from 3rd February, 2018 onwards all revenue from these assets will be acoounted by ALL. However the company will
recognise the net revenue i terms of a business conducting agreemeni enterad nto between the Company and ALL
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56 Related party disclosuras, as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” (IND AS5-24) as given below:

S. Name of the entity Country of Proportion of interest (inciuding
No. Incorporation beneficial interest)/voting power (either
directly/indirectly or through
subsidiaries)
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Direct
() |Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited India 100% 100%
(1) |Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited India 100% 100%
(i) |Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited India 100% 100%
(iv) |Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited india 100% 100%
(V) |Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited India 100% 100%
(vi) [Arshiya Lifestyle Limited india 100% 100%
(vii) |Arshiya Logistics Services Limited (Formerly known as India
Laxmipali Bala) Exim Tracing Limited) (wef 13th Jun, 100% 100%
2017)
(viti) |Anomalcus infra Private Limited (w.e f 15th October, 2018) India 100% Nii
(Ix) |Arshiya Northern Projects Private Limited (wef. 25th India 166% Nil
October, 2018)
(x) |Arshiya infrastructure Developers Frivate Limited (we.f 9th India
January, 2019) 100% Nil
(xi} |Laxmipat Balajl Supply Chain Mapagament Limited (w e f] India 100% Nil
7th May, 2018}
(i) |Unnvalled Infrastructure Private Limited (w.e f. 7th January. India ¢
2018) 100% Nl
{xii)) |Mira Supply Chain Management Prvate Limited (formerly| India
known as Arshiya Supply Chein Management Private Nit Nil
Limited) (up to 22nd March, 2018)
Indi Subsi 105,
Held through Arshiya Logistics Services Limited:
(xiv) |Arshiya 3PL Services Private Limited (we.f. 27th August, India
2018) 100% Nil
Held through Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited:
(xv) |Ascendas Panvel FTWZ Limitad (formerly known as Arshiya India
Rail Siding and Infrastructure Limited} (up to 3rd February, Nil Nil
2018)
{l) Person having significant influence over the Company
Mr. Ajay S Mittal — Chairman and Managing Directer
Mrs. Archana A Mitial — Joint Managing Director
(I Key Management Personnel
Mr. Ashish Baragra - Independent Director
Mr. Mukesn Kacker - Independent Director
Mr Rishakh Shah - Indepencent Director
Praf. . Raghuram - Independent Director (81l 1510 May, 2017)
Mr. Tara Sankar Bhattacharya - Independent Director (w.e.f. 24th May. 2018)
Mrs. Savita Dalal = Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Mr S Maheshwari- Chief Financial Officer
(1) Relative of Person having significant influence over the Cormpany
Mr, Ananya Mitial — Corporata Strategy Officer (Arshiya Group)
The nature and amount of transactions with the above related partes are as follows
(Rs. in Lakh)
Nature of ions Name of the Party st March, 2019 J1st March, 2018
Revenue from operatons :Ilnra Supply Chain Management Private 121597
imited ALY
Arshiya Logistics Services Limited - 2,694 77
Arshiya Lifeshvie Limited 335111 972.91
Anomalous Infra Private Limited 7,001.49, -
Income billed to custamer on behalf of the Subsidiary M
Company Arshiya Lifestyle Limited 177701 257.85
Advanca Rent Income Jw; S:pply Chain Management Prvate | | 11274
Limite:
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2013

Advance Finance Lease Income IAnamabus Infra Private Limited 2.336 62 [
Unwinded Interest Income on Loan to subsidiarias Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited 63,70 56.88
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited 20.06 17.81
Arshiya Industnial & Distnioution Hub
Limited 11.60 10.36
Arshiya Transpert and Handling Limited 112.42 100 37
Arshiya Lifestyle Limited 212.24 -
Financial Guarantees Income Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited 246.46 240,56
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited 126.80 126.80
Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub
Limited 133,53 17899
Arshiya Lifestyie Limited 168 14 046
Mira Supply Chain Management Private : 86.08
Limited 2
Unwinded Interest expanses on Security Deposit Mira Supply Chain Management Private 10477
Limited i A
Reimbursement/Allccation of common costs and expenses  |Arshiye Rail Infrastructure Limited 419.55 41825
(Refer Note No 60) Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited 4195 566.71
Arshiya Industrial & Distnbution Hub
Limited 101.95 41825
Arshiva Lifestyle Limited 615,65 =
Arshiya Logistics Services Limited - (28.71)
Lease Rent Expenses |Arshiya Nothem FTWZ Limited 33 75| 844
Remuneration paid to Key Managenal Person Mr_S. Maheshwari 20388 185.15
Ms. Savita Dalal 16.61 =
Direclor sitting feas . Bairagra 1.15 2.00]
Mr. Mukesh Kacker 0.40 1.80
Prof. G. Raghuram - 0.20
Mr_Rishabh Shah 0.40] 175
Mr. T S Bhattacharya 0.70, -
Loans and advances aiven Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited 788.31 4,831.75
Arshiya Nortnem FTWZ Limited 253334 7.158.87
Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub 71957 1447075
Limited
Arshiya Technologies (Inda) Private 870 1.88
Limited
Arshiya Transport and Handling Limitec 5 52 412
Arshiya Litestyle Limitad - 10,706.09
Arshiya Logistics Services Limited - 3,440 .00,
Anomalous infra Private Limited 0.39 =
Unrivalled Infrastructure Private Limited 001
Arshiya Infrastruciure Developers Private
g ool -
|Limited
Arshiya Nerthern Projects Private Limited D28 -
Laxmipati Balaji Supply Chain 16,46 %
Management Limited
Arshiya 3PL Services Private Limited 001
Loans and advances given repaid/adjustad Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited 2996 44 3,751.60
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited 280.19 337 26
Afsr_\)ya Industrial & Distribution Hub 10217 514 50
Limited
Arsniya Technologies (india) Privaie \
W 00
Limited
Atshiya Transport and Handlng Limited 5.15 -
Arshiya Lifestyle Limited 3,128 96 72510
Arshiya Logistics Services Limited 2 3,361.30
Laxmipati Balaji Supply Chain 695
Manag Limited
Loans and advances taken [Mr_ajay S Mmittal 786,46 3.064.09
_[Mrs. Archana A Nittal 1.116.14| 4,260.42
Loans and sdvances faken repaid/adjusted” Mr. Ajay 3 Mittal 1.153.32] 2,594.62
Mrs. Archana A Mittal 2,528 94 2,860 31
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Canversion of Loan into Equity [Arshiya Logistes Services Limited I - 50 00
Investment in Subsidianes Anomalous Infra Private Limited 11,00 -
Laxmipati Balg)i Supply Chain 500
Management Limited <
Arshiya Infrastructure Developers Private 1,00
Limited : )
Arshiya Northem Projects Private Limited 500 -
Unrivaled Infrastructure Private Limited 1.00 <
Issue of Equity Shares and Warrants Mr Alay S Mitial
Equity Share - 5,835.00
Share Warrants - §.820.00
Mr. S. Maheshwan
Equity Share R 583 50
Shara Warrants converted into Equity [Mr Ajay S mittal [ 360 25| 495975
Investments purchased from [Mrs. Archana A Mittal | -] 049
|Investments scld to Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub
: 330.83
Limited
Security Deposit received RAI:‘aMS:DDly Chain Managerment Private [ | 11.500.00
|Security Deposit repaid/adjusted |\Lﬂ::te5:pply ChdinManagement Bivats ] 17,226,91
Corgorate guaraniees given |Arshiya Lifestyle Limited | 241 87| 31,316.02
Corporate guaraniees reduced [Arshiya Lifestyle Limited | 4.65961] |
Corporate guaraniges received Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited | 550.00 -l
lArs_hixa Northern FTWZ Limited 1 E I -
Closing Balances (Rs. in Lakh)
As at As at
Hariee Related Pary 31st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018
Arshiya Rall Infrastructure Limited 304.38 2.029.26
Arshiya Northarn FTWZ Limited 9.900.62 7.585 45|
Arshiya Industnal & Distribution Hub
Limited 15202 12 14,471.17
Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited 1,054.68 941,89
Arshiya Technologies (Iindia) Private 2.40 270
Limited
Arshiya Lifestyle Limited 5.584.17 9.880.99
Loans and advances given Anomalous Infra Private Limited 0.39 =
Unrivalied Infrastructure Private Limited 0.01 =
Arshiya Infrastructure Developers Private
o.01 -
Limited
Arshiya Northern Projects Private Limited 0.28
Laxmipati Balaji Supply Chain 16,21 2
Management Limited :
Arshiye 3PL Services Frivata Limited 0.01 -
Arsniya Logistics Services Limited - 288 87
Trade recevables Arshiya Lifestyle Limited 553.40 104.81
Anomalous Infra Private Limited 5.062.99 -
Trade Payables |Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited | g 8.27
Mr_ Ajay S Mittal | 104.89] 46975
Leens kel Mre. Archana A Mittal | 55.22| 1,468 01
Share warrants [Mr_Ajay S Mittal | J 860 25
1Mr. Ajay § Mittal | 1,96,620.00] 1.86,370.00
rsoilgiarhineniaken Mrs. Archana A Mittal 1 1.95,370.00)| 1.86.370.00
Equity Shares {excluding share premum) [Mr S Maneshwan | 20.00] 20 00
SRR
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Notes to the financial statements f; ist March, 201
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited 854.69 1,041 15
Arshiya industrial & Distribution Hub

Financal Guarantes Obligations Limited 536,06 56350
Arshiya Norlhern FTWZ Limited 241.81 368 €0
Arshiya Lifestyle Limited 33325 498.03
Arshiya Industiial & Distribution Hub
Limited 4449572 4449972
Arshiya Northem FTWZ Limited 44 625 29 4462529
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limied 38.369.21 38,369.21
Arshiya Transport end Handling Limited 5.00 500
Arshiya Technologies (India) Private
Limited 2.00 200
Arshiya Lifestyle Limited 14.85 14 86

Investment in subsidiaries (Refer Note No 7) Arshiya Logisties Services Limited 155 50, 155.50
Laxmipati Balaji Supply Chain 500 g
Management Private Limited )
Anomalous Infra Private Limited 11.00
Arshiya Northern Projects Private Limited 5.00 -
Arshiya Infrastructure Developers Private 100 2
Limited £
Unrivalled infrastructure Private Limited 1.00 -
A'rsr'\lya Industrial & Distribution Hub 1.116.48 111278
|Limited _
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited 596 96 696 95

Deemed Equity (Refer Note No. 7} Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited 1.795.82 1.735.82]
Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited 302 40 302.40
Arshiya Lifestyle Limited 1.981.96 458.49
Anomalous Infra Private Limited 1.091.83 -
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited 28,450.00 28,450.00
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited 51,200.19 48,200 .19

rporal - d i i

Col 2 guaranteas/securities Issued to Grr:m Industnal & Distribution Hub 29,600,00 29.600.00

Arshiya Lifestyle Limited 26,130.94 30,548 68

Carporate guarantees/secunties received from

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited

550,00 l—_;

57 Loans and Advances in the nature of Loans to Subsidianies (Pursuant (o the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requiement) Regulations, 2015)

Loans and Advances to Subsidiaries

(Rs. in Lakh)

Name of the Subsidiary Year Amount ding 1
as on March 31, | outstanding during
the year
Arsniya Rail Infrastructure Limited 2019 304.38 212849
2018 2029.28 543421
Arshiya Transport and Handling Limitad 2018 1054 68 1,069 58
2018 £41.89 1.054.27
Arshiya industrial & Distribution Hub Limited 2012 1520212 1520213
2018 1447117 1448275
Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited 20139 9.800.62 990062
2018 7.585.45 7653.69
Arshiya Technologies (India) Private Limited 2019 2,40 340
2018 270 266
Arshiya Logistics Services Limited 2019 - =
2018 - 8§53.39
Arshiya Lifestyis Limited 2019 5584 17 3,980.99
2018 9.980.99 1D,545.51
Anomalous infra Private Limited 2019 0.39 0.39
2018 - =
Unrivalled Infrastructure Private Linuted 2019 0.01 om
2018 = =
Arshiya Infrastructure Developers Private Limited 2019 001 0.01
2018 - =
Arshiya Northern Frojects Pnvatz Limited 2019 028 028
2018 =
Laxmipat Balaj Supply Chain Management Linmted 2012 1021 1021
2018 - =
Arshiya IPL Services Private Limited 2019 201 001
2018 - -
Total 2018 32,059.28
2018 35,011.46
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59

59.1

59.2

59.3

Earnings per share:

{Amount in Rs.]

Year ended Year ended

Particul

AT 31st March 2018 31st March 2018
Profit/(Loss) for the year [Rs. in Lakh) (3,516.49) 3895866
Add: Interast adjustment on account of 0% Optionally f BRe
Convertible Redeematie Preference Shares (OCRPS)
Total Profit/(Loss) for the year for diluted EPS (Rs in (3.516.49) 484198
Lakh}
Number of equity shares
Weignted average number of equity sharas (Number) £380,45.278 18:21.20:802
Add: Adjustment on account of Share Warrants - §,91,781
Add: Adjustment on zccount of 0% Opfionaily i o9 paeEg
Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS)
Total Weighted average number of equily 23,80.15.279 18,91.95,538
shares/shares warrants/OCRPS
Neminal value per share (Amount in Rs ) 200 2.00]
Earnings per share — Basic and Diluted (1.48) 213

0% OCRPS and share warrants had an anti diluting effect on earning per share hence have not been consider for the purpose of
computing dilutive earning per share during the previcus year.

Taxation

In view of loss for the year, no provision for current tax has been made

The Company has not recognised any deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses as it is not prooable
that the Campany will nave sufficient future taxable profit which can be available against the available tax losses

Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets has been recognised

(Rs. in Lakh
AsSeasmentYear Bugineas L oss Unabs‘?rb_ad Available for utilization
Depreciation till
2014-2018 - 1,201 64 AY. 2022.2023
2015-2016 - 4322.75 AY 2023-2024
2016-2017 984 75 401134 AY 2024-2025
2017-2018 45,538.91 3,826 58 AlY 2025-2026
2018-2018 13 .483.44 55€.56 AY 2026-2027
Total 60,008.10 13,921.77
Available for
Assessment Year Long term Capital Loss utilization till
2016-2017 1,658,88 ALY 2024-2025
Total 1,658.88

Deferred tax assets as at 31st March, 2019 Rs 1 283.30 Lakh (313t March, 2018 - Rs. 18,584 87 Lakh) has nct been recegnised, as
there is na convincing evidence that sufficient taxadle profits will be available against which the unadjusted tax lossas will be utllized by
the Company [etails of deferred tax asseis are mantionad below

(Rs. in Lakh)
% As at As at
P 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Property. plant and equipment 5.819.01 6,460.79
Unabsorbed depreciation (3.619.66) (3,557.17)
Expenses alloaable on payments under section 438 (3.471.31) (508 83}
and 40 (a) (ia)
Unatsorbed lcsses (16,033.42) (17,805.69
Financial Instruments 15,922 08 (3.173.97}
Total Deferred tax assets (1,283.30) (18,584.87)

During the year, the Company has allocated certain common cosls and expenses Incurred by It being the Holding Company, to its
subsidianas aggregating 1o Rs,563:45 Lakn (31st March, 2018 - Rs, 140322 Lakh,} based on management's estimates of such costs
and expenses attributable to them. Hence, Employee benefit expenses (Refer Note No. 32) and cerian expenses stated under Other
expensss (Refer Note No. 35} are presentad as net of allocation cf certain common costs and expenses.
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(8)

(b}

Financial Risk Management

The Company's princigal financial labilities compnses of borrowings, trade and other payables and financial guarantess contracts. The
main purpese of these financia! llabllities is to manage for the Company's 2nd subsidianes's operations The Company's financial assets
comprises of nvesiment, loans. trade and other receivables, cash and depozits that arnises directly from iis operations

The Company's activities expose it to variety of financial risks including credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's risks
manag W, Manag 1 and processes are established o dentify and analyze the risks faced by the Company to set up
appropnate nisks limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliances with the same. Risks assessment and management
policies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit nsk Cash and cash equivalents,|Ageing analysis Regular review of credit
trade recsivables, financial [imits
|assets measured at amortisad
cost.

Liquidity risk Borrowings and otner liapilities |Rolling  cash  flow|Availability of borrowing

forecasis facilities

Market nsk — foreign excnange Recognised financial assets| Sensitivily analysis  |Unhedged
and liabilibes not denominated
in Indian rupee (INR)

Market risk —interest rate Long-term  borrowings:  at|Sensitivity analysis Urihedged
vanzble rates

The Company's risk management is carried out by a corporate finence leam under the policies approved by the Board of Directors. The
Board provides written principles for overall risk management as well 2s policies covering specific areas, such as credit risk. Interest rate
risk.

Credit Risk
The Company is exposed to credit risk, which is risk that counterparty will default o its contractual obligation resulting in a financial loss

to the Company. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents as well as credit exposures to trade customers including outstanding
recevabies

Trade reczivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue sarned from customers located In India and outside India. Credit
rick has always been managed by the Company through continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers ta which the Company
grants credit terms in the normal course of business Outstanding customer receivaties are regularly monitored, Credit risk is nigh as only
few customers' account for majority of the revenue in the year presented. On account of adoption of Ind AS 108, the Company uses
expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is tha risk that the Company may not be able to meet its financial obligatons without incurring unacceptabie losses. The
Company's objective is to. at all imes; maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company
limits its liquidity risk by ensuring regular monitoring of funds from trade and other receivables The Company relies on assefs light
business madel through monstization of assets 2nd tie-up of construction funding and aperating cash flows to meet its neads for funds,

I'he table below pravides undiscounted cash flows towards financial labilities into relevant maturity tased on the remaning period at the
balance sheet to the contractual maturity date

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities (Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars less than 1 year 1 to 5 years More than § year

31st March, 2019
IFinancial liabilities

Borrowings 26 173.05 61,11862

Trade payables 62279 -

Creditors for Capital Goods 26502 - :

Financial guaraniee obligations 57505 139076 -

Cther financial liabilities 12.926 28 22196 *
Total 39,563.09 62.731.34 -

31st March, 2018
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 2567836 59,630:98 -

(QCRPS (Equity and Liability Companent) - - 67 64819

Trade payables 582,85 - =

Creditors for Capital Goods 1.137.29 - -

Financial guarantee obligations 806.11 218160

Other financial katilities 4.595.36 - -
Total 32.600.87 61,822,556 P 57,646.19

s ¥/f Jorn «)
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Arshiya Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 201

(c}  Market Risk
Mearket Risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flow of a financial instrumants will fluctuate because of volatility of prices In the
financial markets. Market risk can be further segregated as 1) Foreign currency risk and 2) Interest rate nsk

1 Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency nsk- is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow or an exposure will fluctuale because of changes in forsign

exchange rates The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primanly to the Company's operating
activities

1.4 Foreign currency risk exposure
(i} Datalls of foreign currency transactions/ balances not hedged by dernvative instruments or otherwise are as under

Foreign currency Equivalent amount in
|Particulars Financial Year Endad amount INR
(Amount in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)
Trade Recewahies
e 31st March, 2019 315 21817
31st March, 2018 5.32 341.98
EUR 31st March, 2019 0.02 148
31st March, 2018 005 3.89
Security Deposit from customers
usSD 31st March, 2019 547 37819
31st March, 2018 547 351.42

1.2 Sensitivity
The Sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rate arises mairly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments

(Rs. In Lakh)
Increasel/{decrease) in profit before tax

‘ As at As at
Parteulam 34st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
FX rate - increase by 1% on closing rate of reporting (1 59) (0 06}
data
FX rate - (decrease) by 1% on closing rate of reporting 1.59 0086
date

The above amounts have been disclosed based on the accounting pohicy for exchange differences,

2 Interest rate risk
Interest rate nsk 15 the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluciuate because of changes in market
interast rates. Majority of the Company's borrowings is fixed rate borrowings carned at amortised cost, therefore not subject to interest
rate risk as defined in IND AS - 107, since neither carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market
interest rates. The Company's interest rate risk anses from long term borrowings with vaniable rates. which expose the Company to cash
flow inferest rate risk The Company's borrowings at the vanable rate were mainly denominated in Rupees,

21 Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company's borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows

(Rs. in Lakh
Particulars Axat Aat
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Variable rate borrowing 1,472.84 149167

2.2 Sensitivity of Interest

Profit or loss is sensitive to highedlower interest expenses from borrowings as a resuit of changes (0 INterest rates
(Rs. in Lakh)

Increasel(decrease) in profit before tax

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018

Particulars

50 bps increase the profit before tax by (7.35) (7.48)
50 bps decrease the profit before tax by 7 35 7 46

99



62
)

(i)

{a)

{b)

(e

(d

(i)

{a)

(b)

Arshiya Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Fair Value Measurements
Financial Instruments by Category |Rs. in Lakh)
Carrying Amount Fair Value
Particulars As at As at As at As at
31st March, 31st March, | 31st March, | 31st March,
2019 2018 2018 2018
Financial Assets
Amortised cost
Trade Receivables 6.876.14 764 60 6.876.14 764 .60
Loans 3205928 3501146 3205928 3501146
Cash and Cash Equivalents 586 13569 586 13569
Other Bank Balances 15147 0.04 15.17 0.04
Other Finarncial Assets 4082985 1.848.71 4.082.95 1.848.71
Total 43,039.40 37,760.50 43,039.40 37.760.50
Financial Liabilities
Amortised cost
Borrowings. 85,440.25 94,495.95 85.440.25 94 495.95
Trade Payables 622.79 582.55 622.79 582.55
Creditars for Capital Goods 265.92 1,137.29 265.92 1,137.29
Security Deposits 401.30 3B5.68 401.30 385.68
Financial guarantee obligations 1,985.31 2.797.71 1,965.81 2.797.71
Other financial liabilities 12.746.94 4,209.68 12,746.94 4.209.68
Total 1,01,443.01 | 1,03,608.86 | 1,01,443.01 | 1,03,608.86

Fair Valuation techniques used to determine fair value

The Company maintzins procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using fhe best and
most relevant data available The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the
amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

Thie following methads and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values

The Company assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables. trade payables,
and other current financial assets and liabiliies approximate their camying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments

The fair values for loans to subsidiaries. security deposits and other financial fiabilties were calculated
based on cash flows discounted using 2 current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in
the Fair value hiararchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk

The fair values of non current borrowings are basad on discounted casn flows using 2 current borrowing
rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value herarchy due to the use of uncbservable
inputs inciuding own credit risk

Equity Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the far values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measure at fair value, To provide 2n indication about the reliability of
tne inputs used in determing fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into three
levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

Level 1 - Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instrumenis measurad using quoted prices

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an aclive market (for example,
traded bonds, over the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the
use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable. the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant Inputs ara not based on chservable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity shares confingent consideration and
indemnification assets included in level 3
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63 Capital Management
For the Company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue going concern in order to provide
the return to sharsholders and benefit to other stakeholders and to maintain an optional capital structure to raduce the cost of capital,
capital includes 1ssued equity capital. share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes In economic conditions and the requirements of
the financial covenants To maintain or adjust the capital struclure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares (if permitted) The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total depts civided
by total equity

As stated in Notes to accaunts, the Company is also having scheme of arrang ts to the capital structure,

(Rs. in Lakh
Particulars e A
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Total Debts 97,203.35 97,796.06
Total Equity 1.71.515.57 1,64.914 64
Total debt to equity ratio (Gearing ratio) 0.87 0.59
Notes:-

(i)  Debtis defined as long term and short term borrowings including current maturities of borrowings and interest accrued.
(i) Tatal equity (as showr [n balance sheet) includes issued capital and all other equity

Debt Covenants
Under the terms of Restructuring Agreement (RA). the Company is required ta comply with following financial covenants:

Without prior approval of lender, the Company shall not:

{a) Loans, debenture & charge - Issue or subscribe to any debentures, shares, raise any loans, depasit from public, issue equity or
preference capital, change its capital structure or create any charge on its assets including its cash flow or give any guarantees

(b) Dividend on equity shares - declare/pay dividend on equity shares unless otherwise approvad by the Lender/Business Montonng
Committee in accordance with the provisions of RA.

in orger to achieve this overall objective, the capital management, amongst other thing, aims to ensure that |t meets financial coyvenants
attached to the interest bearing Loans 2nd borrowings that define capilal siructure requirements, there have baen breaches In the
financial covenants of Interest bearing loans ana borrowing in the current period and previous penod

The Company has not proposad any dividend in last Ihree year in View of losses incurred.

64  Revenue from contracts with customers (IND AS 115)
(a) The Company disaggregales revenue from contracts with customers by type of servicas, geography and timing of revenue recognition

Ravenue disaggregation by type of services is given note no 28

Revenue tsaggregation by geography is as follows

(Rs. in Lakh]
Geography Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Indiza 13.139.88 354202
Outside ndia - -
Total 13,139.98 8.542.02
Revenue disaggregation by iming of revenue recegnition is as follows:
(Rs. in Lakh)
Geography Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Services transferred over time 597211 B 54156
Cansideration on Lease of Land 7.167 87 048
Total 13,139.98 8,542.02
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Notos to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(b)

65

67

Reconciliation of Revenue from Operation with contract price.

(Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Contract Price 14,916.99 8,799 B7
Reduction towards credit note issusd to subsidiary 1.777.01 257 85
Ravenue from Operations 13,138.98 8,542.02

Transaction Price allocated to ining perfor bligati

The agaregate amount of the transaction price allocated {o the performance obligations that are to be satisfied as of 31st March, 2019
amounts to Rs 7.109,59 Lakh as per Lease deed. The remaining parformance cbligation are affected by several factors including Panvel
storage revenue, cash flow cover, collections within 90 days or mutually agreed. The management of the Company expacts that 35% of
the unsatisfied performance obligation will be recognised as revenue dunng the next reporting paricd amounting 1o Rs 2.500 00 Lakh with
balance in fulure two reporting periods thereafter

Transitional Provision - IND AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customer

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on 28th March. 2018 notified Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contracts with customers' as part of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 and the same 1s effective for accounting period beginring on or after
1st April, 2018. The Company has applied modified retrospective approach in adopting the new standard and accordingly, the revenue
from operations for the year ended 31st March, 2018 is not comparable with the previous year. As a resuits of change In accounting
policies, adjustments to the transition provision has been made in respective item as at 1st April, 2018 with corresponding Impact 1o
aquity. Details of changes made in item along with equity have given in below [able.

Particulars Rs. in Lakh

Other Financials t
Unbilled Revenue 330 41

Net Im on other equity (Increase) 390.41

The Company's borronings have been assigned by bankers to an ARC under COR package and restructured with NBFC. The ARC and
NBFC have charged penal interest/ interest amounting te Rs, 1,303.42 lakh upto the year ended March 31, 2018, which was not accepted
by the Company and hence is under negotiation, In light of audit qualifications in previous year as a matter of prudence, the Company has
recognised the said interest/penal (nterest and has accordingly restated the finance cost and other consegquental impacts in the year
ended March 21, 2018,

Further, during the year ended March 31. 2018 reported figure of finance cost, otner Equity and Interest accrued and due on borrowings
was Rs 1245852 lakh, Rs 1,51 263 30 lakh and Rs. 104.43 lakh respectively, Rastated figures of finance cost, other equity and Interest
accrued and due on Borowings are Rs 13, 761.84 lakh, Rs 1,59,959 88 lakh and Rs.1,407.85 lakh respectively Earning Per Share (EPS)
aiso recaiculated based on the restated figures

The Company has sent request letters/ emails 10 various Parties for confirmations of balances under borrowings, trade receivables and
capital advances given to vendors and trade payables etc, to which only few parties have responded. Accordingly, impact of agjustment.
if any, will be accounted as and when the samais determinable or accounts are reconciled/settled

Previous year's figures have been regroupad | restated / rearranged wharever necessary

Signaturss to Notes forming part of Financial Statements 7 =

For Chaturved| & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 101 720WW/\W100355

) | £ 1T,
g }4(/‘];1,"' ; % -
L b M
Vijay Napawaliya Ajay S Mittal Archana A Mittal

Pariner Chairman and Managing Dir=ctor Joint Managing Director
Membersnip Number. 108859 DIN® 0228355 DIN' 00703208

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Limited

Ashishkumar Bairagra
Independent Director
DIN' 0049591 {

S. Maheshwari
Chief Financial Officer

SR,

=~ . “"1){)[

=
Place: Mumbai
Date: 27th May, 2019

Savita Dalal
Company Secratary

Dinesh Kumar Sodani
VP Accounts & Finance
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019

(Rs. In Lakh)
& As at As at
Particulars: Notes |  34stMarch, 2019 st Match: 2018
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 7 2,58,156.00 28237719
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 7962 -
(c) Goodwill 19.17 1917
(d) Intangible Assats 8 4,124.96 5,036.75
(e) Intangible Assets Under Development 8221 -
(f) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 9 1,790.02 1,732.58
(g) Other Non-Current Assets 10 6,212.59 4,822.26
2,70,464.57 2,93,987.95
Current assats
(a) Inventories 11 16,505.87 15.66
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 12 4,266.17 2,742.67
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 13 990 56 1,285.84
(iil) Bank Balances Other than (i) above 14 401.38 498.54
(Iv) Loan 15 32512 -
(v) Other Financial Assets 16 B,876.64 12,804.30
(c) Other Current Assets 17 3,950.30 4,289.67
3531614 21,636.68
Total Assets 3,05,780.71 3,15,624.63
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 18 487229 4,564.34
(b) Other Equity 19 48,593 .46 66,937.58
53,465.75 71,501.92
Equity Component of 0% Optionally Convertible 519.09 519.09
Redeemable Preference shares (OCRPS) issued by
subsidiary held outside Group
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 20 1,26,152.68 1,40,059.93
(ii) Other Financial Liabilitias 2 61211 2,300.76
(b) Provisions 22 27373 203.82
(c) Other Non-Current Liabilities 23 2,33587 1,852 89
1,29,374.39 1,44,417.40
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 24 12,524 46 13,753.15
(i} Trade Payables 25
Micro and small enterprises 84 .90 181
Others 249436 1,779.68
(iil) Other Financial Liabilities 28 1,02,861.88 79,930.84
(b) Other Current Liabilities 27 4,430.02 3,682.01
{(c) Provisions 28 25.85 2243
1,22,421.48 99,186.22
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,05,780.71 3,15,624.63 |
Notes to the financial statements 1071
As per our report of even date
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of y
Chariered Accountants Arshiya Limited 7wt
Firm Registration Number 101720WA/V100355 A\
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VijL Napawaliya Aljay S Mittal Archana A Mittal
Partner Chairman and Managing Director  Joint Managing Director
Membership Number: DIN: 00226355 3 DIN: 00703208 A
e
shishkumar Bairagra S. Maheshwari
Independent Director Chief Financial Officer
QJN\: 0004?‘:" / and Group President
(_/J‘ 3 Aw'_
Place: Mumbai Savita Dalal Dinesh Kumnar Sodani

Date: 27th May, 2019

Compary Secretary VP - Accounts & Finance
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Arshiya Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(Rs. in Lakh
Particy Year Ended Year Ended
ey Notes | ststMarch,2019 |  3tstMarch, 2018
INCOME

Revenua from operations 29 28,937.38 25,906.69

Other income 30 2468008 1,665.19
Total Income (1) 31,397.47 27,671.88
EXPENSES

Meterial handling, value optimi services and other cherges 1.047.75 1,211.35

Freight expenses 31 10,954.30 11,668.31

Terminal expenses 357.55 304.28

Other oparating expenses 756.02 374.90

Warehouse storage charges 548467 902.54

Employae benefits expense 32 3,806.85 363454

Finance costs 33 27.559.38 3159839

Depreciation and amortization expense 34 8,419.56 10,171.78

Other expenses 35 3.929.29 4.047.52_‘
Total Expenses (I} 63,315.38 63,913.55
Profiti(loss) before exceptional items and tax (I-11) (31,917.91) (38,341.67)
Exceptional fems (net) 35 (5,167.04) (39,473,20)
Profit/(loss) before tax (28,750.87) 3,131.52
Tax expense: 63

Currert tax 6.88 -

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 0.10 27.42
Profit/(loss) for the year 26,757.8: 3,104.11
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items not to be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent
periods:

Remeasurement of gains (losses) on defined benefit plans (28.57) (9.67)
Other Comprohensive Income for the year (28.57) ]9?7?
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 26,736.4. 3,094.44
Profit for the year attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent (26.757.85) 3,104.11

Nen-controliing imterests - E

26,757 8! 3,104.11 |
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (28.57) 19.67)
Non-controlling interests = =
(28.57) {9.67)
Tatal comprohensive income for the year attributable to:
Equity helders of the parent (26,786.42). 3,094.44
Non-controlling Interests 2 o
26,786.42) 3,084.44
Earning per share (face value of Rs, 2 each) 82
Basic and Diluted (11.24) 170
Notes to the financial statements 1071

As per our report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm stration Numbey 101720W/W100355

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Arshiya Limited

e Aa! %ﬁ“*%

Vijay Napawaliya
Pariner
Membership Number: 109859

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27th May, 2019

Ajay S Mittal Archana A Mittal
Chairman and Managing Director  Joint Managing Cirector
DIN: 00226 DIN: 00703208

Ashishkumar Bairagra ’j ‘:l\:hf/.

Independent Director Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 00048581 and Group President
D codaw
Dinesh Kumar Sodani

VP « Accounts & Finance
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Arshiya Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/{Loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Bad debls
Sundry balances written back (net)
Discarding/written off of Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
(Gain)/loss on disposal of Property, plant and equipment
(Gain) on monetization of Property, plant and equipment (Refer Note No, 59)
Provision for doubtful debts/Expected credit loss
Excess provision written back
Reconciliation of loan accounts (net)
Settlement of claims
Depreciation and amortization expense
Interest expense
Govarnment grant income
Financial guarantee income
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Gain on derecognised of Liability Component
Interest income
Dividend income
Foreign exchange differences (net)
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for :
Change in inventories
Derease/(Increase) in financial and other assets
Decrease in financial and other liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Direct taxes paid
Net cash flow from operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Purchase of Capital work in progress and Intangible assets under development
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from monetization of property, plant and equipments
Capital advances
Dividend income
Interest received
Net cash flow from investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities
Issue of Equity shares (including security premium)
Money received against share warrants
Froceeds from non-current borrowings
Repayment of non-current borrowings
Short-term borrowings (net)
Unpaid Dividend transfer to IEPF Alc
Interest paid
Net cash flow from financing activities ©)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer Note No. 13 and 14)

(28,750.87) 3,131.53
45.81 101.54
(931.35) {452.89)
166.34 -
(0.03) 515.64
- (15,633.29)
11285 (52.12)
- (463,14)
: (562.39)
(5.167.04) (19,478.47)
9,419.56 10,171.76
27,559.39 31,598.39
(365.49) (365.49)
(227.88) (2.57)
(193.08) s
(653.17) 3
(39.72) (54.23)
2 (0.80)
4321 (105.30)
3,018.35 8,348.37
15.66 0.07
1,058.89 (16,518.65)
(2,152.32) (5,280.32)
1,940.58 (13,450.53)
(545.51) (516.00)
1,395.07 (13,966,53)
(779.90) (4,589.07)
A (2,239.00)
(71.18) D
251 95.23
é 43,400.00
(1,089.41) (49.23)
: 0.80
39.72 54.23
(1,898.26) 36,672.76
’ 15,268.39
15.00 860.25
5571.82 3,200.00
(2.550.04) (36,864.72)
(1,228 69) 6,755.45
(0.04) 2
(1.697.30) (10,993.44)
11076 (21,774.07)
(392.44) 932.16
1,784.38 852,22
1,391.94 1,784.38
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Arshiya Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Change in liabilities arises from financing activities _(Rs. in Lakh)
?" ' { i ek § Sl ”m :

& ; T — o s ooy h A : AL AEEME R | . Bo ngs
As at 1st April, 2018 1,76,462.68 13,753.15
Less: Transaction cost 714.67 -
Less: Conversion of Liability Component of Compound Finansi! iiuuments (OCRPS) into (10,342.61) -
Equity
Add: Non cash items (73.69) -
Add/Less: Cash flow 3.021.78 (1,228.69)
As at 31st March, 2019 1,69.782.83 12,524.46

Notes:
1. Bracket indicates cash outflow.
2. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in IND AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flow.

Notes to the financial statements 1to 71
As per our report of even date
For Chaturved| & Shah LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Arshiya Limited
Firm Registration Number 101720W/W10035§

( pﬁcﬂﬁ v eliz

Vijay Napawaliya Ajay S Mittal " Archana A Mittal

Partner Chairman and Managing Director Joint Managing Director

Membership Number: 109859 DIN: 00226355 / DIN: 00703208
AsNishkumar Bairagra S, Maheshwari
Independent Director Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 00049591 and Group President

Place: Mumbai Dinesh Kumar Sodani
Date: 27th May, 2019 Company Secretary VP - Accounts & Finance
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the ended 31st Mar 19

Corporate Information

Arshiya Limited (hereinafter referred to "the Parent Company” or "the Company") together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
"Group") Is a fiagship Company of Arshiya Groun. It is pioneering Unified Supply Chain and integrated logistics i-irastriicture solution
provider Group headquartered in India. The group businesses comprises of Free Trade and Warehousing Zone (FTV/Z), Rail & Rail
Infrastructure, Industrial and Distribution hubs, Indian Container Depot (ICD), Domestic Warehousing, Forwarding, Transpa:t & Yandling,
Supply Chain technology and Management solutions.

These statements comprises of Consolidated Financial Statements ("CFS") of Arshiya limited (CIN: L93000MH10884P).C024747) and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31st March, 2019. The Company is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated on 3rd July,
1981 under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at 302, Level 3,
Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400 018,

The Parent Company’s equity shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange (NSE) of India.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 were approved and adopted by board of diractors in their
meeting held on 27th May, 2019.

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statement

The consclidated financal statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS") notified by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") pursuant to the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') read with of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards} Rules 2015, (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The consclidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities,
which are measured at fair value / amortized cost

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) which s the Group's functional and presentation currency
and all values are rounded to the nearest lakh as per the requirement of schedule ll, unless when otherwise indicated.

Basis for Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise of the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries as at 31st March,
2019. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee, rights arising
from other contractual arrangements, the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights and the size of the Group's holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to cne or more of
the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired during the vear are included in
the consolidatea financial statements from the date the Group obtains control and assets, liabilites, income and expenses of a subsidiary
disposed off during the year are includad in the consolidated financial statements till the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The CFS includes the Financial Statements of the Parent Company and the subsidiaries (as listed in the table below). Subsdiaries are
consolidated from the date on which effective control is acquired and are excluded from the date of transfer/disposal
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Arshiya Limited
MMW&MMMMHM March

31st March,
2019 2018

(i) |Arshiya Rall Infrastructure Limited (ARIL) India 100% 100%

(i) |Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited (ANFL) India__ 100% 100%

(li)__|Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited (AIDHL) India 100% 100%

(iv) |Arshiva Lifestyle Limited (ALL) India 100% 100%

(v) |Arshiya Logistics Services Limited (formerly known as Laxmipati Balaji Exim
Trading Limited) (ALSL) (w.2.1. 13th June, 2017) indka 00% 100

(vi) |Arshiya Transport and Handling Limited (ATHL) India 100% 100%

(vii)_|Arshiva Technologies (India) Private Limited (ATIPL) India 100% 100%

(viii) kﬂa;x;’ug»;:la)salap Supply Chain Managenmient Private Limited (LBSCM) (w.e.f 7th india 100% Nil

(x) [Anomalous Infra Private Limited (AIPL) {w.e.f 15th October, 2018) India 100% Nil

) Arshiya Infrastructure Developers Private Limited (AIDPL) (w.e.f. 8th January, 2019) India 100% Nil

(x)_[Unrivalled Infrastructure Private Limited (UIPL) (w.e f. 7th January, 2019) India 100% Nil

(xii) |Arshiya Northern Projects Private Limited (ANPPL) (w.e.f. 25th October, 2018) India_ 100% Nil

(xiii) |Mira Supply Chain Management Private Limited (formerly known as Arshiya Supply Indi Nil Nil
Chain Management anate Limited) (ASCM) (up ta 21st March, 2018) g L d
Indi
Held through Arshrya Logistics Services Limited

(xiv) |Arshiya 3PL Services Private Limited {w.e.f. 27th August, 2018) India 100% Nil
Held through Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited:

{xv) |Ascendas Panvel FTWZ Limited (formerly known as Arshiya Rail Siding and Indi Nil Nil
Infrastructure Limited) (APFL) (up to 3rd February, 2018) o g 4

4 Consolidation procedure:

(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with thase of its subsidiaries. For this
purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements at the acquisition date,

(b} Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investment in each subsidiary and the parent's portion of equity of each subsidiary.
The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiaries and the Parent's share of net assets at the time of acquisition of control
in the subsidiaries is recognised in the consolidated financial statement as gooowill. However, resultant gain (bargain purchase} is
recognized in other comprehensive income on the acquisition date and accumulated to capital reserve in equity.

(¢) Intra-Group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra Group transactions, are efiminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

(d) Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss and each component of OCI are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and
fo the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

(e) For the acquisitions of additional interests in subsidiaries, where there is no change in the control, the Group recognises a reduction to the
nar-controlling interest of the respective subsidiary with the difference between this figure and the cash paid, inclusive of transaction fees,
being recognised in equity. In addition, upon dilution of controlling interests, the difference between the cash received from sale ar listing
of the subsidiary shares and the increase to non-controlling interest is also recognised in equity. If the Group loses contral over a
subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), Fabilities, non-controlling interest and other components of equity, while
any resultant gain or loss is recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed off
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effestive
date of disposal, as appropriate.

(f) Ceonsolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. |f an entity of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made 10 that Group member’'s financial statements in
preparing the cc lidated financial stat 115 to ensure conformity with the Group's accounting policies.

(9) Consolidated financial statements of all entities used for the purpese of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the

Parent Company, i.e., year ended on 31st March. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary,
if any, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as the consolidated
financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, uniess it is impracticable
to do so

10¢



(h)

51

52

53

Arshiya Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

In the case of foreign subsidiaries, being non-integral foreign operations, revenue items are consolidated at the average exchange rates
prevalling during the year, All assets and liabilities are converied at rates prevailing at the end of the year. Components of equity are
translated at closing rate. Any gain / (Loss) on exchange difference arising on consolidation is recognized in the Foreign Currency
Translation Reserve (FCTR) through OCI.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is the Group's functional and presentation currency and all values
are rounded to the nearest lakh, except when otherwise indicated.

Significant Accounting Policies

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to the bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended
use.

Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment is provided using straight line method over the useful life of assets as specified in
schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of lease. Depraciation on property, plant
and equipment which are added / disposed off during the year, is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of addition /
deletion. Freehold land [s not depreciated and under the previous GAAP land was revalued,

The assets' residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and are adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under development as at the balance sheet
date

Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from consolidated financial statement, either on disposal or when retired from active use.
Profits / losses arising in the case of retirement / disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss in the year of occurrence.

The Group has opted to continue with the carrying values of all of its property, Plant and Equipment as recognised in the Pravious GAAP
financial statements as deemed cost at the transition date i.e. 1st April, 2016

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any, Cost includes expenditure
that is directly aitributable to the acquisition of the intangible assets.

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Group
and tha cost of the asset can be reliably measured,

Railways License fees is amortizad over a pericd of twenty years being the ficense period as per agreement.

Cost of Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software including expenditure on implementation is to be amortized over a penod of ten
years based on management's estimate of useful life over which economic benefits will be derived from its use.

Computer softwares are capitalized at the amounts paid to acquire the respective license for use and are amortized over the period of
three to seven years. The assels’ useful lives are reviewed at each financial yaar end,

Trademark are amortised over the period of ten {10) years

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets under development includes cost of computer software under installation / under development as at the balance sheet
date.

The Group has opted to continue with the carrying values of all of its Intangible assets as recognised in the Previous GAAP financial
statements as deemed cost at the transaction date l.e. 1st April, 2016,

Leases
A lease is classified at the inception dale as a finance lease cr an operating lease A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and

rewards incidental to ownership to the Group is classified as a finance lease.
f
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The Group as a lessee

Finance lease

Assets acquired under finance lease are capitalized and th2 comrespending lease liability is recognised at lower of the fair value of the
leased assets and the present value of minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease. Initial costs directly attributable to lease are
recognised with the asset under lease.

Operating lease

Lease of assets under which all risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the |essor are classified as operating leasse,
Lease payments under operating lease are reccgnised as expenses on accrual basis in accordance with the respective lease
agreements,

The Group as a lessor

Finance lease

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the presant value of the minimum lease payments is recognised as a receivable. The
difference between he gross receivable and the present valie of the receivable ls recognised as unearned finance income. Lease
Income is recognised over the term of the lease using the net investment methcd before tax, which reflects a constant pericdic rate of
raturr.

The lessor derecognises the leased assets and recognises the difference between the carrying amount of the leased assets and the
finance lease recsivable in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss when recognising the finance ease receivable. This gain or loss
is presented in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss in the same [ine item as that in which the lessor presents gains or losses
from sale of similar assets.

Operating lease

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consokdated statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the term of
the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
assets |s diminished.

Initial indirect costs incurred In negotiating and arranging as operating lease are added to carrying value of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Inventories

Inventories are vaiued at the lower of cost and ret realizable value. The cost of inventories comprises of cost of land and incidental cost
thereto, cost of purchase, cost of conversion and uther costs incurred in bringing the inventones to their respective present location and
condition. Cost is computed on the First in fiist aut basis.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes In value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as which are considered an integral part of the Group's cash management

Impaimment of assets

An asset is considered as impaired when at the date of Balance Sheet. there are indications of impairment and the carrying amount of the
asset, or where applicable, the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs, exceeds its recoverable amaunt (i.e. the higher of the net
asset selling price and value in use). The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the reduction is recognized as an
impairment loss in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. The impairment loss recognized in the prior accounting period is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount. Post impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying value of the impaired asset over its remaining useful life.

Financial instruments ~ initial recognitton, subsequent measurement and impairment
A financial instrument is any contract thet gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liakility or equity instrument of another
entity.

Financial assets -Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are initially recognized at fair value. Tranaaction costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. Financial assets are
classified, at inifial recognition, as financial assets measured at fair value or as financial assets measured at amortized cost.

Financial assets - Subsequent measuroment:

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories -
Financial assets at fair value

Financial assets at amortized cost

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the consolidated statement of profit and loss
(i.e: fair value through profit or loss), or recognised in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through cther comprehengive income)
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Arshiya Limited
ot e Consolida ancial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

A financial asset that meets the following twe conditions is measured at amortized cost (net of any write down for impairment) unless the
asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss urder the fair value option.

Business model test: The objective of the Group's businass model is to hold the financial asset o collect the contractual cash fiow

Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flow that are solely
paymerits of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financiat asset that meets tne following two conditions is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income uniess the
asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

Business model test: The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flow and selling financial assets.

Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms cf the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flow that are solely
payments of principal and interest or the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets - Dorecognition

A financial assets (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset ar part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e removed form the Group's statement of financial position) when,

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset hz ve expired, or

The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flow from the asset.

Financial liabilities - Initial recognition and measurement:
The financial kabiiities are recognised initially at fair value and, In the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
aftributable transaction costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest income or
expenses over the relevant period. The effective interest rata is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of financial instruments, or where sppropriate, a shorter period.

Financial liabilities - Subsequent t

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized ¢ost using the effective interest method. For trade and other paysbles maturing
within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounis are approximate at their fair value due to the short maturity of these
instruments,

Financial Liabilities - Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee coniracts are recognised initially as a fiability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined and the
amount recognised less cumulative amartization.

Financial Liabilities - Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another, from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an exdsting liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derccognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
differanca in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Compound Instruments

An issued financial instrument that comprises of both the liability and equity components are accounted as compound financial
instruments. The fair value of the liability component is separated from the compound instrument and the residual value is recognised as
equity component of other financial instrument. The liatility component is subsequantly measured at amortised cost, whereas the aquity
component is not remeasured after initial recognition. The transaction costs refated to compound instruments are allocated to the liability
and equity components in the proportion to the allocation of gross proceeds. Transaction costs related to equity component is recognised
directly in equity and the cost refated to liability component is included in the carrying amount of the liability component and amoartised
using effective interast method.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and C i

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. It is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying econamic benefits will be required lo settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using equivalent period
government securities interest rate. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss as a finance
cost Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2019

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is eilher not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a religble
estimate of the amount cannot te made. Informaticn on contingent lisbility is disclosed in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Contingent assets are not recognised. |{owever, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is
no longer a contingent asset, but it is recognised us an assel,

Dividend Distribution

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liabllity in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognised on abproval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable and corresponding tax on
dividend distribution is recognised directly in other cauity.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of contrul of goods or rendering of services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Group expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services.

Generally, control is transfer upon shipment of goods to the customer or when the goods is made available to the customer, provided
fransfer of fitle to the customer occurs and the Group has not retained any significant risks of ownership or future ooligations with respect
fo the goods shipped.

Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration which the Group expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring distinct goods
or services to a customer as specified in the contract, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties {for example taxes and duties
collected on behalf of the government). Consideration is generally due upon satsfaction of performance obligations and a receivable is
recognized when the it becomes unconditional.

Revenue are recognized as the related seivices are performed and revenue from the end of the last Invoicing to the reporting date Is
recognized as unbilled revenue.

Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which we refer as unbilled revenue) while invoicing in excess of
revenues are classified as contract liabilities (which we refer to as unearned revenuss).

Trade Receivables
A receivable represents the Group's right to an aniount of consideration that is unconditional,

Contract liabilities

A contract fiability is the obligation to transfer of services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (er an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers services to the customer, a confract
liability is recognised when the payment is made Contract liabilties are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract

Free Trade Warehousing Zone (FTWZ2)
Income from allotment of warehousing spaces and ooen yard area for use are recognised for the period the matenal is lying In area as per
agreed terms.

Revenue from valued services and other activities is recognised when refated services are performed as per the contractual terms

Export benefits under Foreign Trade Policy are recognised when utilized.

Inland Container Depot (ICD)
Income from Container handling, storage and Rail and Road transportation are recognised on proportionate completion of the movement
and delivery of goods to the party/designated place.

Income from ground rent is recognised for the period the container is lying in the ICD area.

Rail Transport Operations

Revenue from sale of services e.g. rail freight income is recognized as per the terms of contracts with customers based on stage of
completion when the outcome of the Liansactions involving rendering of services can be estimated reliably. For fixed-price contracts,
revenue is recognised based on the actual service provided to the end of the reparting period as a proportion of the total services to be
provided (percentage of completion method).

Measurement of revenue: Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change. Any
resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that
give rise to the revision become known by management.

Revenue from handling and other ancillary senices is recognised at the time of rendering of service which is at the time of

loading/unloading of container/cargo.
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Domestic Warehousing
Revenue from allotment of warehousing space and open yard area for use is accounted on accrual basis as per agreed terms of contract,

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised wren it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on 2 time basis, by refererice to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected Iife of the
financial asset to that asset's net carrying amecunt on initial recognition.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the
payment of dividend,

Foreign currency reir 1t and tr
Transactions in foreign currencies are initislly recorded by the Group at rates prevailing at the date of the transaction Subsequently
menetary items are translated at closing exchang? rales as on balance sheet date and the resulting exchange difference recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit and loss, Differences arising on settiement of monetary items are also recogrised in the consclidated
statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of hislorical cost in @ foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transaction. Non-monetary items carried at far value that are denominated In foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates prevailing at the date wiien the fuir value was determined. The gain or loss arising on transiation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value Is treated in line with the racogniten of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (ie., translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,
respectively).

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs ara presented in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss, within finance costs. All other finance gains / losses are presented in the consolidated statement of profit and loss on a net basis.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss of the year in which the related services
are rendered

Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to Provideni Fund, a defined coniribution plan, is made in accordance with the statute, and is recognised as an expense in
the year in which employees have rendered services

Defined Benefit Plan

Leave encashment being a defined benefit plen is accounted for using the projectad unit credit method, on the basis of actuanal
valuations carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are charge or credited to other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise. Other costs
arg accounted in the consolidated statement of profit and Ioss

The cost of providing gratuity, a defined benefit plans, is dstermined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, on the basis of actuarial
valuations carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged cr credited to other comprehensive income in the pericd in which they arise. Other
costs are accounted in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurements of defined benefit plan in respect of post employment and other long term benefts are charged to the other
comprenensive income in the year in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit and
loss in subsequent periods.

Taxes on Income

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tux (including MAT and income tax for earlier years) and deferred tax Tax is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss, excep! to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or
other comprehensive income, in such cases tre lax is also recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. Any
subsequent change in direct tax on items initially recognised in equity or other comprehensive income is also recognised in equity or other
comprehensive income.

Current tax provision is computed for income calculated after considering allowances and exemptions under the provisions of the
applicable Income Tax Laws. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are off set, and presented as net.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilties in the Balance sheet and the
correspending 1ax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
femporary differences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductile temporary differences, carry forward tax losses
and allowances to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the applicable tax
rates. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probabie that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized
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Credit of MAT is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidencs that the Group will pay normal income
tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the MAT credit
becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the sald asset is created by way of a credit to the consolidated statement of profit and loss
and shown as MAT credit entilement. The Group reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of
MAT credit entitiement to the extent there is o longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Group will pay normal income tax during
the specified pericd.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs specifically relating to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use are capitalized (net of income on temporanly deployment of funds) as part of the cost of such assets.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. For general borrowing
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitallzation Is determined by applying a
capitalization rate to the expenditures on that assst.

The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are oulstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing costs
capitalized during a period does not exceed the amount ¢f borrowing cost incurred during that period. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur

Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit/loss for the year attributable to the shareholders’ and weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the riet profitloss for the year attributable to the shareholders’ and weighted average
number of equity and potential equity shares outstancing during the year including share options, convertible preference shares and
debentures, except where the result would be anti-dilutive. Potential equity shares that are converted during the year are included in the
calculation of diluted earnings per shara, from the beginning of the year or date of issuance of such potential equity shares, to the date of
conversion.

Current and non-currant classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on currentnon-current classification.

The Group has presented non-current assets and curront assets, non-current liabilitias and current liabilities in accordance with Schedule
Il1, Division 1l of Companies Act, 2013 notified by MCA.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

Expacted to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is classified as current when it is:

Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting periad, or

Thera is no unconditional right to defer the settlemant of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are ciassified as nan-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and fiabilites. The Group has identified twelve months as its normal
operating cycle.

Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be reczived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordery transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset tales into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using
the assel in its highest and best use or by seling it to another niarket participant that would use the asset in s highest and best use.

The Group uses valuaticrs techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to msasure fair
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of uncbservable inputs.
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All assets and fiabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy.

Off-setting financial Instrument

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable rights to
offset the recagnised amounts and there is an inlentfion to sett'e on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable rights must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the svent of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or counterparty,

Segment Reporting - Identification of Segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviesved by the Group's chief operating decision maker fo make decisions for which
discrete financial information is available. Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the chief operating decision
maker evaluates the Group's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business
segments and geographic segments.

Government Grants

Granis from the gevernment are recognised al their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be receivad and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the cests that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income

Government grants relating to the purchase of prepenty, plant and equipment are included In non-current liabilites as deferred income and
are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within cther income.

Contributed Equity
Equity Shares are classified as equity, incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as
deduction, net of tax from the proceeds.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments, Tha cash fiows from operating, investing and financing activities
of the Group are segregated based cn the availatla information,

Business combinations
Business combinations involving entities that are controlled by the Group are accounted for using the pooling of interests method as
follows:

The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are refiected at their carrying amounts,

No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities

Adjustments are only made to harmonise accounting policies.

The financial information in the financial statemen's in respect of prior periods is restated as if the business combination had cccurred
from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, where
the business combination had occurred after that date, tie prior pericd information is restated only from that date.

The balance of the Retained Eamings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is aggregated with the corresponding
balance appeaning in the financial statements of the transferee or is adjusted against General Reserve.

The identities of the reserves are preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of the transferee,

The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or
other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to Capital Reserve and is presented separately from Other
Capital Reserves.

Significant accounting jud t: timates and assumptions

The preparation of the oonsolldated ﬂnandal statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and labiliies, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the reporting dale, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilites within the next financial year, are described beiow.

The Group based on its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the censolidated financial statements were prepared.
However, existing crcumstancas and essumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beycnd the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets

Manggement reviews the estimated useful Ines and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of
depreciation to be recorded during any reporiing period. The useful lives and residual values as per schedule |l of the Companies Act,
2013 or are based on the Group's historical experience with similar assets and taking into account anticipated technological changes,

whichever is more appropriate, &
\ D
/
[/
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Income Tax

The Group reviews at each balance sheet date tha carrying amount of deferred tax assets, The factors used in estimates may differ from
actual outcome which could lead to an adjustment 1o the amounts reported in the financial statements.

Contingencies
Management has estimated the possible outflow of resources at the end of each annual reporting financial year, if any, in respect of
contingencies/ciaimilitigations against the Group as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Group's past! history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period,

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group ostimates the assel's recoverable amount, An asset's recoverable emount
is the higher of an asset's or Cash Generating Units (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its vaiue in use. It is determined for an
Individual asset unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent to those from other assets or groups of
assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU axceads its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects
current market assessmants of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset, In determining fair value less cost of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactons can be identified, an appropriate valuation model Is used,
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators

Defined benefits plans

The Cost of the defined benefit plan and the present value of such obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of
the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date

Recoverability of trade receivable

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a provision against those
receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipated future
payments and any possible actions that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment

Provisions

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from
past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the
liability require the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. Since the cash outfiows
can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly 2nd adjusted to take
account of changing facts and circumstances.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair value cf financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices
in active markets, thelr fair value Is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) medel. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatiity. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Recent accounting pronouncements:
Standards Issued But Not Effective

On 31st March, 20183, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified IND AS 116 — Leases and certain amendment o existing IND
AS. These amendments shall be applicable to the Group from 1st April, 2018,

Issue of IND AS 116 - Lease
Ind AS 116 will supersede the current standard on leases i.e. IND AS 17- Leases. As per IND AS 116, the lessor will have to bring to

books all the non-canceliable portion of feasing arrangement.
J
' \ -
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solidated fi ial ements for th ed 31st March, 2

Amendment to existing standards
The MCA has also carried out amendments of the following accounting standards

IND AS 101- First ime adoption of Indian Accounting Standards
IND AS 103 - Business Combinations

IND AS 109 - Financial Instruments

IND AS 111 - Joint Arrangements

IND AS 12 - Income Taxes

IND AS 19 - Employee Benefits

IND AS 23 - Borrowing Costs

Ind AS 28 - Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures

Application of above standards are not expected to have any significant impact on the Consclidation financial statements.
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Arshiya Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

|8. Intangible Assets A5 |
(Rs. in Lakh)
Computer Rail License
Particulars Trade Mark Soltiare Fisk Total
Gross Carrying Value (at deemed cost)
As at 31st March, 2017 048 1.036.84 3.208.33 4,245.76
Additions - 2,239.00 - 2,239.00
Deductions Z (235.50) - (235.50)
As at 31st March, 2018 0.49 3,040.44 3,208.33 6,249.26
Addifions - - - -
Deductions - (1 _1_6.94) - (116.94)
As at 31st March, 2018 0.49 2,923.50 3,208.33 €,132.32
A lated Amortisation
As at 31st March, 2017 0.20 448.31 250.00 698.51
Amortisation for the year 0.17 471.88 249,84 721.89
Deductions - (207.89) - (207.89)
As at 31st March, 2018 0.37 712.30 499.84 1,212.51
Amortisation for the year - 604.57 249.84 854.41
Deductions - (59.56) - (59.56)
As at 31st March, 2019 0.37 1,257.31 749.68 2,007.36
Net Carrying valuo as at 31st March, 2019 0.42 1,666.19 2,458.65 4,124.98
Net Carrying value as at 31st March, 2018 0.12 2,328.14 2,708.49 5,036.75

A
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to the C
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for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars At AVRE
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Non- Current Financial Assets
9. Other Financial Assets
Security deposits 1.790.02 1.732.58
Total 1,790.02 1,732.68
Non-Current Assets
10. Other Non- Current Assets
Capital Advances
Considered good 1.964 .05 96529
Gonsidered doubtful 1,395.00 1.395.00
3,369.06 2,360.29
Less: Provision for impairment (1,395.00) (1,395.00)
1,964.05 965.29
Security deposits 59.39 60.89
Prepaid expenses 1,054.33 1,180.39
TDS receivables/Taxes paid 3,129.68 2,601.82
Service tax paid under protest 514 3.87
Total 6|212.69 l%
Gurrent Assats
11. Inventories
(Valued at lower of Cost and Net Realisable valus)
Stores and spares. - 15.66
Land 16,505.97 .
Total 16,605.97 15.66 |
Current Financial Assets
12, Trade Recaivables
Secured, Considered good 21077 | 274267
Unsecured, Considered good 4,055.40 -
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 183.90 71.25
4,450,007 2,813.92
Less: Provision for expected creditlosses (183.90) (71.25)
Total 4,266.17 2,742.67
13. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts # 982,11 1,278.68
Cash on hand 8.45 7.8
Total 990.56 1,285.84

# Gash and cash equivalents as at 31st March, 2019 comg.rises of restnicted bank balances held in escrow account with bank amounting to Rs. 803.81
Lakh (31st March, 2018 - Rs.744.85 Lakh). This account can only be operated with the specific permission / instruction in terms of the Escrow Agreement
entered into by the Parent Company, ALL and ALSL with Ascendas Panvel FTWZ Limited (formerdy known as Arshiya Rail Siding and Infrastructure

Limited (APFL).
(Rs. in Lakh)
i & As at As at
Farcpiary F st March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018
14. Other Bank Balances
Deposits with banks to the extent held as margin money 373.28 457 .68
Interest accrued on fixed deposit 28.09 4082
Unpaid dividends . 6.04
Total 201.38 = 498.54
15. Loan
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Loan to other 32512 -
Total 325.12 .




Arshiya Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

(Rs. in Lakh)
25 ]
Particulars ’ As at
! 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
16, Other Financial Assets
Security deposits 3,251,268 9418.61
Unbilled revenue 2,508.27 390.41
Margin money with Lender* 170.00 170.00
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 545 -
Other recoverables 2,941.66 2,825.28
Total 3‘875.54 12, .30
* To be adjusted at time of final settiement
17. Other Current Assets
Advances 10 suppliers 8485 280.22
Advances to employees 287 16.58
Other advances 14804 30.05
Prepaid expenses 350.00 315.10
TOS receivables/Taxes paid 10.67 -
Balances with Statutory, Government authorities (Refer Note Ne. §2) 3,355.87 3.537.72
Cash seized by Income Tax (Refer Note No 48) - 100,00
Total 3,350.30 89 |
(Rs. in Lakh)
i As at Ag at
e 318t March, 2019 31st March, 2018
18, Share Capital
(i) 24.75,00,000 (31st March, 2018 - 24,75,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each 4,550.00 4 .850.00
(i) 1,10,00,000 (31st March, 2018 - 1,10,00,000 ) 0% Optionally Convertibie Redeemable 1,100.00 1,100.00
Preference Shares (OCRPS) of Rs. 10 each
Total js.oso.oo CM
- 5! nd ful !
24,36,14,292 (31st March, 2018 - 22 82,16,776) Equity shares of Rs, 2 each 487229 4.564.34
Total 4,872.29 4,664.34 |

(2] Terms and rights

The Parent Company has one class of equity share having a par value of Rs. 2 per share, Each holder of equity share is entilad to one vote per share,
The shareholders who held shares on the record date are enttied to dividend as may be proposed by the Board of Directors and is subject to approval of
the Sharehaiders at the ensuing General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Parent Company, the holders of Equity Shares wil be entitled tc receive remaining assets of the Parent Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution wiil be in the proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehclders,

& 0 6 res (OCRP

g rignts pE L0 0% d gee reforonceo Shares
The Parent Company has 0% opfionally convertible redeemable proference shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of OCRPS has
nght/enttled to convert into equity shares within 18 months from the date cf issue or redemption on or after 20 years as perterms.

At h, 2018 % As at 31st March, 2018
L] Number of Shares K. In Lakh* Number of Shares Rs. In Lakh
Balance as at the beginning of the year 22,82,16,776 4,564.34 15,61,79,472 3,123.59
Add: lssued during the year 1,53,97,516 307.85 7,20,37,304 1440.75
IBIIlnco As at the ond of the year 24)35,14,202 4872.28 22,82,16,776 4,664.34
Particulars As at 318t March, 2019 : As at 31st March, 2018
Number of Shares ~ Rs.InLakh Number of Shares Rs. In Lakh
Balance as at the beginning of the year 57.64,519 576.46 - -
Add: Issued during the year - - 1,19,13,329 1.181.33
Less: Converted into equity shares during the year (57.64,619) (576.46) (61,48,710) (614.87)
Balance as at the end of the year - - 57,64,619 576.45
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to the Consolidated fi ial stat ts for the year ended 31st March, 2019

HNg more tharn o g ¢ 8ud Lot g9 il g
As at 31st March, 2018~ As at 318t March, 2018 =]
Number of equity Percentage (%) Percentage (%) Percentase (%)
shares shareholding {d shareholding shareholding
B8,85,59,788 36.35% 8,85,59 288 38.80%
385,861,437 15.83% 3,70,60,637 16.24%
Company Limited 5,95,59.820 24.45% 456,62 304 20.01%]

(d) In Previous year ended 31st March, 2018 the Parent Company had allotted to the Promoter Directors 1,00,00,000 equity shares and 1,00,00,000 share
warrants of Rs. 2 mach at a premium of Rs.58.35 per share on preferential basis pursuant to the Restructuring Agreement dated 31st March, 2017 and in
terms of special resolution passed on 28th April, 2017 as per applicable provisions of Companies Act, 1956/Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirsments) Regulation. 85,00,000 share warrants out of 1,00,00,000 share warrants have been converted into Equity shares
on 8th November, 2017.

During the year, the Parent Company has allotted 15,00,000 Equity Sharos of face value of Rs.2 each to the Promcter upon conversion of equal number
of warrants,

Rs. in Lakh|
BT ST . Asat As at
Paticuisry, S | 318t March, 2049 31t March, 2018
18. Other Equity
{l) Share Application money pending allot: t
Balances as atthe beginning of the year - 18.766,71
Less; On issue of Equity Shares - (18.766.71)
Balances as at the end of tha year = -
(li) Money Recelved against share warrants
as atthe beginning of the year 860.258 -
Add: received during the year 15.00 860.25
Less: On issue of Equity Shares (87525) =
Balances as at the end of the year - 860.25
{iii) Equity Component of 0% Optionally Convcrtible Redeemable Preference sharea (OCRPS)
Balances as at the beginning of the year 47,651 .87 8862084
Less: On issue of Equity Shares (47,551.87) (41,068 97)
Balances as at the end of the year - 47 ,651.87
(iv) Capital Reserve
Balances as at the beginning and end of the year 1.58 1.58
{v) Amalgamation Reserve
Balances as at the beginning and end of the y_ar 124 80 124.80
Reserve and Surplus
(vi) Securities Premium Account
B as atthe beg 1g of the year 1,74,858 67 79.617.43
Add: On issue of Equity Shares 68,213 49 95,278.86
Less: Share issue expenses/ Transaction cost - (37.62)
Balancos as at the end of the year 2,33,072.16 1,74,868.67
(vil) General Reserve
Bal as at the beginning and end of the year 940,18 940.18
(viii) Deficit in the Statement of Profitand Loss
Bal as stthe beqi g of the year (1,57,399.77) (1,59,750.24)
Add/Less: Proft/(Loss) for the year (26,757 85) 3.104.11
Less: Other comprahensive loss (28.57) (9.67)
Less: Others (net) (1.359.07) (1.134.38)
Add: Conditional Lease rent - 390.41
Balances as at the end of the year (1.85,545.26) (1,67,399.77)
Total (i to viii) 48,593 46 66,937.58

Nature and purpose of Reserve and Surplus:

(a) Securities Promium Account:
Securities premium account is created to racord premium received on issue of equity shares. The reserve is utilized in accordance with the provision of
the Companies Act, 2013.

(b) General Reserve:

General Reserve is used for ime to time to transfer of profits from Retained Eamings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is created by a
transter from one component of gquity 1o ancther and is not an item of other comprehensive income, tems included in the General Reserve will not be
reciassified subsaquently to statement of profit and loss,
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{c) Armlqlmation Reserve:
Amr ion reserve is d on t of scheme of amalgamation of erstwhile EDP (India) Private Limited with the Parent Company approved by
the Hon'ble High Court of Judicature at Bombay in earlier years.

(d) Retained Eaming:
Retained Earnings are the profitiioss) of the Group earned fill date net of appropriations.
(Rs. in Lakh]
hle ot g 4 As at Az at
Partiulars. S0 | am 2018 | 31stMerch, 2017
Non-Current Liabilities
20. Borrowings
Secured
(a) Term Loans
From Banks (Refer Note No. 20.1) 3,571.43 -
From Other Parties (Refer Note No. 20.2) 1,21,809.11 1,29,036.41
(b) Vehicles Loan from bank 9.52 -
Liability Comporent of Compound Financial Instruments (OCRPS) 76262 11,023.52
Total 1,26,162.68 1,40,059.93
The details of security, terms of repayment and interest on non-current b ings (which includes current maturities) obtained by the Group
ara given below:
{20.1) Rupee Term loan from Banks:
20.1,1 Pargnt Company.
1) R - Rs, 3,189.79 Lakh):

(a) Detalls of security

(1) Second charge on movable and immovable Panve! assets of e Parent Company except for the excluded properties under Lease Agresment dated
3rd Fedruary, 2018

(ii} Second charge on present and fulure receivables including the amount deposited to the EARC TRA account of the Parent Company

(iif) The above loans are secured by personal guarantees of two Prometer Directors of the Parent Company.

(b) Terms of Interest rate
(1) Rate of Interast is @ 14 50% pa.

(c) Terms of Repayment:-
Rupee term loan is repayable in Bullet payment at the end of the tenurc of loan i.e. 36 months.

(d) The amortised cost disclosed above is net off ir costof b ings aggregating of Rs. 6.71 Lakh (31st March, 2018 - Re.10.27 Lakh)

{2) Rupee term loan of Ra, 474,30 Lakh:

(a) Details of security

(1) Second charge on movable and immovable Panvel assets of the Parent Company except for the excluded properties under Lease Agreement dated
3rd Feoruary, 2018

(it} Secand charge on present and future receivables including the amount deposited to the EARC TRA account of the Parent Conipany.

(ii)) The atove loans are secured by personal guarantees of tvo Promoter Direciors of the Parent Company.

(b) Terms of Interest rate
Rate of Interest is @ 14.50% p.a.

(c) Terms of Repayment:-
Rupee term {oan is repayable in 78 equal monthly instalimert commencing from the date of first disbursement |.e. 31st August, 2048.

(d) The Parent Company has bean in default for the repaymant of principal amount of Rs. 19.17 Lakh.

2)R n P,
20.2,1 Parent Comaany.
18 - Rs. 59,7 R
(a) Security provided:
(i) First charge in all the present and future mavable and immovable property. plant and equipment including intangible assets, assignment of nghts and

benefits of the Parent Company but excluding project assets for Khura FT'WZ project Khurja Distiripark Propct Negpur project and Rail project on pari
passu basis.

(i) Second chargo on current assets of the Parent Company but excluding current assets for khuna FTWZ project, Khuria Distripark Project, Nagpur

project and Rail project on pati passu basis,
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(iii) first pari passu charge by way of hypathecation on the Panve! Receivables both existing and future of whatscever nature.
(iv) The above loans are d by pr I g ntees of \wo Pi Di s of the Parent Company.
(v) The loans are secured by pledged of shares held by the two Promoter Cirectors of the Parent Company.

(b) Terms of Interest rate
Rate of Interest is @ 10% p.a. compounded quartery.

(c) Terms of Repayment:-
Year Loan from Others
FY 2017-18 5671.09
FY 2021-22 14,001 46
FY 2022-23 40404 50
Total 60077.05

(d) The Parant Company has been In default for the repayment of principal amountof Rs. §,671.08 Lakh. (31s{ March, 2018 - Rs. 5,671.09 Lakn).

(e) The amortised cost disclosed above is net off incidental cost of borrowings aggregating of Rs. 563.80 Lakh (31st March, 2017 - Rs. 717.82 Lakn).

{2) Rupee term loan of Ry, 2.495.44 Lakh (31s( March, 2018 - Ry, 2,672.34 Lakh)
(a) Securities provided

(i) Second charge by way of equi
Company on pari-passu basis.

(i) The above loans are secured by personal guarantaes of two Promoter Directors of the Parent Company.

tgage/nypothecation on the entire immovable and movable property. plant and equipment of the Parent

(b) Torms of Repayment:-
Rupee torm loan is repayable in 13 structured quarterly instaliments commencing from 31st Janvary, 2018,

{¢) The Parent Comparty has been in default for the repayment of principal amount of Rs. GT0 Lakn. (31st March, 2018 - Rs.428 Lakh)

{d) The amortised cost disclosed above is net off incidental cost of borrowings aggregating of Rs, 139.58 Lakh (31st March, 2018 - Rs. 405.86 Lakh).

{3) Rupoo torm loan of Rs. 2.018.66 Lakh;

(a) Securities provided

{1} The above loan are secured by charge o residual cashfiow of the Parent Company.

{ii) The abave |oans are secured by the immaovable property hald by one Promoter Direcfor of the Parent Company on pari passu bass,
(i) The above loans are secured by personal gusrantees of two Promoter Directors of the Parent Company.

{lv) The above loans are secured by pledged of shares heid by the one Promoter Direcior of the Parent Company,

{b) Terms of Interest rate
Rate of Interest is @ 18% p.a.compounded half yearly

{c) Terms of Repayment:-
Rupee term loan is repayable in bullet payment at the end of the tenure of loan i.e. 18 months.

(d) The amoriised cost disclosed above s net off incidental cost of barrowings aggregating of Rs. 81.35 Lakh.

20.2.2 ARIL
2.36 3
(a) Securities provided
(i) First charge on all movable assets (including rakes, containers, equipments) and immovabla properties of ARIL both present and future o pari passu
basis

(ii) Second charge by way of hypothecation of the entire cumrent @ssets of ARIL on pari passu basis
(lii) Pledge of 100% equity shares of ARIL held by the Parent Company.
(Iv) The above loans are secured by personal guarantees of two Promoter Directors of the Parent Company.

(v} The above loans are d by te g tees of the Parent Company.
(b) Terms of Intarest rate: 4
Rate of Interest is @ 10% p.a compounded guarterly. { \ k’—
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c) Terms of Re nt:- (Rs. in Lakh
Yoar Loan from Banks

FY 2018-2020 174464

FY 2020-2021 6,139,19

FY 2021-2022 2276.51

FY 2022-2023 23.954.18

Total 34,114.50

(d) The amortised cost disclosed above is nat off incidental cost of borrowings aggragating of Rs. 467 19 Lakh (31st March, 2018 - Rs, 612.14 Lakh),

nupee (i {oan
(a) Security provided:
(i) First charge on fixed assets of ANFL both present and future on pari passu basis.
() First Pari Passu chargefassignment/secunty interast on the ANFL's rights under the project documents, confracts (inciuding guarantees) and all
M s, 1 t8 andi i

P ] o P
(i) Assig 1t of guarant liquidated damages, letter of credit, guarantee or performance under any project agreement or contract in favour
of ANFL.

(V) Second charge on current assets of ANFL.

(v) Pledge of 40,52,778 equity shares of ANFL held by the Pzarent Company.

(v)) The above loans are secured by personal guarantases of tvo Promoter Directors of the Parent Company.

(vi) The above loans are sacured by corporate guarantees of the Parent Company.

(b) Torms of interest rate:
Rate of Interest is @ 10% p.a. compounded quarterly.

c) Terms of Repayment:- (Rs. In Lakh
Year Loan from Banks

FY 2018-2020 2,113.15

FY 2020-2021 323.92

FY 2021-2022 3,385.55

FY 2022-2023 5,323.63

Total 11,146.25

(d) The amortised cost disclosed abave is net off incidental cost of borrowings aggregating of Rs, 519.15 Lakh (31st March, 2018 - Rs. §39.03 Lakh).

(a) Security provided:
(i) First charge on all movable and imm ble properties of AIDHL both present and future on pari passu basis.
(ii) First charge by way of hypothecation of the entire current assets of AIDHL on pari passu basis.

(iii) Piedge of 100% equity shares of AIDHL held by the Parent Company.

(iv) The abova [oans are secured by personal guaranteas of two Promcter Directors cf the Parent Company.
(v} The above loans are secured by corporate guarantees of the Parent Company.

(b) Terms of Interest rate:
Rate of Interest is @ 10% p.a. compounded gquarterly.

(c) Yarms of Repayment:- (Rs. In Lakh)
Year Loan from Banks
FY 2019-2020 1,885.69
FY 2020-2021 403474
FY 2021-2022 2,209.30
FY 2022-2023 18.470.27
Total 26,600.00

(d) The amortised cost disclosed above is net off incidental cost of borrowings aggragating of Rs. 8.06 Lakn (31st March, 2018 - Rs, 10.44 Lakh).

20.3 Yehicle loans from Bank

Vehicle loans are

d by way of hypoth
October 2023 and January 2024 respectively

of vehicles. Rate of interest is @ 8.55% p.a. and repayment tenura in monthly instaiment up to




Arshiya Limited

Notes to the C lid

i fi ial state

ts for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2019

21, Other Financial Liabllities
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

31st March, 2018

Security deposit from unit holders 37771 358.37
Other financial liabilties - 1718.36
Financial guarantees obligations - 22403
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 22138 -
Advance warehouse rent 12.44
Total 61211 2.300.78
22. Provisions
Provision for employee banefits (Refer Note No.40)
Gratuity 171.85 123,76
Leave encashment 101.78 80.06
Total 273.73 203.82
—— i ==
23. Other Non-Current Liabilities
Lease equalisation reserve 703.55 129,20
Government grants 1,63232 172369
Total 2,335.87 1,852.89
__(Rs. in Lakh
Particulars AL ARAL
e 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Current Financial Liabilitles
24. Borrowings
Secured
(a) Working Capital facility (Cash Credit from banks) (Refar Nots No. 24.1) 26330 268334
(b) Loan from Other Parties (Refer Note No. 24.2) 12,024.05 11,474.05
Unsecured
(a) Loans from Promoter Directors (Refer Note No. 24.3) 160.11 193776
(b) Intar Carporate Deposits (Refer Note No, 24.4) 77.00 78.00
Total 12,524.46 1375315

24.1 Working capital facility (Cash Credit) from banks:

2410 ANFL

{a) Securities provided :

1

(1) First charge on entre current assets of ANFL both present and future on pari passu basis.
(l) Second pari passu charge on the assets charged for term loan of ANFL on first pari passu charge to lenders.
(iii) Pledge of 40,52,773 equity shares of ANFL held by the Parent Company,

(iv) The above loans are secured by personal gL
(v) The above loans are secured by corporate guarantees of the Parent Company.

{b) Terms of interest:

Rate of interest on working capital Is @ 14% p.a.

of two Fi

O

of the Parent Company,

(c) ANFL has been in cuntinuing default for the repayment of principal araount of Rs. 263.30 Lakh since FY 2014-15.

(24.2) Loan from Other Parties:

24.2.1 Parent Company

(&) Securities provided

akh (31st March, 2018 - Rs. §.474.04 Lakh)

- First Ranking charges on all present and future cash flows, all assets and movable collateral avalable to the existing lenders of the Parent

Caompany as per the Deed of Hypothecation.
- The above loans are

d by p

(b) Terms of interest: @ 18% p.a.

of two Promoter Directors of the Parent Company.

(c) Tha Parent Company has been in default for the repayment of principal amount of Rs. 8,474.04 Lakh (31st March, 2018 - Rs. Nil).
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K
(a) Securities provided
- Exclusive charges on cash flows of Domestic warehousing building.

- The above loans are secured by mortgage over lands admaeasuring 7,130 Sq. mt. of the Company and wholly owned subsidiaries company.
- The above loans are d by personal g tees of one Promoter Director of the Pamet Company.

= The above loans are secured by corporate guarantees of the two subsidiary Companies i.e. Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limtted and Arshiya

Northern FTWZ Limited.

(b) Terms of interest @ 11% p.a.

24,22 AIDHL
{1) Loan of Rs. 3,000,00 Lakh (315t March, 2018 - Rs. 3.000.00 Lakh);
(a) Securities provided

(1) First Ranking charges on all present and future cash flows, all assets and movable collateral avalable to the existing lenders of AIDHL as per the Deed

of Hypothecation

(ii} The above [cans are secured by personal guarantees of two Premotor Directors of the Parent Company.

(iii) The above loans are secured by corporate guarantees of the Parent Company

(b) Terma of interest:
Rate of interest on said loan is @ 18% p.a.

(c) Terms of Repayment & Default:

Default in repayment of principal of Rupees 3,000.00 Lakh as at 315t March, 2019. The same has been recalled by the jender.

124.3) Unsocured Loan from Promoter Directors:
(24.3.1) Paront Company

Loans from promater directors of the Parent Company are Interest free and repayable on demand,

{24.4) Unsecured Loan from Inter Corporatg Doposits:

24,41 Parent Company
Intercorporate Deposit of Rs. 77 Lakh (31st March, 2018 - Rs. 77 Lakh) is interest free and repayable on demand.

2442 ALL
Intercorporate Deposit of Rs. Nil {31st March, 2018 - Rs. 1 Lakh) Is intarest free and repayable on demand,

(Rs. in Lakh

Particulars

As at

As at
31st March, 2018

25. Trade Payables

$1st March, 2019

31st March, 2019

Micro and small entarprises (Refer Note No.39) 8490 1811
Others 249436 1.779.68
2|679‘26 1,797.79
(Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2018

26, Other Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilitios at amortised cost

=
SR Em
AN e &
P
RS

p

Current maturities of long term debts from banks 20,58378 22,527.15
Current maturities of long term debts from other parties 23,044 57 13,875.60
Current maturities of vehicle loan 180 -

Interest accrued and due on borrowings 3897824 27,947.92
Interest accrued but not due on boriowings 10.411.04 4.569.33
Interast payable on delayed payments to MSMED creditors (Refer Note No.39) 256 0.22
Unclaimed dividends - 0.04
Deposit from Unitholders 91082 938,18
Financial guarantees obligations 10.55 -

Payable for capital goods 7,228.05 8.422.54
Dues to employees (ncluding full and final settlement) 71031 474.12
Payable for expenses 979.36 1,145.00
Other Payables - 30.76

10235183 7553034
/ﬁ_—‘\

b X po
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26.1 Rupee Term Loan from Banks:
26.1.1 Parent Company
g - 67
(a) Securities provided:

- Second charge on movable and immovable property, plant and equipments of ine Parent Company, present and future cn pari-passu,
{b) The above loan Is secured by personal guarantees of two Promoter Directors of the Parent Company.

{c) Terms of Interest rato:
Rate of interestis @ 12% p.a.

(d) Terms of Ropayment & Default:
The bank has been racalled loan of Rs, 1,472.84 Lakh (31st March, 2018 - Rs.1,491.67 Lekh) and | (including penal int ) of Rs, 17898 Lakh
{318t March, 2018 - Rs. 32.15 Lakh).

.

{a) Secuyities provided
(i) First charge on all movable assets (including rakes, containers, equipment's) and immovable properties of ARIL both present and future on pari passu
basis

(il) Second charge by way of hypothecation of the enfire current assets of ARIL on pari passu basis.

(ilt) Pledge of 100% equity shares of the ARIL held by the Parent Company.

(iv) The above loans are d by perscnal g of two F D s of the Parent Company,

(v) The above loans are secured by corporate guaraniees cf the Parent Company

(b) Terms of Interest rata:
(i) Rate of Interestis @ 10.45% p.a. - 15.25% p.a.
(c) Terms of Repay (Rs. in Lakh)
Yoar Loan from Banks
FY 2012-2013 22.50
FY 2013-2014 75.00
FY 2014-2015 277,50
FY 2015-2016 369560
FY 2018-2019" 2,840.00
Total 6,810.60

* Refer Nota No. 48

(d) Details of default in repaymant of principal on secured loans as on 318t March, 2019 are as follows:

(Rs. In Lakh)
Year Loan from Banks
FY 2012-2013 2250
FY 2013-2014 75.00
FY 2014-2015 277,50
FY 2015-2015 3,€9560
FY 2018-2019 2.840.00
Total 6,910.60
The above loan has been recalled by Banks.
26.1.3 ANFL
1 T = -
(a) Securities provided:
(i) First charge on fixed assets of ANFL both present and future on pari passu basis.
(il) First Pari Passu charge/assig / ily int on the ANFL's rights under the project documents, contracts (including guarantees) and all
licanses, permits, approvals, consents and insurance policies.
{iii) Assig 't of contracior g liguidated d ges, letter of credit, guarantee of performance under any project agreement or contract in favour
of ANFL.

(iv) Second charge on current assets of ANFL.
(v) Pledge of 40,52,778 equity shares of ANFL held by the Parent Compzny.
(vi) The above loans are secured by peraonal guarantees of two Promoter Directors of the Parent Company.

{vii) The above loans are secured by corporate guarantees of the Marent Company.
%
v

b o ¥

(b) Terms of Interest rate:
Rate of interestis @ 13% p.a.

{c) Terms of Repayment:- (Rs. in Lakh]
Year Loan from Banks

FY 2012-2013 604.22
FY 2013-2014 1410.23
FY 2014-2015 1680.76
FY 2015-2016 8.408,97

Total 12,104.18
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{d) The Banks has been recalled loan of Rs. 12,104.18 Lakh (31st March, 2018 - Rs. 12,104.18 Lakh) and interest of Rs. 14,947.56 Lakh (31st March,
2018-Rs. 11,628.50 Lakh).

Details of default in repayment of principal on securod loans as on 31st March, 2019 are as follows:

(Rs. in Lakh)
Yoar Loan from Banks
FY 2012-2013 604,22
FY 2013-2014 141023
FY 2014-2015 1.680.76
FY 2015-2016 8.408.97
Total 12,104.18
126.2) Torm loans from Other Partios
26.2.1 Parent Company

(1) Loan of Rs. 5,000.00 Lakh (31st March, 2018 - Rs, 5,000.00 Lakh) (Refer Note No. 4€)
Secured by first and exclusive charge on land situated at Village Butitori at Nagpur, Maharashtra. The said loan carries interest @ 20% p.a.

o
(2) Loan of Rs. 2,000.00 Lakh (31st March, 2018 « Rs. 1,951.52 Lakh) (Refor Note No. 45)
(i) 'Secured by first and exclusive charge on land situated at Khurja, Bulandshahr, Uttar Pradesh

(ii) The Parent Company has been in default for the repay t of principal of Rs. 2,000 Lakh. (31st March, 2017 - Rs. 975 Lakh).
(iii) The amortised cost disclosed above is net off incidental coat of borrowings aggregating of Rs. Nil (31st March, 2016 - Rs. 23.48 Lakh).

26.22 ARIL

orm | -
(a) Securities provided:
(i) First pari passu charge on all present and future cash flows of ARIL.
(il) First pari passu charge on all movable and immovable assets of ARIL
(i) Charge on cash flows and movabie assets by deed of hypothecation.
(iv) The above loans are secured by personal guarantees of two Promoter Directors of the Parent Company
(v) The above loans are secured by corporate guarantees of the Farent Campany.

(b) Terms of Interest rate:
Rate of interestis @ 20% p.a.

{c) Terms of Repayment:- (Rs. in Lakh)
Year | Loan from Others
FY 2022-2023 2,860.00

{d) The above loan has been recalled during the year.

26.2.2 ANFL

{1) Loan of Rupees Nil (318t March, 2018 - Rs. 200.00 Lakh):

(a) Securities provided;

(i) The above |oan is secured by personal guarantaes of two Promoter Directors of the Parent Company.

{ii) Charge on movable property has been registered and on immovable property i €. land agmeasuring 1.88 acres 1s to be registerea

{b) Terms of Interest rate:
Rate of interestis @ 11% p.a.

(26.3) Detalls of default in payment of interest on secured loans as on 31st March, 2019 are as follows:

(Rs. In Lakh

Yoar Banks ) Othors Total
FY 2013-2014 3,038.40 - 3,038.40
FY 2014-2015 2,706.458 - 2,706.48
FY 2015-2016 3,123.87 - 3,123.67
FY 2016-2017 3,628 35 - 3,628.35
FY 2017-2018 4,406.91 3,737.82 8,144.73
FY 2018-2019 7.015.01 11,321.62 18.336.63
Total 23918.80 15,059.44 38,978.24

130



Arshiya Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(Rs. in Lakh)
As at
P
ke 31st March, 2019 318t March, 2018
27. Other Current Liabilities
Advance received from Customers 333.50 -
Government Grants 365.49 639.61
Trade advances received - 282.59
Other Advances 1.89 1.74
Statutory duss (Refer note below) 212097 1,397.22
: ondstayad paynentiof Y dves 1,608.18 1,360,85
Total 4,430.03 3,602.01
Notes:

(1) Statutory dues included Tax deducted at sources (TDS),

Provident Fund (PF). Prof

Tex (PT) and Employee State Insurance Corporation (ESIC)

(2) Based cn recent Supreme court judgement on structure of component for calculation of Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019 there are various

interpretive issues including its apy ility thus prosp provision w.a f. March 01, 2019 been considered of Rs. 1.36 lakhs,
Government Grant (Rs. In Lakh)
As at As at
g i 31stMarch, 2019 | 31stMarch, 2018
Opening balance 2,363.30 2,728.78
Income recognised during the yaar (365.49) (365.49)
Closing balance 1,987.81 2,363.30
Non-current liabilities 1,832.32 1723.69
Current liabilities 365.49 639.61
(Rs. in Lakh)
. T LY i " - Asat As at
PAc Ty i, i w 31stMarch, 2019 | 31stMarch, 2018
28. Provision
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note No. 40)
Gratuity 377 612
Leave encashment 22,08 16.31
Total 25 85 22.43
= s

ﬁ

Voo b

131



Arshiya Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(Rs. in Lakh)
Year Ended Year Ended
Particula
A7 31stMarch, 2018 | 31st March, 2018
29, Revenue from Operations
Sale of services
Rail freight income 12,074.57 12,374.23
Storage income 8,623.97 8,422.96
Conditional Lease rent 2,500.00 -
Road freight income 2,506.21 1,906.23
Material handling and other services 2,864.45 815.18
Teminal income 23363 175.40
Domestic warehousing income 121,00 20.00
Finance lease income 3.00 -
Other operating income 10.55 2,192.69
Total 28,937.38 25,906.69 |
30. Other Income
Interest income on
Bank fixed deposits 39.72 54.23
Loans lo others 2507 2494
Others 8.54 61.13
Dividend income - 0.60
Government grants 36549 365.49
Financial guarantee income 227.88 2,57
Financial assets carried at amortised cost 193.06 -
Foreign exchange difference (net) - 105.30
Provision for doubtful debts written back - 109.61
Excess provision written back - 463.14
Sundry balanca written back 931.35 452.89
Gain on derecognised of Liability Component 65317 -
Gain on disposal of Property, plant and equipment 0.03 -
Miscellaneous income 1578 25.29
Total 2,460.09 1,665.19
31. Freight Expenses
Rail freight expenses 9,449 49 10,215.90
Road freight expensas 1,604 81 1.452.41
Total 10,954.30 11.668.31
32. Employce Benefits Expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 3,568 32 3,43533
Coniribution to provident and other funds 102.07 83.09
Staff welfare expenses 136.46 106.12
Total 3,806.85 363454
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Arshiya Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financizal statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars

33, Finance Cost

Interest expense on borrowings
Interest expense on statutory dues

Interest expense on others

Other borrowing costs

34, Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Armoriisation on intangible assets

35. Other Expenses

Electricity charges
Rent

Repairs and maintenance:
Buiiding
Plant and Machinery
Others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Communication expenses
Travelling and conveyance expenses
Vehicie expenses
Printing and stationery
Legal and professional fees
Secunty charges

Auditor's remuneration:
- Audit Fees
- Limited Review Fees
- Certification fees
Provision for doubtful debis
Bad Debts
Foreign exchanga differences (nat)
Miscellaneous expenses
Director sitting fees

Intangible assets

36. Exceptional Items

Reconciliation of loan accounts (net)
Settlement of claims

Note No. 59)

Unwinded interest expanse on security daposits

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Advertisement and Business Promotion expenses

Lass on sale of subsidiary (Refer Note No. 57)
Gain on monstization of property, plant and equipment (Refer

Interast expense on MSMED vendors (Refer Note No. 39)

Total

Total

Discarding/wntten off of Property, plant ana equipnient and

Total

Loss on sale/discard of Property, plant and equipment

Total

Year Endod Year Ended
31stMarch, 2019 | 31st March, 2018
25,951.79 30,647.03
31567 707,04
7.93 156.48
914.37 3.52
4,01 0.25
36562 84.07
27|559.3§ 31|5BB.39
8,565 15 944987
854.41 721.89
9,419.56 10,171.76
562.86 325.80
55388 497 85
160.77 809.46
T4 75 84.53
132.88 135.36
5§5.73 50.80
69.52 34,98
7355 7324
438.30 44772
9438 10269
49 64 44 20
409.31 344.60
41537 39209
7335 198.08
137.69 104.79
15.00 1825
3195 1.75
11265 57 49
4581 101.54

43.21 -
209.70 184.66

265 :
166.34 27.62
3,929.29 4,047.50
A (562.39)
(5.167 04) (18,478.47)
4 (4.314.69)
s (15,833.29)
. 515.64
(5.167.04) (38,473.20)
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Arshiya Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

37 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
371 Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for in respect of):
; (Rs. in Lakh
S. No. | Particulars A A At
. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
(a) | Disputed Income Tax Demands 18,515.52 11.087.78
(b) | Disputed Sales Tax demands - 20.51
(c) | Disputed Service Tax demand 114.23 51.55
(d) | Disputed Local Body Tax demand 160.33 160.33
(e) | Claims against the group not acknowledged as debts 2,291.99 2,397.12
) Bank Guarantees 116.25 162.00
(g) Letter of Credit { Letter of Credit given In favour of Railways for availing e-freight 100.00 100.00
facility for haulage payment)
h) | Import Continuity / Transshipment Bond / Custodian cum Camer Bond 43,901.21 31,810.21
(1) Corparate Guarantees given 18.500.00 -
37.2 Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital and other accounts and not provided for (net of advances paid) are
Rs. 6.345.90 Lakh (31st March, 2018 - Rs. 449.60 Lakh)
38  Operating lease commitments
(a) The Arshiya Lifestyle Limited (wholly owned subsidiary) has enteraed into operating lease arrangements for certain warehcusa facilities,
The lease is non-cancellable and Is for a peried of 6 years and may be renewed for a further period of 6 years based on mutual
agreement of the parties. The lease agreements provide for an increase in the lease payments by 5 % every year from lease
commencement date.
(Rs. in Lakh)
As at As at
Racuian 31st March 2019 31st March 2018
Future Non-Cancellable mini lease cc i
Within one year 4918.73 484237
Later than one year but not later than five years 2121421 21,009.85
Later than five years - 4,898.67
(b) The Group has taken office on lease under non-cancellable operating lease expiring at the end of 3 years. The leases have varying
ferms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms cf the leases are renegotiated
(Rs. in Lakh)
As at As at
Paticuiars 318t March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Future Non-Cancellable minimum lease commitments
Within one year 351.92 340.65
Later than one year but not later than five years €99.19 1.051.11
Later than five years - -
39  Details of dues to Micro, Small And Modium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006
(Rs. in Lakh
As at As at
3:Now [ Reasriptien 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
_a) _|Principal amount due and remaining unpaid 84.98 18.11
b) |Interest due tharson remaining unpaid 4.01 022
c) |Interest paid by the Group in terms of Section 18 of the MSMED Act, 2018, along - -
with the amount of the payment made to the suppliers beyond the appointed day
during the year
d) |Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have - -
been paid bul beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2008
e) |interest accrued and remaining unpaid 4.01 022
1) [Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date -

when the interest dues as above ae actually psid o the micro and small enterprises.

Note: Dues to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis

of information collected by the Group and relied upon by the Auditors.
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Arshiya Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Employee Benefits
Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 19 — Employee Benefits
Defined Contribution Plan:
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expenses for the years are as under:
(Rs. in Lakh)
Year ended Year ended
Reptcuiam Gl N 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 21,58 19.63
Employer's Contribution to Pension Scheme 49.02 44,61
Employer’s Contributicn to ESIC 2.12 3.30
Brief descriptions of the plans
The Group's defined contribution plans are Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance where the Group has no further obligation
beyond making the contributions. The Group's defined benefit plans include gratuity. The employees are also enfited to leave
encashment as per the Group's policy.
Leave Encashment:
Particulars T As at
d ' 31st March, 2019
Provision gnised in the Bal Sheet
Current Provision as at the end of the year 22.08
Non Current Provision as at the end of the year 101.78
Provision recognised in the Balance Sheet 123.86
Defined benefit plan = Gratuity:
The empioyee's Gratuity fund (s managed by tha Life Insurance Corporation of India. The present value of obligation is determined
based on actuanal valuation using the Projected Unif Credit Method, which recognised each period of services as giving rise o
additional unit of employee banefit entitiement and measures each unit separately to build up to final obligation.
(Rs. in Lakh)
[Particulars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
I. Actuarial assumptions
Mortality Table lIndian Assured lves|indian Assured lives
Mortality (2008-08) Uit (Mortality {2006-08) Ult
Discount rate 6.95% 7.40%
Expected return on plan assets 7.40% 8.17%
Salary Escalafion Rate 9.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal Rate 17.00% 15.00%
Retirement Age 58 Years 58 Years
Il Change In Present value of defined benefit obligations
Pravision as at the beginning of the year 200.03 174,79
Interest cost 14.87 11.03
Current service cost 4221 55.01
Benefits paid (22.25) 3245
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 28.56 (10.62)
Provision as at the end of the year 263.42 259.66
Ill, Change in Fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the year 81.66 11868
Expected return on plan assets 6.04 15.67
Actual Enterprise's Contributions (22.25) (32.45)
Benefits paid 2225 3245
Unrecognised assef due to limit in Para 64(b) - -
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets - (4.59)
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 87.70 129.76
p—
IV. Actual return on plan assets
Expected return on plan assats 6.04 15.67
Actuaral gain/(loss) on plan assets - (4.59)
| Actual return on plan assets 6.04 11.08
V. Provision recognisod in the Bal Sheet
Provision as at the end of the year 283.42 25965
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 87.70 12978
Prowision recognised in the Balance Sheet 175.72 129.88
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

VI. Percentage of each category of plan assets to total fair value of plan assots

Insurer managed funds 100% 100%
VII. Ar it gnised in the S of Profit and Loss

Current service cost 4221 55.01

Interest cost 11.04 11.03

Expected return on plan assets (2.20) (19.22)
Net actuarial (gain)/loss to be on obligation o =
Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 51.04 46.83

VIll. Amount recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)

Due to Change in financial assumptions 32.31 (4.29)
Due to Change in demographic assumption (4.19) 0.08

Due to Change in exparience assumption 045 (6.39)
Expected return on plan assets - (4.59)
Total remasurament recognised in OCI 28.57 (9.67)

IX. Balance Sheet reconciliation

Opening net provision 118.37 53.11
Expenses recognised in Profit & Loss 51.04 57.91
Actual Employer Contribution (22.25) 28.53
Net transfer by group companies - -
Total Remeasurement recognised in OCI 28.56 (9.67)
Closing net provision 175.72 129.88

(e) Salary escalation assumption has been sel in discussions with the enterprise based on their estmates of overall long-term salary
growth rates after taking into consideration expected eamings inflation as well as performance and seniority related increases,

40.2 Sensitivity analysis: _(Rs. in Lakh)
Changes in Effect on Gratu

Particulars assumggtlons obligation H

For the year ended 31st March, 2018

Salary growth rate +0.50% 289.11
-0.50% 275.58

Discount rate +0.50% 275.63
-0.50% 289.11

For the year ended 31st March, 2019

Salary growth rate +0.10% 273.60
-0.10% 253.36

Discount rate +0.10% 253.79
-0.10% 273.82

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is
unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. In presenting the above sensifivity analysis, the present
value of defined benefit cbligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit mathod at the end of reporting period, which is the
same as that applied in calculating the defined obligation liability recognised in the balance shast.

These pians typicaily expose the Group to actuarial nsks such as: iongevity risk and salary risk.
(a) Interest risk - A decrease in the discount rate will increase the plan provision.
{b) Longevily risk - The present value of the defined henefit plan provision 1s calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of

plan participants both during and afler their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants. As such, an
increase the plan's provision.

(c) Salary risk - The present value of the defined plan provision is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such,
as increase in the salary of the plan participants will increass the pian's provision.

40,3 The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligaticn at the end of the reporting period is § years (31st March, 2018 - 6
years).
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Preparation of financial statements on “ Going Concern” basis

One of the subsidiary Company viz Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited has accumuleted losses and negative net werth. Some of its
lenders have recalled their loans and the subsidiary company is in the process of negotiating the revised payment terms. The subsidiary
Company is EBIDTA positive and with the commencement of the two dedicated freight corridors, the said subsidiary company will
benefit immensely, Moreover a unique contract entered into with one of the largest global shipping lines has already stared to improve
the profitability. Alsc, the proposed merger of anothor subsidiary company with this subsidiary company, would make their operations
not only complementary, but enhance their profitability.

In view of the focussed emphasis of the Government on logistics infrastructure sector, the proposed restructuring and considering the
fact that the facilities are yet to achieve full operational potential besides the strategic locations of the facilities, the management's future
outlock of its businesses is very promising. Accordingly, the financials have been prepared on going concern basis including based on
financial support from the Parent Company.

Diversified focus from only Stee! industry 1o Cement, Agro and Tiles also so as 1o have a balance of preduct mix,

Stabilizing of PFT business with Long term contracts and constructing the second line,

Standardization of Containers o be able to better utilizs the assels,

Government focus on Multi-modal logistic and tranaport services to increase the throughput of the infrastructure already created by the
company,

Government focus on the revamping of the Railway Boards and increasing clarity on regulatory aspects to support resoluticn of the
regulatory issues,

Two Dedicatad Freight Corridor(s) (DFC) along the Western and Eastern part of India fo support increase In the business volume,

Government announcement of Jewar Airport and Merut Highway connecting Jewar via Khurja and thereby connecting to Yamuna
Expressway( |.e. Delhi to Agra),

Certain creditors have initiated legal proceedings against the Group and its Directors and the Group has defaulted in payment of
instalments of consent terms for which the Group is in process of negotiating and finalising the revised consent terms, Majority of the
creditors have been settled over the pas! few years and some of the creditors have also shown interest and faith not only in the logistics
infrastructure sector but also in Arshiya Group and are being alloited equity shares of the Parent Company.

The Parent Company, ATHL, ANFL and AIDHL has accumulated losses and certain creditors have initiated legal proceeding against this
companies and their Directors for recovery of the amounts due. However in certain cases has executed consant terms or is in the
procass of finalizing consent terms with the creditors,

The Parent Company has given its warehouses on long term lease and received upfront lease payments, The management has also
initiated various other steps such as construction and future deveiopment within the FTWZ, restructuring the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries business operations. The Parent Company, has given a support letter to d, for the for le future, any financial
support which may be required by those subsidiaries. Considering the strength of locational advantages, future outlook as assessed by
the management and business plan, those subsidiaries’ management is confident to continue as a going concern. The long term
prospects, however, are dependent on various factors and censolidated financial statements of those entities have accordingly been
continued to be prepared on going concem basis.

The management is in the process of restrusturing its business operations and sleps are as under

Competitive advanfage of the FTWZ with easily accessible 1o two most important retail market in NCR- Guraaon and Delhi 1o increase
utilization,

Aligning warshcouse and distribution center logistics to support companies in alignment with business strategy and provide a competitive
cdge in Mutli-modal Logistics.

ICD operational facility has now entered into long term contract with glebal shipping majors,

The plannad long term contract for transportation of Reefer cargo to increase revenue,

Increasing throughput through collaborative 'Pooling of assets’ with other |ICD and Private Container Train Operators (PCTO)

Increasing interest from various Global customers for integrated solutions including rail transport and FTWZ,

Loans from various lenders have been assigned by banks to Edelweiss Assets Reconstruction Company Limited (EARC). EARC had
restructured the loan and exccuted the Restructuring Agreement (RA) daled 31st March, 2017. [n accordance with RA, EARC has
converted part debt into restructured debt, balance assigned loan is to be converted into 3,21,62,304 equity shares and 64,23,329 zero
percent optionally convertible redeemable preference shares (OCRPS - Series ) of face value of Rs.10 each at a price of Rs, 1,000
each (including premium of Rs.990) of the Company, as per extant SEBI rules and regulations. The EARC has availed the right of
ronversion of OCRPS into equity.

During the year ended 31st March, 2019~
In aggregate 1,38,97,516 equity shares of 2 each on conversion of OCRPS Series | have been allotted to EARC

Pursuant o RA, the Company has allotted 15,00,.000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs.2 sach to the Promoter upon conversion of
equal number of warrants.
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Tne Parent Company is engaged in the business of development, operations and maintenance of Free Trade and Warehousing Zone
(FTWZ) and Domestic Warehousing Zone. Durin] the year endea 31st March, 20189, certain portion of Land which was classified under
Property, Plant and Equipment (PPC) is now transferrad to inventories at their carrying ts for future developments

Out of the above land parcels, during the year ended 31st March, 2019 the Parent Company has entered inta 2 lease agreements
aggregating to 5.50 Acres of land with a wholly owned subsidiary company for development of warehouses at FTWZ, Panvel

The Parent Company and its subsidiaries have defaulted in agreed repayment schedule of Restructuring Agreement (RA) As per debt
covenant, the Parent Company and its subsidiaries are required tc adhere to repayment schedule and any short payment gives
Edelweiss Assel Reconstruction Company (EARC) the right to convert whole of the cutstanding amount of restructured rupee loan
and/or part of the default amount into fully paid up equity shares of the Parent Company. No such notica of conversion in writing has
been given by EARC and the Parent Ci y and its subsidiaries continues to disclose the amount as non-current and current
borrowings as per repayment schedule, in the Balance Sheet.

During the year ended 31st March, 2019, the Parent Company has defaulied in payment as per consent tarms signed with one of the
Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFFC). Subsequent to the year end, the saild NBFC has assigned its debt to Edeliweiss Asset
Reconstruction Company (EARC). Pursuant to the said assignment, EARC baceme the lender and entitied to recover total dues
alongwith interest at contractual rates and other charges. The Parent Company doesn't expect any additional liabilities / charges and
liabilities accounted in the books of account are adequate.

A Public Financial Institution (PFl) agreed to settle their outstanding loan constituting principle and interest of Rs 16,700 Lakh,
Settlement terms and cenditions involves payment of Rs. 5,000 Lakh which is secured by land at Nagpur and for balance amount of Rs.
11,700 Lakh, allotment of Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares - V (OCRPS - V), convertible upto 15,50,000 equity
shares at the option of the PFi. Considering the same, necessary effect has been given in the books of accounts during the previous
year. As per shareholder approval in the EOGM dated 29th January 2018, the Parent Company has approved allotment of 11,70,000
OCRPS = V and the same was converted into 15,50,000 Equity shares on 22nd February, 2018 as per settiement terms agreed.
Subsequently in the Honorable High Court of Bombay, the Parent Company has made the representation that post allolment of the
equity shares as exercised by the PFI, the total outstanding debt remains at Rs. 5,000 Lakh.

During the year ended 31st March, 2019, the PF| has assigned its debt to the Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company (EARC). The
Company has provided interest in line with major terms negofiated with EARC, till the finalisation of the restructuring agreement.

A subsidiary Company i e. Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited had entered into one-time settiement (OTS) with a Bank durning the year
ended 31st March, 2019 and the effect was taken as an exceptional item during the year ended 31st March, 2019 Howaver, the
subsidiary Company has defaulted in payment as per the terms of the OTS. As a result, the subsidiary Company needs to reverse the
exceplional gain recorded during the year ended 31st March, 2013 and needs to recognise Interest on the entire lizbility as per the
original terms. The subsidiary Company is in discussion with the lender for additional time to repay.

The subsidiary Company has not reversed the gain, nor provided for additional interest Had the Subsidiary Company reversed the gain
and provided for additional interest, exceptional item would have been lower by Rs. 6604.55 Lakh and finance cost would have been
higher by Rs. 3,500.76 Lakh having consequential impact on totel comprehensive income for the year ended 21st March, 2019.

Cash Seized by Income Tax

The amount of Rs. 100 Lakh cash seized by the Income Tax department at the time of search on 13th June, 2014 has adjustad the said
cash seized against demand of the Parent Company and to be specific against Assessment Year 2014-2015. While there is a demand
in Assessment Year 2014-2015. the same is conlested and the said demand is reflected in Contingent Liabilty (Refer note no. 37).

Scheme of arangement and amalgamation u/s 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed
before the National Company Law Trbunal (‘NCLT") between Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited, Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub
Limited and Arshiya Transport & Handling Limited and their respective shareholders. The scheme is conditional on various approval /

ions and is effective th fier; accordingly no effect of the said Scheme Is given in the consolidated financial statements. The
Creditors meeting of the respective companies was held on 6th May 2018. The Scheme(s) shall be given effect afier receipt of
necessary approvals.

The Board of Directers of the Parent Company in their meeting held on 24th May, 2018, has approved a scheme o further reorganize its
corporale structure spread across various group companies, in order to integrate/consolidate it's operations by reorganizing different

businesses into two entifies subject to various approvals.
‘1
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Arshiya Limited
Notes to Consolidatod financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

This Scheme is presented under Sections 230 to 232 read with Sections 66 and 52 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 for demerger of ‘Domestic warehousing business" of the Parent Company into Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited. This
proposed scheme of arrangement is conditional upon approval of an ongoing scheme of group companies i.e. merger of Arshiya Rail
Infrastructure Limited, Arshiya Industrial and Distribution Hub Limited and Arshiya Transport & Handling Limited, which is pending with
NCLT. No accounting impact and disclosures is considered and necessary at this stage pending requisite regulatory approvals.

Cenvat Credit Receivable:
The Group has been legally advised that post merger of the AIDHL with ARIL, the unutilized cenvat credit of the AIDHL can be utilized
for discharging the service tax llability of ARIL,

Indirect Tax Refund Receivable

As per the Nofification dated 16th May, 2013 issued by Government of Maharashtra, MVAT ption /refund is avaiable to SEZ
Developer after 15th October, 2011 (rocord dato), However, the Parent Company has claimed rafund of Rs.1,684.55 Lakh in respect of
transactions prior fo record date, as the Parent Company Is of the view that the State Government has exempted it from Local taxes,
levies and duties on goods required for autharized operations by a Developer vide GR daied 12th October, 2001 passed by Industries,
Energy and Labour Depariment, Government of Maharashtra, The Parent Company has filed an appeal before High Court of Bombay
challenging the Constitutional validity of MVAT on various grounds and has claimed refund of Rs.1,108.80 Lakhs, The Appeal has been
admitted, issues are framed and final hearing is pending. Further MVAT refund claim of §75.75 Lakhs is pending with Sales Tax
Department as the matter is of similar case. Accordingly, these financial statements reflact a sum of Rs.1,684.55 Lakhs as refund
receivable on account of MVAT. In case the refund is not granted, the necessary adjustment entries shall be recorded in the year in
which finality is reached.

Refunds receivable in respact of VAT, Service Tax, Local Entry Tax and Sarvice Tax for which appeals are pending with raspective
Appellate Authorities, The Management is of the view that the refunds claimed as above aggregating fo Rs. 355.05 Lakh are considered
good for recovery on account of rafunds being received by other SEZ developers on similar grounds.

The Management is of the view that the refunds claimed as above are considered good for recovery.

ARIL has procured certain capital goods under EPCG schame at concessional rate of duty. On non fulfiliment of certain conditions, ARIL
may become liable to pay differential custom duty along with interest therson such procurement. The management is hopeful of
completing the expected obligation within the stipulated time

Corporation Bank has filed a sult with Debt Recovery ribunal, New Delhi, towards recovery against Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited,
the Parent Company as a Corporate Guarantor and two Promoter Directors of the Parent Company as Guarantors, for Rs. 8.012.60
lakhs, The same is pending before the DRT Delhi. The matter is sub-judice.

During the year ended 31st March, 2018, two lenders of a subsidiary i.e. Arshiya Industrial and Distribution Hub Limited (“AIDHL"} have
assigned their rights, title, and interest in financial assistance granted by them to Edelweiss Assets Reconstruction Company Limited
(EARC). Post assignment of loans, EARC has become a secured lender of AIDHL and right, title and interes! of the lenders have vested
into EARC.

Pursuant to the assignment of such loans, and in terms of the restructuring package approved by EARC for the loans so assigned, the
subsidiary has executed Restructuring Agreement (RA) with EARC, on behalf of EARC Trusts on 13th January, 2018 taking the
aggregate amount of assigned loans to Rs 20,998 Lakh.

As a result of this restructuring and assignment of debts of lenders the gain earned amounting (o Rs 10,398.92 Lakh has been crediled
to the Consolidated Statement of Prefit and Loss for the year ended on 31st March, 2018, This has been disclosed as part of an
exceptional item,

During the year ended 31sf March, 2018 a subsidiary i.€. AIDHL has completed one time setilement (OTS) with a lender in respect of
the term loan taken. OTS sfipulates payment and allotment of Optionally Convertivle Redeemable Preference Shares. AIDHL has made
a payment of Rs 3,000 Lakh on 18th January,2018 and issued 1,20,000 OCRPS. Gain of Rs. 7,790 75 Lakh on this OTS has been
credited to the Consolidaled Statement of Profit & Loss as an exceptional item

During the year ended 31st March, 2018 the Parent Company and a subsidiary i.e. Arshiya Northern FTWZ Ltd (‘ANFTZ") have divested
their entire investment in one of subsidiary namely Mira Supply Chain Management Private Limited (formery known as Mira Supply
Chain Management Private Limited) ("ASCM") on 2nd January 2018 by wey of transfer of equity shares ¢ a subsidiary i.e. AIDHL, On
22nd March, 2018, AIDHL has divested its entirs shareliolding in ASCM. Pursuant to above, Rs.4,314.69 Lakh gain is accountad in
consolidated financial statement which has been considered as exceptional item during the year ended 31st March 2018,

As per provision of sub section 1 of section 203 of Companies Act, 2013 (w.e.f. 1st April, 2014), ANFL is required to appoint a Company
Secretary. However, ANFL has not complied with the said requirement and is in the process of identifying a suitable candidate for this
role.
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

During the year ended 31st March, 2018, on 23 November 2017, the Parent Company, interalia, it's subsidiaries and promoters had
executed Share Purchase Agreement of Ascendas Panvel FTWZ Limited [formerly known as Arshiya Rail Siding and Infrastructure
Limited ( "APFL’, i.e. a step-down subsidiary/' SPV")], with Ascendas Property Fund (India) Pte Lid ('Ascendas’) for salz of 100% of it's
equity holding, having Rs. 5 Lakh paid up equity capital, to Ascendas. This SPV holds the status of a co-developer

During the year ended 31st March, 2018, the Parent Company, Interalia, it's subsidiaries and promoters have executad a Lease Deed
on 3rd February 2018, in favour of a SPV of Ascendas Properly Fund (India) Pte. Limited (*Ascendas” - part of the Ascendas-
Singbridge Group, Singapora) for grant of leasehold rights of six warohouses at FTWZ Panvel, along with underlying land of those
warehouses, identified assets and infrastructure facilities on an initial lease term of 30 (thirty) years. The said transaciion s for a total
consideration of Rs. 53,400 Lakh (or Rupees Five hundred and thirty four crore), with an upfront lease payment/lump sum rent of Rs.
43,400 Lakh (or Rupees Four hundred and thirty four crore). The balance of Rs. 10,000 Lakh {(or Rupees One hundred crore) will be
received over four years from transaction closing based on certain performance milestones, Tha fransaction also envisages the terms
for construction funding by Ascendas for future growth cf the Parent Company’s business. The Parent Company already p the
requisite land for the future development.

On transaction closing date of 3rd February 2018, the SPV has acquired long-term leasehold rights from the Parent Company and the
same are leased back under an operaling lease arrangement pursuan! to execution of sub-lease deed dated 3rd February 2018 to
Arshiya Lifestyle Limited ("ALL"), a whaolly owned subsidiary of the Parent Company, for a sub-lease term of 6 (six) vears, renewable as
per mutually agreed terms, in consideration of pre-agreed rentals.

Accordingly during the year ended 31st March, 2018 the Parent Company has reduced the value of assets, granted on leasehold rights
to APFL, from its fixed assets. The gain on grant of leasshold rights to APFL amounting to Rs. 15,633.29 lakhs has been credited to the
statement of profit and loss and is disclosed as an exceptional item.

Based on the above, ALL would operate and manage these six warehouses and pay the lease rentals to APFL as defined in the sub-
lease agreement, Hence from 3rd February, 2018 onwards all revenue from these assets will be accounted by ALL. However the Parent
Company will recognize the net revenue in terms of a business conducting agreement entered into between tha Parent company and
ALL.

Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 108 — Segment Information

Primary Segment Information

The Group operates in three primary reportable business segments, i.e. ‘Frec Trade and Warehousing Zone" and “Rail Transport
Operations/Iniand Container Depot’ and "Domestic Warehousing Zone" and one geographical segrment i.e. India as per Accounting
Standard 108 ~"Segmeni Reporting”.

Segment Revenue, results, assets and liabilities
Revenue and results have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the segment

Segment assets and segment Labilities represent assets and liabilities in respective segments, Segment assats inciude all operating
assets used by the operating segment and main'y includes trade receivable, Inventories and cther recejvables. Segment liabilities
pnmarily include borrowings, trade payables and other liabiliies. Assets and liabilities which cannot be allocated to any of the segments
are shown as a part of unallocable assets and labilities,

The chief operational decision maker monitors the opereting results of its Business Segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or less ang is
measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements. Operating segment have been identified on the basis of the nature
of services.

n A:.:D;, %
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60.4 Segmental Information as at and for the year onded 31st March, 2019 is as follows:-

(Rs. in Lakh)
Year Ended Year Ended

Rarticoian 31st March 2010 31t March 2018
Segment Revenue
FTWZ 14,758.88 12,233.47
Rail Transport Operations/ICD 13,750.16 13.653.22
Domestic Warehousing 428.34 20.00
Less: Inter Segment - -
Total Revenue from Operations 28,937.38 25,906.69
Segment Results Before Tax and Interest
FTWZ 1,325.17 1.006.72
Rail Transport Operations/ICD (4,567.90) (4,289.19)
Domestic Warshausing (1.105.05) (1,458.01)
Total Segment Result (4,348.78) (4,740.48)
Less: Unaliccated Expenses net of Income 9.74 2.80
Less: Finance Costs 27,559.39 31,598.39
Less: Exceptional ltems (Net) (5,167.04) (39,473.20)
Loss before tax (26,750.87) 3,131.53
Less: Tax Expenses 6.98 27.42
Loss after tax (26,757.85) 3,104.11
Segment Assets
FTWZ 1.81,666.82 1.85,856.32
Rail Transport Operations/ICD 73,038.42 77,717.22
Domestic Warehousing 48 68263 49,852,04
Unallocated 2,092.84 2,199.05
Total 3,05,780.71 3,15,624.63
Segment Liabilities
FTWZ 11,881.34 13,267.09
Rail Transport Operations/ICD 7.,746.04 7,581.09
Domestic Warehousing 120.38 3.60
Unallocated 2.31.948.11 2,22,751.84
Total 2,51,795.87 2,43,603.62
Other Disclosures
Capital Expenditure
FTWZ 3.256.88 5.944.51
Rail Transport Operations/ICD 274.28 883.56
Domestic Warehousing 13.45 -
Unallocated - =~
Total 3,544.71 6,828.07
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
FTWZ 3,004.37 3,694.97
Rail Transport Operations/ICD 4,913.85 4,998.78
Domestic Warehousing 1,411.34 1,478.01
Unaliocated - -
Total 9,419.56 10,171.76
Non-cash Expenditure
FTWZ 300.09 85.29
|Rail Transport Operations/iCD 24.71 101.36
Domestic Warehousing = =
Unallocated s =
Total 324,80 186.55
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61 Relatod party disclosuros, as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Discl

given bolow:

() Person having significant Infiuence over the Parent Company

Mr. Ajay § Mittal — Chalrman and Managing Director
Mrs. Archana A Mittal - Joint Managing Director

() Key management personnel

Mr. Ashish Bairagra - Independent Director
Mr. Mukesh Kacker - Independent Director

Prof, G. Raghuram - Independent Director (till 15th May, 2017)

Mr. Rishabh Shah - Independent Direclor

Mr. Tara Sankar Bhattacharya - Independent Director (w.e.f. 24th May, 2018)
Ms. Savita Dalal - Company Secretary of Arshiya Limited

Mr, Sanjay Sukhram Lakkhan - Company Secretary of Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited (till 7th February, 2019)

Ms. Avani Dipakkumar Lakhani - Company Secretary of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (w.e.f. 26th March, 2018)

Mr. S. Maheshwari - Chief Financial Officer of Arshiya Limited (w.e f, Bth February, 2017) and Group President

Mr. Navnit Choudhary - Chief Financial Officer of Arshiya Northern FTWZ Limited (w.e.f. 8th February, 2017)

Mr. Dinesh kumar Sodani - Chief Financial Officer of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (w.e.f. 8th February, 2017 to 12th January,

2018)

" (IND AS-24) as

Mr. Mukesh Khathuria - Chief Financial Officer of Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited (w.e.f. 8th February, 2017 to 31st

March, 2018)

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Sodani - Chief Financial Officer of Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited (w.e.f. March 28, 2019)

Mr. Vinod Jain - Chief Financial Officer of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (till 25th March, 2018)

Mr. Amardeep Gupta - Chief Financia! Officer of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (w.e.f. 26th March, 2019)
Mr. Siddarth Kastuna - Chief Executive Cfficer of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (w.e.f. 26th March, 2019)
Mr. Amit Gupta - Chief Executive Officer of Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited (w.e.f. March 26, 2019)

(Ill) Relative of Person having significant influence over the Parent Company

Mr. Ananya Mittal — Corporate Strategy Officer

(IV) Enterprise owned or significantly influenced by key managernent personnel or thelr relatives

Rudradev Progerties Private Limited

Mega Management Services Private Limited
Welldone Software Consultancy Private Limited

Noval FTWZ Limited (formaly known as Arshiya Central FTWZ Limited)

The nature and amount of transactions with the above related parties are as follows:

Remuneration paid to Key Managerial Person

Relative of Person having significant influence over M. S. Maheshviar 20368 18515
the Group
Ms. Savita Dalal 16.61 -
Ms. Avani Dipakkumar Lakhani 0.10 -
Mr. Amardeep Gupta 0.36 -
Mr, Vined Jain 20.49 -
Mr. Siddarth Kasturia 0.95 -
Director sitting fees [Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra 1.15 2.00
Mr. Mukesh Kacker 0.40 1.80
Prof. G. Raghuram . 0.20
Mr. Rishabh Shah 040 1.75
Mr. T S Bhattacharya 0.70 -
Interest income [Noval FTWZ Limited | 0.12] 5
Q s (
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Loans and Advances taken Mr._Ajay S Mittal 788.46 3,064.09
Mrs. Archana A Mittal 1,116.14 4,260.42
Loans given | Noval FTWZ Limited it 325.00 | 2
Loans and Advances taken repaid/adjusted Mr. Ajay S Mittal 1,153,32 2,594 62
Mrs. Archana A Mittal 2,528.94 2,860.31
Rudradev Properties Private Limited - 1.00
Mega Management Services Private - 13.32
Limited
Welldone Software Consultancy - 0.19
Private Limited
Investments purchased from | Mrs. Archana A Mittal z1] 0.49
Issue of Equity Shares and Warrants Mr. Ajay S Mittal
Equity Share - 5,835.00
Share Warrants - 5,820.00
Mr. S. Maheshwari
Equity Share - §83.50
Share Warrants converted into Equity Mr. Ajay S Mittal 860.26] 4.959.75
Closing balances (Rs. in Lakh
As Bt As at
Nature Related Party 315t March, 2019 31stz‘l;l11|8rch.
Loans and Advancus taken Mr. Ajay S Mittal 1€4.89 469.75
Mrs. Archana A Mittal 55.22 1,468.01
Rudradev Properties Private Limited - 1.00
Loan given | Noval FTWZ Limited 32512 | <
Share warrants |Mr. Ajay S Mittal - 860.25
Equity Shares (excluding share premium) |Mr. 8. Maheshwari 20.00] 20.00
Mr. Ajay S Mittal 32481200 | 311,657.00
Reroal ipemmetans Waken |Mrs. Archana A Mittal 3.24,262.00 | 3,11,262.00
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Earnings per share:

Particulars . Yearended Year ended

31st March 2018 31st March 2018
Profit/(Loss) for the year (Rs. in Lakh) (26,757 85) 310411
Add: Interest adjustment on account of 0% Optionally Convertible Redeemable
Preference Shares (OCRPS) ] Rmae
Total Profit/(Loss) for the year for diluted EPS (Rs. in Lakh) (26,757 85) 4,050.43
Number of equity shares
Weighted average number of equity shares (Number) 23,80,15,279 18,31,20,902
Add: Adjustment on account of Share Warrants - 5,91,781
Add. Adjustment on account of 0% Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference| = 54,82,856
Shares (OCRPS)
Total Weighted average number of equity shares/shares warrants/OCRPS 23,80.15,273 18.91,95,538
Nominal value per share (Amount in Rs.) 200 2.00
Eamings per share — Basic and Diluted (Amount in Rs.) (11.24) 1.70

0% OCRPS and share warrants had an anti diluting effect on esaming per share hence have not been consider for the purpose of
computing dilutive eaming per share during the previous year

Taxation

The Group has not recognised any deferred tax assets on deductible tsmporary differences, unused ta losses as it is not probable that
the Group will have sufficient future taxable profit which can be avzilable against the available tax losses.

Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax aszets has baen recognised

(Rs. in Lakh)
Unabsorbed Available for utilization

Assossment Yoar Business Loss
Depreciation il
2012-2013 544,34 2,073.04 AY. 2020-2021
2013-2014 N 5,419.08 AY.2021-2022
2D14-2015 19,848.88 17.342.15 AY. 2022-2023
2015-2016 1,144 84 18,231.03 ALY. 2023-2024
2016-2017 2,414,775 14,589 27 AY. 2024-2025
2017-2018 83,302.00 14,097.35 AY.2025-2028
2018-201¢ 16,974.867 5.968 48 AY. 2026-2027
2019-2020 1.806.52 6,537.27 AY. 2027-2028
Total 1,26,039.21 84,257 65
2 Available for
Assessment Year Long term Capital Loss utilization till
2016-2017 1,668.88 AY. 2024-2025
Total 1,658.88

Deferred tax assets as at 31st March, 2019 Rs.27,429 06 Lakh (31st March, 2018 - Rs. 45 714.08 Lakh) has not been recognised, as
there is no convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the unadjusted {ax losses will be utilized by

the Group. Details of deferred tax assets are mentioned below:
(Rs. in Lakh)
As at As at

ooy 34st March, 2018 31st March, 2018
Properiy, pfant and equipment 16,991.77 17.129.21
Unabsorbed depreciation (21,908.29) (17,225.95)
Expenses allowable on payments under section 43B and 40 (a) (ia) (6,087.89) (12,538.11)
Unabsorbed losses (33,047.07) (30,844.25)
Financial Instruments 16.622 42 (2.234.98)
Total Deferred tax assets (27,428.06) (45,714.08,

Financial Risk Management

The Group's principal financial liebilites comprises of borrowings, trade and other peyables and financial guarantees contracts. The
main purpese of these financial liabilities is to manage for the Group's operations. The Group's financial assets comprises of trade and
other receivables, cash and deposits that arises directly from its operations,

The Group's aclivities expose it fo varety of financial risks including credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Group's risks
management assessment, management and processes are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Group to set up
appropriaie risks imits and controls, and to menitor such risks and compliances with the same. Risks ment and m gement
policies and processes are reviewed ragularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's acfivities.
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Risk Exposure ariging from Measurement Management
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents,|Ageing analysis Regular reviaw of credit
trade receivables, financial limits

instruments, financial assels!
measured at amortised cost

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other|Roliing cash  fiow|Availability of borrowing
!liabiﬁties forecasts facilities
Market nisk — foreign exchange Recognised financial assets| Seasitivity analysis Unhedged
and llabilties not
deneminated in Indian rupee
(INR)
Market risk — interest rate Long-term  borrowings  at|Sensitivity analysis Unhedged
variable rates

The Group's risk management is carried out by a corporate finance team under tha policies approved by the Board of Directors. The

Board provides written principles for overall risk management as well as policies covering specific areas, such as credit risk, interest rate
risk

Credit Risk
The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is risk that counterparty will default on s contractual obligation resulting in a financial loss to

the Group. Credd risk arises from cash and cash equivalents as wall as credit exposures to trade customers including outstanding
receivables.

Trade recoivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue eamed from customers located in India, Credit risk has always
been managed by the Group through continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Group grants credit terms
in the normal course of business. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. Credit risk is high as only few customers'
account for majority of the revenue in the year presented. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Group uses expected credit loss
model to assess the impairment loss or gain.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the nisk that the Group may not be able fo meet its financial obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The
Group's objective is to, at all times; maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral raguireinsnts. The Group limits its
liquidity risk by ensuring regular monitoring of funds from irade and other receivables. The Group relies an a:zets light businass model
through monetization of assets and tie-up of construction funding and operating cash flows to meet its ne=ds i fLids.

The table below provides undiscounted cash flows towards financial liabilities into relevant maturity based or iri2 remaining period at the
balance sheet to the contractual maturity date.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities (Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars _less than 1 year 1to 8 years More than 5 year
31st March, 2019
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 56,154.61 1,265,473.26 -
OCRPS (Equity and Liability Component) - 1,200.00 -
Trade payables 2,579.26 - -
Creditors for Capitel Goods 7,228.05 - -
Financial guarantee obligations 10.55 - -
Other financial liabilities 51,963.13 612.11 =
Total 1,17,965.60 1,28,285.37 -

31st March, 2018
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 50,179.38 1.31,491.71 -
OCRPS (Equity and Liability Component) - - 58,846.19
Trade payables 1.787.79 - -
Creditors for Capital Goods §,422.54 - <
Financial guarantee obligations - 224.03 -
Other financial liabilities 35,105.55 2,076.73 -

Total 95,505‘,26 1,33,792.47 58,846.19
Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flow of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of volatility of prices in the
financial markets. Marke! risk can be further segregated as: 1) Foreign currency risk and 2) Interest rate risk

3
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Foreign currency risk

Foraign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow or an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group's operating

activities
Foreign currency risk exposure
Details of foreign currency transactions/ balances not hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise are as under:
Foreign currency Equivalentamount
Particulars Financial Year Ended amount in INR
(Amount in Lakh) (Rs. in Lakh)
Bank balances
31st March, 2019 - p3
Yso 31st March, 2018 0.13 8.56
Trade receivables
usD 31st March, 2019 45,09 3,207.35
31st March, 2018 23.62 1.903.03
J1st March, 2019 - .
QAR 31st March, 2018 0,04 0.78
EUR 31zt March, 2019 0.41 28.39
31st March, 2018 0.47 36 85
Security Deposit from customers
USsD J1st March, 2019 6.20 428 85
31st March, 2018 5.61 3560.71
EUR 31st March, 2019 0.02 1.35
31st March, 2018 0.03 272
31st March, 2019 0.38 665
AED 31st March, 2018 - -
Advance from customers
uso 31stMarch, 2019 0.35 2645
31st March, 2018 0.53 34.01
EUR 31st March, 2019 0.0003 0.02
31st March, 2018 - -
Sensitivity
The Sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rate arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments.
(Rs. In Lakh)
Increasel(decrease) In profit before tax
Particulars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
FX rate - increase by 1% on closing rate of reporting 27.78 15.82
date
FX rate - (decrease) by 1% on closing rate of (27.79) {15.52)
reporting date

The above amounts have been disciosad based on the accounting policy for exchiange differences,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of & tinancial instrument will fiuctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Majority of the Group's borrowings is fixed rate borrawings carried at amortised cost, therefore not subject to interest rate
risk as defined in IND AS - 107, since neilher camying amount nor the future cash flows will fiuctuale because of a change in market
interes! rates. The Group's Interest rate risk arises from long term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The Group's borrowings at the variable rate were mainly denoininated in Rupees.

| t rate risk exp e

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as lollows:
(Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars | 31stMarch, 2019 | 31stMarch, 2018

Variable rate borrowing | 20,750.82 | 22.790.49

Sensitivity of Interest
Profit or loss s sensitive to higherlower interest expenses from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates
(Rs. in Lakh)

Increasa/(decrease) in profit before tax
Particulars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 _ |
50 bps increase the profit before tax by (103.75) (113.95)
50 bps decrease the profit before tax by 103.75 113.95
/ -
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65 Fair Value Moasurements

(i) _Financial Instruments by Catego (Rs. in Lakh)
' TN Jiied 64 | lidests CatT fue . ..
P |7 3atMarch; [ ‘31st March,
’ : A (- Al z018
Financial Assots
Amortised cost
Trade Receivables 4,266.17 2,742.67 4,266.17 274267
Cash and Cash Equivalents 990.56 1,285.84 990.56 1,285.84
Other Bank Balances 401.38 498.54 401.38 498 54
Loan 325.12 - 325.12 =
Security Deposits 5,041.28 11,151.18 5,041.28 11,151.19
Other Financial Assets 5,625.38 3,385.69 5.625.38 3,385.69
Total 16,649.88 19,063.93 16,649.89 19,063.93
Financial Liabilities
Amortised cost
Borrowings 1.82,307.29 1.90,215.83 1.82,307.29 1,90.215.83
Trade Payables 2,579.26 1.797.79 2.,579.26 1.797.79
Creditors for Capital Goods 7.228.05 8,422 54 7.228.05 842254
Security Deposits 1,288.53 1.296.53 1.288.53 1.296.53
Other financial liabilities 51,327.26 36,108.78 51,327.26 36,109.78
Total 2,44,730.39 2,37,842.47 2,44,730.39 2,37,84247

(i) Falr Valuation techniquas used to deterriine fair value
The Group maintains procedures to value financial assels or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data
available. The fair vaiues of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell
an assel or paid to transfer a liab'lity in an orderly fransaction between market participants at the measurement date

The following methods and assumptions were used fo estimate the fair values:

{a) The Group assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, trade payables, and other
current financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of

these instruments.

(b) The fair values for security deposits and other financial liabilities were calculated based on cash flows discaunted
using a current lending rate. They are classified as leve! 3 fair values in the Fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of
unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.

(¢]

<2

The fair values of non current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They

are classified as level 3 fair values In the fair value hierarchy duc to the use of unobservable inputs, including own

credit risk.

(i) Fair¢ value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments
that are recognised and measure at fair value. To previde an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determing fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the

accounting standard.

(a) Levcl 1 - Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

(b) Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, fraded bonds,
over the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
Instrument are observable, the Instruiment is Included in level 2.

(c) Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on abservable market data, the instrument is included
in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity shares, contingent consideration and indemnification assets included in

level 3.

g
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Capital Management

For the Group's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Group's ability to continue going concern in order to provide the
retum to shareholders and benefit to other stakeholders and to maintain an optional capital structure Lo reduce the cost of capital, capital
includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves atinbutable to the equity holders of the Group.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, retum
capital to sharehclders or issue new shares (if permitted), The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is debts divided by
total equity.

As stated in Notes to accounts, the Group is alse haying scheme of arrangements to rearganize the capital structure,

(Rs. in Lakh)
As at As at
FRiicry 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Total Debls 2,31.919.33 2.22.733 08
Total Equity 53,465.75 71,501.92
Total debt to equity ratio (Gearing ratio) 4.34 3.12
Notes:-

Debt s defined as long term and short tarm borrowings including current matunties of borrowings and interest accrued.
Total equily (as shown in balance sheet) includes issued capital and zll other equity.

Debt Covenants
Under the terms of Restructuring Agraement (RA), the Group is required to comply with following financial covenants;

Withaut prior approval of lender, the Group shall not
Loans, debenture & charge - Issue or subscrbae fo any debentures, shares, raise any loans, deposit from public, issue equity or
preference capital, change its capital structure or create any charge on its assets including its cash flow or give any guarantzes.

Dividend on equity sh - declare/pay dividend on equity shares unless otherwise approved by the Lender/Business Monitoring
Committee In accordance with the provisions of RA.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the cagital management, amongst other thing, aims to ensure that it mests financial covenants
attached to the interest bearing Loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements, there have been breaches in the
financial covenants of Interest bearing lcans and borrowing in the current period and previous period.

The Parent Cempany has not proposed any dividend in last three yaar in view of losses incurred
Revenue from contracts with customers (IND AS 115)

The Group disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by type of products and services, gengraphy and timing of revenue
recognition.

Revenue disaggregation by type of services is given note no. 29.

Revenue disaggregation by geography is as follows:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Geography Year Ended Year Ended
31stMarch, 2019 31st March, 2018
India 28,813.71 25.868.69
Outside India 1B.67 38,00
Total 28,937.38 25,906.69
Revenue disaggregation by timing of revenue recegnition is as follows:
(Rs. in Lakhs
Geography Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Services transferred cver time 28,937.38 25,906.69
Total 28,937.38 25,906.69
Tr ion Price all dtor ining performance obligations:

The aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the parformance obligations that are to be satisfied as of 31st March, 2019
amounts to Rs. 7,109,59 Lakh as per Lease deed. The remaining performance obligation are affected by several factors including
Panvel storage revenue, cash flaw cover, collections within 90 days or mutually agreed. The management of the Parent Company
expects that 35% of the unsatisfied performance obligation will be recognised as revenue during tho next reporting period ameunting 1o

Rs. 2,500.00 Lakh with balance in future two reporting periods thereafter.

148



(b)

Arshiya Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Transitional Provision - IND AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customer

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on 28th March, 2018 notified Ind AS 115 "Revenue from confracts with customers” as part of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 and the same s sffective for accounting period beginning on or
after 1st April, 2018. The Group has applied modified retrospective approach in adopting the new standard and accordingly, the revenue
from operations for the year ended 31st March, 2019 is not comparable with the previous yeer, As & results of change in accounting
policies, adjustments to the transition provision has been made in respective item as at 1st April, 2018 with corresponding Impact to
equity. Details of changes made in item along with equity have given in below fable.

Particulars Rs. in Lakh
Other Financials assets
Unbilled Revenue 390.41
Net Impact on other equity (Increase) 390.41

The Group's borrowings have been assigned by bankers to an ARC / restructured with banks under CDR Package and restruciured with
NBFC. Certain lenders had invoked the CDR package. The ARC / COR Lenders and NBFC have charged penal interest/ additional
interesV/ interest amounting to Rs. 2,599.23 lakh upto the year ended March 31, 2018, which was not accepted by the Group and hence
is under negotiation. In light of audit qualifications in previous year as a matter of prudence, the Group hes reccgnised the said
intarest/penal inferest and has accardingly restated the finance cost and other consequential impacts in the year ended March 31, 2018.

Above amount include additional interest amounting to Rs. £55.89 lakhs which is pertaining to period upta 31st March, 2017, Therefore
this is adjusted in retained earning as on 1st April, 2017. Due 1o this reported figure of opening other Equity was Rs. 28,977.19 lakh and
now restated figure of opening cther Equity is Rs. 28,321.30 lakhs.

Further, during the year ended March 31, 2018 reported figure of finance cost, other Equity and Interast accrued and due on borrowings
was Rs. 28,655.06 lakh, Rs. 69 14640 lakh and Rs. 25,348.69 lakh respectively. Restated figures of finance cost, other equity and
Interest accrued and due on Borrowings are Rs.31,598.39 lakh, Rs. 66,937.58 lakh and Rs.27,947.92 lakh respectively. Earning Per
Share (EPS) also recalculated based cn the restated figures.
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71

Arshiya Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

The Group has sent request letters/ emails to verious Parties for confirmations of balances under borrowings, trade receivables and

capital advances given to vendors and frade payables efc., to which only few parties have responded. Accordingly, impact of
adjustment, if any, will ba accounted as anc when the same is determinable or accounts are reconciled/settied.

Pravious year's figures have been ragrouped [ restated / rearranged wherever necessary.

Signatures to Notes forming par of Financial Statemants

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshiya Limited
Firm Regnftrahon Number 101720WIW100355

1C/’41 } *w\/\\ - b

Vijay Napawaliya Ajay S Mittal Archana A Mittal
Pariner Chairman and Managing Director Joint Managing Director
Membership Number: 109859 DIN: 00226355 /. DIN: 00703208
3 /
/
“‘/ \ Ashishf@mar Bairagra /7 s. Maheshwari
\ Independent Director /" Chief Financial Officer
:C ’ LY o Al ‘, \' DIN: 00049591 { and Group President
" \ > / \ m
N [\ TDcodow
\\’/\ll g \ f —
Place: Mumbai D RV alal Dinesh Kumar Sodani
Date: 27th May, 2019 = Comdany Sacretary VP - Accounts & Finance
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\RSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
JALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019

ANNEXURE-I-II

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 5 44,322.37 47.856.82
{c] Intangtble Assets 3 2,825.28 3,223.16
(d) Financlal Assets
{i) Other Financial Assets 7 663,64 818.60
{e) Other Non-Current Assets 8 1,335.26 1,227.72
49,146.55 53,126.30
 Current assets .
(a) Inventories 9 - 15.66
(b} Financial Assets
{1) Trade Recelvables 10 1,323.33 ' 666.59
(it} Cash and Cash Equivalents 1 120.24 37535
{in} Bank Balances Other than {Il) above 12 267.30 386.16
{iv) Other Financial Assets 13 322.37 348.59
{c) Other Current Assets 14 133,81 308.46
2,167.05 2,100.81
TOTAL ASSETS 51,313.60 55,227.11
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES '
Equity
{a) Equity Share capital 15 4,238.44 4,238.44
(b) Other Equity 16 (18,187.13) {14,073.62)
{13,958.69) (9,835.18)
Liabllities v &
Non Current Llabilities i
{a} Financial Liabilitles T
(i} Borrowings 17 31,902.67 33,533.04
{b} Provisions 18 120.52 ~18%2
(c} Other Non-Current UabHities 19 1,632,232 1,723.69
33,655.51 35278.15
Current Liabllitles i
{a) Financial Llabifities
(i) Borrowings 20 304,38 2,029.26
{ii) Trade Payables 21
(A) Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 15.77 5.24
[B)Total outstanding dues of creditors Other than Micre and £
Small Enterprises 1.307.44 620.88
{iil) Other Financial Liabllities 22 28,103.68 25,206:84
(b) Other Current Uabllities 23 1,874.90 1,918.23
{c) Provisions 24 10.61 3.59
51,616.78 29,784.14
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES ELBIS.EU 55,227.11
Nates to the financlal statements 157
As per our Report of even date r
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of =,
Chartered Accauntants Arshiya Rall Infrastructure timited /’-{{ﬂf ,‘9:3,‘2-':\
Firm Reglstration Number 101720W/W100355 Josm T TNE A
ﬂ,\l‘%f I ?:c__.—: [RETE L]
S\ \_SK 1 a0y
Vijay Napawallya Ajay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary -
Partner Director Director
Membership Number. 109859 0 DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576
\,‘
Place : Mumbai Am upta paklumar Lakhani

Date: May 27, 2019

Chlef Financial Officer Company Secretary
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ISHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
'ATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

ICOME
Revenue from operations 25 13,614.83 13,598.32
Other income 26 £641.87 1,459.39
otal Income (1) : 14,256.70 15,057.71
MPENSES
Cost of operations 27 11,400.27 11,507.38
Employee benefits expenses 28 1,121.91 B26.79
Flnance costs 29 7,015.57 8,018.94
Depreciation and amortization expenses 30 4,099,64 4,130.61
Other expenses 31 1,253.59 895.48
Total Expenses (11} 24,890.98 25,379.20
Loss before exceptional items and tax (1-1) {10,634.28} {10,321.49}
Exceptional items {Net) 32 {6,475.16) 424.26
;Loss before tax {4,159.12) {10,745.75)
Tax expense: 45

Current tax . .

Deferred tax .

Loss for the year {4,159.12) {10,745.75)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {OC1}
Item not to be raclassified to profit and loss :

Remeasurement of gains/ {losses) on defined benefit plans 37 {24.39) 7.19
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR {4,183.51}) {10,738.56)
Earnings per Equity shares (Face Value Rupees 10 each) 33
Basic/ Diluted earnings per share {In Rupees) {9.81) {25.35)
Notes to the financlal statements 1-57

As per our Report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 101720W/W100355

For and on babalf of Board of Directors of
Arshlya Rail Infrastructure Limited

Al
\/Jj S (a0 'y Qoo
Vijay Napawallya Ajay $ Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner Director Director
Membership Number, 109859 DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2019

S Y
(J
Rvani Dipa ar Lakhani

Company Secretary
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

. Equity Share Capital (Refer Note 15)

As at April 1,2017
Equity Shares
Issue of equity share during the year

Rupees in lakhs

ey

4,238.44

As at March 31, 2018

4,238.44

Equity Shares
Issue of equity share durlng the year

4,238.44

As at March 31, 2019

4,238.44

3 Other Equity (Refer Note 16)

" {3,330.44)

Asat Aprll1,2017 38,123.31 | {43,189.57)| 1,564.45

Loss for the year - {10,745.75) - - {10,745.75)
Other comprehensive income - 7.19 - - 7.19
Total comprehensive income for the year - {10,738.56) - - {10,738.56)
Falr valuation of financial guarantees given - (4.62) - . (4.62)
As at March 31, 2018 38,123.31 (53,932.75) 1,564.45 171.37 (14,073.62)
Loss for the year - {4,159.12) - . {4,159.12)
Other comprehenshve income - {24.39) - - {24.39)
Total comprehensive income for the year - {4,183.51) . - {4,183.51)
Fair valuation of financial guaraptees given - - 60.00 - 60.00
As at March 31, 2019 38,123.31 {58,116.26) 1,624.45 171.37 {18,197.13)
Notes to the financlal statements 1-57

As per our Report of even date

For Chaturved! & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 101720W/W100355

Vijay Napawallya
Partner
Membership Number. 109859

Place : Mumbal
Date: May 27, 2019

:‘HW\\V*'N

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited

O
R

Alay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Director Director

DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Amard upta Avani Dipakkumar Lakhani
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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SHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
sh Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

iSH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
58 for the year before tax (4,159.12)
Jjustmants for :
spreclation and amortizatlon expenses 4,099.64 4,130.61
terest income (21.109 {29.38)
15 on sale/dlscarded Property, plant and equipment _ 182.79
ain on sale of investment . (5.00}
andry Balances Written Back [net) {245.67) (614.58)
nance Expense 7,015.57 8,018.94
ad Debts Wrltten off - 101.36
sttlerment of Claims {6,475.,16) 302.54
Inwinding of Interest on loan to related party - {476.14)
air value of financial Instruments (5.76) {128)
iovernment grant = incorme (365.49) (355.49)
‘inancial Guarantee Income {3.85) (0.77)
wdvance rent 6,13 1.45
JPERATING PROFIT / [LOSS) BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES {154.81) 499,35 |
\djustments for
‘rade & other payables 640.92 {817.42)
nventaries 15.66 0.07
Irade & other recelvables (483.73) 1,532,56
“ASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 18.04 1,214,56
Jirect Tax (Pald)/ Refunds 113.22) 24,58
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Total (A) 195,18 1,239.14 |
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (167.78) {295.31)
Purchase of Intanglble assets - (500.00)
Purchase of Invastment (77.69) -
Proceeds from Sale of Investment 196.55 31.85
Proceeds from Sale of Praperty, Plant and Equipment 047 -
[nterest Income 21,10 29.38
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Total (8) 527.351 {734.08)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowlngs - Non current 2,960.00 3,220.74
Repayment of borrowings - Non current {1,060.00) {3,756.60)
Borrowing - current {Net} {1,788.58) 1,402.08
Interest pald on borrowings (244.00) (1,172.85)
 NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Total [C) {132.58) [306.63]
I
Net Increase/{Decrease) In cash and cash equivalents (A+8+C) {255.11) 198.43
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 375.35 176.92
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 120.24 375.35
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 120.24 375,35
“*Note:- Changes in liabiities arising from financing activities ;
Particulars March 31, 2018 Cash flow INDAS Impact Cther not cash March 31, 2019
Long term borrowing {Refer Note no. 17 & 23} _42,469.34 1,900.00 144.94 996,38 43,517.50
| Short term borrowing (Refer Nate no. 20) 2,029.26 {1,788.58 63.70 - 304.33
Notes to the financlal statemants 1-57

As per our Report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 101720W,/W 100355
.

Vel o L S\

Vijay Napawaihya Afay S Mittal
Partner Director
DIN : 00226355

Membership Number, 109859

Place : Mumbal
Date: May 27, 2019

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Arshiya Rall Infrastructure Limited

Nawvnlt Choudhary
Director
DIN : 00613576

<{ .. e
st opuwmeat L5
(B MR

Avani Dipakkumar Lakhan!

Company Secretary
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3.1

3.2

a3

ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

CORPORATE INFORMATION:
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited {CIN : U93000MH2008PLC180907) Is 3 public company domiciled in India and Is Incorporated on April 7, 2008 under

the provisions of the Companles Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company s located at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate
FBlock, Dr. Annle Besant Road, Worli, Mumbal- 400 018. '

Arshlya Rall Infrastructure Limited (ARIL) Is a subsidiary of Arshiya Limited (AL} AL is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange. In
Aprll 2008, AL acquired a Category-l license to operate a pan-indla rail loglstic service, giving rise to ARIL. ARIL is a specialized entity of AL, offering
unprecedented rall Infrastructure, including private modern rakes, customlzed contalners, Private Frelght Terminal {PFT), pan-india netwark and
superior connectlvity. The company 1s engaged in Private Container Train Operator (PCTO) business and Is helding Category-l license which allows the
company to operate on Indian Rall network on pan Indla basls both Domestic and Exim Trafflc. ARIL's unique offering provide unparalleled efficiencies
with capabllity of large scale evacuation of cargo from Ports, Domestic Distriparks, Free Trade and Warehousing Zones , Inland Container Depot (ICD}
and customer Sidings.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2019 were approved and adopted by board of directors in their meeting held
on 27th May 2019,

BASIS OF PREPARATION:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies
{indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™).

The Company prepared Its financlal statements in accordance the Indian Accounting Standards {IND AS) are notifled under the section 133 of the
Companles Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts} Rules, 2014 {Indian GAAP),

The financlal statements have heen prepared on a historical cost convention, except for certain financlal assets and liabilities, which are measured at
falr value/ amortised cost,

The financlal statements are presented in indlan Rupees (Rs.}, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency and all values are rounded
to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND JUDGEMENT:

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are camied at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes purchase
price, barrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to the bringing the assets to its working condition for its Intended use.

Depreclation on the property, plant and equipment Is provided using straight line method over the useful life of assets as specified in schedule Il to the
Companles Act, 2013, Depreclation on property, plant and equipment which are added / disposed off durlng the year, Is provided on pro-rata basis
with reference to the date of addition / deletlon. Freehold land is not depreclated and under the previous GAAP land was revalued,

The asset's residual values, useful lives and method of depreclation are reviewed at each financial year end and are adjusted prospectively, I
appropriate. '

Capltal work-in-progress Includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under development as at the balance sheet date.

Leasehold Improvements are depreciated over the period of lease.
Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from financlal statement, elther on disposal or when retired from active use, Profits / losses arlsing in
the case of retirement / disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year of occurrence.

The Company has opted to continue with the carrying values of all of Its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the indian GAAP financlal
statements as deemed cost at the transition date l.e. April 1, 2016.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are carrled at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, If any. Cost includes expenditure that Is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the Intangible assets.

\dentifiable Intangible assets are recognlsed when it Is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the
cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Railways License fees is amortised over a period of twenty years being the license perlod as per agreement,

Computer softwares are capitalised at the amounts pald to acquire the respective license for use and are amortised over the period of five years. The
assets’ useful lves are reviewed at each financial year end, .

Galns or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The Company has opted to continue with the carrying values of all of its intangible assets as recognised In the Indlan GAAP financlal statements as
deemed cost at the transition date i.e. April 1, 2016.

Leases:
A lease Is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an gperating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to gwnership to the Company |s classified as a finance lease.
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(a)

{b}

(a)

(b}

34

3.5

3.6

3.7

ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

The Company as a lessee

Finance lease

Assets acquired under finance lease are capltallzed and the corresponding lease Mablilty Is recognised at lower of the fair value of the leased assets and
the presant value of minimum lease payments at the Inception of the lease. initial costs directly attributable to lease are recognised with the asset
under lease.

Operating lease
Lease of assets under which all risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classifled as operating lease. Lease payments
under operating lease are recognised as expenses on accrual basls In accordance with the respective lease agreements.

The Company as a lessor

Finance lgase

when assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments is recognised as a receivable, The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable ls recognised as unearned finance Income. Lease Income Is recognised over the
term of the lease using the net investment method before tax, which reflects a constant perlodic rate of return.

The lessor derecognises the leased assets and recognises the difference betwean the carrying amount of the leased assets and the finance lease
recelvable In the statement of Profit and Loss when recognising the finance lease receivable.

Operating lease
Rental Income from operating leases Is recognised In the statement of profit and loss on a stralght line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern In which economic benefits from the leased assets Is diminished.

Initial Indirect costs Incurred in negotiating and arranging as operating lease are added to carrying value of the leased asset and recognised on :
straight line basls over the lease term.

inventories:
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cast of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the Inventories to their respective present locatlon and condition. Cost is computed on the First in fivst out basls.

Cash and cash equivalants:
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term depeslts with an original maturity of three month:
of less, which are subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net o
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are consldered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Impalrment of assets:

An asset Is considered as impaired when at the date of Balance Sheet, there are indications of impairment and the carrying amount of the asset, o
where applicable, the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount {i.e. the higher of the net asset selling price anc
value in use).The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the reduction s recognized as an Impairment loss In the statement o
profit and loss. The impairment loss recognized in the prier accounting period Is reversed If there has been a change in the estimate of recoverabli
amount. Post Impalrment, depreclation is provided on the revised carrying value of the impalred asset over Its remaining useful life.

Finandial instruments — Initial recognition, subsequent measurement and Impairment:
A financial Instrument Is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financlal llability or equity instrument of ancther entity.

Financlal assets -Inftlal recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are initlally recognized at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or Issue of flnanclal assets
which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. Financlal assets are classifled, at Initial recognitior
as financial assets measured at fair vatue or as financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Financial assets - Subsequent measurement:

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:-
a) Financlal assets at fair value

b} Financial assets at amortlsed cast
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A financial asset that meets the following two conditions Is measured at amortisad cost (net of any write down for impairment) unless the asset is
designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

a} Business model test: The objective of the Company's business modei Is to hold the financial asset to coliect the contractual cash flow.
b} Cash flow charactesistics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash fiow that are solely payments of
principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income unless the asset is designated
at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

a) Business model test: The financial asset Is held within a business model whose objective Is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flow and
selling financial assets.

b} Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset glve rise on specifled dates to cash flow that are solely payments of
principal and Interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

Ali other financial asset Is measured at falr value through profit or loss.

Financlal assets - Equity Investment in subsidiarles
The Company has accounted for ts equity investment in subsidlaries at cost.

Financial assets - Darecognition

A financlal assets (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised [L.e. removed
from the Company's statement of financial position) when:

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have explred, or
b) The Company has transferred its rights to recelve cash flaw from the asset,

Financlal Rabilities - Initial recognition and measurement:
The financial llabilities are recognised initlally at fair value and, In the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Fnandal lishilitles - Subsequent measurement:
Financial fiabilitles are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one
year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts are approximate at their falr value due to the short maturty of these instruments.

Financlal Liabliitles - Financial Guarantee contracts:

Fnancial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for 2 loss it incurs
because the specified debtor falls to make a payment when due In accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised Initlally as a liabllity at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the Habllity is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined and the amount recognised less cumulative
amortisation.

Financial Liabifities - Derecognition:

A financlal liabillty is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or explres. When an existing financlal liability is
replaced by another, from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new llabllity, The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

Compound instruments

An issued financlal instrument that comprises of both the llabllity and equity components are accounted as compound financial instruments. The fair
value of the llability component Is separated from the compound Instrument and the residual value is recognised as equity component of other
financial instrument. The liability component is subsequently measured at amortised cost, whereas the equity component Is not remeasured after
initial recognition. The transaction costs related to compound Instruments are allocated to the liability and equity components in the propartion to the
allocation of gross proceads. Transaction costs related to equity companent is recoghised directly in equity and the cost related to liability component
Isincluded in the carrying amount of the liability companent and amortised using effective interest method.
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Provisions, Contingent Liabllities, Contingent Assets and Commitments:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. It is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money Is material, provisions are discounted using equivalent period govemment securities interest rate.
Unwindlng of the discount is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent liabilitles are disclosed when there s a possible obligation arlsing from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-accurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where it s either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a rellable estimate of the amount cannot be
made. Information on contingent {labllity ls disclosed In the Notes to the Financial Statements. However, when the realisation of Income Is virtually
certaln, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, but it Is recognised as an asset.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of goods {equipment) or rendering of services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects to recelve in exchange for those goods or services.

Income from services is recognized upon completion of services as per the terms of contracts with the customers.
Revenue Is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, price concesslons and Incentives, If any, as specified in the contract
with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers. ’

Amounts bllled for services In accordance with contractual terms but where revenue is not recognized, have been classifled as unearned revenue and
disclosed under current liabliities

Contract assets are recognized when there Is excess of revenue earned over blllings on contracts. Contract assets are classified as unbllled recelvables
{only act of involcing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time Is required, as per contractual terms.
Unearned revenue {“contract llabllity®) Is recognized when there is billing in excess of revenues.

Revenue Is measured at the amount of consideration which the company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring distinct goods or
services 1o a customer as specified in the contract, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties {for example taxes and dutles collected on
behalf of the government). Consideration is generally due upon satisfaction of performance obligations and a recelvable is recognized when it
becomes unconditional.

Revenue fron sale of services e.g rail freight Income recognised as per the terms of contracts with customers based on stage of completion when the
outcome of the transactions involving rendering of services can be estimated reliably. For Fixed-price contract, revenue is recognised based on the
actual service provided to the end of the reporting perlod as a proportion of the total services to provided (Percentage of completion method)

Measement of revenue : Estimates of revenues, cost or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change.Any resulting
increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period In which the circumstances that give rise to the
revision become known by management.

Revenue from handling and other ancillary services is recognised at the time of rendering of service which is at the time of loading/unloading of
container/cargo.

Contract balances
Trade receivables
A recelvable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

Contract liabllities

A contract liability Is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration {or an amount of
conslderation is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability Is recognised when the payment is made. Contract llabllitles are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Interest Income:

Interest Income from a financial asset is recognised when it Is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective Interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash recelpts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend Income:
Dividend Income Is recognised when the right to recelve the payment is established.
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Forelgn currency relnstatement and translation:

Transactions in foreign currencles are initially recorded by the Company at rates prevalling at the date of the transaction. Subsequently monetary
Items are translated at closing exchange rates as on balance sheet date and the resulting exchange difference recognised in statement of profit and
loss. Differences arising on settlement of monetary items are also recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured In terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transaction. Non-monetary items carried at falr value that are denominated in foreign currencles are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on transtation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (Le., translation differences on Items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OC! or profit or loss, respectively).

Forelgn exchange differences regarded as an ad)ustment to borrowing costs are presented In the statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All
other finance galns / losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis.

Employee 8enefits:
Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss of the year in which the related services are rendered.

Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to Provident Fund, a defined contribution plan, is made In accordance with the statute, and Is recognised as an expense in the year in
which employees have rendered services.

Defined Benefit Plan

Leave encashment belng a defined benefit plan Is accounted for using the projected unit credit method, on the basis of actuarlal valuations carrled out
by third party actuarles at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarlal gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptlons are charged or credited to other comprehensive income In the year in which they arise. Other costs are accounted in statement of profit
and loss.

The cost of providing gratulty, a defined benefit plans, is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, on the basls of actuarial valuations
carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date, Actuarlal gains and losses arlsing from experlence adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to other comprehensive income in the perled In which they arise. Other costs are accounted in statement of
profit and loss.

Remeasurements of defined benefit plan in respect of post employment and other long term benefits are charged to the other comprehensive income
in the year In which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Taxes on Income:

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax {including MAT and income tax for earlier years) and deferred tax . Tax is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to Items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in such cases the
tax Is also recognised directly in equity or In other comprehensive Income. Any subsequent change In direct tax on items initially recognised in equity
or other comprehenslve Income Is also recognised in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax pravision Is computed for income calculated after considering allowances and exemptlons under the provisions of the applicable Income
Tax Laws. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are off set, and presented as net.

Deferred tax Is recognised on dlfferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitles in the Balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances to the extent that it Is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilitles are measured at the applicable tax rates. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits wili be avallable against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Credit of MAT is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal Income tax during
the specified perlod, i.e., the period for which MAT credit Is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be
recognised as an asset, the sald asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The
Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no
longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal Income tax during the specified perlod.
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Borrowing Costs:

Barrowlng costs specifically relating to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets that necessarily takes a substantlal period of time 1o get
ready for Its Intended use are capitalized (net of Income on temporarily deployment of funds) as part of the cost of such assets. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that the Company incurs In connection with the borrowing of funds. For general borrowlng used for the purpose of
obtzining a gualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eliglble for capitalization is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Company that
are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtalning a qualifylng asset. The amount of bormowing
costs capitalized during a period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that period. All other borrowlng costs are expensed in
the period In which they occur.

Earnings per share:

Baslc earnings per share |s computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders’ and welghted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted eamings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders’ and weighted average number of equity and
potentlal equity shares outstanding during the year including share options, convertible preference shares and debentures, except where the result
would be anti-dilutive, Potential equity shares that are converted during the year are included In the calculation of diluted earnings per share, from the
beginning of the year or date of issuance of such potential equity shares, to the date of conversion,

Current and non-cusrent classification:

The Comparty presants assets and fiabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-current classification.

The Company has presented non-current assets and current assets before equity, non-current llabilities and current liabllitles in accordance with
Schedule 1I, Division 11 of Companies Act, 2013,

An asset |s dlassified as current when it Is:

a} Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed In normal operating cycle,

b} Heid primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting perlod, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from belng exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All gther assets are classified as non-current.

A llability is classified as current when It is:

a) Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

b} Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) There Is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liabllity for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilitles are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle Is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their reallsation in cash or cash equivalents. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities, The Company has identified twelve manths as Its normal operating cycle.

Falr value measurement:

The Company measures financial Instruments at falr value at each balance sheet date.

Falr value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liabllity takes place
elther:

a} In the princlpal market for the asset or llability, or

b} In the absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or llabillty.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate ecanomic benefits by using the asset in
Its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficlent data are available to measure fair value,
maximlzing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable Inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which falr value is measured or disclosed In the financial statements are categorized within the falr value hierarchy.

Ofi-setting financial Instrument:

Financlal assets and liabllities are offset and the net amount Is reported In the balance sheet where there Is a legally enforceable rights to offset the

recognised amounts and there Is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liabllity simultaneously. The legally enforceable

rights must nat be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and In the event of default, Insolvency or
perathe Company or counterparty.

163



318

3,19

3.20

321

.22

4.1

4.2

43

4.4

ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Gavernmant Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at thelr fair value where there Is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the company
will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income.

Gavernment grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-currant llabilitles as deferred Income and are
credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis aver the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other Income.

Segmant Reporting - identification of Segments

An operating segment Is a compenent of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses, whose
operating results are regularly reviewed by the company’s chief operating declslon maker to make decisions for which discrete financial information is
available. Based on the management approach as defined In Ind AS 108, the chief operating decision maker evaluates the Company’s performance and
allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance Indicators by business segments and geographic segments.

Contributed Equity
Equity Shares are classified as equity, Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as deduction
net of tax from the proceeds. !

Cash flow statemant

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any
deferrals or accruals of past or future cash recelpts or payments, The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Campany are
segregated based on the avallable information.

Dividend Distribution

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a llability in the period In which the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any
interim dividend paid s recognised on approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable and correspanding tax on dividend distribution is recognised
directly In other equity.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS:

The preparation of the financlal statements requires management to make judgements, estimatas and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabllities, and the accompanylng disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilltles. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or llabilities affected in future
periods. The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertalnty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrylng amounts of assets and [labilities within the next financlal year, are described below. The Company
based on its assumptlons and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arlsing that are beyond the contrel of the Company.
Such changes are refiected in the assumptions when they occur.

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets:

Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful fives and residuai values as per schedule Il of the Companles Act, 2013 or are based on the Company’s
historical experience with similar assets and taking into account anticipated technological changes, whichever is more appropriate.

Income Tax:
The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used In estimates may differ from actual
outcome which could lead to an adjustment to the amounts reported In the financlal statements.

Contingencles:
Management has estimated the possible outflow of resources at the end of each annual reporting financial year, if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Impairment of financlal assets:

The Impairment provislans for financlal assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss. The Company uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the Inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each raporting period.
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Impalrment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be Impaired. If any indlcation exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset Is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount Is the higher of an
asset’s or Cash Generating Units {CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an Individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent to those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the camrying amount of an asset or CGU
axceeds its recoverable amount, the asset Is considered impalred and s written down to its recoverable amount,

In assessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. !n determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. if no such transactions can be identifled, an appropriate valuatlon model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples or other avallable fair value indicators.

Definad benefits plans:

The Cost of the defined benefit plan and the present value of such obligation are determined using actuarlal valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptlons that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved In the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined 'beneﬁt
obligation Is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Recoverabllity of trade recelvable:

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a provision against those recelvables Is
required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty, the amount and timing of anticlpated future payments and any possible
actlons that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.

Provislons:

Provisions are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events
and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated, The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of
judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change, Since the cash outflows can take place many years in the future, the
carrylng amounts of provisions and Tlabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances. '

fair value measurement of finandial Instruments :

when the fair value of financial assets and financial llabllitles recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices In active
markets, their fair value Is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF} model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this Is not feaslble, a degree of judgement is required In establishing falr values. Judgements
include conslderations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility, Changes in assumptlons about these factors could affect the reported
fair value of financlal Instruments. .
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

{Rupees in lakhs) ]

Gross Carrying Value
As at April 1, 2027 213.31 3,208.33 3,421.64
Additions 500,00 - 500.00

Disposals - - .

As at March 31, 2018 713.31 _3,208.33 3,921.64
Addltions - -
|Disposals . -

As at March 3%, 2059 713.31 3,208.33 3,921.64
|Accumutated Amortisation

As at April 1, 2017 84.03 250.00 334,03

Amortisation for the year 114.61 249.84 364.45

Deductlons - . .

As at March 31, 2018 198.64 499.84 688.48

Amortisation for the year 148.04 249.84 357.88

Deductions - - -

As at March 31, 2019 346.68 749.68 1,096.36

Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2019 366.53 2,/458.65 2,825,28

Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2018 514.67 2,708.49 3,223.16
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
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OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Rupees In lakhs)

Unsecured, considered good unfess otherwise stated
Financial assets carrled at amortised cost

57.88

Security Deposits 14.21
Financlal Guarantee 605.76 804,39
Total 663.64 818.60

3 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

{Rupees in lakhs)

Capital Advances 869.64 864.64
Advances other than Capital advances

~ Other Advances - gratulty (Refer Note 37) - 10.05

- Prepaid Rent 1.89 3.79

~TDS Recelvable 458,59 345.37

- Service tax pald under protest 5.14 3.87

Total 1,335.26 1,227.72

9

Stares and Spares

Rupees in Jakhs)

JASENN

Total

10 CURRENT ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade Recelvables considered good - Secured - .
Trade Recelvables considered good - Unsecured 1,323.33 666.59
Trade Receivable which have Significant increase in Credit Risk 29.11 4.39
Trade Receivable -credit Impaired - .
1,352.44 670.98
Less: Provision for expected credit loss 29.11 4.39
29.11 4,39
Total 1,323.33 666.59
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Balances with banks in current accounts 119.95 375.29
Cash on hand 0.28 0.06
Total 120.24 375.35

2 CURRENT ASSETS - OTHER BANK BALANCES

Deposits with banks to the extent held as margin money 258,12 357.68
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposlt 9.18 28.48
Total 267.30 386.16

13 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Finandial assets carrled at amortised cost

Security Deposits 7344 111.83

Financial Guarantee 248.93 236.76
Total 322.37 348.59

14 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Advances other than Capital advances
- Advances to Related Parties
- Advances to Suppllers
- Advances to Employees
-Others
Others
- Other recelvable
- Prepaid expenses
- Balance with Government Authorlty

39.84
2.87
16.54

35.66
1.54
37.36

0.23
81.34

- 16.58
1555

35.66
2.02
157.08

Total
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1} Authorised Share Capital
Equity Shares
4,36,50,000 (As at March 31, 2018: 4,36,50,000) Equity shares of Rupees 10 each 4,365.00 4,365.00
Preference Shares
13,50,000 (As at March 31, 2018: 13,50,000) Preference Shares of Rupees 10 each 135.00 135.00
Total 4,500.00 4,500.00
i) Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up
4,23,84,417 (As at March 31, 2018: 4,23,84,417) Equity Shares of Rupees 10 each 4,238.44 4,238.44
Total 4,238.44 4,238.44

i) Reconciliation of number of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Equity Share Capltal
Equity shares of Rupees 10 each Issued, subscribed and fully pald
At Aprll 1, 2017

Issued durlng the year

At March 31, 2018

lssued during the year

At March 31, 2019

4,23,84,417

4,238.44

4,23,84,417

4,238.44

4,23,84,417

4,238.44

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rupees 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board
of Directors Is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

in the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.

1. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

I N IEE T TS 1) T

Frigia . RN ITTE BTN

Equity shares of Rupees 10 each fully
paid
Arshiya Limited {Holding Company }
Shares held by Nominee and jointly
shareholders

4,23,83,817 4,23,83,817

600 600
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Rupeas in lakhs)

16
Securltles Premium Account 38,123.31 38,123.31
Retalned Earnings (58,116.26) (53,932.75)
Equity Component of Guarantee given by Parent Company 1,624.45 1,564.45
Equity Component of [oan from Parent Company 171.37 171.37
Total {18,197.13) {14,073.62)

a) Securities Premium Account

pees in lakhs)
Opening balance 38,123.31 38,123.31
Add: On issue of Equity shares . .
Closing Balance 38,123.31 38,123.31

Opening balance {53,932.75) (43,189.57)

Add/(Less):

Net Profit/{Loss) for the year (4,159.12) (10,745.75)

Other comprehensive income {24.39) 7.19

Equity component of Guarantee given - (4.62)
Closing balance {58,116.26) (53,932.75)

by Parent Company

Rupees in lakhs)

Equity Component of Guarantee glven by Parent Company

Opening balance 1,564.45 1,564,45
Add/{Less): Transaction during the year 60.00 .
[ Closing balance 1,624.45 1,564.45

{d) Nature & purpose of Reserves

Securltles Premium Account:

Securities premium reserve represents the amount recelved In excess of the face value of the equity shares. The utilisation
of the securities premium reserve is governed by the Provision of Companies Act, 2013.

Retalned Earnlngs :

Retained Earnings are the profits/losses of the Company earned till date net of appropriations.

Equity Component of Guarantee given by Parent Company:

The fair value of financlal guarantees given to the lenders of the Company by the Parent Company Is recognised as a

deemed equity component.

Equity Component of loan from Parent Company:

»med equity component by the Parent Company.

e difference between the fair value of Interest free loans on the date of Issue and the transition price is recognised as a
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7 NON CURRENT BORROQWINGS N {Rupses in lakhs)

Secured
-Term Loans
From Others {refer note 17.1 below) 31,902.67 33,538.04

Total 31,902.67 33,538.04

7.1 Rupee term loan from other partles :-
- Rupee term loans (including current maturity) of Rupees 33,647.31 lakhs (March 31, 2013 : Rupecs 33,538.04
lakhs) are securad by
(1) Details of Security
i. First charge on all movable assets (including rakes, containers, equipment's} and immovable properties of the
company both present and future on pari passu basis.
ii. Second charge by way of Hypothecation of the entire current assets of the campany on pari passu basis.
ili. Pledge of 100% equity shares of the Company held by Promoters.
iv. Personal guarantees from Promoters of Holding Company.
v, Corporate Guarantee from Holding Company.

{2} Terms of Interest rate:
- on Term Loans from others 10% p.a. compounded quarterly,

(3} Terms of repayment :-

Rupeas in lakhs)

2019-2020 1,744.63
2020-2021 6,130.19
2021-2022 2,276.52
2022-2023 23,954.16
Total 34,114.50

{a) The amortised cost disclosed above is net off of incidental cost of borrowings aggregating to Rupees 467.19
lakhs for March 31, 2019 and Rupees 612.13 lakhs for March 31, 2018.
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I8 NON CURRENT LIABIUITIES - PROVISIONS

Provislon for employee benefits

Gratulty (Refer Note 37) 72.03 .
Leave encashment {Refer Note 37} 48.49 16.42
Tatal 120.52 1642

19 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Government Grants

1,632.32

1,723.69

Total

1,632.32

1,723.69

20 CURRENT BORROWINGS

" Unsecured
Loans from Holding Company (refer note 20.1 below & Note 41)

304.38

{Rupaees in lakhs)

2,029.26

Total

304.38

2,029.26

20.1 Interest free loan upto 1 year and repayable on demand.

173



ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

21 CURRENT LIABILITIES- TRADE PAYABLES

Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer note 39 & 52) 15.77 5.24

Total outstanding dues of creditors Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 1307.44 ‘

{Refer Note 52} ,307. 620,88
Total 1,323.21 626.12

22

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilisies at amortised cost
Current maturities of long term borrowlngs
Term Loans from banks (Refer Note 22.1)* 6,910.60 8,931.30
Term Loans from others {Refer Note 17.1 & 22.2) 4,704,64 ;
Interest accrued and due on borrowings** 11,710.49 13,183.84
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 3,280,15 1,370.35
Security Deposit 41.44 57.64
Financial Guarantee - 3.85
Others
Project Creditors{ Refer Note 35 & 52) 959.28 1,054,01
Employee's Dues *** 216,98 103,59
Payable for Expenses 280,10 502.26
Total 28,103.68 25,206.84

* [nclude Loan aggregating to Rupees 6,510.60 lakhs {March 31, 2018: Rupees 8,931.30 lakhs) recalled by banks.

**Include Interest accrued and due on Term Loans aggregating to Rupees 8,289.98 lakhs {March 31, 2018: Rupees 11,893,70 lakhs)

recalled by banks,
**|nclude Interest accrued and due on Term Loans aggregating to Rupees 390.64 lakhs recalled by cthers.

***|nclude Full and Final settlemant of Rupees 25.28 lakhs {March31, 2018 Rupees 14.04 lakhs)

Rupee term loan from Banks :-
- Rupee term loans of Rupees 6910.60 lakhs {(March 31, 2018 : Rupees 8931.30 lakhs) are secured by

{1} Details of Security

i. First charge on all movable assets {including rakes, contalners, equipment's) and immovable propertles of the company bot}

present and future on pari passu basis.
l. Second charge by way of Hypothecation of the entlre current assets of the company on parl passu basis.

Tii, Pledge of 100% equity shares of the Company held by Promaters,
iv. Personal guarantees from Promoters of Holding Company,
v. Corporate Guarantee from Holding Company/ Promoter.

{2) Terms of Interest rate:
- on Term Loans from Banks from 10.45% p.a- 16.25% p.a.

{3) Terms of repayment :-

{Rupees

EITARE

2012-2013

2013-2014 75.00

2014-201% 277.50

2015-2016 3,695.60

2018-2019* 2,840.00
Total 6,910,60
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(4) Amount and period of default In repayment of borrowings

{Rupees in lakhs

Current maturity of Rupee Term loans 22,50 2012-13
75.00 2013-14
277.50 2014-15
3,695.60 2015-16
2,840.00 2018-19
Total 6,910.60

222 Rupee term loan from Others :-
- Rupee term loans of Rupees 2,960.00 lakhs are secured by
(1) Details of Security
i. First parl passu charge on all present and future cash flows of the Company
ii.First parl passu charge on all movable assets and Immovable assets of the company.
fll. Charge on cash flows and movable assets by deed of Hypothecation.
Iv. Personal guarantees from Promoters of Holding Company.
v. Corporate Guarantee from Holding Company.

{2) Terms of Interest rate;
- on Term Loans from others @ 20% p.a payable quarterly

(3} Terms of rapayment :-

~2022-2023*
Total 2,960.00
* During the year the loan has been recalled by others.

{4) Amount and perlod of default in repayment of borrowlings
{Rupees in lakhs)

Current maturity of Rupee Term loans 2,960.00 2018-19

2,960.00

Total

ey
ZoEe sy
PERah)
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*+ Amount and perlod of default in payment of interest on borrowlings**

{u pees in lakhs)

O

Interest accrued & due on borrowing 201314 965.05 .
2014-15 876.51 -
2015-16 1,035.94 .
2016-17 1,287.23 -
2017-18 1,512,65 1,378.00]
201319 2,612.60 2,042.51
Total 8,289.98 3,420.51
3 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(Rupees in lakhs)

Advance recelved from Customers 107.02 151.12
Other Advances 0.51 1.74
Government Grants 365.49 639.61

Qthers
Statutory Liabilitles* 811.31 598,99
interest on Delayed payment of Statutory dues 590.57 426.77
Total 1,874.90 1,918,23

* Statutory liablities Include TDS,Goods & Service Tax, Service tax,PF,ESIC payable,Employee professional tax
p

GOVERNMENT GRANTS Rupees In lakhs)
Sk s Aal
Opening balance 2,363,30 2,728.79
Released to statement of profit and loss (365.49) (365.49)
Closing balance 1,997.81 2,363.30
Current 365.49 639,61
Non Current 1,632.32 1,723.69
Ru,

24 CURRENT LIABLLITIES - PROVISIONS

FEEET EFTH o PO

Provision for employe benefits
Leave encashment {Refer Note 37)

ees [n lakhs) ,

e

Total
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REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Rall Frelght Income 12,098.57 12,338.16
Road Freight Income 722.70 440.86
Handling Income 626.06 643.90
Terminal Income 167.50 175.40
Total 13,614.83 13,598.32
5 OTHER INCOME (Rupees In [akhs)
Interest Income on Flnancial assets carrled at amortised cost
Unwinding of interest on loan to related party - 168.45
Unwinding of Interest on Security deposit 5.76 1.28
Other interest income
Interest on Bank fixed deposits 21.10 29.38
Interest Income on income tax refund - 16.92
Income on derecognistion of related party loan - 307.69
Other Income
Government Grants 365.49 365.49
Financlal Guarantee Income 3.85 0.77
Sundry Balanca/ Excess provision Written Back 245.67 553.46
Gain on sale of investment . 5.00
Miscellaneous Income - 10.95
Total 641.87 1,459.39

27 COST OF OPERATIONS {Rupees In lakhs)

Rail Freight Expenses 9,434.84 10,172.63
Road Freight Expenses 687.64 448.10
Handling Expenses 227.76 231.86
Terminal Expenses 357.55 304,26
Other operating expenses 692.48 350.53

Total 11,400.27 11,507.38
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8 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

(Rupees in Ikhs

Salarles, wages and bonus 1,037.47 776.16
Contribution to provident and other funds 23.21 15.09
Staff welfare expenses 61.23 35.54

Total 1,121.91 826.79

29 FINANCE COST

[Pt

sfupitos

{Rupees in lakhs)

Interest expense on Financial liabllities measured at amortised cost

Interest expense on borrowlings 6,476.99 7,451.08

Unwinding of interest for loan from related party (Refer Note 41} 63.70 56.88

Interest expense on Securlty Deposit 1.24 1.24

interest expense others

interest on Delayed Payment of Statutory Dues 167.51 263.01

Interest on MSME vendors 0.50 -

Other borrowling costs

Guarantee Commission Expense 246.46 240,56

Interest Charges Others 53.33 .

Bank charges 5.84 6.17
Total 7,015.57 8,018.94

30 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

Depreciation on tangible assets 3,701.76 3,766.16
Amortisation on intangible assets 397.88 364.45
Total 4,099.64 4,130.61
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1 OTHER EXPENSES

Repalrs and maintenance
- Bullding 16.73 17.97
- Others 58.25 46.10
Advertisement 35.62 38,79
Payments to Auditors (Refer note below) 12,50 8.50
Bad Debts written off - 101.36
Electricity charges 33.81 28.54
Insurance 21.45 18.41
Legal and professional fees 176.32 75.54
Rates and taxes 15.89 7.36
Rent 472,99 374.08
Printing and Statlonary 16.08 7.82
Office Expenses 32.26 13.38
Security charges 59.11 45.14
Telephone and internet expenses 25.47 18,07
Travelling & conveyance expenses 185.37 46.98
Vehicle Expenses 44,54 28.18
Allowance for doubtful debts and advances 24.71 _
Miscellaneous expenses 22.19 18.86
Loss on sale of scrap 0.30 -
Total 1,253.59 895.48

(ai Detalls of Payments to auditors {Rupees In lakhs)

32 EXCEPTIONALITEMS

Sundry Balance / excess provision written back
Loss on sale/discarded of Property, plant and equipment
Settlement of Claim

As Statutory Auditor
Audit Fee 12.50 8.50
Total 12.50 8,50
{Rupees In lakhs)

(61,07}
182.79
302,54

Total

{6,475.16)|

424.26

3 RS
. %

A
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[
5

A
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33 Eamings per share (Basic and Dilutad)

Profit available 10 equity sharahokd

Profit/{Loss} after tax (A} (Rupees In Lakhs} (4,155.12) (10,745,75),
Number of equity shares

Welghted average number of equity shares outstanding {Basl and Diluted} (B} 4,23,84,417 4,23,81,417
Baslc & Diluted earnings per share(A/B} (Rupees) (9.81) {25.35)
Nominal Value of an equi 10 1

34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENT
{To the axtent not previded for)
1) Capital Commitments
Rupaes In lakhs}

o3

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for {net |

of advances pald)
Cash outflow expected on execution on such capltal contracts

{li} Contingant llabiNitles:

(a) Carrler Bond (Bond has been givan to Principal of custom for the safeguarding duty liability on goods

movemant from respective ports to ICD Khurja}

{ b) Bank Guarantee 101.25 162.00
{c) Letter of Credit { Letter of Credit ghven In favour of Railways for avalling e-frelght facility for haulage 100.00 100,00
payment)

d} Claims Against the Company not acknowledged as Debt 23.39 23,39
(e} Service tax Demand 5155 1.55.
(o Cash outfiow Is expected in ngar future —

35 Certaln creditors have initlated legal proceadings against the company and its directors and the company has defaulted In payment of instalments of
consent terms for which the company is in process of negotlating and finatising the revised consent terms. Majority of the creditors have been settled
over the past few years and some of the creditors have also shown interest and faith not anly In logistics and infrastructure sector but also in the
Company and are belng alictted equity shares of Holding Company.

36 Operating lease commitments - Company as lessee :
The company has taken office on lease under non-cancellable operating lease expiring at the end of 3 years. The leases have varylng terms, escalation
clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated.

The company has paid Rupees 340.65 lakhs (March 31, 2018: Rupees 278.56 lakhs)during the year towards minimum lease payment,

(Rupses In |akhs}
B2 a1y ]
Curnmltrnznu for minlmum lease payments In relation to non cancellable operating leases are as|
|Tollgws
Future Lease Payment:
a) Within one Year 35192 340,65
b) Later than one year but not later than five years 699.19 1,051,11
c[laterthan flve years - - |
Total 1,051.11 1,391.76
Lease rents recognised as expense in the year | 340.65 | 278.56
37 EMPLOYEE BENEAT
37.1 Discl P to Indlan Ac ing Standard (IND AS) 19 - Employee Benafits
{a} Defined contribution plans
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expenses for the years are as under:

(au In lakhs)

e

Employer's Contributlion to Provident Fund
Employer's Contributlon to Penslon Scheme
Employer's Contribution to ESIC

*dTY
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(1) Briod descriptions of the plans
The Company's defined contributlon plans are Provident Fund and Employeas State Insurance whare the Company has no further cbligation beyond
making the contributions. The Company's definad benefit plans Indude gratulty. The employees are 8lso entitled to leave encashment as par the
Company’s policy.

{c} Leave Obligations

Prowvl  for Leave

Current 1061
Non-Qurrent 4845

Total 59,10 20.11

{d) Defined banefit plan — Gratuity:
The employee’s Gratulty fund Is managed by the Uife insurance Corporation of Indla. The present value of obligation Is determined based on actuarlal
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognised each perlod of services as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit
entitiemant and measures each unit sepearately to build up ta final obligstion.

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
1. Actuarial assumptions
Moartality Table Indian  Assured llves/indlan Assured live
Mortality (2006-08) Ult| Mertallty {2006-08) Uit
Discount rate 6.95%| 7.00%
Expected return on plan assats 6.95% 7.40%
Salary Escalation Rate 9.00%) 7.00%
Withdrawal Rate 17.00% 15.00%
Retirement Age 58 Years 58 Years
11, Change [n Present value of dafined benefit obligations
Liabliity as at the beginning of the year 47.31 37.19
Interest cost 350 230
Current service cost 19.62 7.78
Benefits pzid (z.95} {0.93)
| Actuarlal [galn}/ioss on obligations 24.39 0.98
Acquisition adjustment 41.75 -
Liability as at the end of the year 133.62 47.31
111, Change In Fair value of plan assats
Fair value of plan assets as at the beglnning of the year 57.35 46,28
Expected return on plan assets 423 14.01
Actual Enterprise’s Contributions . 0.93
Banefits paid - {0.53)
Actuarlal galn/{loss) on plan assets - (2.93)
Falr value of plan assets as at the end of the year 61.58 57.35
V. Actual return on plan assets
Expected return on pian assets 423 14.01
Actuarial galn/(loss) on plan assets = (2.93}
|Actual return on plan assets 4.23 11.08
V. Liabllity recognised In the Balance Sheat
Liability as at the and of the year 133.62 4731
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 61,58 57.35
Liability/ {Asset} recognised in the Balance Sheet 72.03 {10.05)
VI, Percentage of each category of plan assets 10 total fair value of plan assets
Insurer managed funds 100%| 100%;
Vil, Amount recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 19.62 7.78
Interest cost - .30
Expected return on plan assets (0.74) (14.01}
Net actuarial (gain}/loss to be on obllgation - .
Expense/ {Income} recagnised in Statament of Profit and Loss 18.68 {3.93)
Vill, Amount racognised In the Other Comprehensiva Income {OCI)
Amount recognised In OC), beginning of the year {7.29} {0.10)
ampanents of actuarial galn/losses on obligations
to Change in financlal assumptions 16.19 (1.16)
o Change In demographic assumption (1.82) :
o Change In exparience assumption 10.02 213
d return on plan assets - {2.93}
ge in Asset Ceiling - -
| remasurement recognised in OCI 24.39 {7.19}
ecognlsed in CCl, end of year 17.10 {7.29)|
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L Balance Shaet reconclilation

Opening net liabllity {10.08}) (9.09)
Expenses recognised In Profit & Loss 1B.88 7.16
Actual Empioyer Contribution [2.99) {0.93)
Total Remeasurement recognised In OCl 2439 {7.19)
Acquisition adjustment 4175 -
Closing net llability 72.03 {10.05)

(e} Sslary escalatlon assumption has been set In discussions with the enterprise based on their estimates of overall long-term salary growth rates after
taking into consideration expected earnings Inflation as well as parformance and senlority related increases,

87.2 Sensithity analysis:

Effect on Gratulty
Particulars Changes in obligation (Rupess in
assumptions takhs
For the year endad 31st March, 2018 khsp |
Salary growth rate +0.50% 47,66
-0.50% 45.40
Discount rate +0,50% 4541
-0.50% 47.66
For the year ended 31st March, 2019
Salary growth rate +0.1% 140.38
0.1% 127.32
|Discount rate 40.1% 127.26
-0.1% 140.58

The above sensitivity analysls is based on & change in an assumption while halding all other assumptions constant. In pratice, this is unlikely to occur,
and changes In some of the assumptlons may be correlated. (n presenting the above sensitivity anaysis, the present value of defined benefit obligation
has been caltulated using the projected unit credlt method at the end of reporting perlod, which Is the same as that applied in calculating the defined
obligation llability recognised In the balance sheet.

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarlal risks such as: longevity risk and salary risk.

[A) Interest risk - A decrease in the discount rate will increase tha plan llabllity.
(8] ‘Longevity risk - The present value of the defined baneflt plan liability Is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants
both during and after their employment. An Increase in the Hife expectancy of the plan participants. As such, an increase the pian's liability.

(€) Salary risk - The present value of the defined pian liability Is calculated by reference to the future sataries of plan participants. As such, as increase in the
safary of the plan participants wili increase the plan's llability.

37.3 The welghted average duration of the defined henefit obligation at the end of the reporting perlad Is 5 years (31st March, 2018 - § years).
38  Disclosure pursuant to Indain Accounting Standard 108 - Operating Segment

The company Is engaged in Private Container Train Operator (PCTO] business and is holding Category license which allows the compaay to operate on
Indlzn Rall network on pan India basls both Domestic and Exim Traffic. in the opinion of the company, the entire eperations are governed by the same
8t of risks and returns and hence the same has been considered as representing a single primary segment.

The company provides services within Indla and hence does not have any aperatlon in aconomic environments with different risks and returns, Hence,
it is considered that the company is operatlng In a single geographical segment,

Customers Individually contributes to more than 10% of revenue :-

There are 2 customers | March 31, 2018 - 3 customers) aggregating to Rupees 8,179.24 lakhs { March 31, 2018 Rupees 8,619.29 lakhs} constituting 60% {
March 31, 2018- 64%) of Revenue.

39 DISCLOSURES UNDER MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006 (MSMED ACT, 2006)
To the extentthe company has received intimation from the “suppliers' regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, the details are provided as under

{iil} Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier heyond the

) Interest due and payable for the pericd of delay in making payment (which have been paid but - |

R:N\' nd the appolnted day during tha year] but without addlr\g the interest specified under the Micro,
{5

Herest remaining due and payable even i the succeading years, until such date when the interest -
is above are actually pald to the small enterprise.
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} RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE
On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Ind AS 116 - Leases and certaln amendment to existing Ind AS, These
amendments shall be applicable to the Company from April 01, 2019. ’

A) ISSUE OF IND AS 116 - LEASES

Ind AS 116 will supersede the current standard on leases i.e. Ind AS 17- Leasas, As per Ind AS 116, the lessor will have to bring to books all the neon-
cancelisble portion of leasing arrangement.

B) AMENDMENT TO EXISTING STANDARD

The MCA has also carried out amendmants of the following accounting standards
I Ind AS 101- First tima sdoption of Indlan Accounting Standards

1l, Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations

1L, Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments

v, Ind AS 311 - Joint Arrangements

v. Ind AS 12 = Incoma Taxes

vi. Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits

vli. Ind AS 23 - Borrowing Costs

il Ind AS 28 - Investment In Assoclates and Jolnt Ventures

Application of above standards are not axpected to have any significant iImpact on the Comgany’s financlal statements.
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REVATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

List of velated parties as per the mquirements of ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclotures

Arshiva Lislted Holding Company

g8

arshiya Rall Siding and infrestructure Uimited (tilt February 3, 2018) bsidi

¥

india

Arshiya Supply Chain Management Private Limited {til March 21, 2018)
Arshiya Northern FTWZ2 Limited

Arshiya industrial & Distribution Hub Limited Felow Subsidiarles Indla
Arshiva Logistics Services Limited (Formerly known as. Laxmipat] Batajl Exlm Trading Limited)

M. Ajay 5. Mittal - Director

Mr. Navnit Choudhary - Director

Mr, Ashish Kumar Bairagra - Independent Director

Mr. Rishabh Pankaj Shah - Independent Director

Mr. Siddarth Kasturia - Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f. March 26, 2019)

Ms. Avani Dip Lakhanl - C: vy {w.a.f. March 26, 2019}
Mr. Vinod Jain - Chief Finandal Officer (till March 25, 2019)

r. Amardeep Gupts - Chief Financial Officer {w.e.f. March 26, 2018}

Key Managerial Personnal {KMP}

Mrs. Archana A Mittal
Mr. Ananya A Mittal [Relative of Key Managerial
|Personnel

0

The nature and amount of transactians with the above related parties are as folows

Loans given - 375.05
Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited | Loan repayments™ - (131283}
[ Rall Fraight income 749.45 23.48
Unwinded Interest Income on - 67.20
Loan to subsidiaries
Leang glvan - 543.84
Arshiva Northern FTWZ Limited Loan rapayments™® - {2,354.81)
Unwinded interest income on - 101.22
Loan to subskdlaries
Loang taken** {733.31) [4.831.75)
LO&N repayments 2,996.44 3,751.60
location of cost and {419.55) {418.25)
expenses by Holding Company®
Arshlya Limited
Unwinded Interest expeanse on (63.70% (56.88}
Loan from helding company
Financlal Guarantees {246.45; {240.56)
Arshiys Supply Chal Management Private Limited Loans gven - 1181
Loan repayments”? - {11.81)
Arshiva Logistics Services Limited (formerly known as Laxmipat] Balajl Exim Trading Limited) | Loans glven - 0.3
Loan fepayments 0.23 -
* During the year, the Halding C has all d certatn cost and exp incurred by it, to the company aggregating to Rupees 419.55 lakhs (315t March, 2018 - Rupees
418,25 lakhs} based on Helding Company’s estimates of such cost and exp attributable to the Hence, Employee henefit exp [ Refer Mote Mo. 28} and certain expenses
stated under other mxpenses (Refer Note No. 31 ave pr d as Inclusive of such allacation of certain costs and exp
** The Company has ad d bhaj lvabl of Arshiya Industrial, Distribution & Hub Limited (AIDHL) on March 31, 2019 Rupees NIL {March 31, 2018 Rupees 1,269.42 lakhs),

recaivable amaum of Arshiya Merthem FTWZ Limited (ANFTWZ] on March 31, 2019 Rupees NIL {March 31, 2018 Rupees 2,026.74 lakhs), recefvable amount of Arshiva Supply Chain
Managemant Private Limites {ASCM) on March 31, 2019 Rupees NIL [March 31, 2018 Rupees 4.45 fakhs } with Arshiya Limited.
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Py Rugees in lakhs
‘Arshiya Logistics Services Limited (formesty known as Lmanipati Balajt Exim Trading Limited) 0.23
Arghiya Usmited 304.38 2,029.26
Arshiya Industrial Distribution & Hub Limited 225,58 .
Arshiya Limited [ £54.69 1.041.15
Ajay S Mittal 54,120.00 51,120.00
Archana A Mittal 54,120.00 51,120.00
Arshiya Limited 1 51,200.19 45.200.19
_ =
Mey gerisl p ! ath

Shart &! employes benefits
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Financlal Instruments by Ca

Amortised cost
Trade Receivables 1,323.33 666.59 1,323.33 666.59
Cash and Cash Equlvalents 120.24 37535 120.24 37535
Securlty Deposits 131.32 126.04 13132 126.04
Other Bank Balances 267.30 386.16 267.30 386.16
Financial Guarantea 854.69 1,041.15 854.69 1,041,15

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Amortised cost
Borrowings 43,822.29 44,498.60 43,822.29 44,498.60
Trade Payables 132321 626.12 1323.21 626.12
Other financlal liabilities 16,488.44 16,275.54 16,488.44 16,275.54

Fair Valuation tachniques used to determine falr value

The Company maintains procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data available,
The fair values of the financial assets and lisbilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a llabllity In an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The followIng methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The Company assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade recelvables, trade payables, and other current financial
assets and liabilitles approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these Instruments.

The falr values for security deposits and other financlal llabilities were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current
lending rate. They are classified as level 3 falr values in the Falr value hierarchy due to the Inclusion of unobservable inputs including
counterparty credit risk,

The fair values of non current berrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as
level 3 fair values In the falr value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk.

Falr value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financlal (nstruments that are
recognised and measure at fair value. To provide an indication about the reliability of the Inputs used in determing falr value, the
company has classified its financlal Instruments Into three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

Level 1 - Level 1 hierarchy includes financial Instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial Instruments that are not traded In an active market {for example, traded bonds, over the counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

e or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the Instrument is inctuded in be

3. Thisis
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Financial Rlsk Management

The Cornpany's princlpal financial liabllitles comprises of borrowings, trade and other payables and financial guarantees contracts. The main purpose of
these financlal liabilities is to manage for the Company's operations. The Company’s financial assets comprises of trade and other receivables, cash and
deposits that arises directly from Its operations.

The company's activities expose it to variety of financlal risks including credIt risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's risks management
assessment, management and processes are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company to set up appropriate risks limits and
controls and to monitor such risks and compllances with the same, Risks assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the company's actlvitles.

Credit risk o ' Casll and cash

Ageing anal Regular review of
equivalents, trade credit limits
receivables and

Financlal assets
measured at amortised

cost.
Lquidity risk Borrowlngs and other |Rolling cash flow Avallability of
liabilities forecasts financial support from
lparent company
Market risk - interest rate Long-term borrowings |Sensitivity analysis Unhedged

at variable rates

The Company’s risk management is carried out by a corporate finance team under the policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Board provides
written principles for overall risk management as well as policies covering specific areas, such as credit risk, Interest rate risk.

{A) Cradit risk
The Company Is exposed to credit risk, which is risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligation resuiting In a financial loss to the
Company. Credit risk arlses from cash and cash equivalents as well as credit exposures to trade customers including outstanding receivables.

Trade recelvables are typlcally unsecured and are derived from ravenue earned from customers located in India. Credit risk has always been managed
by the company through continugusly monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the normal course of
business. Outstanding customer receivables are regulariy monltored and any further services to major customers are approved by the senlor
management. Credit risk Is high as only few customers’ account for majority of the revenue in the year presented. On account of adoption of Ind AS 108,
the company uses expected credlt loss model to assess the impalrment loss or gain,

(B} Liguidity risk .
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without Incurring unacceptable
losses, The Company’s objective is to, at all times; maintain optimum levels of liquldity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company limits
Its liquidity risk by ensuring funds from trade receivables. The Company relies on operating cash flows and funding from helding company to meet its
needs for funds.

The table below provides undiscounted cash flows towards financial liabilities Into relevant maturity based on the remaining period at the balance sheet
to the contractual maturity date.
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Contractual maturitles of financlal liabilitles

W57 o

March 31, 2019

Borrowings 11,919.62 32,369.86 -
 Trade payables 1,323.21 - -
Other financlal liabillties 16,489.00 - -
Total Financial llabilities 29,731.83 32,369.86 -
March 31, 2018

Borrowings 11,024.26 34,150.17 .
Trade payables 626,12 - -
Qther financlal Habilities 16,276.91 - -
Totsl Flnancial llabilitles 17,927.29 34,150.17 .
{C) Market risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flow of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of volatllity of prices in the financial
markets. Market risk can be further segregated as: 1) Forelgn currency risk and 2} Interest rate risk

1) Forelgn currency risk
1} Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow or an exposure will fluctuate because of changes In foreign exchange rates.
However, the Company does not have any forelgn currency exposure.

2} intarest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financlal instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.
During the 31st March, 2019 the Company's borrowlngs at the varlable rate were mainly denominated in Rupees.

Tha Company's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost, They are therefore not subject to Interest rate risk as defined In IND AS- 107, since
neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market Interest rates.

Interest rate Hsk exposure
The exposure of the company's horrowing to Interest rate changes &t the end of the reporting pericd are as follows:-

{Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Variable rate borrowings 6,910.60 8,931.30

Interest sensithvity
Profit or loss Is sensitive to higher/ lower Interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in Interest rates.

Particulars impact on profit before tax
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2013
Interest seasitivity
50 bps Increase the profit before tax by* (34.55} {44.66}
50 bps decrease the profit before tax by* 34.55 44.66
* Holding all other variable constant
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the company's objective when managing capltal is to safeguard the company's ability to continue going concern in order to
provide the return for shareholders and benefit to other stakeholders and to maintain an optional capital structure to reduce the

cost of capital, Capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders
of the company.

The company manages Its capital structure and makes adjustments In light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements
of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or Issue new shares, The company monitors capital using a Debt equity ratlo.

Borrowings 43,822.29 44,498.60
Other Financial Liabilities (Interest accrued) 14,990.64 14,554.19
Total Debt 58,812.93 59,052.79
Equity 4,238.44 4,238.44
Other equity {18,197.13) (14,073.62)
Total Equity {13,958.59) [9,835.18)
Nates:-

{i} Debt is defined as long term and short term borrowings Including current maturities and interest.
(if} Total equity {as shown in balance sheet) includes Issued capital and all other equity.

As stated In Notes to accounts, the company [s also having scheme of arrangements to reorganise the capital structure,

Debt Covenants

Under the terms of Restructuring Agreement, the company Is required to comply with following financia!l covenants:-

Withaut prior approval of lender, the company shall not:

Loans, debenture & charge - Issue or subscribe to any debentures, shares, raise any loans, deposit from public, issue equity or
preference capital, change Its capital structure or create any charge on Its assets Including its cash flow or give any guarantees.

Dividend on equity shares - declare/pay dividend on equity shares unless otherwlse approved by the Lender/Business Monitoring

Committee and subject to the payment of recompense amount payable by the borrower to the lender in accordance with the
provisions of RA.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Capital Management, amongst other thing, aims to ensure that it meets Financlai
covenants attachad to the Interest bearing Loans and borrowings that define Capital structure requirements, there have been
breaches in the Financial covenants of interest bearing loans and borrowing in the Current period and previous perfod.

The Company has not proposed any dividend in last two years In view of losses Incurred.
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15 Taxation

1) In view of loss for the year, no provision for current tax has been made.

ii) The Company has not recognised any deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses as [t is not probable

that the Company will have sufficlent future taxable profit which can be avallable against the avallable tax losses.

i) Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets has been recognised

{Rupees in lakhs)

2014-2015 14,739.87 2022-2023 6,512.68
2015-2016 - 2023-2024 5,536.76
2016-2017 - 2024-2025 3,192.80
2017-2018 13,093.10 2025-2026 3,717.69
2018-2019 431.07 2026-2027 3,199.58
2019-2020 - 2027-2028 2,104.24

Total 28,264.04 24,263.74

Unused deferred tax assets as at March 31, 2019 Rupees 9,217.76 Lakhs {(March 31, 2018 - Rupees 13,290.59 Lakhs) has not been
recognised, as there s no convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the unadjusted tax losses
will be utillsed by the Company.

Details of Deferred tax assets are mentioned below:- (Rupees in lakhs
Property plant equipment 4,268.76 4,084.31
Unabsorbed depreciation (6,308.57) {5,773.59)
expense allowable on payments under section (166.12) (3,651.00)
Unabsorbed loss (7,348.65) {8,397.44)
Financial Instruments 336.82 447.13
Total Deferved Tax Assets (8,217.76) {13,290.59)
46 Preparatlon of financial statements on # Going Concern” basis
The company has Incurred net loss of Rupeés 4,183.51 Lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2019 and as of that date, the company's
current liabllities exceeded by its current assets by Rupees 29,449.72 lakhs. Accumulated losses have also resulted into more than net
worth of the company. Some of Its lenders have recalled their loans and the company Is in the process of negotiating the revised
payment terms with the lenders.
The Company Is EBIDTA positive and with the commencement of the two dedicated freight corrldors, the said company will benefit
immensely. Moreover, a unique contract entered into with one of the largest global shipping lines has already started to improve the
profitabllity. Also, the proposed merger of Fellow subsidiary with the company as mentioned in note ne. 51, would make thelr
operations not anly complementary, but enhance their profitability.

In view of the focussed emphasis of the Government an |ogistics infrastructure sector, the proposed restructuring and considering the
fact that the facilities are yet to achieve full operational potential besides the strategic locations of the facilities, the management’s
future outlook of its businesses is very promising. Accordingly the financials have been prepared on golng concern basls, based on
financial support from the Parent Company.

The management of the company is In the process of restructuring its business operations and steps are as under :
i Focus on long term contracts with corporate clients for stable revenues.
il Focuson reduction of empty haulage / return business In different sectors to increase In revenue and margins.
ii Diversified focus from only Steel industry to Cement, Agro and Tlles also so as to have a balance of product mix.
v Increased focus gp 3 as a distribution hub post G5T implementation

a,,,
g
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Government focus on Multi-modal logistic and transport services to increase the throughput of the Infrastructure already created by
the company;

Government focus on the revamping of the Rallway Boards and Increasing clarity on regulatory aspects to support resolution of the
regulatory lssues;

Two Dedicated Freight Corridor(s) (DFC) along the Western and Eastern part of India to support increase in the business volume,

Government announcement of Jewar Airport and Merut Highway connecting Jewar via Khurja and thereby connecting to Yamuna
Expressway( i.e. Delhl to Agra).

The above steps shall enable the Company to improve Company’s Net worth and its ability to discharge its debts/liabilities in near
future.

As per debt covenant, the Company are required to adhere to repayment schedule and any short payment gives Edelwelss Asset
Reconstruction Company (EARC) the right to convert whole of the outstanding amount of restructured rupee loan and/or part of the
default amount into fully paid up equity shares of the Company. No such notice of conversicn in writing has been given by EARC and the
Company continues to disclose the amount as current and non-current as per repayment schedule, in the Balance Sheet.

The company had entered into one-time settlement (OTS) with a lender during the year. The company had paid partlal amount against
0TS and the effect was taken as an exceptional item during the year ended March 31, 2019, However, the Company has defaulted In
payment as per the terms of the OTS. As a result, the Company needs to reverse the exceptional gain recorded during the year and
needs to recognise Interest on the entire flabllity as per the original terms, The Company is in discussion with the lender for additional
time to repay. Accordingly, the company continues to reflect the outstanding amount of loan as per OTS in the financlal statements,

The Company has not reversed the galn, nor provided for additional interest. Had the Company reversed the gain and provided for
additional interest, exceptional item would have been lower by Rs. 6,604.55 Lakhs and finance cost would have been higher by Rs.
3,500.76 Lakhs having consequential impact on total comprehensive income, liabilities and other Equity for the year ended 31st March,
2019.

The Company has procured certain capital goods under EPCG scheme at concesslonal rate of duty. On non fulfiliment of certain
conditions, the company may become liable to pay differential custom duty along with interest thereon such procurement. The
management is hopeful of completing the expected cbligation within the stipulated time.

The scheme of arrangement u/s 230 to 232 is scheme of merger of the Arshiya Industrial and Distribution Hub Limited and Arshiya
Transport & Handling Limited into the company, which s pending with NCLT. The scheme is conditional on various approval / sanctions
and is effective thereafter; accordingly o effect of the sald Scheme Is given In the financlal statement. The Creditors meeting of the
respective companles was held on 6th May 2019. No accounting impact and disclosures Is considered and necessary at this stage
pending requisite regulatory approvals.

In addition to above, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company at their meeting held on 24th May, 2018, has approved a scheme to
reorganize corporate structure i.e. demerger of “Domestic warehousing business” of the Parent Company into the company. This
proposed scheme of arrangement is conditional upon approval of above scheme {refer note no. 50}. No accounting impact and
disclosures is considered and necessary at this stage pending requisite regulatory approvals.

The Company has sent request letters/ emails to various parties for confirmations of balances under borrowings, trade recelvables
trade payables et, loans and advances to which only few parties have responded. Accordingly, the possible adjustment, if any, required
in the financial statements will be accounted as and when the same is determinable.

Corporation Bank has flled a suit with Debt Recovery Tribunal, New Delhi, towards recovery against Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited,
Arshiya Limited as a Corporate Guarantor and two promater directors of the holding company as Guarantors, for Rupees 2,012.60
Jakhs. The same is pending before the DRT Delhi. The matter Is sub-judice.
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The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by type of products and services, geography and timing of revenue
recognition.

Effective Aprll 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. The effect on adoption of Ind AS
115 was insignificant.

Revenue disaggregation by type of goods and services is given note no. 25
Revenue disaggregation by geography is as follows:

{Rupees in lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
G by
eograpny 31"!! rch 2018 3!.. March 2018
In India 13,596.16 13,560.32
Qutside india 18.67 38.00

Geographical revenue Is allocated based on the location of the customers.
Revenue disaggregation by timing of revenue recognition Is as follows:

(Rupees In lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
Geograph'
eography 31" March 2019 31* March 2018
Goods transferred at a point in time - -
Service transferred over time 13,614.83 13,598.32

Based on recent Supreme court judgement on Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019 there are various interpretive issues including
its applicabllity thus prospective provision w.e.f. March 01, 2019 been considered of Rs. 0.44 lakhs.

The Company's borrowings have been assigned by bankers to an ARC/ restructured with banks under CDR Package. Certain lenders had
Invoked the CDR package. The ARC/ CDR lenders have charged interest/ penal interest/additional Interest amounting to Rs. 511.89
lakhs upto the year ended March 31, 2018, which was not accepted by the Company and hence s under negotiation. In light of sudit
qualifications In previous year as a matter of prudence, the company has recognised the sald Interest/ additional interest/ penal
interest and has accordingly restated the finance cost and other consequentlal impacts in respective year.

Eurther, during the year ended March 31, 2018 reported figure of finance cost, other Equity and Interest Accrued on borrowings was
Rs. 7,507.05 lakhs, Rs. (13,561.72} Iakhs and Rs. 12,671.96 lakhs respectively, Restated figures of flnance cost, other equity and Interest
Accrued on Borrowings are Rs. 8,018.94 lakhs, Rs, (14,073.62) lakhs and Rs. 13,183.84 lakhs respectively. Earning Per Share (EPS) also
recalculated based on the restated figures,

The figures for the previous year have been re-grouped /re-arranged, wherever necessary, to correspond with the current year's
classification/disclosure,

Notes to the financial statements 1-57
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ANNEXURE ]

IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH,
COURT-II
IANO 859/2020 IN
C.A.(CAA)/2926/MB/2019
Under Section 230 to 232 read with section 66 and
section 52 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013

IN THE MATTER OF

Scheme of Arrangement between
Arshiya Limited Bearing
CIN: L93000MH1981PLC024747

(Demerged Company/Applicant Company 1)
And

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
CIN:U93000MH2008PLC180907
(Resulting Company/Applicant Company
2)

And
Their Respective Shareholders.

Arshiya Limited

302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block,
Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400018
Maharashtra India

Demerged Company/Applicant Company 1

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited 302,
Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr.
Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400018

Maharashtra India)
... Resulting Company/Applicant Company 2
Order delivered on : 26.02.2021
Coram:
Mr. H. P. Chaturvedi : Hon’ble Member (Judicial) Mr.

Ravikumar Duraisamy : Hon’ble Member (Technical)
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Appearance:

For the Applicants : Hemant Sethi, i/b Hemant Sethi & Co.

Advocates

Per: Harihar Prakash Chaturvedi, Member (Judicial)

ORDER

1. This IA has been taken out by the Applicants to reschedule meetings of the

secured Creditors of the Applicant Companies. By order dated 9t December 2020
passed by this Tribunal in CA No 2926 of 2019 this Bench s directed that the
meetings of the Secured creditors of the Applicant Companies be convened on 14th
January 2020 at 11AM and 1PM at 302 Ceejee House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate,

F-Block, Dr. Annie Besent Road, Worli, Mumbai 400018.

. It is further stated that Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited being

major lender in both the Applicant Companies needed more time to analyses and

evaluate the benefits the scheme. the letter is annexed at PDF page no 43 of IA.

. In light of the above circumstances, the meetings of the Secured Creditors of the

Applicant Company be convened and held at 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv
Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400018 on 20t
March 2021 at 11.00 am and that of Applicant Company 2 on 20t March 2021 at

1 PM at 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant
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Road, Worli, Mumbai 400018.

4. Applicants are directed to intimate afresh all the secured lenders of the Applicant
Companies about the adjourned date of meeting by hand delivery/email /speed

post and file compliance report.
5. Rest of the order dated 9t December 2019 remains same.

6. IANO 859/2020 is disposed of.

Sd/- Sd/-
RAVIKUMAR DURAISAMY H P CHATURVEDI
MEMBER (Technical) MEMBER (Judicial)

26.02.2021
ANKIT/SAM
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Annexure K

INFORMATION DOCUMENT OF ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED IN TERMS OF SEBI CIRCULAR NO. CFD/DIL3/
CIR/2017/21 DATED MARCH 10, 2017 IN RELATION TO THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN ARSHIYA LIMITED (HERE
IN AFTER REFERRED TO AS THE “DEMERGED COMPANY” OR “AL”) AND ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (HEREIN
AFTER REFERRED TO AS THE “RESULTING COMPANY” OR “ARIL” OR “COMPANY”) AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS
AND CREDITORS (“SCHEME”)

Arshr
ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
CIN: U93000MH2008PLC180907
Reg Off: 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018

T:+91 22 42305500/02 F: +91 22 4230 5555
E-mail: info@arshiyalimited.com /Website: www.arshiyalimited.com

PROMOTERS OF THE COMPANY
ARSHIYA LIMITED (Refer Part] of this Document i.e Promoters of the Company)
SCHEME DETAILS, LISTING AND PROCEDURE

The Board of Directors of the Company is proposing the Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya Limited (here in after referred to
as the “Demerged Company” or “AL”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (here in after referred to as the “Resulting Company”
or “ARIL” or “Company”) and their Respective Shareholders and Creditors (“Scheme”) under sections 230 to 232 read with Section
66 And Section 52 and other applicable Provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. On the Scheme becoming effective the shareholders
of AL would be allotted equity shares in the Company and would become shareholders of the Company as on the determined record
date. The shares of AL are listed on BSE Limited (“BSE”), National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”). The equity shares so issued
pursuant to the Scheme to the shareholders of AL would be listed on stock exchanges in terms of Rule 19 of the Securities Contract
(Regulation) Rules, 1957. Therefore this Information Document be read accordingly. The shareholders of ARIL may also download
from the website of AL this Information Document, the Scheme as approved by the Board of Directors of AL and ARIL, the valuation
report dated May 24, 2018 issued by ZADN & Associates, Chartered Accountants, the fairness opinion dated May 24, 2018 issued by
Chartered Capital and Investment Limited and other relevant documents related to the Scheme.

Post sanction of the Scheme, the equity shares of the Company are proposed to be listed on BSE and NSE. For the purposes of this
listing, the Designated Stock Exchange is BSE.

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA

There being no initial public offering or rights issue, the eligibility criteria of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended (‘ICDR
Regulations’) does not become applicable.

However, SEBI vide its Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 stated that the listed entity shall include the
applicable information pertaining to unlisted entities involved in the scheme in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as
provided in Part E of Schedule VI of Securities Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018, as amended, and the same has to be annexed with the Notice or explanatory statement or proposal accompanying resolution to
be sent to and passed by the shareholders while seeking approval of the scheme.

Accordingly in compliance with Regulation 37 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 read with
SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 the Company has submitted the relevant information, as and where
applicable to an Unlisted Company, in line with the format for Abridged Prospectus specified in Part E of Schedule VI of Securities
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended.

GENERAL RISKS
Investment in equity and equity related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds unless they can

afford to take the risk of losing their investment. Specific attention of the shareholders is invited to the section titled “Internal
Risk Factors” on page 8 of this Information Document.
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Not Applicable (Since there is no invitation

RICE INFORMATION OF MERCHANT BANKER
to Public for Subscription by way of this Document)

COMPANY’S ABSOLUTE RESPONSIBILTY

The Company, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this Information Document contains
all information with regard to the Company, which is material, that the information contained in this Information Document is true
and correct in all material aspects and is not misleading in any material respect, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are
honestly held and that there are no other facts, the omission of which makes this Information Document as a whole or any of such
information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading in any material respect.

MERCHANT BANKER

STATUTORY AUDITORS COMPANY SECRETARY

Chartered Capital and Investment Limited
Address :418-C, “215 ATRIUM”, Andheri
Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400
093

Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Address: 714-715, Tulsiani
Chambers, 212, Nariman Point,
Mumbai-400021

Ms. Avani Lakhani

Address: 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv
Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant
Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018
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Declaration

I.  PROMOTER OF THE COMPANY

ARSHIYA LIMITED

Name of the Company

Arshiya Limited

Date of Incorporation

July 03,1981

CIN

L93000MH1981PLC024747

Registered Office

302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli,
Mumbai - 400018

Nature of Business

The Company is engaged in the business of developing, operating and maintaining special
economic zones (SEZs)/free trade and warehouse zones (FTWZs), inland container
depots (ICDs), industrial parks, logistic parks, warehouses, infrastructure or
infrastructure projects.

Names of Stock Exchanges where|:
Equity Shares of the Company are
Listed

» BSE Limited
» National Stock Exchange of India Limited

II.
Business Overview

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limi
Companies Act, 1956 on April 07

BUSINESS MODEL / BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY

ted is a Public Limited Company originally incorporated under the provisions of the
, 2008 as Public Company Limited by Shares. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of Arshiya

Limited. The registered office of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited is located at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv
Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018, Maharashtra.
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III.

The main objects of the Company as set out in its Memorandum of Association inter alia include:

1.

To carry on the business of setting up of Rail Infrastructure/Network within India and abroad including operations/
movement of Container/Goods Trains using Indian Railway Network and also to acquire, procure, obtain on lease/
licence or otherwise Container Trains, Rakes, Wagons, Boggies and Create, Develop or Obtain on lease/licence basis
Railway Sidings, Rail Yards, Warehouses required for the business of the Company.

To carry on the business predominantly in the Northern Region of India, of container freight stations which, inter-alia
includes setting up of bonded warehousing infrastructure and services, facilities for customs examination, EDI, empty
container yard for storage of shipping containers, repairs and refurbishment of containers, truck, cargo and material
handling equipments, transportation, non-bonded warehousing, IT & ITES infrastructure and services, warehousing,
cold storage and other cargo related activities.

To carry on the business of Transport & Handling of Containers/ Goods/ Network within India and abroad including
operations/movement of Container/Cargo/Goods Trains using India Railway Network and also to acquire, procure,
obtain on lease/licence or otherwise Container Trains, Rakes, Wagons, Boggies and Create, Develop or obtain on lease/
licence basis Railway Sidings, Rail Yards, Warehouses required for the business of the Company.

The Company is engaged in the business of setting up of Rail Infrastructure/Network within India and abroad including
operations/movement of Container/Goods Trains using Indian Railway Network and also to acquire, procure, obtain on
lease/licence or otherwise Container Trains, Rakes, Wagons, Boggies and Create, Develop or Obtain on lease/licence basis
Railway Sidings, Rail Yards, Warehouses required for the business of the Company.

Business Strategy

Sharpening focus on railway business combined with Inland Container Depot (ICD) and Domestic Warehousing Business to
provide excellent logistic facility. The company’s ICD at Khurja is co-located with a state-of-the-art Rail Terminal. ICD-Khurja is
the only private ICD in the country to have exclusive connectivity with 6-lane private rail siding offering regular and prompt rail
connectivity through owned rakes to all the major gateway ports that service the northern region of India. ICD Khurja is located
strategically with multiple road approaches from the major 4/6 lane highways providing a congestion-free movement of cargo
and containers.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

Sr.
No.

Name of the Director Designation Experience including current/past position held in

(Independent / Whole other firms
time / Executive /
Nominee)

Mr. Ajay Shankarlal Mittal Director Mr. Mittal is the key driving force behind Arshiya’s growth as

an integrated supply chain management and logistics
infrastructure solutions company. With over three decades of
experience, Mr. Mittal has successfully scaled Arshiya Limited
by developing Free Trade Warehousing Zones (FTWZs), Rail
& Rail Infrastructure, Industrial & Domestic Hub, and
Transport & Handling to its unified business portfolio.

Mr. Navnit Jugal Kishore Director Mr. Navnit Choudhary, a Chartered Accountant, looks after
Choudhary the Commercial and Taxation aspects of the company. He

is associated with the Arshiya group since last 10 years.
During his 20 years of career, he was associated with many
organisations like KK Birla group. RPG Group, Future Group.

Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra Independent Director  [Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra has extensive experience in

handling internal audits, statutory audits, management
audits, tax advisory and business advisory assignments. He
is a Partner of M. L. Bhuwania & Co LLP, Chartered
Accountants, which is an independent member of Geneva
Group International (GGI).

Mr. Rishabh Pankaj Shah Independent Director  [Mr. Rishabh Shah is a practicing legal counsel and a legal

consultant who advises on several areas of Civil Law. He has

over 20 years of experience representing major corporations
as legal counsel.
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IV. OBJECTS OF THE SCHEME

(A) General Objects of the Scheme

The Board of Directors of the Company is proposing the Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya Limited (here in after
referred to as the “Demerged Company” or “AL”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (here in after referred to as
the “Resulting Company” or “ARIL” or “Company”) and their Respective Shareholders and Creditors (“Scheme”) under
sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 And Section 52 and other applicable Provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The proposed demerger of the Domestic Business Undertaking of Arshiya Limited into Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
as envisaged in the Scheme would be:

To integrate / consolidate its DWA, RAIL, PFT & ICD business into ARIL, which would enable Arshiya to focus solely on
FTWZ Business ;

To provide more flexibility in terms of creating business synergies in the Resulting Company i.e. ARIL, enable cost
savings, rationalizing capital requirements and optimizing utilization of valuable resources which will enhance
management focus on the different businesses being housed under separate entities, thereby leading to higher
operational efficiency;

To enhance value for the shareholders and allow focused strategy on expansion/ operation of both the FTWZ and the
Domestic Business independently;

To achieve and fulfill their objectives more efficiently and economically and the same is also in the interest of all the
stakeholders.

On the Scheme becoming effective the shareholders of AL would be allotted equity shares in the Company and would
become shareholders of the Company as on the determined record date. The shares of AL are listed on BSE Limited
(“BSE”), National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”). The equity shares so issued pursuant to the Scheme to the
shareholders of AL would be listed on stock exchanges in terms of Rule 19 of the Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules,
1957. Post sanction of the Scheme, the equity shares of the Company are proposed to be listed on BSE and NSE.

(B) Means of financing: Not Applicable

(C) Schedule of Deployment of Issue Proceeds: Not Applicable

(D) Name of Monitoring Agency: Not Applicable

(E) Terms of Issuance of convertible security: Not Applicable

(F) Shareholding Pattern as on December 10,2019

Sr. | Particulars Pre - Issue % Holding of Pre
no. Number of equity Issue
shares
1. |Promoter & Promoter Group™ 4,23,84,417 100.00
2. | Public 0 0.00
Total 4,23,84,417 100.00

*Note: Promoter and Promoter Group Shareholding include shares being held jointly or through nominee.

(G) Number/amount of equity shares proposed to be sold by Selling Shareholders, if any - Not Applicable
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V. AUDITED FINANCIALS STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

(Rs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS F.Y2018-19* F.Y2017-18* F.Y2016-17* F.Y2015-16 F.Y 2014-15
Total income from operations (net) 13,614.83 13,598.32 15,539.26 19,758.55 23,823.90
Net Profit / (Loss) before tax and (4,159.12) (10,745.75) (8,275.22) (6,819.48) (10,328.81)
extraordinary items

Net Profit / (Loss) after tax and (4,159.12) (10,745.75) (9,233.34) (8,330.30) (10,409.61)
extraordinary items

Equity Share Capital 4,238.44 4,238.44 4,238.44 4,088.92 4,088.92
Reserves and Surplus / Other Equity (18,197.13) (14,073.62) (3,330.44) (9,573.12) (1,066.62)
Net worth (13,958.69) (9,835.18) 908.00 (5484.20) 3,022.29
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) (9.81) (25.35) (22.58) (20.37) (25.46)
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) (9.81) (25.35) (22.58) (20.37) (25.46)
Return on net worth (%) (29.80) (109.26) (1016.89) (151.90) (344.43)
Net asset value per share (Rs.) (32.93) (23.20) 2.14 (13.41) 7.39

*Figures are based on the statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the Ind AS as prescribed u/s 133 of the Companies

Act, 2013.

VI. INTERNAL RISKFACTORS

The below mentioned risks are the top 6 risk factors:

The Resulting Company is party to certain litigations which if determined against it could adversely affects its financial

The Resulting Company is required to obtain certain approvals, licenses and permits in the ordinary course of business and
is required to comply with certain rules and regulations to operate the business and failure to obtain any such approvals,
licenses and permits or to comply with the rules and regulations in a timely manner may adversely affect the operations.

The success of the Resulting Company is largely dependent upon the knowledge and experience of its Promoters and Key
Management Personnel. Any loss of Key Management Personnel could adversely affect the business, operation and financial

The Resulting Company is exposed to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations which may impact its cash flow and

If the Resulting Company is unable to identify expansion opportunities or if the Resulting Company experiences delays
or other problems in implementing such projects, the Company’s growth, financial condition, cash flows and results of

" position and business operation.
2.
3.

conditions of the Resulting Company.
4.

operating and financial results.
5.

operations may be adversely affected.
6.

The Resulting Company has certain contingent liabilities which if materializes may adversely affect the financial position of
the Resulting Company.

VII. SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND REGULATORY ACTION

A.

Total number of outstanding litigations against the Company and amount involved

ARILisinvolved in 3 litigations against them. Total Amount involved in all the litigations, wherever quantifiable is Rs. 204.10
Crores.
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B. BriefDetails of top 5 material outstanding litigation against the Company and amount involved

Sr.
No

Particulars Litigation Filed Current Status Amount Involved
by (Rs. In Crores)

1.

Default in Repayment of loans Corporation Bank | The next date of the matter 81.24
is scheduled dated
19.12.2019 in National
Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai.

Non-Payment of service charges and Kalindee Rail The next date of the matter 5.86
Dishonour of Cheques for the services availed Nirman is scheduled dated
by the Company. 18.12.2019 in National
Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai.

Default in Repayment of loans Bank of India The next date of the matter 117
is scheduled dated
13.01.2020 in Debt
Recovery Tribunal, Delhi.

C. Regulatory Action, if any - disciplinary action taken by SEBI or stock exchanges against the Promoters / Group
companies in last 5 financial years including outstanding action, if any

Nil

D. Briefdetails of outstanding criminal proceedings against Promoters

Nil

VIII. OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

oUW e

7.

¢ Authority for the Scheme:
The Scheme has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on May 24, 2018. The samg

is subject to the approval from the SEBI, Shareholders, Stock Exchanges, National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Branch
Regional Director, Registrar of Companies, Official Liquidator and such other regulatory authorities, as may be applicable.

. Expert opinion obtained, if any:
Valuation Report and Fairness Opinion

. Documents for Inspection:

D Time and Place of Inspection of Documents:

Copies of the above mentioned Documents may be inspected at the Registered Office of our Company situated at 302, Ceejay
House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018 between 10.00 a.m. and 2.00 p.m
from Monday to Friday, except public holidays from the date of this Information Document until the Listing Approval.

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company

Audited Financial Statement for the last five Financial Years

Shareholding Pattern of the Company as on December 10, 2019

Draft Scheme of Amalgamation

Valuation Report issued by ZADN & Associates, Chartered Accountants

Fairness Opinion on Valuation Report issued by Chartered Capital and Investment Limited, SEBI registered Category I
Merchant Banker, having SEBI Permanent Registration No. INM000004018

Networth Certificate Pre and Post Scheme
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IX. DECLARATION

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Companies Act, 2013 and the guidelines/
regulations issued by the Government of India or the guidelines/regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India,
established under Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act 1992, as the case may be, have been complied with
and no statement made in this disclosure document is contrary to the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Companies Act,
2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, or rules made or guidelines or regulations issued there under, as the
case may be. We further certify that all statements in this disclosure document are true and correct.

For Arshiya Limited

Sd/-

Ajay Shankarlal Mittal
Managing Director
DIN: 00226355

Date : 26t February, 2021
Place : Mumbai
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ANNEXURE L

Following additional documents are required to be submitted for Demerger cases wherein a division of a listed company is
hived off into an unlisted company or where listed company is getting merged with an unlisted company:

1.

Clarification as to what will be listing status of the Resulting/Transferee Company/ies.

The New Equity Shares to be issued in terms of Scheme of Arrangement shall be listed and / or admitted to trading on the BSE
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited where the equity shares of the Demerged Company are listed.

Also Attached as an Annexure - XIII-A

Details of Assets and Liabilities of the Demerged division that are being transferred.
(In Crores)

Demerged division FY 2017-18
Assets:
a. Land 74.99
b. Trade Receivable: 00.24
Sundry Debtors
Total Assets 75.23
Liabilities:
a. GST Liabilities 00.04
b. Inter Division Loans 74.99
c. Profit & Loss retained earnings 00.20
Total Liabilities 75.23

Also Attached as an Annexure - XIII-B
Confirmation from the Managing Director/ Company Secretary, that:

a) There will be no change in Share Capital of the resulting/transferee company till the listing of the equity shares of the
company on BSE Limited.

b) The shares allotted by the resulting company pursuant to the Scheme shall remain frozen in the depositories system till
listing/trading permission is given by the designated stock exchange.

Attached as an Annexure - XIII-C

Confirmation by the Managing Director/ Company Secretary of the resulting/transferee company on the letter head of resulting
company that:

a) Equity shares issued by the company pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation/ arrangement shall be listed on the BSE
Limited, subject to SEBI granting relaxation from applicability under Rule 19(2) (b) of the Securities Contract (Regulation)
Rules, 1957.

b) The company shall comply with all the provisions contained in SEBI circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10,
2017.

c) The company shall also fulfill the Exchange’s criteria for listing and shall also comply with Rules, Byelaws, and Regulations
of the Exchange and other applicable statutory requirements.

Attached as an Annexure - XIII-D
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5.  Percentage of Net Worth of the company, that is being transferred in the form of demerged undertaking and percentage wise
contribution of the Demerged division to the total turnover and income of the company in the last two years as per the following

format:
(Rs. in crores)
Particulars Financial Net worth % to total Turnover % to total Profit after % to total
Year Tax

Demerged 2017-18 75.19 6.41% 0.20 0.23% 0.20 0.38%
division 2016-17 - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
FTWZ 2017-18 1,097.71 93.59% 85.22 99.77% 51.79 99.62%
Divisions 2016-17 (102.50) 100.00% 75.81 100.00% (105.35) 100.00%
Total 2017-18 1,172.91 100.00% 85.42 100.00% 51.99 100.00%

2016-17 (102.50) 100.00% 75.81 100.00% (105.35) 100.00%

FOR ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Navnit Choudhary

Director
DIN: 00613576

Date: 4" February, 2019
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Pre De-merger Shareholding Pattern of Resulting Company
(Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited)

Annexure M

Sr. | Name of the Shareholders Address Number of % of Amount per
No. Shares Holding share
(InRs.)
1 | Arshiya Limited 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar 4,23,83,817 100.00 10
Estate, F-Block, Dr. A. B. Road, Worli,
Mumbai- 400 018
2 | Mr. Ajay S Mittal Mittal Bhavan, 62-A ,Pedder Road, 100 - 10
(Nominee of Arshiya Limited) Mumbai-400 026
3 | Mrs. Archana A Mittal Mittal Bhavan, 62-A ,Pedder Road, 100 - 10
(Nominee of Arshiya Limited) Mumbai-400 026
4 | Arshiya Limited jointly with Mr. Navnit | 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar 100 - 10
Choudhary Estate, F-Block, Dr. A. B. Road, Worlj,
Mumbai- 400 018
5 | Arshiya Limited jointly with Mr. Navin | 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar 100 - 10
Saraf Estate, F-Block, Dr. A. B. Road, Worli,
Mumbai- 400 018
6 | Arshiya Limited jointly with Mrs. Joyce | 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar 100 - 10
Collaco Estate, F-Block, Dr. A. B. Road, Worli,
Mumbai- 400 018
7 | Arshiya Limited jointly with Mrs. Mini | 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar 100 - 10
Suresh Estate, F-Block, Dr. A. B. Road, Worlj,
Mumbai- 400 018
Total 4,23,84,417 100.00

For ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Navnit Choudhary
Director
DIN: 00613576
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Post De-merger Shareholding Pattern of Resulting Company
(Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited)

206



L0¢C

Table [ SUMMARY STATEMENT HOLDING OF SPECIFIED SECURITIES
Categ | Category No.s of No. of No.sof | No.of Total nos. Share Number of Votting Rights No. of Share Number of Number of Number of
ory |of Share fully Partly | shares shares holding held in each class of Shares holding, Locked in Shares equity
m share holders paid up paid- unde held asa % of securities Under asa% shares pledged or shares
holder (1) equity up rlying (vin= total (IX) lying assuming (X1) otherwise held
(I Share equity Depo (IV)+(Vv) no. of No of Voting Total | Out stating full encumbered in
held Share sitory +(VI) shares Rights asa conver conversion (X1 dema
(v) held | Receipts (calculated Class Class Total % of tible of No. Asa% No. Asa%/| terialized
m (vn as per Equity Others (A+ securities | convertible (a) of (@) of form
SCRR, X y B+(C) (including | securities( total total (X1v)
1957) Warrants) asa% shares shares
(v X) of diluted held held
As a % of share (b) (b)
(A+B+C2) capital)
(D=
(VID+(X)
As a % of
(A+B+C2)
(A) Promoter & 2 63458113 0 0 63458113 51.58 63458113 0 63458113 51.58 0.00 51.58( 10000000 15.76| 63458113| 100.00 63458113
Promoter
Group
(B) | Public 9590 59564220 0 0 59564220 48.42 59564220 0 59564220 48.42 0.00 48.42 1218187 2.05 NA NA 59389483
(C) [ Non 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 NA NA
Promoter-
Non Public
(C1) | Shares 0 0 0 0 0 NA 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 NA NA
underlying
DRs
(C2) | Shares 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0 NA NA 0
held by
Employee
Trusts
Total 9592 | 123022333 0 0| 123022333 100| 123022333 0| 123022333| 100.00 0.00 100.00| 11218187 9.12| 63458113 51.58| 122847595
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Table Il - STATEMENT SHOWING SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE PROMOTER AND PROMOTER GROUP

Category & PAN No of No of Partly No. of Total nos. Share Number of Voting Rights No. of Shareholding, Number of Number of Number of
Name of the (Im Share fully paid-up | shares shares holding held in each class of Shares as a % assuming Locked in Shares equity
shareholders holders paid up equity under held % securities Underlying | full conversion shares pledged or shares held
(U] (1) equity Share lying (vin= calculated (IX) Outstating | of convertible (X1m) otherwise in
Shares held Depo (vy+ (V)+ as per No of Voting Total convertible | securities(as encumbered d.en.la
held (W] sitory vn SCRR,1957 Rights asa securities a% (XII1) terialized
(v) Receipts As a % of % of (including | ofdiluted share No. Asa No. | Asa % of form
) (A+B+(2) ECl:iSS Oct':::S Total | a+Bacy | Warrants) capital) @ %of | (@) | total x1v)
(Vi) qX ty x) (XD)=(VID)+(X) total shares
y Asa % of shares held
(A+B+C2) held ®)
(b)
1 Indian
(@) Individuals/Hindu undivided Family
ARCHANA AAGPM6545C 1 44279894 0 0 44279894 3599 | 44279894 0 44279894 | 35.9934 0 35.9934 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 44279894
MITTAL
AJAY AAGPM6550R 1 19178219 0 0 19178219 15.59| 19178219 0 19178219 15.5892 0 15.5892 | 11218187 0.0000 0 0.0000 19178219
SHANKARLAL
MITTAL
Total 2 63458113 0 0 63458113 51.58 | 63458113 0| 63458113 | 51.5826 0 51.5826 0| 0.0000 0 0.0000 63458113
(b) | Central Government/State Government(s)
0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0.0000 0.0000 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0| 0.0000 0 0.0000 0
() Financial Institutions/Banks
0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0.0000 0.0000 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0| 0.0000 0 0.0000 0
Sub-Total (A)(1) 2 63458113 0 0 63458113 51.58 | 63458113 0| 63458113 | 51.5826 0 51.5826 0| 0.0000 0| 100.0000 63458113
2 Foreign
(a) | Individuals(Non-Resident Individuals/Foreign Individuals)
0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0| 0.0000 0 0.0000 0
(b) | Government
0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0.0000 0.0000 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0| 0.0000 0 0.0000 0
() Institutions
0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0.0000 0.0000 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0| 0.0000 0 0.0000 0
(d) | Foreign Portfolio Investor
0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0| 0.0000 0 0.0000 0
Sub-Total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0| 0.0000 0 0.0000 0
Total 2 63458113 0 0 63458113 51.58 | 63458113 0| 63458113 | 51.5826 0 51.5826 0| 0.0000 0 0.0000 63458113
Shareholding
of Promoter
and Promoter
Group (A) = (A)
1)+(4)(2)

Details of Shares which remain unclaimed may be given hear along with details such as number of shareholders, outstanding shares held in demat/unclaimed suspense account, voting rights which are frozen etc.

Note:

(1) PAN would not be displayed on website of Stock Exchange(s).
(2) The term “Encumbrance” has the same meaning as assigned under regulation 28(3) of SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.”
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Table III - STATEMENT SHOWING SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE PUBLIC SHAREHOLDER

Category & Name PAN No.s of No. of Partly | No.sof | Total nos. Share Number of Voting Rights No. of Total Number of Number of Number of
of the (I Share fully paid-up | shares shares holding held in each class of Shares Share holding, Locked in shares Shares equity
shareholders holders | paid up equity | underl held % securities Underlying asa% (X1I) pledged or shares held
(U] () equity Share ying (vim= calculated (IX) Outstating assuming otherwise in
Share held Depos | (IV)+ (V)+ as per No of Voting Total convertible | full conversion encumbered demat
held (W] itory vn SCRR,1957) Rights asa securities | of convertible (XII1) erialized
vy Receipts As a % of % of (including securities ( form
vn (A+B+C2) Class | Class | Total Total | Warrants) asa No. [Asa%eof |  No. Asa (X1v)
(viy” Equity | Others Voting X) percentage (@) total | (Notappli | % of
X y Rights of diluted shares cable) total
share held (@) shares
capital) (b) held
(XD)=(VID)+(X) (b)
As a % of
(A+B+C2)
1 Institutions
(a) | Mutual Funds 1 12500 0 0 12500 0.01 12500 0 12500 0.01 0 0.01 0 0.00 NA NA 0
(b) | Venture Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
Funds
(c) | Alternate Investment 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
Funds
(d) | Foreign Venture 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
Capital Investors
(e) Foreign Portfolio 1 661494 0 0 661494 0.54 661494 0 661494 0.54 0 0.54 0 0.00 NA NA 661494
Investors
(6] Financial Institution/ 2 1822500 0 0 1822500 1.48 1822500 0 1822500 1.48 0 1.48 0 0.00 NA NA 1822500
Banks
IDFC BANK LIMITED | AADCI6523Q 1 1387500 0 0 1387500 1.13 1387500 0 1387500 1.13 0 1.13 0 0.00 NA NA 1387500
(g) Insurance 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
Companies
(h) | Provident Funds/ 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
Pension Funds
SUB TOTAL (B)(1) 4 2496494 0 0 2496494 2.03 | 2496494 0| 2496494 2.03 0 2.03 0 0.00 NA NA 2496494
2 Central / State
government(s)
(a) | Central 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
Government/ State
Government(s)/
President of India
SUB TOTAL (B)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
3 Non-institutions
(a.1) | Individuals - i. 9174 5242285 0 0 5242285 4.26 5242285 0 5242285 4.26 0 4.26 73313 0.06 NA NA | 5242284.50
Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share
capital up to Rs. 2
lakhs.
(a.2) | INDIVIDUAL 46 9095704 0 0 9095704 7.39 9095704 0 9095704 7.39 0 7.39 | 1144874 0.93 NA NA 9095704
- ii. Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share
capital in excess of
Rs. 2 lakhs.
NAISHADH AAAPP9781B 1 1488135 0 0 1488135 1.21 1488135 0 1488135 1.21 0 1.21 0 0.00 NA NA 1488135
JAWAHAR PALEJA




01¢

Category & Name PAN No.s of No. of Partly | No.sof | Total nos. Share Number of Voting Rights No. of Total Number of Number of Number of
of the (m Share fully paid-up | shares shares holding held in each class of Shares Share holding, Locked in shares Shares equity
shareholders holders | paid up equity | underl held % securities Underlying asa% (X1 pledged or shares held
(U] () equity Share ying (vin= calculated (IX) Outstating assuming otherwise in
Share held Depos | (IV)+ (V)+ as per No of Voting Total convertible | full conversion encumbered demat
held (W] itory vn SCRR,1957) Rights asa securities | of convertible (X111) erialized
vy Receipts As a % of % of (including securities ( form
vn (A+B+C2) Class | Class | Total Total | Warrants) asa No. [Asa%eof | No. Asa (x1v)
viy” Equity | Others Voting X) percentage (@) total [ (Notappli | % of
X y Rights of diluted shares cable) total
share held (@) shares
capital) (b) held
(XD)=(VID)+(X) (b)
As a % of
(A+B+C2)
(b) | NBFCs registered 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
with RBI
(c) Employee Trusts 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 NA NA 0
(d) | Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0 2.03 0 0.00 NA NA 0
Depositories
(holding DRs)
(balancing figure)
(e) | Any Other(BODIES 164 40017275 0 0| 40017275 32.53 | 40017275 0| 40017275 32.53 0 32.53 0 0.00 NA NA 40017275
CORPORATE)
ECAP EQUITIES AABCE8997N 1 4867500 0 0 4867500 3.96 4867500 0 4867500 3.96 0 3.96 0 0.00 NA NA 4867500
LIMITED
EDELWEISS ASSET | AAATE7452N 1 3914215 0 0 3914215 3.18 3914215 0 3914215 3.18 0 3.18 0 0.00 NA NA 3914215
RECONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LIMITED
EDELWEISS ASSET | AAATE6688G 1 1250476 0 0 1250476 1.02 1250476 0 1250476 1.02 0 1.02 0 0.00 NA NA 1250476
RECONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LIMITED
EDELWEISS ASSET | AAATE6841P 1 2008954 0 0 2008954 1.63 2008954 0 2008954 1.63 0 1.63 0 0.00 NA NA 2008954
RECONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LIMITED
EDELWEISS ASSET | AAATE6490L 1 2079638 0 0 2079638 1.69 2079638 0 2079638 1.69 0 1.69 0 0.00 NA NA 2079638
RECONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LIMITED
EDELWEISS ASSET | AAATE7680C 1 4967701 0 0 4967701 4.04 4967701 0 4967701 4.04 0 4.04 0 0.00 NA NA 4967701
RECONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LIMITED
EDELWEISS ASSET | AAATE6570B 1 2188095 0 0 2188095 1.78 2188095 0 2188095 1.78 0 1.78 0 0.00 NA NA 2188095
RECONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LIMITED
EDELWEISS ASSET | AAATE6849F 1 1717160 0 0 1717160 1.40 1717160 0 1717160 1.40 0 1.40 0 0.00 NA NA 1717160
RECONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LIMITED
EDELWEISS ASSET | AAATE6341A 1 1676195 0 0 1676195 1.36 1676195 0 1676195 1.36 0 1.36 0 0.00 NA NA 1676195
RECONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LIMITED
EDELWEISS ASSET AAATE7922P 1 6429215 0 0 6429215 523 6429215 0 6429215 5.23 0 5.23 0 0.00 NA NA 6429215
RECONSTRUCTION
COMPANY LTD
(e) Any 47 711476 0 0 711476 0.58 711476 0 711476 0.58 0 0.58 0 0.00 NA NA 711476
Other(CLEARING
MEMBER)
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Category & me PAN No.s of No. d Partly | No.sof | Totalnos. Share Number of Voting Rights No. of Total Number of Number of Number of
of the (Im Share fully paid-up | shares shares holding held in each class of Shares Share holding, Locked in shares Shares equity
shareholders holders | paid equity | underl held % securities Underlying asa% (X1 pledged or shares held
m (I equity Share ying (vin= calculated (IXx) Outstating assuming otherwise in
Share held Depos | (IV)+ (V)+ as per No of Voting Total convertible | full conversion encumbered demat
held (W] itory vn SCRR,1957) Rights asa securities | of convertible (X111) erialized
vy Receipts As a % of % of (including securities ( form
vn (A+B+C2) Class | Class | Total Total | Warrants) asa No. [Asa%eof | No. Asa (x1v)
viy” Equity | Others Voting X) percentage (@) total [ (Notappli | % of
X y Rights of diluted shares cable) total
share held (@) shares
capital) (b) held
(XD=(VI)+(X) (b)
As a % of
(A+B+C2)
(e) | Any 2 3000 0 0 3000 0.00 3000 0 3000 0.00 0 523 0 0.00 NA NA 3000
Other(DIRECTORS
RELATIVES)
(e) | Any 8 8776 0 0 8776 0.01 8776 0 8776 0.01 0 0.01 0 0.00 NA NA 8776
Other(EMPLOYEE)
(e) | Any Other(FOREIGN 4 150000 0 0 150000 0.12 150000 0 150000 0.12 0 0.12 0 0.00 NA NA 25000
NATIONALS)
(e) | Any Other(NON 41 327957 0 0 327957 0.27 327957 0 327957 0.27 0 0.27 0 0.00 NA NA 327957
RESIDENT INDIANS
(NON REPAT))
(e) | Any Other(NON 97 377694 0 0 377694 0.31 377694 0 377694 0.31 0 5.23 0 0.00 NA NA 327957
RESIDENT INDIANS
(REPAT))
(e) | Any 3 1133560 0 0 1133560 0.92 1133560 0 1133560 0.92 0 5.23 0 0.00 NA NA 1133560
Other(OVERSEAS
BODIES
CORPORATES)
SUBTOTAL (B)(3) 9586 57067726 0 0| 57067726 46.39 [ 57067726 057067726 46.39 0 46.39 | 1218187 0.99 NA NA 56892989
Total Public 9590 59564220 0 0| 59564220 48.42 | 59564220 0 | 59564220 48.42 0 48.42 | 1218187 0.99 NA NA 59389483
Shareholding (B) =
(B)(1)+(B)(2)+(B)
(3)

Details of the shareholders acting as persons in Concert including their Shareholding (No. and %): 0

“Details of Shares which remain unclaimed may be given hear along with details such as number of shareholders, outstanding shares held in demat/unclaimed suspense account, voting rights which are frozen etc.

Note:

(1) PAN would not be displayed on website of Stock Exchange(s).

(2) The above format needs to be disclosed along with the name of following persons:

Institutions/Non Institutions holding more than 1% of total number of shares.”
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Table 1\ - STATEMENT SHOWING SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE NON PROMOTER - NON
Category 4 PAN | No. oKo. oPfartly | No.s oTfotal no. Share Number of Votting Rights No. of Total Number of Number of Number of
Name of | (dh)e| Share fy lypaid- | shares | shares holding held in each class of Shares Shareholding, Locked in Shares equity
shareholders holders | paid up under held % securities Underlying asa% shares pledged or shares
m (1) up equity | lying (vin= calculated (IX) Outstating assuming (X1I) otherwise held
equity [ Share | Deposi (v)+ as per No of Voting Total | convertible [ full conversion encumbered in
Share | held tory W)+ SCRR,1957) Rights asa securities | of convertible (XI1I) dema
held (V) | Receipts (v As a % of o of | (including | securities( as | No. | Asa % No. Asa % of | terialized
() (VD (A+B+C2) (A+B | Warrants) a% @) of (Not total form
(v +C) (X) of diluted share total | applicable) | sharesheld | (XIV)
Class | Class | Total capital) shares (a) (Not
Equity | Others (XN)=(VI)+(X) held applicable)
X y As a % of (b) (b)
(A+B+C2)
Custodian/DR
Holder
0 0 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 |0 0.0000 0 0.0000 | NA NA 0
“Total Non 0 0 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 |0 0.0000 0 0.0000 | NA NA 0
Promoter-
Non Public
Shareholding
(@)=
W+A@)”
“Note
(1) PAN would not be displayed on website of Stock Exchange(s).
(2) The above format needs to disclose bame of all holders holding more than 1% of total number of shares.
(3) W.r.t.the information pertaining to Depository Receipts, the same may be disclosed in the respective columns to the extent information available.”

Table V- STATEMENT SHOWING DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT BENEFICIAL OWNERS

Sr.No

Details of the significant beneficial owner

Details of the registered owner

Details of holding/ exercise of right of the SBO in the reporting company,

Date of creation /
acquisition of significant
beneficial interest*

av)

m (m whether direct or indirect *:
(1]
Whether by virtue of:
Name PAN/ Nationality Name PAN/ Nationality Shares % Voting Rights on Exercise of Exercise of

Passport Passport rights % distributable control significant
No. in case No. in case dividend or influence
of a foreign of a foreign any other

national national distribution
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED ArShlya
CIN: U93000MH2008PLC180907
Reg. Off: 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018
T:+91 22 42305500/02 F: +91 22 4230 5555
E-mail: info@arshiyalimited.com [ Website: www.arshiyalimited.

FORM NO. MGT-11 (PROXY FORM)
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Meeting of all the Secured Creditors of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“the Company”)

(Convened Pursuant to The Order Dated 26" Day Of February, 2021 Passed By The Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench)

Time & Date: 01:00 p.m.(1300 Hrs), Saturday, 20" March, 2021

Venue: 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-block,
Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai-400018

Name of the Secured Creditor (s):

Registered Address:

E-mail Id:

I/We, being the Secured Creditor (s) for Rs of the above-named company, hereby appoint

R \ - ' U= OO RSP

L2300 = 11 OSSO SPSTPN

o Lo L CT] oS PRSP

Signature: , Or failing him/her

/78 - V' o U PP
L2300 = 11 8 TSROSO
o [a =Ty OO P P UPPPTSN

Signature: Or failing him/her

N - o' U< OO
L2300 = 11 8 TSP
AT ESS: ..ttt ettt ettt e ee e tte e et e e et e e eteeeateeea teaasaee et ae esaeaatesenteeehate et aeeestes eeeen sheeentesenntesennee et teeeeeen eheeen teeenneesenae e beeraenaentnraees

I0) 14 U0 PSP
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as my/our proxy to attend and vote, in case of a poll, for me/us and on my/our behalf at the said Meeting of the Company, to be held
on Saturday, the 20" March, 2021 at 01.00 p.m. (1300 Hrs) at 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-block, Dr. Annie Besant
Road, Worli, Mumbai-400018and at any adjournment thereof in respect of resolutions are indicated below:

Item Resolutions Outstanding I assent to the I dissent from the
No. Amount owed resolution resolution
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

1 | Approval of Composite Scheme of Arrangement Between
Arshiya Limited And Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
And Their Respective Shareholders And Creditors.

**This is only optional Please put a Vin the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. Alternatively you may
mention the Outstanding amount owed to you in the appropriate column in respect of which you would like your proxy to vote, if

you leave all the columns blank against any or all the resolutions your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks
appropriate.

Affix

. . Revenue
Signed this day of 2021 Stamp

Rs.1/-

Signature of Secured Creditor:

Signature of Proxy holder(s):

Notes:

1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the said meeting
A proxy need not be a Secured Creditor of the company.

2) In case the appointer is a body corporate the proxy form should be signed under its seal or be signed by an office or an attorney
duly authorized by it and an authenticated copy of such authorization should be attached to the proxy form.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED ArShlya
CIN: U93000MH2008PLC180907
Reg. Off: 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018
T:+91 22 42305500/02 F: +91 22 4230 5555

E-mail: info@arshiyalimited.com [ Website: www.arshiyalimited.com

Attendance Slip for Meeting of all the Secured Creditors of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“the Company”).

(Convened Pursuant to The Order Dated 26" Day Of February, 2021 Passed By The Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench)

I, a Secured Creditor/ proxy / authorised representative for a such Creditor of the Company, hereby record my presence at the said
Meeting of the Company on Saturday, the 20t March, 2021 at 01:00 p.m.(1300 Hrs) at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar
Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018, Maharashtra.

Name and Address of the Secured Creditor

If Secured Creditor(s) please sign here If Proxy, please mention name and sign here
Name of Proxy Signature

Notes:

(1) Secured Creditors / Proxy holders as the case may be are requested to produce the attendance slip duly signed at the Meeting
entrance.

(2) Said creditors holding slip in physical form, are requested to advise change in their address, if any, to the Registered address of
the Company as mentioned above.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED ArShlya
CIN: U93000MH2008PLC180907
Regd Off: - 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400 018
Tel: 022 4230 5500 Fax: 022 4230 5555
E-mail: info@arshiyalimited.com Website: www.arshiyalimited.com

Meeting of all the Secured Creditors of Arshiya Rail
Infrastructure Limited (“the Resulting Company”)

(Convened Pursuant to The Order Dated 26t February, 2021 Passed By The Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench)

Time & Date for Secured Creditors: 01:00 p.m. (1300 Hrs), Saturday, 20th March, 2021
Venue: 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400 018.
BALLOT PAPER
[Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1) (c) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Company: Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
Registered office: 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400 018

Sl. | Particulars Details
No.
1. | Name of the Secured Creditor (In block
letters)

Postal address

3. | Class of Creditor Secured
(Please tick appropriate box)

I hereby exercise my vote in respect of resolutions enumerated below by recording my assent or dissent to the said resolution in the
following manner:

Item Resolutions Outstanding I assent to the I dissent from the
No. Amount owed resolution resolution
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

1 | Approval of Composite Scheme of Arrangement Between
Arshiya Limited and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
and Their Respective Shareholders And Creditors.

Date:

Place:

(Signature of the Secured/Unsecured Creditor)
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NOTES




If undelivered return to:

Arshiya
ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block,
Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018



